
                   

 
 

Central Pine Barrens Commission Meeting Agenda 
Wednesday, May 21, 2025 at 2:00 pm 

Riverhead Town Hall 
4 West 2nd Street, Riverhead, NY 11901 

 
 

1. Administrative and Public Comment 
a. Public Comment 
b. Minutes for Commission Meeting of 4/16/25 review (approve) 
c. Draft resolution to approve ATV purchase for Suffolk County Parks (Ms. Jakobsen) 
d. Draft resolution to approve purchase of ATV purchase for Suffolk County Sheriff’s Office 

(Ms. Jakobsen) 
e. Draft resolution to approve renewal of Prescribed Fire insurance policy (Ms. Jakobsen) 

 
2. Education and Science and Stewardship 

a. USGS-Commission five year water resources study presentation (Ms. Fisher, USGS scientist) 
 

3. Planning, Land Use and the Pine Barrens Credit Program 
 
Core Preservation Area and Compatible Growth Area 
 
a. PSEG-LI Request for Determination:  Replace three timber utility poles in the hamlets of 

Shoreham and Calverton / (Ms. Hargrave) 
 
Core Preservation Area 
 
b. Schiff Scout Reservation Camp Wauwepex / Wading River / 600-75-3-10.3 / request to 

replace eight lean-tos with five cabins on a 404.53 acre property with a conservation 
easement in the Credit Program / draft response (Mr. Tverdyy) 

 
Compatible Growth Area 
 
c. Brookhaven Town Board Referral: Crest Coram 7-11 Site Plan / State Route 25 and 

State Route 112 / 200-476-2-30, 32.1, 34.1 / change of zone from J6 Business and A1 
Residence to J5 Business for the development of a gas station and convenience store 2.11 
acres / draft response (Ms. Murphy) 

d. Starbucks at Middle Island CGA Hardship Waiver Application / 599 Middle Country 
Road, Middle Island / 200-402-2-2 / zone change and site plan for development of a drive-
through restaurant with an existing vacant bank building on 1.4 acres in the J4 Business 
zoning district / decision deadline 8/2/25 / schedule public hearing for 6/18/25 (Ms. Murphy) 

e. Verizon Wireless at Suffolk County STP / 2195 William Floyd Parkway, Ridge /  
200-242-1-1.2, 1.4 / development of a 120 foot tall wireless tower monopole with 12 external 
future carrier antennas and equipment compound on 10.59 acres with an existing sewage 
treatment plant in the A1 Residence zoning district / draft response (Ms. Hargrave) 
 

4. Public Hearing at 3:00 pm  
 

a. Homeland Towers Compelling Public Need Core Hardship Application / 2055 Flanders 
Road, Flanders / 900-170-1-41.1 / development of a 150 foot tall wireless tower for eight 
carrier antennas including Verizon, Dish Wireless and two future carriers and a 3,000 square 
foot equipment compound on a 6.18 acre project site with a junkyard in the CR 60 zoning 
district / decision deadline 7/16/25 or 8/20/25 (Ms. Hargrave) 
 

5. Public Comment 
 
6. Closed Advisory Session (if necessary) 
 

Next Commission Meeting, Wednesday, June 18, 2025 at 2:00 pm, Riverhead Town Hall 
For meeting information visit https://pb.state.ny.us/ 

 
 
 
 
 

Timothy C. Hubbard 
Member  

 
Maria Z. Moore 

Member 
 

Daniel J. Panico 
Member 

 
Edward P. Romaine 

Member 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

624 Old Riverhead Road 
Westhampton Beach, NY 

11978 
 

Phone (631) 288-1079 
Fax (631) 288-1367 
www.pb.state.ny.us 

https://pb.state.ny.us/
http://www.pb.state.ny.us/


N
.

Y
.

S
.

R
o

u
t

e
2

5
A

L o
 n 

g  
I s

 l a
 n 

d  
S o

 u 
n d

A t
 l a

 n 
t i 

c  
  O

 c 
e a

 n

P e
 c 

o n
 i c

B a
  y

S
unri

se
H

ighw
a

y
N

.Y
.S

.
R

o
u

te
27

L
o

n
g

Is
la

nd

E
x

p
re

ss
w

ay

49
5

North
Ocean

Avenue
C.R.

83

So
un

d
A

ve
nu

e

M
id

dl
eC

ou
nt

ry
R

oa
d

N
YS

Ro
ut

e
25

C.
R.

11
1

C. R 21

CR51

C. R. 104 C.R.31

Sills
Rd.

C.R.101

N
.Y

. S
.

25

O
ld

Co
un

try

Rd
.

B 
R 

O
 O

 K
 H

 A
 V

 E
 N

R 
I V

 E
 R

 H
 E

 A
 D

C
a r

m a n s R i v e r

Peconic

R
i v

e
r

Schultz Road

W a d i n g R i v e r R o a d

N.
Y.

S.
Ro

ut
e

2 4
Fl

an
de

rs
Ro

ad

Le
wis

Road

27

R
O

C
K

Y
PO

IN
T

W
A

D
IN

G
R

IV
ER

C
A

LV
ER

TO
N

R
IV

ER
H

E
AD

FL
AN

D
ER

S

C
O

R
A

M

R
ID

G
E

M
A

N
O

R
V

IL
LE

W
E

ST
H

AM
PT

O
N

M
ID

D
LE

IS
LA

N
D

YA
P

H
AN

K

SO
U

TH
M

A
N

O
R

BR
O

O
K

H
AV

E
N

M
IL

LE
R

PL
A

C
E

PA
TC

H
O

G
U

E

SH
IR

LE
Y

EA
S

TP
O

R
T

M
E

D
FO

R
D

EA
S

T
Q

U
O

G
U

E

H
A

M
P

TO
N

BA
Y

S

25

27

24

25
A

25
A

RockyPointRoad

William

Flo

yd
Parkway

WilliamFloyd
Parkway

So
ut

h
Co

un
try

R
oa

d

M 
o r

 i c
 h 

e s
    

B a
 y

G 
r e

 a 
t   

S 
o u

 t h
B a

 y

11
2

L 
o 

n 
g 

   
   

   
I s

 l 
a 

n 
d 

   
   

  R
 a

 i 
l r

 o
 a

 d

L 
o 

n 
g 

   
   

   
I s

 l 
a 

n 
d 

   
   

  R
 a

 i 
l r

 o
 a 

d

L 
o 

n 
g 

   
   

   
I s

 l 
a 

n 
d 

   
   

  R
 a

 i 
l r

 o
 a 

d

M
o

n
t a

u k
H

i g
h

w
a

y

Speonk-RiverheadRoad

S
O

U
T

H
A

M
P

T
O

N

Ve
riz

on
 W

ire
le

ss
 a

t S
uf

fo
lk

 C
ou

nt
y 

ST
P H
om

el
an

d 
To

w
er

s 
C

or
e 

H
ar

ds
hi

p 
Ap

pl
ic

at
io

n

Br
oo

kh
av

en
 T

ow
n 

Bo
ar

d 
R

ef
er

ra
l:

C
re

st
 C

or
am

 7
-1

1 
Si

te
 P

la
n

Sc
hi

ff 
Sc

ou
t R

es
er

va
tio

n
C

am
p 

W
au

w
ep

ex St
ar

bu
ck

s 
at

 M
id

dl
e 

Is
la

nd
C

G
A 

H
ar

ds
hi

p 
W

ai
ve

r A
pp

lic
at

io
n

N
.

Y
.

S
.

R
o

u
t

e
2

5
A

L o
 n 

g  
I s

 l a
 n 

d  
S o

 u 
n d

A t
 l a

 n 
t i 

c  
  O

 c 
e a

 n

P e
 c 

o n
 i c

B a
  y

S
unri

se
H

ighw
a

y
N

.Y
.S

.
R

o
u

te
27

L
o

n
g

Is
la

nd

E
x

p
re

ss
w

ay

49
5

North
Ocean

Avenue
C.R.

83

So
un

d
A

ve
nu

e

M
id

dl
eC

ou
nt

ry
R

oa
d

N
YS

Ro
ut

e
25

C.
R.

11
1

C. R 21

CR51

C. R. 104 C.R.31

Sills
Rd.

C.R.101

N
.Y

. S
.

25

O
ld

Co
un

try

Rd
.

B 
R 

O
 O

 K
 H

 A
 V

 E
 N

R 
I V

 E
 R

 H
 E

 A
 D

C
a r

m a n s R i v e r

Peconic

R
i v

e
r

Schultz Road

W a d i n g R i v e r R o a d

N.
Y.

S.
Ro

ut
e

2 4
Fl

an
de

rs
Ro

ad

Le
wis

Road

27

R
O

C
K

Y
PO

IN
T

W
A

D
IN

G
R

IV
ER

C
A

LV
ER

TO
N

R
IV

ER
H

E
AD

FL
AN

D
ER

S

C
O

R
A

M

R
ID

G
E

M
A

N
O

R
V

IL
LE

W
E

ST
H

AM
PT

O
N

M
ID

D
LE

IS
LA

N
D

YA
P

H
AN

K

SO
U

TH
M

A
N

O
R

BR
O

O
K

H
AV

E
N

M
IL

LE
R

PL
A

C
E

PA
TC

H
O

G
U

E

SH
IR

LE
Y

EA
S

TP
O

R
T

M
E

D
FO

R
D

EA
S

T
Q

U
O

G
U

E

H
A

M
P

TO
N

BA
Y

S

25

27

24

25
A

25
A

RockyPointRoad

William

Flo

yd
Parkway

WilliamFloyd
Parkway

So
ut

h
Co

un
try

R
oa

d

M 
o r

 i c
 h 

e s
    

B a
 y

G 
r e

 a 
t   

S 
o u

 t h
B a

 y

11
2

L 
o 

n 
g 

   
   

   
I s

 l 
a 

n 
d 

   
   

  R
 a

 i 
l r

 o
 a

 d

L 
o 

n 
g 

   
   

   
I s

 l 
a 

n 
d 

   
   

  R
 a

 i 
l r

 o
 a 

d

L 
o 

n 
g 

   
   

   
I s

 l 
a 

n 
d 

   
   

  R
 a

 i 
l r

 o
 a 

d

M
o

n
t a

u k
H

i g
h

w
a

y

Speonk-RiverheadRoad

S
O

U
T

H
A

M
P

T
O

N

Ve
riz

on
 W

ire
le

ss
 a

t S
uf

fo
lk

 C
ou

nt
y 

ST
P H
om

el
an

d 
To

w
er

s 
C

or
e 

H
ar

ds
hi

p 
Ap

pl
ic

at
io

n

Br
oo

kh
av

en
 T

ow
n 

Bo
ar

d 
R

ef
er

ra
l:

C
re

st
 C

or
am

 7
-1

1 
Si

te
 P

la
n

Sc
hi

ff 
Sc

ou
t R

es
er

va
tio

n
C

am
p 

W
au

w
ep

ex St
ar

bu
ck

s 
at

 M
id

dl
e 

Is
la

nd
C

G
A 

H
ar

ds
hi

p 
W

ai
ve

r A
pp

lic
at

io
n

N
ot

e:
 T

hi
s m

ap
 is

 in
te

nd
ed

 fo
r g

en
er

al
 re

fe
re

nc
e 

on
ly

 a
nd

 is
 n

ot
 to

 b
e 

us
ed

 fo
r

su
rv

ey
in

g,
 le

ga
l i

nt
er

pr
et

at
io

n 
of

 ju
ris

di
ct

io
na

l b
ou

nd
ar

ie
s, 

or
 o

th
er

 p
re

ci
se

 p
ur

po
se

s.
In

fo
rm

at
io

n 
sh

ow
n 

on
 th

is
 m

ap
 m

ay
 c

on
ta

in
 d

ef
ec

ts
, e

rr
or

s, 
an

d/
or

 o
m

is
si

on
s.

Re
fe

r t
o 

N
Y

S 
EC

L 
A

rtr
ic

le
 5

7-
01

07
 (1

0)
, (

11
), 

an
d 

(1
2)

 fo
r t

he
 o

ffi
ci

al
 d

es
cr

ip
tio

n 
of

 th
e

Ce
nt

ra
l P

in
e 

B
ar

re
ns

 b
ou

nd
ar

ie
s. 

Pr
ep

ar
ed

 b
y 

C
om

m
is

si
on

 S
ta

ff 
(jt

) M
ay

 1
3,

 2
02

5.

SI
TE

S 
FO

R 
D

IS
C

U
SS

IO
N

 A
T 

CE
N

TR
A

L 
PI

N
E 

BA
RR

EN
S 

CO
M

M
IS

SI
O

N
 M

EE
TI

N
G

 O
F 

M
ay

 2
1,

 2
02

5

3.
5

0
3.

5
1.

75
M

ile
s

C
om

pa
tib

le
 G

ro
w

th
 A

re
a

C
or

e 
Pr

es
er

va
tio

n 
A

re
a

C
en

tra
l P

in
e 

B
ar

re
ns

 A
re

a

R
oa

d,
 H

ig
hw

ay

µ



                   

1 
FINAL 4/16/2025 COMMISSION MEETING SUMMARY (DRAFT) 

Central Pine Barrens Commission Meeting Summary 
Wednesday, April 16, 2025 (Draft) 

Southampton Town Hall 
116 Hampton Road 

Southampton, NY 11968 
 

2:00 pm 
 
 
 

Commission members present: Ms. DiBrita (for Brookhaven), Ms. Juengst (for Suffolk County), 
Ms. Moore and Ms. Scherer (for Southampton), Mr. Hubbard and Mr. Charters (for Riverhead) 
 
Others present: Commission and other agency staff members included Ms. Jakobsen, Mr. 
Milazzo, Ms. Hargrave, Mr. Tverdyy, Ms. Murphy, Mr. Motz, Ms. Lawston, Mr. Hansen, Mr. Ward, 
Ms. Drew and Ms. Brown-Walton 
 
The meeting started with the pledge to the flag lead by Ms. Moore and Ms. Jakobsen noted with 
four Commission members present, there is a quorum. 

 
 

1. Administrative and Public Comment 
a. Public Comment   

Summary: No public comments were received 
 

b. Minutes for 03/19/25 
Summary: The motion was made by Ms. Moore and seconded by Ms. Juengst to 
adopt March 19, 2025 meeting minutes.  The motion was approved by 4:0 vote. 
 

c. Bond, Schoeneck & King, PLLC invoice for $8,051.48 
Summary: The motion was made by Mr. Hubbard and seconded by Ms. DiBrita to 
authorize payment of the Bond, Schoeneck & King, PLLC invoice.  The motion was 
approved by 4:0 vote. 

 
 
2. Education, Communications and Outreach, Science and Stewardship, NYWIMA 

a. Education, Communications and Outreach Division:  
Summary: Mr. Motz discussed highlights and updates on the Education and Outreach 
division’s activities covered in the previously distributed Education and Outreach division 
report.  
 

b. Science and Stewardship Division:  
Summary: Mr. Smith discussed highlights and updates on the Science and Stewardship 
division’s activities covered in the previously distributed Science and Stewardship division 
report. 
 

c. NYWIMA:  
Summary: Ms. Drew discussed the updates on the New York Wildfire Incident and 
Management Academy’s activities. 
 

d. Draft Resolution to hire Charles Hamilton to provide consulting services as Academy 
Coordinator  
Summary: The motion was made by Ms. Moore and seconded by Ms. DiBrita to 
approve the draft resolution and draft contract of the selection of consultant to 
provide services as Academy Coordinator for the New York Wildfire and Incident 
Management Academy.  The motion was approved by 4:0 vote. 

 

 
 
 
 
 

Timothy C. Hubbard 
Member  

 
Maria Z. Moore 

Member 
 

Daniel J. Panico 
Member 

 
Edward P. Romaine 

Member 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

624 Old Riverhead Road 
Westhampton Beach, NY 

11978 
 

Phone (631) 288-1079 
www.pb.state.ny.us 

http://www.pb.state.ny.us/


                   

2 
FINAL 4/16/2025 COMMISSION MEETING SUMMARY (DRAFT) 

3. Planning, Land Use and the Pine Barrens Credit Program 
a. Compliance and Enforcement Division:  

Summary: Ms. Lawston discussed highlights and updates on the Compliance and 
Enforcement division’s activities covered in the previously distributed Compliance and 
Enforcement division report. 
 

b. Land Use Division:  
Summary: Ms. Hargrave discussed highlights and updates on the Land Use division’s 
activities covered in the previously distributed Land Use division report. 
 

c. Credit Program:  
Summary: Mr. Tverdyy discussed highlights and updates on the Credit Program’s activities 
covered in the previously distributed Credit Program division report. 
 

Core Preservation Area 
d. Letter of Interpretation Credit Appeal: John P. Meyer / Wagner Road, Yaphank  

/ 200-528-6-15  
Summary: Mr. Tverdyy discussed the applicant’s request to withdraw his credit appeal 
application. 
 
The motion was made by Ms. DiBrita and seconded by Ms. Juengst to approve the 
request to withdraw the credit appeal.  The motion was approved by 4:0 vote. 
 

e. Garafola Core Compelling Public Need Hardship Application / William Floyd Parkway, 
Ridge   / 200-294-4-11 / two-lot subdivision with an existing residence on 4.46 acres in 
the A2 Residence zoning district   
Summary: Ms. Murphy discussed the applicant’s request to withdraw the Hardship 
application. 
 
The motion was made by Ms. Juengst and seconded by Ms. DiBrita to approve the 
request to withdraw the Hardship application.  The motion was approved by 4:0 
vote. 
 

f. V&G Realty Core Preservation Area Hardship Application / Gerard Road, Yaphank  
/ 200-781-1-5 and15 / development of two-story single-family residence on 37,992 square 
feet in the A1 Residence zoning district  
Summary: The motion was made by Mr. Hubbard and seconded by Ms. Moore to 
schedule a public hearing for June 18, 2025.  The motion was approved by 4:0 vote. 
 

g. Trevor Galvez Request for Determination of Jurisdiction / 318 Yaphank Middle Island 
Road, Middle Island / 200-529-1-28.4 / construction of a 4,000 square foot structure to 
store antique vehicles on 3.86 acres with a single-family residence in the A5 Residence 
zoning district  
Summary: The motion was made by Ms. Juengst and seconded by Mr. Hubbard to 
approve sending the draft response for Trevor Galvez Request for Determination of 
Jurisdiction.  The motion was approved by 4:0 vote. 
 

Compatible Growth Area 
h. Brookhaven Sewage Treatment Plant Expansion CGA Hardship Waiver Application 

 / 60 Ramsay Road, Yaphank / 200-554-3-4.40 and 4.53 / expansion of an existing 
community scale STP on a 4.074 acre project site in the Light Industrial Zoning District 
Summary: The motion was made by Ms. Moore and seconded by Ms. Juengst to 
approve the decision on the Brookhaven Sewage Treatment Plant Expansion CGA 
Hardship Waiver Application.  The motion was approved by 4:0 vote. 
 



                   

3 
FINAL 4/16/2025 COMMISSION MEETING SUMMARY (DRAFT) 

i. Brookhaven Town Referral: Starbucks at Middle Island / 599 Middle Country Road, 
Middle Island / 200-402-2-2 / zone change and site plan for a drive-through restaurant 
with an existing vacant bank building on 1.4 acres in the J4 Business zoning district 
Summary: The motion was made by Ms. DiBrita and seconded by Mr. Hubbard to 
approve sending the draft response for Brookhaven Town Referral for Starbucks 
Middle Island.  The motion was approved by 4:0 vote. 
 

j. Southampton Town Referral: 80 Anchor Street Subdivision / Anchor Street, Flanders 
 / 900-142-2-22 / two-lot subdivision on 0.94 acre with a single-family residence in the  
R15 zoning district  
Summary: The motion was made by Ms. Juengst and seconded by Ms. DiBrita to 
approve sending the draft response for Southampton Town Referral for 80 Anchor 
Street Subdivision.  The motion was approved by 4:0 vote. 

 
k. Shawn Turner Request for Determination of Jurisdiction / 129 Calverton Court, Wading 

River / 600-115-1-10.49 / swimming pool for a single-family residence  
Summary: The motion was made by Ms. Moore and seconded by Ms. Juengst to 
approve sending the draft response for Shawn Turner Request for Determination 
of Jurisdiction.  The motion was approved by 4:0 vote. 
 

l. Venezia Square Development of Regional Significance / NYS Route 25A, Wading River  
/ 600-73-1-1.4; 1.16, 1.17, 1.18, 1.19 / development of 37,000 square feet of commercial 
uses on 6.3 acres in the Business CR zoning district / request for three month extension 
of decision  
Summary: The motion was made by Ms. DiBrita and seconded by Mr. Hubbard to 
approve extending the decision deadline to 7/16/25 for Venezia Square Development 
of Regional Significance.  The motion was approved by 4:0 vote. 

 
 

4. Public Hearing – Adjourned to May 21, 2025 
a. Homeland Towers Core Compelling Public Need Hardship Application /  

2055 Flanders Road, Flanders / 900-170-1-41.1 / development of a 150 foot tall wireless 
tower monopole and 3,000 square foot equipment compound on 6.7 acres with an 
existing junkyard in the CR 60 zoning district  
 
 

5. Public Comment 
Summary: No public comments were received 
 

 
6. Closed Advisory Session 

The motion was made by Ms. Juengst and seconded by Ms. Moore to close the public portion 
of the meeting and to move into an advisory session for the purpose of discussing enforcement 
matters and obtaining legal advice from Commission counsel. The Commission will not return 
to public session. The motion was approved by a 4:0 vote. 
 

 
The meeting was adjourned at approximately 3:30 pm.  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



                   

4 
FINAL 4/16/2025 COMMISSION MEETING SUMMARY (DRAFT) 

Attachments (in order of discussion) 
 
1. Draft Commission meeting summary for March 19, 2025 
2. Final Commission meeting summary for March 19, 2025 
3. Bond, Schoeneck & King, PLLC invoice dated February 5, 2025 
4. Education Outreach and Communication Division update dated April 2025 
5. Science Stewardship Division update dated April 16, 2025 
6. New York Wildfire and Incident Management Academy update 
7. Draft resolution and attachments to approve the consultant selection to provide services as Academy 

Coordinator for the New York Wildfire and Incident Management Academy dated April 16, 2025 
8. Final resolution and attachments to approve the consultant selection to provide services as Academy 

Coordinator for the New York Wildfire and Incident Management Academy dated April 16, 2025 
9. Compliance and Enforcement Division update dated March – April 2024 
10. Land Use Division update dated April 16, 2025 
11. Credit Program update April 16, 2025 
12. Letter from client withdrawing the credit appeal dated March 24, 2025 
13. Letter and attachments from client regarding public need hardship application dated February 21, 2025 
14. Letter and attachments from client regarding V & G Realty core preservation area hardship application 

dated March 27, 2025 
15. Draft response and map regarding Trevor Galvez request for determination of jurisdiction dated April 

16, 2025; Letter and attachments from client dated March 3, 2025 
16. Final response regarding Trevor Galvez request for determination of jurisdiction dated April 16, 2025 
17. Draft response and attachments regarding Brookhaven sewage treatment plant expansion dated April 

16, 2025; Letter and attachments from client dated February 27, 2025 
18. Final response regarding Brookhaven sewage treatment plant expansion dated April 16, 2025 
19. Draft response and attachments regarding Brookhaven town referral: Starbucks at Middle Island dated 

April 16, 2025 
20. Final response regarding Brookhaven town referral: Starbucks at Middle Island dated April 16, 2025 
21. Draft response and attachments regarding Southampton town referral: 80 Anchor Street subdivision 

dated April 16, 2025 
22. Final response regarding Southampton town referral: 80 Anchor Street subdivision dated April 16, 

2025 
23. Draft response and attachments regarding Shawn Turner request for determination of jurisdiction 

dated April 16, 2025 
24. Final response regarding Shawn Turner request for determination of jurisdiction dated April 16, 2025 
25. Letter from client regarding Venezia Square DRS decision extension dated April 2, 2025 
26. Letter from client regarding Homeland Towers hearing adjournment dated March 25, 2025 

 
 
 

 
 
 



 
Central Pine Barrens Joint Planning and Policy Commission Meeting 

Wednesday, May 21, 2025 
Riverhead Town Hall 

4 West 2nd Street, Riverhead, NY 11901 
 

 
Draft Resolution for the Commission to Authorize the Purchase Of 

All-Terrain Vehicle for the Suffolk County Park Rangers 
Present: 

 for the New York State Governor  
 for the Suffolk County Executive  
 for Brookhaven Town Supervisor 
Mr. Hubbard, Riverhead Town Supervisor 
Ms. Moore, Southampton Town Supervisor 

 
 

Timothy C. Hubbard 
Member 

 
Maria Z. Moore 

Member 

Daniel J. Panico 
Member 

 
Edward P. Romaine 

Member 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Whereas, the Commission, pursuant to its 1995 Central Pine Barrens Comprehensive 
Land Use Plan, acknowledged the importance of developing an effective law enforcement 
program that would, through interagency coordination and cooperation, improve the 
enforcement of all relevant land use and natural resource laws within the Central Pine Barrens 
and which led the Commission to create the Law Enforcement Council; and 

Whereas, the Law Enforcement Council has created a multi-agency ATV Task Force 
that performs enforcement details to combat illegal all-terrain vehicle (ATV) use within and 
around the Central Pine Barrens region, along with enforcing other environmental and pertinent 
laws; and 

Whereas, the Law Enforcement Council ATV Task Force has been very effective over 
the years in reducing the occurrence of illegal ATV use and other environmental crimes in the 
Central Pine Barrens due to these details; and 

Whereas, several Law Enforcement Council member agencies currently possess and use 
for enforcement purposes ATVs that are in extensively worn condition and therefore in need of 
significant repair to remain operational and safe to use; and 

 
Whereas, the Law Enforcement Council unanimously approved the purchase of an ATV 

and 4 tires for the Suffolk County Park Rangers at the Council’s April 17, 2025 meeting and is 
requesting approval from the Commission to purchase the ATV and tires with funds from the 
Commission’s violation fund account; and 

Whereas, the Law Enforcement Council has obtained three (3) price quotes from 
vendors for the purchase of a 2025 Sportsman 570 All-Terrain Vehicle and 4 tires (2- tires 25X 
8-12 P373 and 2 tires 25X 10-12 P373) and shall select the vendor with the lowest price quote 
to purchase said ATV and tires for an amount not to exceed $9,800; and 

 
 

624 Old Riverhead Road 
Westhampton Beach, NY 

11978 
 

Phone (631) 288-1079 
Fax (631) 288-1367 
www.pb.state.ny.us 

Whereas, once purchased, ownership of the ATV and tires would be transferred to the 
Suffolk County Park Rangers to use for enforcement purposes; now therefore be it 

Resolved, the Commission hereby authorizes the purchase of one 2025 Sportsman 570 
All-Terrain Vehicle and 4 tires (2- tires 25X 8-12 P373 and 2 tires 25X 10-12 P373 using the 
monies available from the Central Pine Barrens violation fund for an amount not to exceed 
$9,800, for use by the Suffolk County Park Rangers for enforcement purposes.  
 
Motion by:  
Seconded by:  

Ayes:  
Nays: 
Abstentions:  

http://www.pb.state.ny.us/














 
Central Pine Barrens Joint Planning and Policy Commission Meeting 

Wednesday, May 21, 2025 
Riverhead Town Hall 

4 West 2nd Street, Riverhead, NY 11901 
 

 
Draft Resolution for the Commission to Authorize the Purchase Of 

All-Terrain Vehicle for the Suffolk County Sheriff’s Office 
Present: 

 for the New York State Governor  
 for the Suffolk County Executive  
 for Brookhaven Town Supervisor 
Mr. Hubbard, Riverhead Town Supervisor 
Ms. Moore, Southampton Town Supervisor 

 
 

Timothy C. Hubbard 
Member 

 
Maria Z. Moore 

Member 

Daniel J. Panico 
Member 

 
Edward P. Romaine 

Member 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Whereas, the Commission, pursuant to its 1995 Central Pine Barrens Comprehensive 
Land Use Plan, acknowledged the importance of developing an effective law enforcement 
program that would, through interagency coordination and cooperation, improve the 
enforcement of all relevant land use and natural resource laws within the Central Pine Barrens 
and which led the Commission to create the Law Enforcement Council; and 

Whereas, the Law Enforcement Council has created a multi-agency ATV Task Force 
that performs enforcement details to combat illegal all-terrain vehicle (ATV) use within and 
around the Central Pine Barrens region, along with enforcing other environmental and pertinent 
laws; and 

Whereas, the Law Enforcement Council ATV Task Force has been very effective over 
the years in reducing the occurrence of illegal ATV use and other environmental crimes in the 
Central Pine Barrens due to these details; and 

Whereas, several Law Enforcement Council member agencies currently possess and use 
for enforcement purposes ATVs that are in extensively worn condition and therefore in need of 
significant repair to remain operational and safe to use; and 

 
Whereas, the Law Enforcement Council unanimously approved the purchase of an ATV 

for the Suffolk County Sheriff’s Office at the Council’s April 17, 2025 meeting and is requesting 
approval from the Commission to purchase the ATV with funds from the Commission’s 
violation fund account; and 

Whereas, the Law Enforcement Council has obtained three (3) price quotes from 
vendors for the purchase of a 2025 Sportsman 570 All-Terrain Vehicle and shall select the 
vendor with the lowest price quote to purchase said ATV for an amount not to exceed $8,800; 
and 

 
 

624 Old Riverhead Road 
Westhampton Beach, NY 

11978 
 

Phone (631) 288-1079 
Fax (631) 288-1367 
www.pb.state.ny.us 

Whereas, once purchased, ownership of the ATV and tires would be transferred to the 
Suffolk County Sheriff’s Office to use for enforcement purposes; now therefore be it 

Resolved, the Commission hereby authorizes the purchase of one 2025 Sportsman 570 
All-Terrain Vehicle using the monies available from the Central Pine Barrens violation fund 
for an amount not to exceed $8,800, for use by the Suffolk County Sheriff’s Office for 
enforcement purposes.  
 
Motion by:  
Seconded by:  

Ayes:  
Nays: 
Abstentions:  

http://www.pb.state.ny.us/


DRAFT 

   
 

May 21, 2025 
 
Emily Hepding 
Senior Environment Science and Planning Analyst 
PSEG Long Island  
999 Stewart Avenue 
Bethpage, NY 11714 
email: Emily.hepding@pseg.com 
 
RE: PSEGLI Transmission Pole Replacements – Three Poles 
  Central Pine Barrens Compatible Growth Area and Core Preservation Area 
 
Dear Ms. Hepding: 
 
On April 11, 2025, the Central Pine Barrens Commission received materials on the 
referenced proposal. The submission included a letter, Figures 1 and 2 showing pole locations 
and photographs of poles in the hamlets of Calverton and Shoreham.  
 
The Proposed Action involves the replacement of three (3) timber utility poles in the Central 
Pine Barrens Compatible Growth Area and Core Preservation Area.  
 
Existing and new poles are timber and will range in height from 80 to 85 feet. The height of 
the poles will change no more than five feet above present height to a range of 85 to 90 feet 
and will not increase more than 6 inches in diameter. Poles will be replaced within five feet 
from their current locations.  
 
The poles are located in utility corridors or roadside right of ways. The referral material states 
no trees or shrubs will be removed. After disturbance, a natural seed meadow mix will be 
applied. The activity is part of the organization’s “regular maintenance program to ensure 
continued safe and reliable electric service,” according to the letter. 
 
As proposed, the activity appears to constitute “non-development” pursuant to New York 
State Environmental Conservation Law Article 57 Section 57-0107.13(ii) which states, 
“Work by any utility not involving substantial engineering redesign for the purpose of 
inspection, maintenance or renewal on established utility rights of way or the likes,”… No 
further review from this office is required. 
 
If the proposed activity changes, including the need to remove trees, please notify this office 
and forward the updated information for Commission review prior to implementation as the 
revised project may constitute development. 
 
It is encouraged that, where possible, the new pole heights remain within the heights of 
surrounding trees to maintain the overall character of the Central Pine Barrens.  
 
Thank you for your attention, and if you have any questions, please do not hesitate to contact 
me at (631) 218-1192. 
 
Sincerely, 
 
Julie Hargrave 
Pine Barrens Manager 
 
cc: Judith Jakobsen, Executive Director 
 John C. Milazzo, Counsel  

 
 
 
 
 

Timothy C. Hubbard 
Member  

 
Maria Z. Moore 

Member 
 

Daniel J. Panico 
Member 

 
Edward P. Romaine 

Member 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

624 Old Riverhead Road 
Westhampton Beach, NY 

11978 
 

Phone (631) 288-1079 
Fax (631) 288-1367 
www.pb.state.ny.us 

mailto:Emily.hepding@pseg.com
http://www.pb.state.ny.us/


     

 

 
Emily Hepding 
Senior Environmental Science and Planning Analyst, PSEG Long Island 
 
999 Stewart Avenue 
Bethpage, New York 11714 
(516) 241-0721 
Emily.Hepding@pseg.com 

April 11, 2025 

Central Pine Barrens Joint Planning and Policy Commission 
c/o Ms. Julie Hargrave 
624 Old Riverhead Road 
Westhampton Beach, NY 11978 
 
RE:  PSEG Long Island Notification of Work 

LIRR and LIPA/Public Right-of-Way Transmission Pole Replacements - 2025 
Hamlet of Calverton Town of Riverhead, Suffolk County and Hamlets of Shoreham 
and East Shoreham, Town of Brookhaven, Suffolk County  

  
 
Dear Ms. Hargrave, 
 
PSEG Long Island, as agent for the Long Island Lighting Company d/b/a LIPA, a wholly owned 
subsidiary of the Long Island Power Authority, is providing notification to the Commission for 
project activities located within the Central Pine Barrens.  
 
Project activities within the Central Pine Barrens will include the replacement of three 
transmission poles (Pole #s 13.5, 79A, and SUB 5). These poles require replacement as part 
of a regular maintenance program to ensure continued safe and reliable electric service. As 
depicted on Figures 1 and 2, one of these poles are located within the Pine Barrens 
Compatible Growth Area and two of these poles are located within the Core Preservation Area.  
 
Pole replacement details are provided on Table 1. All existing poles will be replaced with new 
poles no more than 5 feet taller than the poles they are replacing, with pole diameter increases 
of less than 6 inches. Existing and replaced poles are composed of wood and there will be no 
changes to pole top configurations or infrastructure. Poles will be replaced within 
approximately 5 feet from their current locations. Photos of the existing pole locations are 
provided in Attachment 1.  
 
Limited vegetation removal and/or trimming will be required to access and complete 
replacment activities, as follows: 
 

 Pole #79A will require minor disturbance (an approximate 5 foot by 5 foot area) to low-
lying herbaceous vegetation. No trees will be removed or trimmed. No shrubs will be 
removed.  

 Pole #s SUB 5 and 13.5 will require clearing of low-lying herbaceous vegetation and 
shrubs, as well as minor tree trimming for vehicles and equipment to access the poles. 
Vegetation activities will occur along an approximate 5 foot by 15 foot area..  



Page 2 
 

 
All disturbed work areas will be reseeded with a native seed mix.  
 
Based on a review of ECL 57-0107 (13), the project would be classified as one or more of the 
following, and therefore, would not constitute development: 

(i) Public improvements undertaken for the health, safety, or welfare of the public. 
Such public improvements shall be consistent with the goals and objectives of this 
article, and shall include, but not be limited to, maintenance of an existing road or 
railroad track; 

(ii) work by any utility not involving substantial engineering redesign for the purpose of 
inspection, maintenance or renewal on established utility rights-of-way or the likes, 
and any work pertaining to water supply for the residents of Suffolk county; 

(vi) Work by a utility performed for the purpose of public health, safety, or welfare and 
consistent with the goals and objectives of this article. 

Please let us know if you require additional information or have additional questions regarding 
this work. 

Sincerely, 

 
Emily Hepding 
Lead Environmental Science and Planning Analyst  
 



 

 

 

 

 

Table 1 
 

Pole Replacement Details 
   



Ta
bl
e 
1

PS
EG

 L
on

g 
Is
la
nd

 

LI
RR

 a
nd

 L
IP
A/

Pu
bl
ic
 R
ig
ht
‐o
f‐W

ay
 T
ra
ns
m
is
si
on

 P
ol
e 
Re

pl
ac
em

en
ts
 ‐
 C
al
en

da
r Y

ea
r 2

02
5

Pi
ne

 B
ar
re
ns
 P
ol
e 
Re

pl
ac
em

en
t D

et
ai
ls

Po
le
 #

To
w
n

N
ea
re
st
 A
dd

re
ss

Ex
is
tin

g 
Po

le
 

H
ei
gh
t

(f
ee
t)

Ex
is
tin

g 
Po

le
 

M
at
er
ia
l

Re
pl
ac
em

en
t 

Po
le
 H
ei
gh
t

(f
ee
t)

Re
pl
ac
em

en
t 

Po
le
 M

at
er
ia
l

Pi
ne

 B
ar
re
ns
 A
re
a

79
A

Ca
lv
er
to
n

In
 R
O
W
 W

es
t o

f 7
09

‐2
01

 F
re
sh
 P
on

d 
Av

e,
 C
al
ve
rt
on

‐7
2.
79

22
1

40
.9
43

01
85

W
oo

d
90

W
oo

d
Co

m
pa
tib

le
 G
ro
w
th
 A
re
a

13
.5

Ea
st
 S
ho

re
ha
m

22
1 
N
 C
ou

nt
ry
 R
d,
 E
as
t S

ho
re
ha
m

‐7
2.
86

34
7

40
.9
56

94
80

W
oo

d
85

W
oo

d
Co

re
 P
re
se
rv
at
io
n 
Ar
ea

SU
B 
5

Sh
or
eh

am
1 
N
 C
ou

nt
ry
 R
d,
 E
as
t S

ho
re
ha
m

‐7
2.
87

97
1

40
.9
56

67
80

W
oo

d
85

W
oo

d
Co

re
 P
re
se
rv
at
io
n 
Ar
ea

La
tit
ud

e 
an

d 
Lo
ng
itu

de



So
ur

ce
: E

sr
i, 

M
ax

ar
, E

ar
th

st
ar

 G
eo

gr
ap

hi
cs

, a
nd

 th
e 

G
IS

 U
se

r C
om

m
un

ity

FIG
UR

E 
1

LIP
A/

PU
BL

IC
 R

OW
 TR

AN
SM

ISS
IO

N 
PO

LE
 R

EP
LA

CE
ME

NT
S 

PO
LE

 #7
9A

CE
NT

RA
L P

IN
E 

BA
RR

EN
S 

PO
LE

S
So

ur
ce

s:
 E

SR
I W

eb
 M

ap
 S

er
ve

r, 
20

24
; P

SE
G

 S
pr

ea
ds

he
et

 "n
on

-L
IR

R
 R

O
W

 T
ra

ns
m

is
si

on
 2

02
4 

Po
le

 C
on

tra
ct

or
 L

is
t-e

di
te

d 
by

 D
L 

2.
12

.2
4"

Po
le 

#7
9A

Ce
nt

ral
 Pi

ne
 B

ar
ren

s A
rea

C
or

e 
Pr

es
er

va
tio

n 
Ar

ea

C
om

pa
tib

le
 G

ro
w

th
 A

re
a

Le
ge

nd
LI

PA
/P

ub
lic

 R
O

W
 P

ol
e 

R
ep

la
ce

m
en

t
! (

! (



! (

! (
! (

So
ur

ce
: E

sr
i, 

M
ax

ar
, E

ar
th

st
ar

 G
eo

gr
ap

hi
cs

, a
nd

 th
e 

G
IS

 U
se

r C
om

m
un

ity

FIG
UR

E 
2

LIP
A/

PU
BL

IC
 R

OW
 TR

AN
SM

ISS
IO

N 
PO

LE
 R

EP
LA

CE
ME

NT
S 

PO
LE

 #S
 SU

B5
 &

 13
.5

CE
NT

RA
L P

IN
E 

BA
RR

EN
S 

PO
LE

S
So

ur
ce

s:
 E

SR
I W

eb
 M

ap
 S

er
ve

r, 
20

24
; P

SE
G

 S
pr

ea
ds

he
et

 "n
on

-L
IR

R
 R

O
W

 T
ra

ns
m

is
si

on
 2

02
4 

Po
le

 C
on

tra
ct

or
 L

is
t-e

di
te

d 
by

 D
L 

2.
12

.2
4"

Po
le 

#1
3.5

Po
le 

#S
UB

5

Ce
nt

ral
 Pi

ne
 B

ar
ren

s A
rea

C
or

e 
Pr

es
er

va
tio

n 
Ar

ea

C
om

pa
tib

le
 G

ro
w

th
 A

re
a

Le
ge

nd
LI

PA
/P

ub
lic

 R
O

W
 P

ol
e 

R
ep

la
ce

m
en

t
! (



 

 
 
 

 

Attachment 1 
 

Photos of Existing Poles 
 
 



hepdinge
Text Box
Pole #79A



hepdinge
Text Box
Pole #SUB 5



hepdinge
Text Box
Pole #13.5



DRAFT 

1 
 

May 21, 2025 
 
James P. Rigano 
Rigano LLC 
538 Broadhollow Road, Suite 301 
Melville, New York 11747 
 
RE: Proposal to replace lean-tos with cabins  

Nassau County Council Boy Scouts of America Incorporated  
(Schiff Scout Reservation Camp Wauwepex) 
Wading River, Town of Riverhead, SCTM Number 600-75-3-10.3  
Central Pine Barrens Core Preservation Area  

 
Dear Mr. Rigano: 
 
On April 3, 2025, the Central Pine Barrens Commission received your request on the 
subject property (the Camp). The Camp is protected by a Conservation Easement (CE) 
granted to the Commission and recorded on December 23, 2008.  
 
Commission Staff performed an inspection of the Camp in accordance with this request on 
April 9, 2025. Staff also reviewed the Proposal, the CE and Reserved Rights outlined in the 
CE, the survey dated October 21, 2008, prepared by Young and Young, and the easement’s 
inventory of Structures in Schedule B. 
 
This letter provides an overview of Staff’s understanding of the proposed activity and the 
CE rights and restrictions. 
 
Existing Conditions 
 
The survey defines facilities that are included in this proposal. These include: 
 
• The size of each lean-to is 13 feet x 14 feet, or 182 square feet. 
• Eight lean-tos total 1,456 square feet. 
• Each lean-to contains four beds for a total of 32 beds in eight lean-tos. 
• Four lean-tos are located at the Tombstone Campsite. 
• Four lean-tos at the Pueblo Campsite have only concrete pads remaining. 
 
Proposal 
 
The Camp seeks to replace eight lean-tos with five cabins.  
 
• The Proposal is to build five cabins of two different sizes: Cabin A and Cabin B.  

o Cabin A is 14 feet x 20 feet, or 280 square feet. Two Cabin A total: 560 square feet. 
o Cabin B is 14 feet x 24 feet, or 336 square feet. Three Cabin B total: 1,008 square feet. 

• The total area of five cabins is 1,568 square feet, or a net increase of 112 square feet. 

 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Timothy C. Hubbard 
Member  

 
Maria Z. Moore 

Member 
 

Daniel J. Panico 
Member 

 
Edward P. Romaine 

Member 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

624 Old Riverhead 
Road 

Westhampton Beach, 
NY 11978 

 
Phone (631) 288-1079 
Fax (631) 288-1367 
www.pb.state.ny.us 

http://www.pb.state.ny.us/


DRAFT 

2 
 

• The Proposal seeks to increase the total number of beds from 32 to 40.  
• The location of changes of four structures from the Pueblo Campsite to the Tombstone 

Campsite.   
 
Conservation Easement 
 
The inventory of structures lists the area of each structure and its location. The structures listed in the 
inventory are identified in the survey. 
 
The CE provides those activities which may not occur on the Property and those that may and under 
specified conditions.  For example, Paragraph 1 of the Covenants states: 
 

There shall be no construction activity, alteration of vegetation or change in 
topography, no development as defined by ECL Section 57-0107(13) and no 
operations or uses not constituting development pursuant to ECL Section 57- 0 I 
07(13)(i-xv), unless otherwise expressly reserved herein. 

 
While Paragraph 4 of the Reserved Rights provides that the Scouts have:  
 

The right to maintain, modify or replace the facilities or structures existing on or in the 
Property as of the date first written above and shown on the survey entitled Survey for 
Schiff Scout Reservation Camp Wauwepex, Certified Survey with Photo Overlay, 
prepared by Young and Young, and last dated October 21, 2008 and as also described 
in Schedule B attached hereto and made a part hereof and associated with or necessary 
for the scouting activities provided such maintenance, modification or replacement 
does not increase the size of the facility or structure or relocate the footprint of the 
facility or structure or materially alter the Property's vegetation. Grantor may not 
modify or replace an existing facility or structure in a manner that increases the 
structure or facility's design sewage flow rate as defined by the Suffolk County 
Department of Health Services, (hereinafter "Design Sewage Flow") as the same may 
be modified from time to time. Notwithstanding, anything to the contrary, Grantor shall 
not modify or replace any existing facility or structure without giving Grantee thirty 
(30) days advanced written notice. 

 
Subject to the limitation contained in Paragraph 5 of the Reserved Rights section which states: 
 

The right to construct, maintain, modify, repair or replace the facilities or structures 
identified as "Future" structures as shown on the survey entitled Survey for Schiff Scout 
Reservation Camp Wauwepex, Certified Survey with Photo Overlay, prepared by 
Young and Young, and last dated October 21, 2008 provided the construction, 
maintenance, modification, repair or replacement of such structures does not increase 
the Design Sewage Flow of the Property beyond the Design Sewage Flow of the 
Property as the same existed on the day first written above. Notwithstanding, anything 



DRAFT 

3 
 

to the contrary, Grantor shall not construct any facility or structure identified as 
"Future" structure without giving Grantee thirty (30) days advanced written notice. 

 
Summary 
 
The Proposal and Conservation Easement were reviewed. In summary, the Proposal seeks to: 
 

• Replace eight lean-tos with five cabins of two different sizes, increasing the area of structures 
112 square feet. 

• Increase the number of beds from 32 to 40.  
• Change the location of four structures from the Pueblo to the Tombstone Campsite. 

 
During the Camp inspection it was observed that four lean-tos in the Proposal are no longer present 
except for their concrete pads. Although the lean-tos are depicted in the survey, they were demolished 
prior to the date the CE was recorded.  
 
The Reserved Rights Section #5 allows lean-tos to be replaced in kind and in place. The Proposal is 
not consistent with the Easement provisions. It replaces lean-tos with cabins that are 1) larger in size 
thereby increasing the area of structures, 2) increases the number of beds, thereby changing the 
capacity of structures, 3) changes the type of structures and 4) changes the locations of structures.  
 
The Proposal is not consistent with the Reserved Rights outlined in the Conservation Easement and 
therefore it is prohibited. 
 
Please be reminded to avoid undertaking activity at the Camp that requires Commission review. 
Thank you for your attention and cooperation, and if you have any questions, contact me at 631-563-
0352. 
 
Sincerely, 
 
 
Jerry Tverdyy 
Senior Environmental Analyst 
 
cc: Judith Jakobsen, Executive Director, Central Pine Barrens Commission 
 John C. Milazzo, Counsel to the Commission 
 Chris Coscia, Scout Executive and CEO 



Central Pine Barrens Joint Planning & Policy Commission 

May 21, 2025 

Proposal to replace structures at                                                                                        

Nassau County Council Boy Scouts of America Incorporated (Camp Wauwepex) 

Suffolk County Tax Map Number 600-75-3-10.3 

 Wading River, Town of Riverhead 

List of documents submitted by Camp Wauwepex: 

A. Letter from James P. Rigano requesting replacement of structures (2 pages).

B. Photograph of the lean-to structure (1 page).

C. Rendering of the new cabins (3 pages).

D. Survey dated October 21, 2008, prepared by Young and Young, showing 
location of the new cabins (2 pages).

E. Pages 3 and 4 of the easement showing applicable Covenants and Reserve 
Right provisions (2 pages).

F. Summary table of structures in Schedule B of the easement (1 page).

Timothy C. Hubbard 
Member  

Maria Z. Moore 
Member 

Daniel J. Panico 
Member 

Edward P. Romaine 
Member 

624 Old Riverhead Road 
Westhampton Beach, NY 

11978 

Phone (631) 288-1079 
Fax (631) 288-1367 
www.pb.state.ny.us 

http://www.pb.state.ny.us/


RIGANO LLC Attorneys at Law 538 Broad Hollow Road, Suite 301 

 

 
James P. Rigano 
JRigano@riganollc.com 

Melville, New York 11747 
tel: 631.756.5900 

www.riganollc.com 

 

 

 

 

March 18, 2025 
 
Mr. John Milazzo 
Counsel 
Central Pine Barrens Joint Planning & Policy Commission 
4060 Sunrise Highway 
Oakdale, New York 11769 
John.Milazzo@SCWA.com 

 
 

Re: Boy Scouts of America Riverhead Scout 
Reservation 

 
Dear John: 

 
The Boy Scouts would like to replace eight lean-to structures with five new cabins. The 

eight lean-to structures that would be replaced have a total square footage of 1568 square feet. 
Each of the eight lean-to structures are 196 square feet. 

 
The five cabins would also have a total square footage of 1568. Two of the cabins would 

be 14x20 for a total of 560 square feet and 3 cabins are 14x24 for a total square footage of 1008. 
 

Figure 1 which is attached shows the typical lean-to structure. Attached figure 2 shows a 
rendering of the cabins. 

 
The cabins would be located at the Tombstone campsite as shown in attached figure 3. 

Also as shown in attached figure 3, four lean-tos would be removed as part of this effort. Also 
at the Pueblo campsite, also shown in figure 3, four of the five lean-tos would not be replaced. 
As explained above, the square footage of the five cabins is equal to the square footage of the 
eight lean-tos at the Tombstone and Pueblo campsites. Figure 3 was taken from the survey of 
the Property. 

 
The five new cabins would not include any new sanitary systems, septic tanks or 

cesspools. The campers that would be utilizing these cabins would be using existing sanitary 
systems. 

mailto:JRigano@riganollc.com
http://www.riganollc.com/
mailto:John.Milazzo@SCWA.com


Page 2 RIGANO LLC Attorneys at Law 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

There is not expected to be any increase in the number of campers or the population 
utilizing the camp or these campsites resulting from the five new cabins. No trees or other 
vegetation would be removed as part of this effort regarding the five cabins. 

 
Attachment 4 is the executed Easement from 2008 for the camp. On page 4, paragraph 4, 

the easement provides as a Reserved Right, “The right to … modify or replace the facilities or 
structures existing on or in the Property…provided such…modification or replacement does not 
increase the size of the facility or structure or relocate the footprint of the structure or materially 
alter the Property’s vegetation.” 

 
The Theodore Roosevelt Council of Boy Scouts would like to proceed with this matter 

and requested that I provide the details set forth above to the Commission staff. I believe we can 
proceed without further Commission approval but I wanted to inquire as to whether Commission 
staff has any concerns regarding this matter. 

 
Very truly yours, 

 
James P. Rigano 

James P. Rigano 













14
 X

 2
4

14
 X

 2
0



retained by the Grantor, and to enter upon the Property at all reasonable times but 
solely for the purpose of inspection in order to enforce and assure compliance 
with the terms and conditions herein contained. Grantee, its agents, employees or 
other representatives, agree to give Grantor reasonable advance notice of its 
intention to enter and inspect the Property, and further such entrance and 
inspection shall be in a reasonable manner and at reasonable times. Furthermore, 
Grantor shall provide any third party with enforcement rights, or its agents, 
representatives or employees, access to cross other lands retained by Grantor, and 
permission to enter upon the Property, upon receipt of advance notice of such 
third party's intention to enter and inspect. Such entrance and inspection shall be 
in a reasonable manner and at reasonable times. 

Covenants 

In furtherance of the foregoing affirmative rights, the Grantor makes the following 
covenants, on behalf of it, its successors, and assigns, lessees, personal representatives and other 
successors in interest, which covenants shall run with and bind the Property in perpetuity: 

1. There shall be no construction activity, alteration of vegetation or change in
topography, no development as defined by ECL Section 57-0107(13) and no
operations or uses not constituting development pursuant to ECL Section 57-
0 I 07(13)(i-xv), unless otherwise expressly reserved herein.

2. There shall be no storing, dumping, discharging or placing of any
substance in or on the Property in contravention of any applicable federal,
state or local law or ordinance.

Reserved Rights 

NEVERTHELESS, and notwithstanding any of the foregoing provisions to the contrary 
and as expressly limited herein, the Grantor reserves for itself, its successors and assigns the 
following reserved rights in addition to all those rights previously retained, reserved and defined 
herein, which may be exercised without written notice to the Grantee. 

I. The right of exclusive possession of the Property.

2. The right to use the Property for passive recreational activities such as, but not
limited to, hunting, fishing, camping, hiking and activities associated therewith so
long as such activities conform to local zoning regulations and do not constitute
development as defined in ECL Section 57-0107(13) and do not involve material
alteration of native vegetation, involve construction or does not have the potential
to result in the increased generation sewage or involve construction.

3 







DRAFT 

1 
 

May 21, 2025 
 
Town of Brookhaven 
Office of the Town Clerk 
Kevin J. Lavalle 
One Independence Hill 
Farmingville, NY 11738 
 
RE: Crest Coram 7-11 

396 Middle Country Road, Coram, Town of Brookhaven 
  SCTM Numbers 200-476-30, 32.1, 34.1  
  Compatible Growth Area of the Central Pine Barrens 
 
Dear Mr. Lavalle: 
 
On May 1, 2025, the Central Pine Barrens Commission received a referral of the 
subject proposal. The project site is in the Compatible Growth Area (CGA) of the 
Central Pine Barrens. 
 
Existing Conditions and the Proposed Project 
 
The project site is comprised of three separate parcels totaling 2.11 acres and is located 
on the south side of the Middle Country Road-Route 112 intersection in Coram. Two 
parcels (200-476-2-32.1 and -34.1) are in the J Business 6 zoning district, whereas the 
third parcel (200-476-2-30) is in the A Residence 1 zoning district.  
 
The applicant categorizes the project site as 1.35 acres of forested habitat with 0.05 
acres of state and federal wetlands. Impervious and landscaped surfaces total 0.79 
acres.  
 
The proposal consists of a change of zone to J Business 5 with Special Permits for a 
2,999 square foot convenience store, parking lot, and vehicle fueling station. The Site 
Plan, prepared by Stonefield Engineering & Design dated October 7, 2024, illustrates 
the building, gas station, and parking lot layout. 
 
The applicant also seeks relief from covenants recorded on January 25, 2023 in 
connection with a previously proposed Special Permit project for a major restaurant 
and drive-through. The Commission provided comments on March 12, 2020 and 
December 21, 2022 regarding the previous project’s conformance with the standards 
in the Central Pine Barrens Comprehensive Land Use Plan (the Plan).  
 
Central Pine Barrens Status 
 
The proposal constitutes development activity, pursuant to New York State 
Environmental Conservation Law Article 57 Section 57-0107(13). Therefore, it must 
conform with the standards of the Central Pine Barrens Comprehensive Land Use Plan 
(the Plan), as implemented by the Brookhaven Town Code. If it does not conform to 
one or more standards, and the project is not revised to conform, then a hardship 
waiver application must be submitted, subject to Commission review and decision. 
 
Comments on the Project 
 

 
 
 

Timothy C. Hubbard 
Member  

 
Maria Z. Moore 

Member 
 

Daniel J. Panico 
Member 

 
Edward P. Romaine 

Member 
 
  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
624 Old Riverhead Road 
Westhampton Beach, NY 

11978 
 

Phone (631) 288-1079 
Fax (631) 288-1367 

https://pb.state.ny.us/ 
 

https://pb.state.ny.us/


DRAFT 

2 
 

As per your request for comments, the following items relate to review of the project’s consistency 
with the Plan and the goals and objectives of the Long Island Pine Barrens Protection Act (the Act). 
The applicant must demonstrate conformance with the standards that became effective on July 19, 
2024 prior to development on the project site. 
 
Standard 5.3.3.1.1 Suffolk County Sanitary Code Article 6 compliance  
 
The project is subject to conformance with Article 6 of the Suffolk County Sanitary Code and shall 
meet the applicable requirements of the Suffolk County Department of Health Services.  
 
Standard 5.3.3.1.4 Commercial and industrial compliance with the Suffolk County Sanitary 
Code  
 
If materials stored on site or activities related to the proposed commercial/industrial use require 
conformance with the Suffolk County Sanitary Code, ensure conformance and employ protection 
measures to preserve groundwater quality and the ecological resources of the Central Pine Barrens. 
 
Standard 5.3.3.4.1 Nondisturbance buffers and Standard 5.3.3.4.2 Buffer delineations, 
covenants and conservation easements 
 

• Part of a 7.8 acre state regulated freshwater wetland identified as P-16 is within the 
boundaries of the project site. The project is subject to conformance with state and town 
wetland protection regulations and shall coordinate with and meet the applicable 
requirements of the Town of Brookhaven and New York State Department of 
Environmental Conservation.  
 

• The NYSDEC regulated freshwater wetland habitat and adjacent non-disturbance wetland 
buffers should be delineated, staked and protected prior to the commencement of 
construction. These limits should be inspected before and after construction. Consideration 
should be given to installing minimal but protective fencing to establish and delineate the 
open space area, avoid encroachments, and alert individuals on site that the area is protected 
and remains natural habitat. 
 

• Clearing limits should be delineated and inspected prior to clearing to protect wetland 
habitat and the remaining natural area. 
 

• Prior to disturbance, open space and buffer areas should be protected with covenants and/or 
conservation easements recorded in the Office of the Suffolk County Clerk. Protected areas 
should be identified in the final site plan. 

 
Standard 5.3.3.6.1 Vegetation clearance limits and Standard 5.3.3.6.2 Open space standard 
requirement, unfragmented open space and habitat  
 

• The project must demonstrate conformance with these standards. Standard 5.3.3.6.1.2 
states “Development project sites which consist of parcel(s) that are split among two or 
more zoning categories shall have a total clearing allowance for the entire site which is the 
sum of the individual clearances for each separately zoned portion of the site.” Refer to 
Figure 5-1: Clearance and Open Space Standards in Chapter 5 of the Plan for requirements. 

 
• Please have the applicant provide the amount of project site area in both zoning districts as 

each area is subject to a different clearing limit. Revise the site plan to reflect the existing 
and proposed clearing amounts, and the existing and proposed amount of natural areas. 



DRAFT 

3 
 

Delineate the open space boundary lines and include the calculation of open space areas to 
demonstrate conformance with Standard 5.3.3.6.2.  
 

• Prioritize the use of existing cleared areas on the western and northern boundaries for 
development and retain existing native vegetation as open space. Clustering development 
to the roadfront edge of the project site will allow for contiguous open space toward the 
southern portion of the project site, which is encompassed by 5.49 acres of open space 
owned by CV Village at Coram, LLC. 

 
• If unable to demonstrate conformance with the clearing limit or open space requirement, 

please have the applicant revise plans to conform or apply for a CGA Hardship to permit 
non-conforming development.  

 
• Protect open space through the recording of conservation easements or covenants and 

require recording prior to site disturbance. 
 
Standard 5.3.3.5.1 Stormwater recharge 
 
A Stormwater Pollution Prevention Plan must be submitted, reviewed and approved by the Town 
Engineer prior to site disturbance for the project 
 
Standard 5.3.3.6.3 Fertilizer-dependent vegetation limit and Standard 5.3.3.6.4 Native 
Plantings 
 

• The project must demonstrate conformance with these standards. Fertilizer-dependent 
vegetation is limited to a maximum of 15% over the project site. The limit protects 
ecosystems, water resources and minimizes pollution in stormwater runoff.  
 

• The current site plan states 70.6% of the site will be landscaped. Have the applicant provide 
landscape details and confirm conformance with the land use standard. Details should 
include the proposed list of plants, planting specifications including quantities, size, species 
and sources of plant material. Require native tree species and shrubs to support pine barrens 
ecological communities.  

 
Standard 5.3.3.7.1 Special species and ecological communities 
 

• The project must demonstrate conformance with this Standard. The project site is wooded 
with natural pine barrens vegetation. The natural pine barrens ecological communities, 
plant and wildlife habitats should be protected to the maximum extent. 
 

• Coordinate the application with the New York State Department of Environmental 
Conservation to demonstrate conformance with the protection of listed species and their 
habitats including the Federal and State-listed Threatened species, Northern Long-eared 
Bat (NLEB). The conversion of habitat or land use from natural and undeveloped to 
developed impacts the habitat of NLEB. Clearing may only occur from December through 
February of a given year. 

 
Other Comments 
 

• Consider impacts to traffic with the location of this land use at the intersection of two 
principal arterial roads as defined by the New York State Department of Transportation 
Functional Class Viewer. 



DRAFT 

4 
 

• Consider the increase in density of similar land uses in this location. The proposed land use 
is in direct proximity to other fueling stations on the south side of Middle Country Road 
serving east-bound traffic. Two gas stations with convenience stores within the CGA are 
roughly 350 feet and 630 feet away from the project site. Just beyond the CGA boundary, 
another gas station with convenience store is about 1.5 miles south of the project site on 
the west side of Route 112, and an existing 7-Eleven is roughly 1,100 feet north of the 
project site on the east side Route 112.  
 

• Where fencing is proposed to protect open space, utilize a split rail fence between the 
development and open space to allow for the unrestricted movement of wildlife.  
 

• Confirm the completion of the SEQR process for this project.  
 

The proposal must conform to all other involved agency jurisdictions and permit requirements in 
effect on the project site. Thank you for your attention, and if you have any questions, please do 
not hesitate to contact me at (631) 563-0307. 
 
Sincerely, 
 
 
Tara Murphy 
Environmental Planner 
 
cc: Judy Jakobsen, Executive Director, CPBJPPC 

Julie Hargrave, Policy and Planning Manager, CPBJPPC 
 John C. Milazzo, Counsel, CPBJPPC 
 Michael Albano, Town of Brookhaven 
 Crest Coram LLC, Applicant 



Planning, Environment and Land Management 
James M. Tullo, Commissioner 

One Independence Hill • Farmingville • NY  11738 • Phone (631) 451-6400  
www.brookhavenny.gov 

 

 

 

 

Town of Brookhaven 
Long Island 

Daniel J. Panico, Supervisor 

 

 
DATE:  May 1, 2025 
  
TO: Division of Engineering 

Division of Environmental Protection 
Division of Fire Prevention 
New York State, Department of Transportation  
Suffolk County, Department of Health Services 
Suffolk County Water Authority 
New York State, Department of Environmental Conservation 
Pine Barrens Commission 

  
FROM: Michael Albano  

Planning Division 
  
RE:  Town Board Application: Crest Coram 7-11, Log # 2024-018-CZ 
  Change of Zone from J6, A1 to J5 
  S/s Middle Country Rd., S/W corner of Middle Country Rd & NYS Route 112, Coram 
  Suffolk County Tax Map #:  0200 47600 0200 030000, 032001 & 034001 2.11acres. 
 
 
Attached is a copy of a new application this office has received. For your review and consideration, please 
find enclosed a copy of the project application materials. 
 
Please reply within 30 days of the date of this mailing.  Also, kindly forward any findings or concerns you may have 
regarding this proposal, particularly with respect to your areas of expertise and jurisdiction, which would enhance 
the utilization of this site or provide additional protection to the community.   
 
All correspondence should be forwarded to The Office of the Town Clerk for distribution to lead agency: 
 

Town of Brookhaven 
OFFICE OF THE TOWN CLERK 

Kevin J. Lavalle 
One Independence Hill 
Farmingville, NY 11738 

 
Thank you for your continued cooperation. If you have any questions or need any further information, please 
contact this Division.  
 
cc:  Kevin J. Lavalle,  Town Clerk  



-476-2-34.1

-476-2-30

-476-2-32.1

Crest Coram (SCTM# 200-476-2-30, 32.1, 34.1)

Copyright nearmap 2015

Pine Barren CGA

Street Labels

Tax Parcels

Nearmap Imagery

Red:   Band_1

Green: Band_2

Blue:  Band_3

5/7/2025, 3:27:37 PM
0 90 18045 ft

0 25 5012.5 m

1:1,000

Copyright nearmap 2015 |



50' TOWN REGULATED W
ETLAND BUFFE

R

50' TOWN REGULATED WETLAND BUFFER

10
0' 

ST
ATE R

EG
ULA

TED
 W

ET
LA

ND BU
FF

ER

15
0'

 T
O

W
N

 R
EG

U
LA

TE
D

 W
ET

LA
N

D
 B

U
FF

ER

EX
IST

IN
G W

ET
LA

NDS F
EA

TU
RE

 

100' ST
ATE REGULA

TED W
ETLA

ND BUFFE
R

100' STATE REGULATED WETLAND BUFFER

150' TOWN REGULATED WETLAND BUFFER

W
V

W
V

GV

X
X

OH
OH

OH
OH

AS
PH

AL
T

PA
VE

ME
NT

BL
OC

K 
2 L

OT
 29

.13

TA
X 

ID
 # 

02
00

47
60

00
20

00
29

01
3

RE
PU

TE
D 

OW
NE

R

C 
V V

ILL
AG

E A
T C

OR
AM

 LL
C

BL
OC

K 
2 L

OT
 32

.1

TA
X 

ID
 # 

02
00

47
60

00
20

00
32

00
1

RE
PU

TE
D 

OW
NE

R

CR
ES

T C
OR

AM
 I L

LC

34
,76

0 S
.F. 

/ 0
.79

8 A
C

BL
OC

K 
2 L

OT
 30

TA
X 

ID
 # 

02
00

47
60

00
20

00
30

00
0

RE
PU

TE
D 

OW
NE

R

CR
ES

T C
OR

AM
 I L

LC

12
,57

0 S
.F. 

/ 0
.28

9 A
C

BL
OC

K 
2 L

OT
 34

.1

TA
X 

ID
 # 

02
00

47
60

00
20

00
34

00
1

RE
PU

TE
D 

OW
NE

R

MI
DD

LE
 C

OU
NT

RY
 LL

C

48
,11

6 S
.F. 

/ 1
.10

5 A
C

BL
OC

K 
2 L

OT
 36

.2

TA
X 

ID
 # 

02
00

47
60

00
20

00
36

00
2

RE
PU

TE
D 

OW
NE

R

M 
K 

L V
 VE

NT
UR

ES
 IN

C

DE
NS

EL
Y

W
OO

DE
D

DE
NS

EL
Y

W
OO

DE
D

DE
NS

EL
Y

W
OO

DE
D

DE
NS

EL
Y

W
OO

DE
D

DE
NS

EL
Y

W
OO

DE
D

6' CHAIN LINK FENCE

CO
NC

 C
UR

B

AE

AEAE

SO
LID

 SIN
GLE 

WHITE L
INE S

TOP B
AR

CONC. W
ALKL/S

24" RCP

15"
 RC

P

GR
AS

S

GR
AS

S

MA
SO

NR
Y B

UI
LD

IN
G

SO
LID

 D
OU

BL
E Y

EL
LO

W
 LI

NE

DA
SH

ED
 SI

NG
LE

 W
HI

TE
 LI

NE

SO
LID

 DOUBLE
 YE

LLO
W LIN

E

SOLID
 SIN

GLE W
HITE LI

NE ST
OP B

AR

SOLID
 SIN

GLE W
HITE LI

NE C
ROSS W

ALK

SOLID SIN
GLE W

HITE LIN
E ST

OP BAR

SO
LID

 SI
NG

LE
 W

HI
TE

 LI
NE

 C
RO

SS
 W

AL
K

SO
LID

 SI
NG

LE
 W

HI
TE

 LI
NE

 C
RO

SS
 W

AL
K

SOLID
 SIN

GLE W
HITE LI

NE C
ROSS W

ALK

GR
AS

S

SOLID SINGLE WHITE LINE STOP BAR

15" RCP

LO
T 

LIN
E

P.O
.B.

N:
25

73
22

.29

E:1
26

05
88

.90

LO
T 

LIN
E

BL
OC

K 
2 L

OT
 29

.13

TA
X 

ID
 # 

02
00

47
60

00
20

00
29

01
3

RE
PU

TE
D 

OW
NE

R

C 
V V

ILL
AG

E A
T C

OR
AM

 LL
C

BL
OC

K 
2 L

OT
 29

.13

TA
X 

ID
 # 

02
00

47
60

00
20

00
29

01
3

RE
PU

TE
D 

OW
NE

R

C 
V V

ILL
AG

E A
T C

OR
AM

 LL
C

W
W

W

G
G

G
G

W
AT

ER
 LI

NE

PE
R F

IEL
D 

MA
RK

OU
T

GA
S L

IN
E

PE
R F

IEL
D 

MA
RK

OU
T

BOTTOM OF BANK

TOP OF BANK

NY
SD

OT

AP
PR

OP
RIA

TIO
N

DE
ED

 BO
OK

 11
65

5

PA
GE

 38
7

NY
SD

OT
  A

PP
RO

PR
IAT

IO
N

DE
ED

 BO
OK

 12
78

9 P
AG

E 4
92

(Z
IG

ZA
G 

HA
TC

H)

EL
EC

TR
IC

 EA
SE

ME
NT

DE
ED

 BO
OK

 26
70

 PA
GE

 58
3

(C
RO

SS 
HA

TC
H)

4a

G

GA
S L

IN
E

PE
R F

IEL
D 

MA
RK

OU
T

G

O
H

O
H

O
H

O
H

O
H

O
H

O
H

CE

CONC CURB

X 
W

AL
K

PO
LE

N
E

W
 Y

O
R

K
 S

T
A

T
E

 R
O

U
T

E
 1

12
(V

A
R

IA
B

LE
 W

ID
E

 P
U

B
LI

C
 R

IG
H

T
 O

F 
W

A
Y

 P
E

R
 T

A
X

 M
A

P
)

A
SP

H
A

LT
 P

A
V

E
M

E
N

T

20
' IN

GR
ES

S A
ND

 EG
RE

SS

EA
SE

ME
NT

9

18
" T

RE
E

24
" T

RE
E9" 

TR
EE

12
" T

RE
E

6" 
TR

EE

24
" E

VE
RG

RE
EN

10
" T

RE
E

24
" T

RE
E

32
" T

RE
E

10
" T

RE
E

36
" T

RE
E

18
" T

RE
E

26
" T

RE
E

18
" T

RE
E

12
" T

RE
E

12
" T

RE
E10

" T
RE

E
12

" T
RE

E
8" 

TR
EE

12
" T

RE
E

20
" T

RE
E

10
" T

RE
E

20
" T

RE
E

20
" T

RE
E

20
" T

RE
E

20
" T

RE
E

10
" T

RE
E

10
" T

RE
E

12
" T

RE
E

12
" T

RE
E

12
" T

RE
E

12
" T

RE
E

24
" T

RE
E

24
" T

RE
E

DASH
ED

 SIN
GLE 

WHITE
 LIN

EO
H

O
H

O
H

O
H

O
H

O
H

O
H

OH

OH

OH

OH

D.W.S D.C

C.E

CO
NC

. W
AL

K

D.C
D.W.S

BR
IC

K

PA
VE

R STONE W
ALL CONC. W

ALKWAY

GU
Y W

IRE

GR
AS

S

73
.78

'
S6

7°
52

'35
"E 

(D
)

21
0.0

6' 
(D

)
S6

3°
21

'22
"E 

(D
)

10
0.3

0' 
(D

)

245
.26' 

(D)

S56
°51'

19"W

N4
2°5

8'0
1"W

27
.23

'

N6
6°

29
'47

"W
78

.35
'

S41°14'19"W
27.05'

S12°47'29"W

178.67'

13
6.6

7'
N6

7°
01

'51
"W

N10°16'31"E

334.12'N62°
19'0

9"E
34.2

6'

N8
1°4

3'2
3"E

70
.09

' (D
)

S7
9°

35
'36

"E 
(D

)
36

.03
' (D

)

DI
ST

RIC
T 2

00
, S

EC
TIO

N 
47

6,

BL
OC

K 
2, 

LO
TS

 30
, 3

2.1
, 3

4.1

DE
ED

 A
RE

A 
=

95
,44

6 S
.F. 

/ 2
.19

1 A
C

SU
RV

EY
 A

RE
A 

=

92
,30

0 S
.F. 

/ 2
.11

9 A
C

PR
OP

OS
ED

 N
YS

DO
T

DE
DI

CA
TIO

N 
LIN

E P
ER

SY
RV

EY
 RE

FE
RE

NC
E #

9
LO

CA
TIO

N 
OF

TE
MP

OR
AR

Y

EA
SE

ME
NT

 PE
R S

UR
VE

Y

RE
FE

RE
NC

E #
11

(PA
RC

EL
 52

8)

LO
CA

TIO
N 

OF
 (F

EE
)

LIN
E P

ER
 SU

RV
EY

RE
FE

RE
NC

E #
10

(PA
RC

EL
 52

6)

4c
4c

AP
PR

OX
. L

OC
AT

IO
N

OF
 N

YS
DO

T

AP
PR

OP
RIA

TIO
N

(PA
RC

EL
 52

7)

DB
. 1

28
69

 PG
. 3

31
 /

DB
. 1

28
81

 PG
. 4

68

N 
79

°3
5'5

0" 
W

63
.52

'

AR
C 

LE
NG

TH
 = 

17
8.3

1'

RA
DI

US
 = 

55
58

.68
'

DE
LT

A 
= 1

°50
'16

"

CH
OR

D 
BE

AR
IN

G 
= S

 68
°14

'33
" E

CH
OR

D 
LE

NG
TH

 = 
17

8.3
0'

AR
C 

LE
NG

TH
 = 

11
5.5

6'

RA
DI

US
 = 

42
3.0

2'

DE
LT

A 
= 1

5°3
9'0

7"

CH
OR

D 
BE

AR
IN

G 
= S

 56
°51

'28
" E

CH
OR

D 
LE

NG
TH

 = 
11

5.2
0'

MID
DLE C

OUNTRY ROAD

(V
ARIA

BLE W
ID

E PUBLIC
 RIG

HT O
F W

AY PER T
AX M

AP)

ASPHALT PAVEMENT

(A
.K

.A
. N

EW
 Y

ORK STATE ROUTE 25)

220
.19'

43
.98

'

LO
CA

TIO
N 

OF
 D

EE
D

PR
OP

ER
TY

 LI
NE

6
7

4a

IN
LE

T

GR
T=

92
.98

IN
V(a

)=8
8.0

2

IN
V(b

)=8
8.0

2

IN
LE

T

GR
T=

90
.65

IN
V.=

86
.45IN

LE
T

GR
T=

91
.93

IN
V(a

)=8
5.7

3

IN
V(b

)=8
5.3

6

IN
LE

T

GR
T=

93
.44

IN
V.=

89
.36

EX
IST

IN
G W

ET
LA

NDS F
EA

TU
RE

 

EX
IST

IN
G W

ET
LA

NDS F
EA

TURE 

2,
99

9 
SF

24
 P

AR
KI

N
G

SP
AC

ES

8

10

X
X

X
X

X
X

X
X

X
X

X
X

X

X

X

X
X

X
X

X
X

X
X

X
X

X
X

X

X

X

X

21
'

20
'

8'

8'
8' 9'

6.4'

32'

14.2'

52
.0'

95.4'

25
.0

'

F

F

F

20'

35
'

9'

20'

30
'

26'

5'

43
'

70'

21
'

42'

9'

20'

26
'

67
'

36
'

35'

PR
O

PO
SE

D
 R

IG
H

T
IN

G
R

ES
S 

/ E
G

R
ES

S
O

N
LY

 D
R

IV
EW

A
Y

PR
O

PO
SE

D
 R

IG
H

T
 IN

G
R

ES
S 

/
R

IG
H

T
 E

G
R

ES
S 

O
N

LY
 D

R
IV

EW
A

Y

PR
O

PO
SE

D
 6

 F
T

 H
IG

H
 B

LA
C

K
C

H
A

IN
 L

IN
K

 F
EN

C
E

PR
O

PO
SE

D
 2

5'
-4

" 
x 

12
'-8

"
T

R
A

SH
 E

N
C

LO
SU

R
E

PR
O

PO
SE

D
U

N
D

ER
G

R
O

U
N

D
T

A
N

K
S

6

PR
O

PO
SE

D
 N

Y
SD

O
T

D
ED

IC
A

T
IO

N
 A

R
EA

 (
± 

2,
08

2 
SF

)

57.1'

71
.3

'

102.4'

73
.5'

40
 F

T
 R

EA
R

 Y
A

R
D

 S
ET

BA
C

K

40 FT REAR YARD SETBACK

40
 F

T
 R

EA
R

 Y
A

R
D

 S
ET

BA
C

K

25 
FT

 SID
E Y

ARD SE
TBACK

25 FT SIDE YARD SETBACK

50
 F

T
 F

R
O

N
T

 Y
A

R
D

 S
ET

BA
C

K

6'

6'

5'

5'

A
-1

 R
ES

ID
EN

C
E 

Z
O

N
E

J-6
 B

U
SI

N
ES

S 
Z

O
N

E

PR
O

PO
SE

D
 S

T
R

EE
T

 T
R

EE
S.

 3
0 

FT
O

N
 C

EN
T

ER
 (

10
-T

Y
PI

C
A

L)

30
' 11

3'

20'

G
E

N
E

R
A

L 
N

O
T

E
S

1.
T

H
E 

C
O

N
T

R
A

C
T

O
R

 
SH

A
LL

 
V

ER
IF

Y
 

A
N

D
 

FA
M

IL
IA

R
IZ

E 
T

H
EM

SE
LV

ES
W

IT
H

 T
H

E 
EX

IS
T

IN
G

 S
IT

E 
C

O
N

D
IT

IO
N

S 
A

N
D

 T
H

E 
PR

O
PO

SE
D

 S
C

O
PE

O
F 

W
O

R
K

 
(IN

C
LU

D
IN

G
 

D
IM

EN
SI

O
N

S,
 

LA
Y

O
U

T
, 

ET
C

.) 
PR

IO
R

 
T

O
IN

IT
IA

T
IN

G
 

T
H

E 
IM

PR
O

V
EM

EN
T

S 
ID

EN
T

IF
IE

D
 

W
IT

H
IN

 
T

H
ES

E
D

O
C

U
M

EN
T

S.
 S

H
O

U
LD

 A
N

Y
 D

IS
C

R
EP

A
N

C
Y

 B
E 

FO
U

N
D

 B
ET

W
EE

N
 T

H
E

EX
IS

T
IN

G
 

SI
T

E 
C

O
N

D
IT

IO
N

S 
A

N
D

 
T

H
E 

PR
O

PO
SE

D
 

W
O

R
K

 
T

H
E

C
O

N
T

R
A

C
T

O
R

 S
H

A
LL

 N
O

T
IF

Y
 S

T
O

N
EF

IE
LD

 E
N

G
IN

EE
R

IN
G

 &
 D

ES
IG

N
,

LL
C

. P
R

IO
R

 T
O

 T
H

E 
ST

A
R

T
 O

F 
C

O
N

ST
R

U
C

T
IO

N
.

2.
T

H
E 

C
O

N
T

R
A

C
T

O
R

 
SH

A
LL

 
O

BT
A

IN
 

A
LL

 
N

EC
ES

SA
R

Y
 

PE
R

M
IT

S 
A

N
D

EN
SU

R
E 

T
H

A
T

 
A

LL
 

R
EQ

U
IR

ED
 

A
PP

R
O

V
A

LS
 

H
A

V
E 

BE
EN

 
O

BT
A

IN
ED

PR
IO

R
 T

O
 T

H
E 

ST
A

R
T 

O
F 

C
O

N
ST

R
U

C
T

IO
N

. C
O

PI
ES

 O
F 

A
LL

 R
EQ

U
IR

ED
PE

R
M

IT
S 

A
N

D
 

A
PP

R
O

V
A

LS
 

SH
A

LL
 

BE
 

K
EP

T
 

O
N

 
SI

T
E 

A
T

 
A

LL
 

T
IM

ES
D

U
R

IN
G

 C
O

N
ST

R
U

C
T

IO
N

.
3.

A
LL

 C
O

N
T

R
A

C
T

O
R

S 
W

IL
L,

 T
O

 T
H

E 
FU

LL
ES

T
 E

X
T

EN
T

 P
ER

M
IT

T
ED

 B
Y

LA
W

, I
N

D
EM

N
IF

Y
 A

N
D

 H
O

LD
 H

A
R

M
LE

SS
 S

T
O

N
EF

IE
LD

 E
N

G
IN

EE
R

IN
G

 &
D

ES
IG

N
, L

LC
. A

N
D

 IT
'S

 S
U

B-
C

O
N

SU
LT

A
N

T
S 

FR
O

M
 A

N
D

 A
G

A
IN

ST
 A

N
Y

D
A

M
A

G
ES

 
A

N
D

 
LI

A
BI

LI
T

IE
S 

IN
C

LU
D

IN
G

 
A

T
T

O
R

N
EY

'S
 

FE
ES

 
A

R
IS

IN
G

O
U

T
 O

F 
C

LA
IM

S 
BY

 E
M

PL
O

Y
EE

S 
O

F 
T

H
E 

C
O

N
T

R
A

C
T

O
R 

IN
 A

D
D

IT
IO

N
T

O
 C

LA
IM

S 
C

O
N

N
EC

T
ED

 T
O

 T
H

E 
PR

O
JE

C
T

 A
S 

A
 R

ES
U

LT
 O

F 
N

O
T

C
A

R
R

Y
IN

G
 T

H
E 

PR
O

PE
R

 IN
SU

R
A

N
C

E 
FO

R
 W

O
R

K
ER

S 
C

O
M

PE
N

SA
T

IO
N

,
LI

A
BI

LI
T

Y
 

IN
SU

R
A

N
C

E,
 

A
N

D
 

LI
M

IT
S 

O
F 

C
O

M
M

ER
C

IA
L 

G
EN

ER
A

L
LI

A
BI

LI
T

Y
 IN

SU
R

A
N

C
E.

4.
T

H
E 

C
O

N
T

R
A

C
T

O
R

 
SH

A
LL

 
N

O
T 

D
EV

IA
T

E 
FR

O
M

 
T

H
E 

PR
O

PO
SE

D
IM

PR
O

V
EM

EN
T

S 
ID

EN
T

IF
IE

D
 W

IT
H

IN
 T

H
IS

 P
LA

N
 S

ET
 U

N
LE

SS
 A

PP
R

O
V

A
L

IS
 P

R
O

V
ID

ED
 I

N
 W

R
IT

IN
G

 B
Y 

ST
O

N
EF

IE
LD

 E
N

G
IN

EE
R

IN
G

 &
 D

ES
IG

N
,

LL
C

.
5.

T
H

E 
C

O
N

T
R

A
C

T
O

R 
IS

 R
ES

PO
N

SI
BL

E 
T

O
 D

ET
ER

M
IN

E 
T

H
E 

M
EA

N
S 

A
N

D
M

ET
H

O
D

S 
O

F 
C

O
N

ST
R

U
C

T
IO

N
.

6.
T

H
E 

C
O

N
T

R
A

C
T

O
R

 S
H

A
LL

 N
O

T 
PE

R
FO

R
M

 A
N

Y
 W

O
R

K
 O

R
 C

A
U

SE
D

IS
T

U
R

BA
N

C
E 

O
N

 A
 P

R
IV

A
T

E 
PR

O
PE

R
T

Y
 N

O
T

 C
O

N
T

R
O

LL
ED

 B
Y 

T
H

E
PE

R
SO

N
 O

R
 E

N
T

IT
Y

 W
H

O
 H

A
S 

A
U

T
H

O
R

IZ
ED

 T
H

E 
W

O
R

K
 W

IT
H

O
U

T
PR

IO
R

 
W

R
IT

T
EN

 
C

O
N

SE
N

T
 

FR
O

M
 

T
H

E 
O

W
N

ER
 

O
F 

T
H

E 
PR

IV
A

T
E

PR
O

PE
R

T
Y

.
7.

T
H

E 
C

O
N

T
R

A
C

T
O

R 
IS

 R
ES

PO
N

SI
BL

E 
T

O
 R

ES
T

O
R

E 
A

N
Y 

D
A

M
A

G
ED

 O
R

U
N

D
ER

M
IN

ED
 S

T
R

U
C

T
U

R
E 

O
R

 S
IT

E 
FE

A
T

U
R

E 
T

H
A

T
 I

S 
ID

EN
T

IF
IE

D
 T

O
R

EM
A

IN
 O

N
 T

H
E 

PL
A

N
 S

ET
. 

A
LL

 R
EP

A
IR

S 
SH

A
LL

 U
SE

 N
EW

 M
A

T
ER

IA
LS

T
O

 R
ES

T
O

R
E 

T
H

E 
FE

A
T

U
R

E 
T

O
 I

T
S 

EX
IS

T
IN

G
 C

O
N

D
IT

IO
N

 A
T

 T
H

E
C

O
N

T
R

A
C

T
O

R
S 

EX
PE

N
SE

.
8.

C
O

N
T

R
A

C
T

O
R

 I
S 

R
ES

PO
N

SI
BL

E 
T

O
 P

R
O

V
ID

E 
T

H
E 

A
PP

R
O

PR
IA

T
E 

SH
O

P
D

R
A

W
IN

G
S,

 P
R

O
D

U
C

T 
D

A
T

A
, 

A
N

D
 O

T
H

ER
 R

EQ
U

IR
ED

 S
U

BM
IT

T
A

LS
FO

R
 R

EV
IE

W
. S

T
O

N
EF

IE
LD

 E
N

G
IN

EE
R

IN
G

 &
 D

ES
IG

N
, L

LC
. W

IL
L 

R
EV

IE
W

T
H

E 
SU

BM
IT

T
A

LS
 I

N
 A

C
C

O
R

D
A

N
C

E 
W

IT
H

 T
H

E 
D

ES
IG

N
 I

N
T

EN
T 

A
S

R
EF

LE
C

T
ED

 W
IT

H
IN

 T
H

E 
PL

A
N

 S
ET

.
9.

T
H

E 
C

O
N

T
R

A
C

T
O

R
 

IS
 

R
ES

PO
N

SI
BL

E 
FO

R 
T

R
A

FF
IC

 
C

O
N

T
R

O
L 

IN
A

C
C

O
R

D
A

N
C

E 
W

IT
H

 
M

A
N

U
A

L 
O

N
 

U
N

IF
O

R
M

 
T

R
A

FF
IC

 
C

O
N

T
R

O
L

D
EV

IC
ES

, L
A

T
ES

T
 E

D
IT

IO
N

.
10

.
T

H
E 

C
O

N
T

R
A

C
T

O
R

 I
S 

R
EQ

U
IR

ED
 T

O
 P

ER
FO

R
M

 A
LL

 W
O

R
K

 I
N

 T
H

E
PU

BL
IC

 R
IG

H
T

-O
F-

W
A

Y
 I

N
 A

C
C

O
R

D
A

N
C

E 
W

IT
H

 T
H

E 
A

PP
R

O
PR

IA
T

E
G

O
V

ER
N

IN
G

 
A

U
T

H
O

R
IT

Y 
A

N
D

 
SH

A
LL

 
BE

 
R

ES
PO

N
SI

BL
E 

FO
R

 
T

H
E

PR
O

C
U

R
EM

EN
T

 O
F 

ST
R

EE
T

 O
PE

N
IN

G
 P

ER
M

IT
S.

11
.

T
H

E 
C

O
N

T
R

A
C

T
O

R
 I

S 
R

EQ
U

IR
ED

 T
O

 R
ET

A
IN

 A
N

 O
SH

A
 C

ER
T

IF
IE

D
SA

FE
T

Y
 I

N
SP

EC
T

O
R 

T
O

 B
E 

PR
ES

EN
T

 O
N

 S
IT

E 
A

T
 A

LL
 T

IM
ES

 D
U

R
IN

G
C

O
N

ST
R

U
C

T
IO

N
 &

 D
EM

O
LI

T
IO

N
 A

C
T

IV
IT

IE
S.

12
.

SH
O

U
LD

 A
N

 E
M

PL
O

Y
EE

 O
F 

ST
O

N
EF

IE
LD

 E
N

G
IN

EE
R

IN
G

 &
 D

ES
IG

N
, L

LC
.

BE
 P

R
ES

EN
T

 O
N

 S
IT

E 
A

T
 A

N
Y

 T
IM

E 
D

U
R

IN
G

 C
O

N
ST

R
U

C
T

IO
N

, I
T 

D
O

ES
N

O
T

 R
EL

IE
V

E 
T

H
E 

C
O

N
T

R
A

C
T

O
R 

O
F 

A
N

Y 
O

F 
T

H
E 

R
ES

PO
N

SI
BI

LI
T

IE
S

A
N

D
 R

EQ
U

IR
EM

EN
T

S 
LI

ST
ED

 IN
 T

H
E 

N
O

T
ES

 W
IT

H
IN

 T
H

IS
 P

LA
N

 S
ET

.

G
R

A
PH

IC
 S

C
A

LE
 IN

 F
EE

T

0'
40

'
20

'
20

'

1"
 =

 2
0'

SI
T

E
 P

LA
N

1 
O

F 
1

1"
 =

 30
'

SY
M

B
O

L
D

E
SC

R
IP

T
IO

N

X
X

X
X

PR
O

PO
SE

D
 C

U
R

B

PR
O

PO
SE

D
 F

LU
SH

 C
U

R
B

PR
O

PO
SE

D
 B

U
IL

D
IN

G

PR
O

PO
SE

D
 C

O
N

C
R

ET
E

SE
T

BA
C

K
 L

IN
E

PR
O

PO
SE

D
 C

H
A

IN
 L

IN
K

 F
EN

C
E

PR
O

PO
SE

D
 S

IG
N

S 
/ B

O
LL

A
R

D
S

PR
O

PE
R

T
Y

 L
IN

E

LA
N

D
 U

SE
 A

N
D

 Z
O

N
IN

G
D

IS
T

R
IC

T
 2

00
 S

E
C

T
IO

N
 4

76
 B

LO
C

K
 2

 L
O

T
S 

32
.1

, 3
4.

1 
A

N
D

 3
0.

0

H
IG

H
 IN

T
E

N
SI

T
Y

 B
U

SI
N

E
SS

 (
J-

5)

P
R

O
P

O
SE

D
 U

SE

C
O

N
V

EN
IE

N
C

E 
ST

O
R

E 
A

C
C

ES
SO

R
Y

 T
O

M
O

T
O

R
 V

EH
IC

LE
 F

U
EL

IN
G

 S
T

A
T

IO
N

SP
EC

IA
L 

PE
R

M
IT

 U
SE

 (
T

O
W

N
 B

O
A

R
D

 A
PP

R
O

V
A

L)

M
O

T
O

R
 V

EH
IC

LE
 F

U
EL

IN
G

 S
T

A
T

IO
N

SP
EC

IA
L 

PE
R

M
IT

 U
SE

 (
T

O
W

N
 B

O
A

R
D

 A
PP

R
O

V
A

L)

Z
O

N
IN

G
 R

E
Q

U
IR

E
M

E
N

T
R

E
Q

U
IR

E
D

P
R

O
P

O
SE

D

M
IN

IM
U

M
 L

O
T

 A
R

EA
1.

49
 A

C
 (

65
,0

00
 S

F)
90

,2
18

 S
F 

(2
.0

7 
A

C
)*

M
IN

IM
U

M
 L

O
T

 W
ID

T
H

15
0 

FT
41

6 
FT

M
A

X
IM

U
M

 F
LO

O
R

 A
R

EA
 R

A
T

IO
25

%
3.

3%
 (

2,
99

9 
SF

)

M
A

X
IM

U
M

 B
U

IL
D

IN
G

 H
EI

G
H

T
2.

5 
ST

O
R

IE
S/

35
 F

T
1 

ST
O

R
Y

/<
 3

5 
FT

M
IN

IM
U

M
 F

R
O

N
T

 Y
A

R
D

 S
ET

BA
C

K
50

 F
T

BU
IL

D
IN

G
: 1

4.
2 

FT
 (

V
)*

C
A

N
O

PY
: 5

7.
1 

FT
T

R
A

SH
 E

N
C

LO
SU

R
E:

 N
/A

M
IN

IM
U

M
 S

ID
E 

Y
A

R
D

 S
ET

BA
C

K
 (

O
N

E)
25

 F
T

BU
IL

D
IN

G
: 5

2.
0 

FT
C

A
N

O
PY

: 7
1.

3 
FT

T
R

A
SH

 E
N

C
LO

SU
R

E:
 2

5.
0 

FT

M
IN

IM
U

M
 R

EA
R

 Y
A

R
D

 S
ET

BA
C

K
40

 F
T

BU
IL

D
IN

G
: 9

5.
4 

FT
C

A
N

O
PY

: 1
02

.4
 F

T
T

R
A

SH
 E

N
C

LO
SU

R
E:

 N
/A

(V
)

(*
)

V
A

R
IA

N
C

E
A

FT
ER

 N
Y

SD
O

T
 D

ED
IC

A
T

IO
N

O
FF

-S
T

R
E

E
T

 P
A

R
K

IN
G

 R
E

Q
U

IR
E

M
E

N
T

S

C
O

D
E

SE
C

T
IO

N
R

E
Q

U
IR

E
D

P
R

O
P

O
SE

D

§8
5-

85
2

M
IN

IM
U

M
 P

A
R

K
IN

G
 R

EQ
U

IR
EM

EN
T

:
C

O
N

V
EN

IE
N

C
E 

ST
O

R
E:

 1
 S

PA
C

E 
PE

R
 1

00
 S

F 
O

F 
G

FA
   

(1
 S

PA
C

E 
/ 1

00
 S

F)
 *

 (
2,

99
9 

SF
) 

= 
30

 S
PA

C
ES

M
O

T
O

R
 V

EH
IC

LE
 F

U
EL

IN
G

 S
T

A
T

IO
N

:
   

M
IN

IM
U

M
 O

F 
2 

ST
A

LL
S

T
O

T
A

L 
= 

32
 S

PA
C

ES
24

 S
PA

C
ES

 (
V

)

§8
5-

85
0

LO
A

D
IN

G
 S

PA
C

E 
R

EQ
U

IR
EM

EN
T

:
1 

SP
A

C
E 

FO
R

 B
U

IL
D

IN
G

 F
LO

O
R

 A
R

EA
 U

N
D

ER
 8

,0
00

 S
F

1 
SP

A
C

E

§8
5-

85
4.

B
M

IN
IM

U
M

 P
A

R
K

IN
G

 S
PA

C
E 

D
IM

EN
SI

O
N

S:
LE

N
G

T
H

 =
 1

9 
FT

W
ID

T
H

 =
 9

 F
T

LE
N

G
T

H
 =

 2
0 

FT
W

ID
T

H
 =

 9
 F

T

§8
5-

85
4.

E
M

IN
IM

U
M

 M
A

N
EU

V
ER

IN
G

 A
IS

LE
 W

ID
T

H
:

T
BD

 B
Y

 P
LA

N
N

IN
G

 B
O

A
R

D
20

 F
T

M
O

T
O

R
 V

E
H

IC
LE

 F
U

E
LI

N
G

 / 
A

C
C

E
SS

O
R

Y
 C

O
N

V
E

N
IE

N
C

E
 S

T
O

R
E

 S
P

E
C

IA
L 

P
E

R
M

IT
R

E
Q

U
IR

E
M

E
N

T
S

C
O

D
E

SE
C

T
IO

N
R

E
Q

U
IR

E
D

P
R

O
P

O
SE

D

§8
5-

46
7.

B.
1

A
PP

LI
C

A
N

T
 M

U
ST

 D
EM

O
N

ST
R

A
T

E 
A

 P
LA

N
 W

H
ER

EB
Y

 V
EH

IC
LE

S
W

IS
H

IN
G

 T
O

 R
EC

EI
V

E 
FU

EL
IN

G
 S

ER
V

IC
ES

 C
A

N
 D

O
 S

O
 W

IT
H

O
U

T
IN

C
O

N
V

EN
IE

N
C

E.

C
O

M
PL

IE
S

§8
5-

46
7.

B.
2

A
LL

 C
O

N
V

EN
IE

N
C

E 
ST

O
R

ES
 S

H
A

LL
 H

A
V

E 
PU

BL
IC

 R
ES

T
R

O
O

M
S

A
T

T
A

C
H

ED
 T

H
ER

ET
O

.
C

O
M

PL
IE

S

§8
5-

46
7.

B.
3

A
 M

A
X

IM
U

M
 O

F 
75

0 
SF

 O
F 

BU
IL

D
IN

G
 A

R
EA

 S
H

A
LL

 B
E 

D
EV

O
T

ED
 T

O
 T

H
E

R
ET

A
IL

 S
A

LE
 A

N
D

 D
IS

PL
A

Y
 A

R
EA

, T
O

T
A

L 
BU

IL
D

IN
G

 A
R

EA
 S

H
A

LL
 N

O
T

EX
C

EE
D

 1
,5

00
 S

F.

W
A

IV
ER

 R
EQ

U
IR

ED

§8
5-

46
7.

B.
4

T
H

E 
PL

A
N

N
IN

G
 B

O
A

R
D

 S
H

A
LL

 A
PP

R
O

V
E 

A
LL

 S
IG

N
S 

D
IS

PL
A

Y
ED

 A
T

 T
H

E
SI

T
E 

IN
 C

O
N

N
EC

T
IO

N
 W

IT
H

 T
H

E 
C

O
N

V
EN

IE
N

C
E 

ST
O

R
E.

 P
O

R
T

A
BL

E
A

N
D

 M
O

BI
LE

 S
IG

N
S 

A
R

E 
PR

O
H

IB
IT

ED
.

C
O

M
PL

IE
S

§8
5-

46
7.

B.
5

O
U

T
SI

D
E 

D
IS

PL
A

Y
 S

H
A

LL
 B

E 
PR

O
H

IB
IT

ED
.

C
O

M
PL

IE
S

§8
5-

46
7.

B.
6

A
 D

U
M

PS
T

ER
 E

N
C

LO
SU

R
E 

FO
R

 S
EP

A
R

A
T

E 
R

U
BB

IS
H

 A
N

D
 C

A
R

D
BO

A
R

D
R

EC
Y

C
LI

N
G

 S
H

A
LL

 B
E 

PR
O

V
ID

ED
. E

N
C

LO
SU

R
E 

SH
A

LL
 M

EA
SU

R
E 

8 
FT

 IN
H

EI
G

H
T

 A
N

D
 W

A
LL

S 
SH

A
LL

 C
O

M
PL

EM
EN

T
 T

H
E 

BU
IL

D
IN

G
 F

A
C

A
D

E.

C
O

M
PL

IE
S

§8
5-

46
7.

B.
7

BU
FF

ER
S 

A
N

D
 P

LA
N

T
IN

G
S 

IN
 A

C
C

O
R

D
A

N
C

E 
W

IT
H

 T
H

E 
LA

N
D

D
EV

EL
O

PM
EN

T
 S

T
A

N
D

A
R

D
S,

 E
X

C
EP

T
 T

H
A

T
 T

H
E 

R
EA

R
 Y

A
R

D
 S

ET
BA

C
K

SH
A

LL
 B

E 
40

 F
T

.

W
A

IV
ER

 R
EQ

U
IR

ED

§8
5-

46
7.

B.
8

A
 M

IN
IM

U
M

 6
 F

T
 T

A
LL

 S
O

LI
D

 (
O

PA
Q

U
E)

 F
EN

C
E 

A
LO

N
G

 A
N

Y
 P

R
O

PE
R

T
Y

LI
N

E 
A

D
JA

C
EN

T
 T

O
 A

 R
ES

ID
EN

T
IA

L 
D

IS
T

R
IC

T
 IS

 R
EQ

U
IR

ED
.

C
O

M
PL

IE
S

§8
5-

46
7.

B.
9

W
A

ST
E 

R
EC

EP
T

A
C

LE
S 

FO
R

 C
U

ST
O

M
ER

 U
SE

 S
H

A
LL

 B
E 

PR
O

V
ID

ED
 A

N
D

M
A

IN
T

A
IN

ED
 O

N
 S

IT
E.

C
O

M
PL

IE
S

§8
5-

46
7.

G
.1

U
SE

 S
H

A
LL

 B
E 

LI
M

IT
ED

 T
O

 R
ET

A
IL

 S
A

LE
 O

F 
M

O
T

O
R

 F
U

EL
S,

 L
U

BR
IC

A
N

T
S

A
N

D
 O

T
H

ER
 M

O
T

O
R

 V
EH

IC
LE

 S
U

PP
LI

ES
.

C
O

M
PL

IE
S

§8
5-

46
7.

G
.2

N
O

 R
EP

A
IR

 W
O

R
K

 S
H

A
LL

 B
E 

PE
R

FO
R

M
ED

 IN
 T

H
E 

O
PE

N
. A

LL
 R

EP
A

IR
W

O
R

K
, E

X
C

LU
D

IN
G

 E
M

ER
G

EN
C

Y
 S

ER
V

IC
E,

 S
H

A
LL

 B
E 

C
O

N
D

U
C

T
ED

O
N

LY
 B

ET
W

EE
N

 T
H

E 
H

O
U

R
S 

O
F 

7:
00

 A
M

 A
N

D
 9

:0
0 

PM
.

N
/A

§8
5-

46
7.

G
.3

T
H

E 
O

V
ER

N
IG

H
T

 S
T

O
R

A
G

E 
O

F 
R

EG
IS

T
ER

ED
 V

EH
IC

LE
S 

SH
A

LL
 O

N
LY

 B
E

PE
R

M
IT

T
ED

 W
IT

H
 T

H
E 

R
EV

IE
W

 A
N

D
 A

PP
R

O
V

A
L 

O
F 

T
H

E 
T

O
W

N
 B

O
A

R
D

A
N

D
 T

H
E 

IS
SU

A
N

C
E 

O
F 

A
 S

PE
C

IA
L 

PE
R

M
IT

.

C
O

M
PL

IE
S

§8
5-

46
7.

G
.4

A
 F

U
EL

IN
G

 S
T

A
T

IO
N

 S
H

A
LL

 B
E 

PR
O

H
IB

IT
ED

 W
IT

H
IN

 5
00

 F
T

 O
F 

A
N

Y
LO

T
 L

IN
E 

BO
U

N
D

IN
G

 A
N

 A
R

EA
 O

F 
PU

BL
IC

 A
SS

EM
BL

Y
C

O
M

PL
IE

S

§8
5-

46
7.

G
.5

T
H

E 
PL

A
N

N
IN

G
 B

O
A

R
D

 S
H

A
LL

 A
PP

R
O

V
E 

A
LL

 S
IG

N
S 

D
IS

PL
A

Y
ED

 A
T

 T
H

E
SI

T
E 

IN
 C

O
N

N
EC

T
IO

N
 W

IT
H

 T
H

E 
M

O
T

O
R

 V
EH

IC
LE

 F
U

EL
IG

N
 S

T
A

T
IO

N
.

PO
R

T
A

BL
E 

A
N

D
 M

O
BI

LE
 S

IG
N

S 
A

R
E 

PR
O

H
IB

IT
ED

.

C
O

M
PL

IE
S

§8
5-

46
7.

G
.6

O
U

T
SI

D
E 

D
IS

PL
A

Y
 S

H
A

LL
 O

N
LY

 B
E 

PE
R

M
IT

T
ED

 W
IT

H
 T

H
E 

R
EV

IE
W

 A
N

D
A

PP
R

O
V

A
L 

O
F 

T
H

E 
T

O
W

N
 B

O
A

R
D

 A
N

D
 T

H
E 

IS
SU

A
N

C
E 

O
F 

A
 S

PE
C

IA
L

PE
R

M
IT

.

W
IL

L 
C

O
M

PL
Y

§8
5-

46
7.

G
.7

(a
)

A
 M

IN
IM

U
M

 O
F 

O
N

E 
(1

) 
PU

BL
IC

 F
U

EL
 P

U
M

P 
IS

LA
N

D
 S

H
A

LL
 B

E 
FU

LL
SE

R
V

IC
E 

FR
O

M
 8

:0
0A

M
 T

H
R

O
U

G
H

 8
:0

0 
PM

 A
N

Y
 D

A
Y

S 
O

N
 W

H
IC

H
 T

H
E

PU
BL

IC
 F

U
EL

IN
G

 S
T

A
T

IO
N

 IS
 O

PE
N

 F
O

R
 B

U
SI

N
ES

S

C
O

M
PL

IE
S

§8
5-

46
7.

G
.8

C
U

R
B 

C
U

T
 R

EQ
U

IR
EM

EN
T

S:
M

A
X

IM
U

M
 O

N
E 

C
U

R
B 

C
U

T
 P

ER
 7

5 
FT

 O
F 

R
O

A
D

 F
R

O
N

T
A

G
E

43
4 

LF
 F

R
O

N
T

A
G

E 
* 

(1
 P

ER
 7

5 
FT

) 
= 

6 
C

U
R

B 
C

U
T

S

M
IN

IM
U

M
 C

U
R

B 
C

U
T

 S
EP

A
R

A
T

IO
N

 F
R

O
M

 IN
T

ER
SE

C
T

IO
N

 O
R

R
ES

ID
EN

T
IA

L 
PR

O
PE

R
T

Y
 =

 2
5 

FT

M
IN

IM
U

M
 W

ID
T

H
 =

 2
0 

FT
M

A
X

IM
U

M
 W

ID
T

H
 =

 3
5 

FT

M
IN

IM
U

M
 S

EP
A

R
A

T
IO

N
 =

 2
5 

FT

2 
C

U
R

B 
C

U
T

S

73
.5

 F
T

C
O

M
PL

IE
S

C
O

M
PL

IE
S

C
O

M
PL

IE
S

§8
5-

46
7.

G
.9

SC
R

EE
N

IN
G

: B
U

FF
ER

S 
A

N
D

 F
EN

C
IN

G
 S

H
A

LL
 B

E 
PR

O
V

ID
ED

 IN
A

C
C

O
R

D
A

N
C

E 
W

IT
H

 T
H

E 
LA

N
D

 D
EV

EL
O

PM
EN

T
 S

T
A

N
D

A
R

D
S.

W
A

IV
ER

 R
EQ

U
IR

ED

(V
)

V
A

R
IA

N
C

E

SI
G

N
A

G
E

 R
E

Q
U

IR
E

M
E

N
T

S

C
O

D
E

 S
E

C
T

IO
N

R
E

Q
U

IR
E

D
P

R
O

P
O

SE
D

§ 
57

A
-6

.F
C

A
N

O
PY

 S
IG

N
 R

EQ
U

IR
EM

EN
T

S:
M

A
X

IM
U

M
 S

IG
N

 A
R

EA
 =

 1
 S

F 
PE

R
 L

F 
O

F 
C

A
N

O
PY

 W
ID

T
H

(M
A

X
. 1

2 
SF

)
   

N
O

R
T

H
 F

A
C

IN
G

 =
 1

19
 S

F
   

EA
ST

/W
ES

T
 F

A
C

IN
G

 =
 3

2 
SF

A
W

A
IT

IN
G

 S
IG

N
A

G
E 

PA
C

K
A

G
E

§ 
57

A
-6

.E
BU

IL
D

IN
G

 S
IG

N
 R

EQ
U

IR
EM

EN
T

S:
M

A
X

IM
U

M
 S

IG
N

S 
PE

R
 W

A
LL

 =
 1

 S
IG

N
M

A
X

IM
U

M
 A

R
EA

 O
F 

LA
R

G
ES

T
 W

A
LL

 S
IG

N
 =

 2
 S

F 
PE

R
 L

F
(M

A
X

. 4
0 

SF
(*

))

A
W

A
IT

IN
G

 S
IG

N
A

G
E 

PA
C

K
A

G
E

§ 
57

A
-6

.C
G

R
O

U
N

D
 S

IG
N

 R
EQ

U
IR

EM
EN

T
S:

M
A

X
IM

U
M

 N
U

M
BE

R
 =

 1
 S

IG
N

M
A

X
IM

U
M

 S
IG

N
 A

R
EA

 =
 2

4 
SF

 IN
 A

R
EA

 P
ER

 S
IG

N
 F

A
C

E
M

A
X

IM
U

M
 H

EI
G

H
T

 =
 1

2F
T

 IN
 H

EI
G

H
T

 A
BO

V
E 

G
R

O
U

N
D

 L
EV

EL

A
W

A
IT

IN
G

 S
IG

N
A

G
E 

PA
C

K
A

G
E

§ 
57

A
-1

2
SE

T
BA

C
K

 R
EQ

U
IR

EM
EN

T
S:

M
IN

IM
U

M
 S

ID
E 

Y
A

R
D

 S
ET

BA
C

K
 =

 1
0 

FT
M

IN
IM

U
M

 F
R

O
N

T
 Y

A
R

D
 S

ET
BA

C
K

 P
ER

 S
PE

ED
 L

IM
IT

   
 <

 3
0 

M
PH

 =
 1

2 
FT

   
 3

1 
- 

40
 M

PH
 =

 1
7 

FT
   

 4
1 

- 
55

 M
PH

 =
 2

2 
FT

SI
G

N
 S

H
A

LL
 N

O
T

 B
E 

LO
C

A
T

ED
 W

IT
H

IN
 T

H
E 

T
R

IA
N

G
LE

 F
O

R
M

ED
 B

Y
 T

H
E 

T
W

O
PR

O
PE

R
T

Y
 L

IN
ES

 A
N

D
 A

N
 IN

T
ER

SE
C

T
IN

G
 L

IN
E 

30
' F

R
O

M
 T

H
E 

PR
O

P.
 C

O
R

N
ER

.

A
W

A
IT

IN
G

 S
IG

N
A

G
E 

PA
C

K
A

G
E

(*
)

(V
)

O
T

H
ER

 P
ER

M
IT

T
ED

 W
A

LL
 S

IG
N

S 
M

A
Y

 N
O

T
 E

X
C

EE
D

 3
2 

SF
V

A
R

IA
N

C
E

Z:\LIC\NYC\2024\NYC-240130 CREST GROUP - 396 NYS ROUTE 112, BROOKHAVEN, NY\CADD\PLOT\XXX-01-SITE.DWG

ISSUEDATEDESCRIPTION

NO
T A

PPR
OV

ED
 FO

R C
ON

STR
UC

TIO
N

SITE PLANS

BY

TI
TL

E:

SC
AL

E:
PR

O
JE

CT
 ID

:

DR
AW

IN
G:

PROPOSED CONVENIENCE STORE
WITH FUEL SALES

SUFFOLK COUNTY, NEW YORK

CREST GROUP

N
YC

-2
40

13
0HAMLET OF CORAM, TOWN OF BROOKHAVEN

MIDDLE COUNTRY ROAD & NYS ROUTE 112

Rutherford, NJ ·New York, NY ·Boston, MA
Princeton, NJ ·Tampa, FL ·Detroit, MI

www.stonefieldeng.com

584 Broadway, Suite 310, New York, NY 10012

Phone 718.606.8305

ZA
C

H
AR

Y 
E.

 C
H

AP
LI

N
, P

.E
.

NE
W

 Y
O

RK
 LI

CE
NS

E N
o. 

99
74

8
LI

C
EN

SE
D

 P
R

O
FE

SS
IO

N
A

L 
EN

G
IN

EE
R

110/07/2024ISSUED FOR SUBMISSION SI 396 NYS ROUTE 112
DISTRICT 200 SECTION 476 BLOCK 2 LOTS 30, 32.1 & 34.1

P
R

O
P

E
R

T
Y

 R
E

Z
O

N
E

 N
O

T
E

:

T
H

E
 P

R
O

P
E

R
T

Y
 IS

 L
O

C
A

T
E

D
 W

IT
H

IN
 T

H
E

 J 
B

U
SI

N
E

SS
 6

D
IS

T
R

IC
T

 (
J-

6)
 A

N
D

 T
H

E
 A

 R
E

SI
D

E
N

T
IA

L 
1 

D
IS

T
R

IC
T

 (
A

-1
),

 T
H

E
P

R
O

P
O

SE
D

 Z
O

N
IN

G
 R

E
V

IE
W

 H
A

S 
B

E
E

N
 P

E
R

FO
R

M
E

D
 U

N
D

E
R

T
H

E
 A

SS
U

M
P

T
IO

N
 T

H
E

 P
R

O
P

E
R

T
Y

 H
A

S 
B

E
E

N
 R

E
Z

O
N

E
D

 T
O

T
H

E
 J 

B
U

SI
N

E
SS

 5
 D

IS
T

R
IC

T
 (

J-
5)

.

C
U

R
R

E
N

T
 Z

O
N

IN
G

:
J B

U
SI

N
E

SS
 6

 D
IS

T
R

IC
T

 - 
79

,7
30

 S
F*

A
 R

E
SI

D
E

N
T

IA
L 

1 
D

IS
T

R
IC

T
 - 

12
,5

70
 S

F

*
BE

FO
R

E 
N

Y
SD

O
T

 D
ED

IC
A

T
IO

N

T
O

W
N

 O
F 

B
R

O
O

K
H

A
V

E
N

 S
T

A
N

D
A

R
D

 N
O

T
E

S:
1.

A
LL

 C
O

N
C

R
ET

E 
C

U
R

BI
N

G
, 

SI
D

EW
A

LK
S 

A
N

D
 D

R
A

IN
A

G
E 

ST
R

U
C

T
U

R
ES

O
N

 S
IT

E 
SH

A
LL

 C
O

N
FO

R
M

 T
O

 P
LA

N
N

IN
G

 B
O

A
R

D
 S

T
A

N
D

A
R

D
 D

ET
A

IL
A

N
D

 S
PE

C
IF

IC
A

T
IO

N
S.

2.
T

O
W

N
 

O
F 

BR
O

O
K

H
A

V
EN

 
EN

G
IN

EE
R

IN
G

 
IN

SP
EC

T
O

R 
IN

 
T

H
E

D
EP

A
R

T
M

EN
T

 
O

F 
PL

A
N

N
IN

G
, 

EN
V

IR
O

N
M

EN
T

 
A

N
D

 
LA

N
D

M
A

N
A

G
EM

EN
T

 S
H

A
LL

 B
E 

N
O

T
IF

IE
D

 4
8 

H
O

U
R

S 
IN

 A
D

V
A

N
C

E 
O

F 
A

LL
C

O
N

ST
R

U
C

T
IO

N
 A

T
 6

31
-4

51
-6

40
0 

BE
T

W
EE

N
 T

H
E 

H
O

U
R

S 
O

F 
9:

00
A

M
 -

4:
30

PM
 M

O
N

D
A

Y
 T

H
R

O
U

G
H

 F
R

ID
A

Y
.

3.
PL

EA
SE

 C
O

N
T

A
C

T 
T

H
E 

D
IV

IS
IO

N
 O

F 
EN

G
IN

EE
R

IN
G

 A
T

 (
63

1)
 4

51
-6

40
0

T
O

 S
C

H
ED

U
LE

 A
 P

R
E-

C
O

N
ST

R
U

C
T

IO
N

 M
EE

T
IN

G
 4

8 
H

O
U

R
S 

PR
IO

R
 T

O
T

H
E 

C
O

M
M

EN
C

EM
EN

T
 O

F 
A

N
Y

 A
N

D
 A

LL
 C

O
N

ST
R

U
C

T
IO

N
 A

C
T

IV
IT

IE
S.

4.
LO

C
A

T
IO

N
 A

N
D

 G
R

A
D

ES
 F

O
R 

C
U

R
BS

 A
N

D
 W

A
LK

S 
T

O
 B

E 
V

ER
IF

IE
D

W
IT

H
 

T
H

E 
T

O
W

N
 

O
F 

BR
O

O
K

H
A

V
EN

 
H

IG
H

W
A

Y
 

D
EP

A
R

T
M

EN
T

,
SC

D
PW

 O
R

 N
Y

SD
O

T
 P

R
IO

R
 T

O
 C

O
N

ST
R

U
C

T
IO

N
.

5.
A

LL
 T

R
A

FF
IC

 C
O

N
T

R
O

L 
D

EV
IC

ES
, I

.E
. S

IG
N

A
LS

, S
IG

N
S 

A
N

D
 P

A
V

EM
EN

T
M

A
R

K
IN

G
S 

SH
A

LL
 

BE
 

IN
ST

A
LL

ED
 

IN
 

C
O

N
FO

R
M

A
N

C
E 

W
IT

H
 

T
H

E
G

U
ID

EL
IN

ES
 

O
F 

T
H

E 
N

EW
 

Y
O

R
K

 
ST

A
T

E 
M

A
N

U
A

L 
O

F 
U

N
IF

O
R

M
T

R
A

FF
IC

 C
O

N
T

R
O

L 
D

EI
C

ES
 A

N
D

 A
S 

D
IR

EC
T

ED
 B

Y
 T

H
E 

T
O

W
N

 O
F

BR
O

O
K

H
A

V
EN

, D
IV

IS
IO

N
 O

F 
T

R
A

FF
IC

 S
A

FE
T

Y
.

6.
T

H
E 

C
O

N
T

R
A

C
T

O
R

S 
PE

R
FO

R
M

IN
G

 A
N

Y
 A

N
D

 A
LL

 T
R

A
FF

IC
 C

O
N

T
R

O
L

D
EV

IC
ES

 
LA

Y
O

U
T

 
A

N
D

 
IN

ST
A

LL
A

T
IO

N
 

W
O

R
K

 
SH

A
LL

 
N

O
T

IF
Y

 
T

H
E

T
O

W
N

 O
F 

BR
O

O
K

H
A

V
EN

 D
IV

IS
IO

N
 O

F 
T

R
A

FF
IC

 S
A

FE
T

Y
, 4

8 
H

O
U

R
S 

IN
A

D
V

A
N

C
E 

O
F 

BE
G

IN
N

IN
G

 S
U

C
H

 W
O

R
K

 A
LO

N
G

 A
 T

O
W

N
 R

O
A

D
.

7.
A

LL
 

PA
V

EM
EN

T
 

M
A

R
K

IN
G

S 
R

EQ
U

IR
ED

 
O

N
 

SI
T

E 
SH

A
LL

 
BE

T
H

ER
M

O
PL

A
ST

IC
 

(S
U

FF
O

LK
 

C
O

U
N

T
Y

 
SP

EC
IF

IC
A

T
IO

N
S)

 
U

N
LE

SS
O

T
H

ER
W

IS
E 

N
O

T
ED

 O
N

 P
LA

N
S.

8.
ST

O
P 

LI
N

E 
D

IS
T

A
N

C
E 

SH
A

LL
 B

E 
M

A
IN

T
A

IN
ED

 A
T

 A
LL

 I
N

T
ER

SE
C

T
IO

N
S

IN
 A

C
C

O
R

D
A

N
C

E 
W

IT
H

 A
A

SH
T

O
 R

EQ
U

IR
EM

EN
T

S.

P
LA

N
 R

E
FE

R
E

N
C

E
 M

A
T

E
R

IA
LS

:
1.

T
H

IS
 P

LA
N

 S
E

T
 R

E
FE

R
E

N
C

E
S 

T
H

E
 F

O
LL

O
W

IN
G

 D
O

C
U

M
E

N
T

S
IN

C
LU

D
IN

G
, B

U
T

 N
O

T
 L

IM
IT

E
D

 T
O

:
·

SU
R

V
E

Y
 P

R
E

P
A

R
E

D
 B

Y
 S

T
O

N
E

FI
E

LD
 E

N
G

IN
E

E
R

IN
G

, D
A

T
E

D
A

P
R

IL
 2

5,
 2

01
9

·
T

A
X

 M
A

P
 O

B
T

A
IN

E
D

 F
R

O
M

 T
H

E
 S

U
FF

O
LK

 C
O

U
N

T
Y

 G
IS

V
IE

W
E

R
, T

O
W

N
 O

F 
B

R
O

O
K

H
A

V
E

N
 T

A
X

 M
A

P
, D

A
T

E
D

A
P

R
IL

 2
01

9
2.

A
LL

 R
E

FE
R

E
N

C
E

 M
A

T
E

R
IA

L 
LI

ST
E

D
 A

B
O

V
E

 S
H

A
LL

 B
E

 C
O

N
SI

D
E

R
E

D
A

 P
A

R
T

 O
F 

T
H

IS
 P

LA
N

 S
E

T
 A

N
D

 A
LL

 IN
FO

R
M

A
T

IO
N

 C
O

N
T

A
IN

E
D

W
IT

H
IN

 T
H

E
SE

 M
A

T
E

R
IA

LS
 S

H
A

LL
 B

E
 U

T
IL

IZ
E

D
 IN

 C
O

N
JU

N
C

T
IO

N
W

IT
H

 T
H

IS
 P

LA
N

 S
E

T
. T

H
E

 C
O

N
T

R
A

C
T

O
R

 IS
 R

E
SP

O
N

SI
B

LE
 T

O
O

B
T

A
IN

 A
 C

O
P

Y
 O

F 
E

A
C

H
 R

E
FE

R
E

N
C

E
 A

N
D

 R
E

V
IE

W
 IT

T
H

O
R

O
U

G
H

LY
 P

R
IO

R
 T

O
 T

H
E

 S
T

A
R

T
 O

F 
C

O
N

ST
R

U
C

T
IO

N
.

LA
N

D
SC

A
P

IN
G

 S
T

A
N

D
A

R
D

S
C

O
D

E
SE

C
T

IO
N

R
E

Q
U

IR
E

D
P

R
O

P
O

SE
D

§8
5-

84
3.

A
.1

-4
M

IN
IM

U
M

 L
A

N
D

SC
A

PI
N

G
 =

 2
0%

 (
11

,9
90

 S
F)

M
IN

IM
U

M
 L

A
N

D
SC

A
PI

N
G

 IN
 F

R
O

N
T

 Y
A

R
D

 =
 5

0%
 O

F 
R

EQ
U

IR
ED

 (
5,

99
5 

SF
)

ST
R

EE
T

 T
R

EE
 S

PA
C

IN
G

 =
 3

0 
FT

M
IN

IM
U

M
 L

A
N

D
SC

A
PE

 W
ID

T
H

 (
ST

R
EE

T
 F

R
O

N
T

A
G

ES
) 

= 
15

 F
T

70
.6

%
 (

63
,6

70
 S

F)
15

2.
5%

 (
9,

14
0.

3 
SF

)
C

O
M

PL
IE

S
6.

4 
FT

 (
W

M
. F

LO
Y

D
 P

K
W

Y
) 

(V
)

§8
5-

84
3.

A
.7

A
LL

 P
A

R
K

IN
G

 A
R

EA
S 

SH
A

LL
 B

E 
SC

R
EE

N
ED

 F
R

O
M

 V
IE

W
 W

IT
H

 A
 H

ED
G

E,
BE

R
M

 A
N

D
/O

R
 D

EC
O

R
A

T
IV

E 
W

A
LL

 O
R

 F
EN

C
E.

W
IL

L 
C

O
M

PL
Y

§8
5-

84
3.

B.
1

M
IN

IM
U

M
 R

ES
ID

EN
T

IA
L 

BU
FF

ER
 =

 2
5 

FT
25

.0
 F

T

(V
)

V
A

R
IA

N
C

E

U
SG

S 
Q

U
A

D
R

A
N

G
LE

 M
A

P
 

SC
A

LE
: 1

" 
= 

10
00

'±

SO
U

R
C

E:
 U

SG
S 

7.
5 

M
IN

U
T

E 
SE

R
IE

S 
BE

LL
PO

R
T

/ P
A

T
C

H
O

G
U

E,
 N

Y
 Q

U
A

D
R

A
N

G
LE

 M
A

P,
 D

A
T

ED
 2

01
6

SI
T

E

ksullivan
Received



 

CENTRAL PINE BARRENS JOINT PLANNING & POLICY 
COMMISSION (CPBC) 

 
 

Compatible Growth Area (CGA) 
Hardship Application  

 

599 Middle Country Road 
  

 
 

Suffolk County Tax Map Number: 0200-402-02-2 
Hamlet of Middle Island, Town of Brookhaven, Suffolk County, New York 

 
 
 

  Applicant:  RA Middle Island LLC 
1201 Route 112 
Port Jefferson Station, New York 11776 
Contact: Enrico Scarda, Managing Partner 
(631) 582-4800 ext. 15 

      
     
  For Submission To: Central Pine Barrens Joint Planning & Policy Commission 
     624 Old Riverhead Road 
     Westhampton Beach, New York 11978 
     Contact:  Judy Jakobsen; Executive Director 
     (631) 288-1079 
 
 
  Prepared by:  Nelson, Pope & Voorhis, LLC 
     70 Maxess Road 
     Melville, New York 11747 
     Contact:  Charles Voorhis, CEP, AICP; Principal  
     (631) 427-5665  
 
 

NP&V #81083 
 

April 2025 
 





RA Middle Island Starbucks (SCTM #: 200-402-2-2)

12/31/2024, 11:53:17 AM
0 90 18045 ft

0 25 5012.5 m

1:1,000

Copyright nearmap 2015 |



599 Middle Country Road 
CGA Hardship Application 

 
 

Page 1-1 

1.0 DESCRIPTION OF THE PROPOSED PROJECT 
 
1.1 Introduction 
  
This document has been prepared by Nelson, Pope & Voorhis, LLC (NPV) in support of an 
application before the Central Pine Barrens Joint Planning and Policy Commission (CPBC or 
Commission) for a Hardship Exemption for a development within the Compatible Growth Area 
(CGA) of the Central Pine Barrens.  This document is intended to provide the required 
information documenting how the proposed exemption satisfies requirements for approval of the 
application, pursuant to New York State Environmental Conservation Law (NYSECL) Article 57-
0123(3)(b).  This document provides a description of the features of the proposal that justify the 
requested exemption, based upon the characteristics of the site, evaluation of the proposed 
project and the standards in connection with Town Law Section 267-b, and the mitigation 
measures that will be employed.  
 
The subject property includes a 1.44-acre property located at 599 Middle Country Road in the 
Hamlet of Middle Island, Town of Brookhaven, Suffolk County, New York (see Figure 1).  The 
subject property is more particularly described as Suffolk County Tax Map #0200-402-02-002.  
The entirety of the subject property is situated within the CGA of the Central Pine Barrens, in 
which limited, environmentally-compatible development is permitted pursuant to the Central 
Pine Barrens Comprehensive Land Use Plan (CLUP).   
 
Appendix A contains an affidavit prepared by the property owner authorizing Charles J. 
Voorhis, CEP, AICP (NPV Principal) to make this Hardship application on their behalf.  A Part 1 
Environmental Assessment Form (EAF) has been prepared for the proposed project, and is 
presented in Appendix B. 
 
1.2 Site History and Characteristics 
 
The eastern portion of the subject property appeared to be cleared agricultural land and the 
western portion of the subject property appeared to contain a residence in publicly available 
historical aerial photographs from 1961-1966 (Appendix C).  The subject property has been 
developed with the existing commercial drive-thru banking facility since at least 1978, prior to 
the adoption of the CLUP. The property has formerly been occupied by LI Savings Bank, Astoria 
Bank, Sterling Bank, and most recently, Webster Bank which closed in 2019.  The subject site is 
nearly completely developed with the existing bank building and associated parking, 
landscaping and related improvements.  There are narrow fringes of vegetation on the west 
and north sides of the subject site.  There is non-native landscaping in limited locations within 
the parking area and south and east of the building where there are sidewalks, the sanitary 
system and utilities (see Figure 2). 
 
 
 



599 Middle Country Road 
CGA Hardship Application 

 
 

Page 1-2 

1.3 Description of the Proposed Project 
 
The proposed project involves a change of zone from J Business 4 (Professional and Business 
Offices) to J Business 5 (J-5; High Intensity Business) in order to enable the future conversion of 
the existing drive-thru bank building into a Starbucks restaurant with a drive-thru.  Access 
points to the commercial property will remain unchanged from the current configuration. The 
site will continue to be accessed from two points along the shared access driveway along the 
eastern property boundary including a two lane, one-way access to the drive-thru in the 
northeast corner of the subject property, and a two-way access to the paved parking lot area in 
the northern portion of the subject property.  A two lane exit point will remain in the southwest 
corner of the subject property for access to Middle Country Road from the drive-thru.  The site 
plan for the proposed project is provided as Attachment 1. 
 
The proposed action involves the physical ground disturbance of only 0.26 acres of the 1.44-
acre property, primarily for the restoration of ±1,840 square feet (SF) of the site by converting 
driveway areas along the western boundary to non-fertilized/non-irrigated native vegetation.  
This restoration will restore the western portion of the site contiguous to existing wooded areas 
to a more natural condition thus expanding contiguous natural vegetation.  Additionally, 
approximately 3,000 SF of the existing maintained lawn area in the southern portion of the 
subject property will be converted to non-fertilized/non-irrigated native vegetation. 
 
All wastewater generated onsite will be treated and recharged into the ground using facilities 
that conform to Suffolk County Sanitary Code Article 6 requirements.  The existing onsite 
conventional septic system will be replaced with a new Innovative/Alternative Onsite 
Wastewater Treatment System (I/A OWTS). All stormwater runoff generated on developed 
project surfaces will be captured on-site and recharged into the ground through the existing on-
site drainage system.  The proposed reduction of impervious surfaces will result in decreased 
stormwater runoff and improved stormwater recharge on the subject property. 
 
The subject parcel was zoned J Business 4 in 1995, when the CPB CLUP was adopted.  In 
conformance with the allowable site clearance standards listed in Figure 5-1 of the CLUP, the 
overall maximum allowed site clearance for the proposed action site is 60%, or 0.864 acres 
(conversely, a minimum of 40% of the site, or 0.576 acres, would have to be preserved as 
natural).  The subject property has been developed with the existing building since at least 
1980, prior to the adoption of the CLUP, and is over-cleared in its existing condition.  Currently, 
approximately 86% of the site is cleared (including impervious and maintained landscaped 
areas) and approximately 14% of the site consists of natural vegetation.  The proposed action 
represents an improvement upon the existing condition with a reduction in clearing from 
approximately 86% to approximately 78% and an increase in natural areas from approximately 
14% to 22%. In addition, the area of fertilized vegetation will be reduced from **% to **% 
allowing the existing developed site to comply with Standard 5.3.3.6.3.  The proposed site 
coverages include 1.13 acres of cleared land (impervious and maintained landscaping in existing 
areas) and 0.31 acres of natural land, including areas to be restored with native vegetation. As a 



599 Middle Country Road 
CGA Hardship Application 

 
 

Page 1-4 

2.0 TOWN LAW SECTION 267-B CRITERIA 
 
The Applicant seeks an exemption based upon a demonstration of hardship for development in 
the CGA.  In making such a finding, the commission shall consider the criteria for a use variance 
pursuant to section two hundred sixty-seven-b of NYS Town law.  These criteria are as follows: 

(1) the applicant cannot realize a reasonable return, provided that lack of return is 
substantial as demonstrated by competent financial evidence;  

(2) that the alleged hardship relating to the property in question is unique, and does not 
apply to a substantial portion of the district or neighborhood;  

(3) that the requested use variance, if granted, will not alter the essential character of the 
neighborhood; and  

(4) that the alleged hardship has not been self-created. 
 

A demonstration supporting the above factors is outlined below. 

(1) the applicant cannot realize a reasonable return, provided that lack of return is substantial 
as demonstrated by competent financial evidence;  
 
The commercial drive-thru bank has been vacant since 2019 and unable to secure a tenant 
to operate the facility and realize a reasonable return.  The prolonged vacancy, which 
indicates a lack of demand for its existing use, has resulted in the property owner being 
unable to realize a reasonable return on their investment.  The facility is not profitable 
under its present zoning and therefore a Town change of zone is sought to allow the 
proposed use.  The site is privately-owned and subject to real estate taxes.  The lack of 
income from the property that would be facilitated by an occupant/operator of a 
commercial use is a significant economic hardship to the property owner. Current real 
estate taxes are $***, attesting to the annually accruing hardship of having the site 
unoccupied. 
 
The placement of the property in the CGA following the full development of the property in 
its current configuration is a hardship that prohibits the property owner from being able to 
initiate a use on the subject property that would be profitable.  The current owner sought 
to market the property for banking purposes. However, three brokerage groups were 
unsuccessful in securing a banking branch willing to lease the location. This was attributed 
to the downsizing of bank branches and the decreased demand for large bank formats.  The 
proposed project will improve site conditions by removal of pavement on the west side of 
the site to expand contiguous natural open space with adjoining lands, and reducing 
maintained landscaped lawn area with native non-maintained vegetation. 
 
 



599 Middle Country Road 
CGA Hardship Application 

 
 

Page 1-5 

(2) that the alleged hardship relating to the property in question is unique, and does not apply 
to a substantial portion of the district or neighborhood; 
 
The subject property is unique as it is a developed commercially-zoned property with a 
drive-thru window situated within the CGA, which was developed prior to the adoption of 
the CLUP.  The building is vacant and has not been in use since 2019.  The placement of the 
property in the CGA prevents the subject property from being utilized as a profitable 
commercial business that is consistent with the changing consumer needs of the 
surrounding community. The presence of the existing commercial building, parking area and 
drive-thru infrastructure would allow the property to function as a profitable business with 
very minimal modifications to the existing property.  Proposed changes would remove 
pavement on the west side of the site to expand contiguous natural open space with 
adjoining lands, and would reduce maintained lawn area and replace it with native 
vegetation that does not require maintenance such that compliance with Standard 
5.3.3.6.3.  The site will also be improved with an I/A OWTS installation which will reduce 
nitrogen concentrations in recharge to groundwater. 
 
The unique conditions applicable to this site are as summarized as follows: 

 
· The site is almost completely developed and was developed in its current form prior 

to the CLUP. 
· The CLUP placed this developed site within the CGA of the Central Pine Barrens. 
· The existing bank building is not viable for tenancy by a bank due to changing 

market conditions. 
· The project site can be improved in terms of natural vegetation to more closely 

conform with Standard 5.3.3.6.1. 
· The project site can be improved to comply with Standard 5.3.3.6.3. 
· The project site will be improved with an I/A OWTS installation to reduce 

groundwater impacts. 
 

(3) that the requested use variance, if granted, will not alter the essential character of the 
neighborhood;  
 
Under the proposed action, the use of the subject property will remain commercial in 
nature.  The primary function of the property as a drive-thru establishment will remain 
unchanged.  The operational structure of a drive-thru ensures that vehicular traffic patterns 
and customer flow will be consistent with the existing use, minimizing and significant 
changes to the surrounding area.  

The physical characteristics of the site will remain essentially unchanged, with the exception 
of the conversion of an area of impervious pavement and an area of maintained lawn to 
native vegetation, contiguous to the wooded vegetation to the west and the roadway, 



599 Middle Country Road 
CGA Hardship Application 

 
 

Page 1-6 

respectively.  Consequently, there is no negative alteration of the essential character of the 
neighborhood and any change is positive and beneficial in terms of reducing pavement that 
faces Middle Country Road, with establishment of natural vegetation along a small 
additional portion of road frontage. 

The surrounding community was engaged in discussions regarding how the property could 
optimally address their needs. Concerns were raised about the current condition of the 
building and its effects on the neighborhood. The community expressed support for the 
decision to convert the property from its prior use to a restaurant that would contribute 
positively to the local area. 
 

(4) that the alleged hardship has not been self-created. 
 
The subject property was developed for commercial use prior to the adoption of the CLUP 
and the placement of the subject property into the CGA, greatly limits the property’s 
potential for adaptation driven by consumer needs.  The current and previous property 
owners have been unable to secure a tenant for the existing commercial bank facility, and is 
proposing to change the use with minimal disturbance to the subject property and an 
improvement upon the natural condition of the subject property.  The condition of the 
subject property aligns with the trends observed in banking properties within the 
surrounding area, attributable to shifts in consumer preferences and market conditions. 
Additionally, there are two other banks along the same road that have also remained 
vacant for an extended period. 



599 Middle Country Road 
CGA Hardship Application 

 
 

Page 1-3 

result, the proposed project requires an exemption from Standard 5.3.3.6.1 Vegetation 
Clearance Limits, to be reviewed and decided upon by the CPBC, which has jurisdiction over this 
request under NYS ECL Article 57 and the CLUP.  There are unique circumstances associated 
with this lot that warrant the requested exemption.  
 
Table 1 below details the types of surface coverages of the site, in its existing condition and 
after completion of the proposed project.  
 

Table 1 
SITE COVERAGES 

Existing Conditions & Proposed Project 
 

Coverage Type Existing Conditions 
(Acres) 

Proposed Project 
(Acres) 

Difference 
(Acres) 

Impervious  
(roads, buildings, and other paved 

surfaces) 

0.96 0.91 -0.05 

Landscaped (maintained) 0.28 0.22 -0.06 
Wooded/Natural 0.20 0.31 +0.11 

Total 1.44 1.44  
 
No wetlands or surface waters are located on or adjacent to the subject site, and the subject 
property does not contain slopes over 10 percent.   
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



X
X

X
X

X

X
X

X
X

X
X

X
X

X

X

DRIVE THRU
ENTRY

50
' F

R
O

N
T

 Y
A

R
D

 S
ET

BA
C

K

50' FRONT YARD SETBACK

40
' R

EA
R

 Y
A

R
D

 S
ET

BA
C

K
25' SIDE YARD SETBACK

E
X

IS
T

IN
G

 B
U

IL
D

IN
G

 T
O

 B
E

C
O

N
V

E
R

T
E

D
 T

O
 S

T
A

R
B

U
C

K
S

R
E

ST
A

U
R

A
N

T
±3

,9
08

40
 P

AR
KI

N
G

 S
PA

CE
S

ST
O

P
ST

O
P

16

13

11

12
'

13
'

22
'

10'
84

.6
'

52.7'

42.1'

92
.2

'

41
.0

'

54
.4

'

161.9'

12
'

3'
18

'

11' 12'

10
.0

'

PR
O

PO
SE

D
 2

0'
 X

 1
2'

 T
R

A
SH

EN
C

LO
SU

R
E

LI
M

IT
 O

F 
PR

O
PO

SE
D

C
U

R
B 

R
EP

LA
C

EM
EN

T

PR
O

PO
SE

D
 D

R
IV

E-
T

H
R

U
M

EN
U

 B
O

A
R

D

PR
O

PO
SE

D
 D

R
IV

E-
T

H
R

U
PR

E-
M

EN
U

 B
O

A
R

D

EX
IS

T
IN

G
 C

U
R

B 
C

U
T

T
O

 R
EM

A
IN

 A
N

D
 B

E
R

EU
T

IL
IZ

ED

EX
IS

T
IN

G
 C

U
R

B 
C

U
T

T
O

 R
EM

A
IN

 A
N

D
 B

E
R

EU
T

IL
IZ

ED

PR
O

PO
SE

D
 O

R
D

ER
 W

IN
D

O
W

&
 L

O
O

P 
D

ET
EC

T
O

R

PR
O

PO
SE

D
 M

O
D

IF
IE

D
C

A
N

O
PY

LI
M

IT
 O

F 
PR

O
PO

SE
D

C
U

R
B

LI
M

IT
 O

F
PR

O
PO

SE
D

C
U

R
B

PR
O

PO
SE

D
 B

Y
PA

SS
 L

A
N

E

PR
O

PO
SE

D
 C

U
R

B 
IS

LA
N

D

PR
O

PO
SE

D
 B

Y
PA

SS
 L

A
N

E

PR
O

PO
SE

D
 C

O
N

C
R

ET
E

C
U

R
B,

 T
Y

PI
C

A
L

PR
O

PO
SE

D
 1

8"
PA

IN
T

ED
 W

H
IT

E
ST

O
P 

BA
R

, '
ST

O
P'

SI
G

N
 (

R
1-

1)

LI
M

IT
 O

F 
PR

O
PO

SE
D

 C
U

R
B

LI
M

IT
S 

O
F 

C
O

N
C

R
ET

E

EX
IS

T
IN

G
 P

A
R

K
IN

G
 T

O
 B

E 
M

IL
LE

D
,

O
V

ER
LA

Y
ED

, A
N

D
 R

ES
T

R
IP

ED

9'

19'

20'

29'4'26'

22
'

47
.0

'

54.3'

6.3'

PR
O

PO
SE

D
 R

EI
N

FO
R

C
ED

C
O

N
C

R
ET

E

9'

19'

8'

PR
O

PO
SE

D
 4

" 
W

ID
E

W
H

IT
E 

ST
R

IP
IN

G
 3

0"
 O

N
C

EN
T

ER
, T

Y
PI

C
A

L 9.
0'

9.
2'

24
'

EX
IS

T
IN

G
 C

O
N

C
R

ET
E 

T
O

 B
E

R
EM

O
V

ED

3' 
R

3' R

3' 
R

50' R

30' R

40
' R

33
' R

3' 
R

20'

9'
EX

IS
T

IN
G

 W
O

O
D

ED
 A

R
EA

T
O

 R
EM

A
IN

 A
N

D
 B

E
PR

O
T

EC
T

ED
 T

H
R

O
U

G
H

O
U

T
C

O
N

ST
R

U
C

T
IO

N
 (

T
Y

PI
C

A
L)

EX
IS

T
IN

G
 P

A
V

EM
EN

T
T

O
 B

E 
C

O
N

V
ER

T
ED

 T
O

LA
N

D
SC

A
PI

N
G

 W
IT

H
N

A
T

IV
E 

PL
A

N
T

IN
G

S 
A

S
SH

O
W

N

EX
IS

T
IN

G
 L

A
W

N
 A

R
EA

T
O

 R
EM

A
IN

4 
PR

O
PO

SE
D

ST
R

EE
T

 T
R

EE
S

A
LO

N
G

 M
ID

D
LE

C
O

U
N

T
R

Y
 R

O
A

D

A
R

EA
 T

O
 B

E 
M

U
LC

H
A

R
EA

 T
O

 B
E 

LA
W

N
(T

Y
PI

C
A

L)

EX
IS

T
IN

G
 W

O
O

D
ED

 A
R

EA
 T

O
 R

EM
A

IN
A

N
D

 B
E 

PR
O

T
EC

T
ED

 T
H

R
O

U
G

H
O

U
T

C
O

N
ST

R
U

C
T

IO
N

 (
T

Y
PI

C
A

L)

EX
IS

T
IN

G
 L

A
W

N
 A

R
EA

T
O

 R
EM

A
IN

A
R

EA
 T

O
 B

E 
SE

ED
ED

 W
IT

H
PI

N
EL

A
N

D
S 

N
U

R
SE

R
Y

 &
 S

U
PP

LY
PO

LL
IN

A
T

O
R

 M
EA

D
O

W
 M

IX
(T

Y
PI

C
A

L)

EX
IS

T
IN

G
 T

R
EE

 T
O

 R
EM

A
IN

A
N

D
 B

E 
PR

U
N

ED
 (

T
Y

PI
C

A
L)

EX
IS

T
IN

G
 T

R
EE

S 
T

O
R

EM
A

IN
 A

N
D

 B
E

PR
U

N
ED

 (
T

Y
PI

C
A

L)

EX
IS

T
IN

G
 S

H
R

U
BS

 T
O

R
EM

A
IN

 A
N

D
 B

E 
PR

U
N

ED
(T

Y
PI

C
A

L)

EX
IS

T
IN

G
 C

O
N

C
R

ET
E

IS
LA

N
D

 T
O

 R
EM

A
IN

EX
IS

T
IN

G
 S

A
N

IT
A

R
Y

SY
ST

EM
  T

O
 B

E 
R

EM
O

V
ED

A
N

D
 R

EP
LA

C
ED

50' WIDE EASEMENTGRANTED TO THESUFFOLK COUNTYWATER AUTHORITY

50' WIDE EASEMENTGRANTED TO THESUFFOLK COUNTYWATER AUTHORITY

G
E

N
E

R
A

L 
N

O
T

E
S

1.
T

H
E 

C
O

N
T

R
A

C
T

O
R

 
SH

A
LL

 
V

ER
IF

Y
 

A
N

D
 

FA
M

IL
IA

R
IZ

E 
T

H
EM

SE
LV

ES
W

IT
H

 T
H

E 
EX

IS
T

IN
G

 S
IT

E 
C

O
N

D
IT

IO
N

S 
A

N
D

 T
H

E 
PR

O
PO

SE
D

 S
C

O
PE

O
F 

W
O

R
K

 
(IN

C
LU

D
IN

G
 

D
IM

EN
SI

O
N

S,
 

LA
Y

O
U

T
, 

ET
C

.) 
PR

IO
R

 
T

O
IN

IT
IA

T
IN

G
 

T
H

E 
IM

PR
O

V
EM

EN
T

S 
ID

EN
T

IF
IE

D
 

W
IT

H
IN

 
T

H
ES

E
D

O
C

U
M

EN
T

S.
 S

H
O

U
LD

 A
N

Y
 D

IS
C

R
EP

A
N

C
Y

 B
E 

FO
U

N
D

 B
ET

W
EE

N
 T

H
E

EX
IS

T
IN

G
 

SI
T

E 
C

O
N

D
IT

IO
N

S 
A

N
D

 
T

H
E 

PR
O

PO
SE

D
 

W
O

R
K

 
T

H
E

C
O

N
T

R
A

C
T

O
R

 S
H

A
LL

 N
O

T
IF

Y
 S

T
O

N
EF

IE
LD

 E
N

G
IN

EE
R

IN
G

 &
 D

ES
IG

N
,

LL
C

. P
R

IO
R

 T
O

 T
H

E 
ST

A
R

T
 O

F 
C

O
N

ST
R

U
C

T
IO

N
.

2.
T

H
E 

C
O

N
T

R
A

C
T

O
R

 
SH

A
LL

 
O

BT
A

IN
 

A
LL

 
N

EC
ES

SA
R

Y
 

PE
R

M
IT

S 
A

N
D

EN
SU

R
E 

T
H

A
T

 
A

LL
 

R
EQ

U
IR

ED
 

A
PP

R
O

V
A

LS
 

H
A

V
E 

BE
EN

 
O

BT
A

IN
ED

PR
IO

R
 T

O
 T

H
E 

ST
A

R
T 

O
F 

C
O

N
ST

R
U

C
T

IO
N

. C
O

PI
ES

 O
F 

A
LL

 R
EQ

U
IR

ED
PE

R
M

IT
S 

A
N

D
 

A
PP

R
O

V
A

LS
 

SH
A

LL
 

BE
 

K
EP

T
 

O
N

 
SI

T
E 

A
T

 
A

LL
 

T
IM

ES
D

U
R

IN
G

 C
O

N
ST

R
U

C
T

IO
N

.
3.

A
LL

 C
O

N
T

R
A

C
T

O
R

S 
W

IL
L,

 T
O

 T
H

E 
FU

LL
ES

T
 E

X
T

EN
T

 P
ER

M
IT

T
ED

 B
Y

LA
W

, I
N

D
EM

N
IF

Y
 A

N
D

 H
O

LD
 H

A
R

M
LE

SS
 S

T
O

N
EF

IE
LD

 E
N

G
IN

EE
R

IN
G

 &
D

ES
IG

N
, L

LC
. A

N
D

 IT
'S

 S
U

B-
C

O
N

SU
LT

A
N

T
S 

FR
O

M
 A

N
D

 A
G

A
IN

ST
 A

N
Y

D
A

M
A

G
ES

 
A

N
D

 
LI

A
BI

LI
T

IE
S 

IN
C

LU
D

IN
G

 
A

T
T

O
R

N
EY

'S
 

FE
ES

 
A

R
IS

IN
G

O
U

T
 O

F 
C

LA
IM

S 
BY

 E
M

PL
O

Y
EE

S 
O

F 
T

H
E 

C
O

N
T

R
A

C
T

O
R 

IN
 A

D
D

IT
IO

N
T

O
 C

LA
IM

S 
C

O
N

N
EC

T
ED

 T
O

 T
H

E 
PR

O
JE

C
T

 A
S 

A
 R

ES
U

LT
 O

F 
N

O
T

C
A

R
R

Y
IN

G
 T

H
E 

PR
O

PE
R

 IN
SU

R
A

N
C

E 
FO

R
 W

O
R

K
ER

S 
C

O
M

PE
N

SA
T

IO
N

,
LI

A
BI

LI
T

Y
 

IN
SU

R
A

N
C

E,
 

A
N

D
 

LI
M

IT
S 

O
F 

C
O

M
M

ER
C

IA
L 

G
EN

ER
A

L
LI

A
BI

LI
T

Y
 IN

SU
R

A
N

C
E.

4.
T

H
E 

C
O

N
T

R
A

C
T

O
R

 
SH

A
LL

 
N

O
T 

D
EV

IA
T

E 
FR

O
M

 
T

H
E 

PR
O

PO
SE

D
IM

PR
O

V
EM

EN
T

S 
ID

EN
T

IF
IE

D
 W

IT
H

IN
 T

H
IS

 P
LA

N
 S

ET
 U

N
LE

SS
 A

PP
R

O
V

A
L

IS
 P

R
O

V
ID

ED
 I

N
 W

R
IT

IN
G

 B
Y 

ST
O

N
EF

IE
LD

 E
N

G
IN

EE
R

IN
G

 &
 D

ES
IG

N
,

LL
C

.
5.

T
H

E 
C

O
N

T
R

A
C

T
O

R 
IS

 R
ES

PO
N

SI
BL

E 
T

O
 D

ET
ER

M
IN

E 
T

H
E 

M
EA

N
S 

A
N

D
M

ET
H

O
D

S 
O

F 
C

O
N

ST
R

U
C

T
IO

N
.

6.
T

H
E 

C
O

N
T

R
A

C
T

O
R

 S
H

A
LL

 N
O

T 
PE

R
FO

R
M

 A
N

Y
 W

O
R

K
 O

R
 C

A
U

SE
D

IS
T

U
R

BA
N

C
E 

O
N

 A
 P

R
IV

A
T

E 
PR

O
PE

R
T

Y
 N

O
T

 C
O

N
T

R
O

LL
ED

 B
Y 

T
H

E
PE

R
SO

N
 O

R
 E

N
T

IT
Y

 W
H

O
 H

A
S 

A
U

T
H

O
R

IZ
ED

 T
H

E 
W

O
R

K
 W

IT
H

O
U

T
PR

IO
R

 
W

R
IT

T
EN

 
C

O
N

SE
N

T
 

FR
O

M
 

T
H

E 
O

W
N

ER
 

O
F 

T
H

E 
PR

IV
A

T
E

PR
O

PE
R

T
Y

.
7.

T
H

E 
C

O
N

T
R

A
C

T
O

R 
IS

 R
ES

PO
N

SI
BL

E 
T

O
 R

ES
T

O
R

E 
A

N
Y 

D
A

M
A

G
ED

 O
R

U
N

D
ER

M
IN

ED
 S

T
R

U
C

T
U

R
E 

O
R

 S
IT

E 
FE

A
T

U
R

E 
T

H
A

T
 I

S 
ID

EN
T

IF
IE

D
 T

O
R

EM
A

IN
 O

N
 T

H
E 

PL
A

N
 S

ET
. 

A
LL

 R
EP

A
IR

S 
SH

A
LL

 U
SE

 N
EW

 M
A

T
ER

IA
LS

T
O

 R
ES

T
O

R
E 

T
H

E 
FE

A
T

U
R

E 
T

O
 I

T
S 

EX
IS

T
IN

G
 C

O
N

D
IT

IO
N

 A
T

 T
H

E
C

O
N

T
R

A
C

T
O

R
S 

EX
PE

N
SE

.
8.

C
O

N
T

R
A

C
T

O
R

 I
S 

R
ES

PO
N

SI
BL

E 
T

O
 P

R
O

V
ID

E 
T

H
E 

A
PP

R
O

PR
IA

T
E 

SH
O

P
D

R
A

W
IN

G
S,

 P
R

O
D

U
C

T 
D

A
T

A
, 

A
N

D
 O

T
H

ER
 R

EQ
U

IR
ED

 S
U

BM
IT

T
A

LS
FO

R
 R

EV
IE

W
. S

T
O

N
EF

IE
LD

 E
N

G
IN

EE
R

IN
G

 &
 D

ES
IG

N
, L

LC
. W

IL
L 

R
EV

IE
W

T
H

E 
SU

BM
IT

T
A

LS
 I

N
 A

C
C

O
R

D
A

N
C

E 
W

IT
H

 T
H

E 
D

ES
IG

N
 I

N
T

EN
T 

A
S

R
EF

LE
C

T
ED

 W
IT

H
IN

 T
H

E 
PL

A
N

 S
ET

.
9.

T
H

E 
C

O
N

T
R

A
C

T
O

R
 

IS
 

R
ES

PO
N

SI
BL

E 
FO

R 
T

R
A

FF
IC

 
C

O
N

T
R

O
L 

IN
A

C
C

O
R

D
A

N
C

E 
W

IT
H

 
M

A
N

U
A

L 
O

N
 

U
N

IF
O

R
M

 
T

R
A

FF
IC

 
C

O
N

T
R

O
L

D
EV

IC
ES

, L
A

T
ES

T
 E

D
IT

IO
N

.
10

.
T

H
E 

C
O

N
T

R
A

C
T

O
R

 I
S 

R
EQ

U
IR

ED
 T

O
 P

ER
FO

R
M

 A
LL

 W
O

R
K

 I
N

 T
H

E
PU

BL
IC

 R
IG

H
T

-O
F-

W
A

Y
 I

N
 A

C
C

O
R

D
A

N
C

E 
W

IT
H

 T
H

E 
A

PP
R

O
PR

IA
T

E
G

O
V

ER
N

IN
G

 
A

U
T

H
O

R
IT

Y 
A

N
D

 
SH

A
LL

 
BE

 
R

ES
PO

N
SI

BL
E 

FO
R

 
T

H
E

PR
O

C
U

R
EM

EN
T

 O
F 

ST
R

EE
T

 O
PE

N
IN

G
 P

ER
M

IT
S.

11
.

T
H

E 
C

O
N

T
R

A
C

T
O

R
 I

S 
R

EQ
U

IR
ED

 T
O

 R
ET

A
IN

 A
N

 O
SH

A
 C

ER
T

IF
IE

D
SA

FE
T

Y
 I

N
SP

EC
T

O
R 

T
O

 B
E 

PR
ES

EN
T

 O
N

 S
IT

E 
A

T
 A

LL
 T

IM
ES

 D
U

R
IN

G
C

O
N

ST
R

U
C

T
IO

N
 &

 D
EM

O
LI

T
IO

N
 A

C
T

IV
IT

IE
S.

12
.

SH
O

U
LD

 A
N

 E
M

PL
O

Y
EE

 O
F 

ST
O

N
EF

IE
LD

 E
N

G
IN

EE
R

IN
G

 &
 D

ES
IG

N
, L

LC
.

BE
 P

R
ES

EN
T

 O
N

 S
IT

E 
A

T
 A

N
Y

 T
IM

E 
D

U
R

IN
G

 C
O

N
ST

R
U

C
T

IO
N

, I
T 

D
O

ES
N

O
T

 R
EL

IE
V

E 
T

H
E 

C
O

N
T

R
A

C
T

O
R 

O
F 

A
N

Y 
O

F 
T

H
E 

R
ES

PO
N

SI
BI

LI
T

IE
S

A
N

D
 R

EQ
U

IR
EM

EN
T

S 
LI

ST
ED

 IN
 T

H
E 

N
O

T
ES

 W
IT

H
IN

 T
H

IS
 P

LA
N

 S
ET

.

G
R

A
PH

IC
 S

C
A

LE
 IN

 F
EE

T

0'
40

'
20

'
20

'

1"
 =

 2
0'

SI
T

E
 P

LA
N

1 
O

F 
3

1"
 =

 20
'

SY
M

B
O

L
D

E
SC

R
IP

T
IO

N

PR
O

PO
SE

D
 C

U
R

B

PR
O

PO
SE

D
 C

O
N

C
R

ET
E

SE
T

BA
C

K
 L

IN
E

PR
O

PO
SE

D
 S

T
O

P 
SI

G
N

PR
O

PE
R

T
Y

 L
IN

E

LA
N

D
 U

SE
 A

N
D

 Z
O

N
IN

G
D

IS
T

R
IC

T
 2

00
, S

E
C

T
IO

N
 4

02
, B

LO
C

K
 2

, L
O

T
 2

H
IG

H
 IN

T
E

N
SI

T
Y

 B
U

SI
N

E
SS

 (
J-

5)
P

R
O

P
O

SE
D

 U
SE

M
A

JO
R

 R
ES

T
A

U
R

A
N

T
 W

/ A
C

C
ES

SO
R

Y
D

R
IV

E-
T

H
R

O
U

G
H

SP
EC

IA
L 

PE
R

M
IT

 U
SE

 (
T

O
W

N
 B

O
A

R
D

 A
PP

R
O

V
A

L)

Z
O

N
IN

G
 R

E
Q

U
IR

E
M

E
N

T
R

E
Q

U
IR

E
D

P
R

O
P

O
SE

D
M

IN
IM

U
M

 L
O

T
 A

R
EA

2.
00

 A
C

 (
87

,1
20

 S
F)

1.
44

 A
C

 (
62

,8
46

 S
F)

 (
V

)
M

IN
IM

U
M

 L
O

T
 W

ID
T

H
15

0 
FT

22
5 

FT
M

A
X

IM
U

M
 F

LO
O

R
 A

R
EA

 R
A

T
IO

25
%

 (
15

,7
11

 S
F)

6.
2%

 (
3,

90
8 

SF
)

M
A

X
IM

U
M

 B
U

IL
D

IN
G

 H
EI

G
H

T
2.

5 
ST

O
R

IE
S 

/ 3
5 

FT
1 

ST
O

R
Y

 / 
< 

35
 F

T
M

IN
IM

U
M

 F
R

O
N

T
 Y

A
R

D
 S

ET
BA

C
K

(T
O

 M
ID

D
LE

 C
O

U
N

T
R

Y
 R

O
A

D
)

50
 F

T
BU

IL
D

IN
G

: 5
2.

7 
FT

C
A

N
O

PY
: 4

2.
1 

FT
 (

V
)

M
IN

IM
U

M
 F

R
O

N
T

 Y
A

R
D

 S
ET

BA
C

K
(T

O
 N

O
N

-E
X

C
LU

SI
V

E 
SC

W
A

 R
O

W
 E

A
SE

M
EN

T
)

50
 F

T
BU

IL
D

IN
G

: 8
4.

6 
FT

C
A

N
O

PY
: 9

2.
2 

FT
M

IN
IM

U
M

 S
ID

E 
Y

A
R

D
 S

ET
BA

C
K

25
 F

T
BU

IL
D

IN
G

: 5
4.

4 
FT

C
A

N
O

PY
: 4

1.
0 

FT
T

R
A

SH
 E

N
C

LO
SU

R
E:

 4
7.

0 
FT

M
IN

IM
U

M
 R

EA
R

 Y
A

R
D

 S
ET

BA
C

K
40

 F
T

BU
IL

D
IN

G
: 1

61
.9

 F
T

T
R

A
SH

 E
N

C
LO

SU
R

E:
 5

4.
3 

FT

(V
)

V
A

R
IA

N
C

E O
FF

-S
T

R
E

E
T

 P
A

R
K

IN
G

 R
E

Q
U

IR
E

M
E

N
T

S
C

O
D

E
SE

C
T

IO
N

R
E

Q
U

IR
E

D
P

R
O

P
O

SE
D

§
85

-8
52

M
IN

IM
U

M
 P

A
R

K
IN

G
 R

EQ
U

IR
EM

EN
T

:
M

A
JO

R
 R

ES
T

A
U

R
A

N
T

: 1
 P

ER
 3

 S
EA

T
S 

O
R

 1
 P

ER
 1

00
 S

F 
O

F
G

FA
, W

H
IC

H
EV

ER
 IS

 G
R

EA
T

ER
3,

90
8 

SF
 / 

10
0 

SF
 =

 4
0

T
O

T
A

L 
R

EQ
U

IR
ED

: 4
0 

SP
A

C
ES

T
O

T
A

L 
PR

O
PO

SE
D

: 4
0

§
85

-8
52

M
IN

IM
U

M
 D

R
IV

E-
T

H
R

O
U

G
H

 Q
U

EU
IN

G
 R

EQ
U

IR
EM

EN
T

:
R

ES
T

A
U

R
A

N
T

: 1
2 

PO
SI

T
IO

N
S 

PE
R

 W
IN

D
O

W
T

O
T

A
L 

PR
O

PO
SE

D
: 1

5
§

85
-8

50
LO

A
D

IN
G

 S
PA

C
E 

R
EQ

U
IR

EM
EN

T
:

1 
SP

A
C

E 
FO

R
 B

U
IL

D
IN

G
 F

LO
O

R
 A

R
EA

 U
N

D
ER

 8
,0

00
 S

F
D

O
ES

 N
O

T
 C

O
M

PL
Y

 (
V

)
§

85
-8

54
-B

M
IN

IM
U

M
 P

A
R

K
IN

G
 S

PA
C

E 
D

IM
EN

SI
O

N
S:

LE
N

G
T

H
 =

 1
9 

FT
W

ID
T

H
 =

 9
 F

T
LE

N
G

T
H

 =
 1

9 
FT

W
ID

T
H

 =
 9

 F
T

§
85

-8
54

-D
M

IN
IM

U
M

 D
R

IV
E-

T
H

R
O

U
G

H
 Q

U
EU

E 
SP

A
C

E 
D

IM
EN

SI
O

N
S:

LE
N

G
T

H
 =

 2
2 

FT
W

ID
T

H
 =

 9
 F

T
LE

N
G

T
H

 =
 2

2 
FT

W
ID

T
H

 =
 9

 F
T

§8
5-

85
4.

E
A

LL
 D

R
IV

E 
A

IS
LE

S 
A

N
D

 D
R

IV
EW

A
Y

 W
ID

T
H

S 
W

IT
H

IN
PA

R
K

IN
G

 A
R

EA
S 

SH
A

LL
 B

E 
D

ET
ER

M
IN

ED
 B

Y
 T

H
E

PL
A

N
N

IN
G

 B
O

A
R

D
22

 F
T

 (
EN

)

§8
5-

85
5.

A
N

O
 P

A
R

T
 O

F 
A

N
Y

 R
EQ

U
IR

ED
 F

R
O

N
T

 Y
A

R
D

, O
T

H
ER

T
H

A
N

 A
 D

R
IV

EW
A

Y
 IN

 A
 R

ES
ID

EN
T

IA
L 

D
IS

T
R

IC
T

, S
H

A
LL

BE
 U

SE
D

 F
O

R
 T

H
E 

PA
R

K
IN

G
 O

F 
M

O
T

O
R

 V
EH

IC
LE

S 
O

R
FO

R
 L

O
A

D
IN

G
 A

N
D

 U
N

LO
A

D
IN

G
 O

PE
R

A
T

IO
N

S.

D
O

ES
 N

O
T

 C
O

M
PL

Y
(E

N
)

(V
)

(E
N

)
V

A
R

IA
N

C
E

EX
IS

T
IN

G
 N

O
N

-C
O

N
FO

R
M

IT
Y

PR
O

PE
R

T
Y

 R
EZ

O
N

E 
N

O
T

E:

T
H

E 
PR

O
PE

R
T

Y
 IS

 L
O

C
A

T
ED

 W
IT

H
IN

 J 
BU

SI
N

ES
S 

4 
D

IS
T

R
IC

T
(J-

4)
. T

H
E 

PR
O

PO
SE

D
 Z

O
N

IN
G

 R
EV

IE
W

 H
A

S 
BE

EN
 P

ER
FO

R
M

ED
U

N
D

ER
 T

H
E 

A
SS

U
M

PT
IO

N
 T

H
E 

PR
O

PE
R

T
Y

 H
A

S 
BE

EN
R

EZ
O

N
ED

 T
O

 T
H

E 
J B

U
SI

N
ES

S 
5 

D
IS

T
R

IC
T

 (
J-5

).SP
E

C
IA

L 
P

E
R

M
IT

 C
R

IT
E

R
IA

C
O

D
E

SE
C

T
IO

N
R

E
Q

U
IR

E
D

P
R

O
P

O
SE

D

§
85

-4
67

.E
(1

)
A

 M
IN

IM
U

M
 L

A
N

D
SC

A
PE

D
 A

R
EA

 O
F 

40
FT

 S
H

A
LL

 B
E 

M
A

IN
T

A
IN

ED
 A

D
JA

C
EN

T
T

O
 A

LL
 R

O
A

D
 F

R
O

N
T

A
G

ES

9.
0 

FT
 (

EN
) 

(S
C

W
A

N
O

N
-E

X
C

LU
SI

V
E 

EA
SE

M
EN

T
)

42
.1

 F
T

 (
M

ID
D

LE
 C

O
U

N
T

R
Y

 R
O

A
D

)
§

85
-4

67
.E

(2
)

A
 M

IN
IM

U
M

 O
F 

35
%

 O
F 

T
H

E 
SI

T
E 

SH
A

LL
BE

 M
A

IN
T

A
IN

ED
 A

S 
N

A
T

U
R

A
L 

A
N

D
/O

R
LA

N
D

SC
A

PE
D

 A
R

EA

36
.1

%
 (

22
,6

96
.9

 S
F)

§
85

-4
67

.E
(3

)
N

O
 E

X
T

ER
IO

R
 M

EN
U

 B
O

A
R

D
 S

IG
N

S
SH

A
LL

 B
E 

LO
C

A
T

ED
 W

IT
H

IN
 T

H
E

R
EQ

U
IR

ED
 F

R
O

N
T

 Y
A

R
D

 S
ET

BA
C

K

C
O

M
PL

IE
S

§
85

-4
67

.E
(4

)
EX

T
ER

IO
R

 M
EN

U
 B

O
A

R
D

 O
R

 S
PE

A
K

ER
S

SH
A

LL
 B

E 
N

O
T

 F
A

C
E 

A
N

Y
 R

ES
ID

EN
T

IA
L

U
SE

 O
R

 Z
O

N
E

D
O

ES
 N

O
T

 C
O

M
PL

Y
 (

V
)

§
85

-4
67

.E
(5

)
N

O
 IN

D
O

O
R

 O
R

 O
U

T
D

O
O

R
 P

LA
Y

A
R

EA
 S

H
A

LL
 B

E 
LO

C
A

T
ED

 W
IT

H
IN

 T
H

E
FR

O
N

T
 Y

A
R

D

C
O

M
PL

IE
S

§
85

-4
67

.E
(6

)
T

H
ER

E 
SH

A
LL

 B
E 

A
 M

IN
IM

U
M

 O
F 

12
Q

U
EU

IN
G

 S
PA

C
ES

 F
O

R
 E

A
C

H
D

R
IV

E-
T

H
R

O
U

G
H

 W
IN

D
O

W

15

§
85

-4
67

.E
(7

)
Q

U
EU

IN
G

 L
A

N
ES

 S
H

A
LL

 B
E 

SE
PA

R
A

T
E

A
N

D
 D

IS
T

IN
C

T
 F

R
O

M
 P

A
R

K
IN

G
 A

IS
LE

S
C

O
M

PL
IE

S

(V
)

(E
N

)
V

A
R

IA
N

C
E

EX
IS

T
IN

G
 N

O
N

-C
O

N
FO

R
M

IT
Y

Z:\LIC\NYC\2024\NYC-240191 THE CREST GROUP - 599 MIDDLE COUNTRY ROAD, MIDDLE ISLAND, NY\CADD\PLOT\XXX-04-SITE.DWG

ISSUEDATEDESCRIPTION

NO
T A

PPR
OV

ED
 FO

R C
ON

STR
UC

TIO
N

SITE PLANS

BY

TI
TL

E:

SC
AL

E:
PR

O
JE

CT
 ID

:

DR
AW

IN
G:

SUFFOLK COUNTY, NEW YORK

PROPOSED STARBUCKS

N
YC

-2
40

19
1

102/14/2025ISSUED FOR REVIEW MG

TOWN OF BROOKHAVEN
599 MIDDLE COUNTRY ROAD
SECTION 402 BLOCK 2 LOT 2

ZA
C

H
AR

Y 
E.

 C
H

AP
LI

N
, P

.E
.

NE
W

 Y
O

RK
 LI

CE
NS

E N
o. 

99
74

8
LI

C
EN

SE
D

 P
R

O
FE

SS
IO

N
A

L 
EN

G
IN

EE
R

ZA
C

H
AR

Y 
E.

 C
H

AP
LI

N
, P

.E
.

NE
W

 Y
O

RK
 LI

CE
NS

E N
o. 

99
74

8
LI

C
EN

SE
D

 P
R

O
FE

SS
IO

N
A

L 
EN

G
IN

EE
R

ZA
C

H
AR

Y 
E.

 C
H

AP
LI

N
, P

.E
.

NE
W

 Y
O

RK
 LI

CE
NS

E N
o. 

99
74

8
LI

C
EN

SE
D

 P
R

O
FE

SS
IO

N
A

L 
EN

G
IN

EE
R

Rutherford, NJ ·New York, NY ·Salem, MA
Princeton, NJ ·Tampa, FL ·Birmingham, MI

www.stonefieldeng.com

584 Broadway, Suite 310, New York, NY 10012

Phone 718.606.8305

584 Broadway, Suite 310, New York, NY 10012

Phone 718.606.8305

584 Broadway, Suite 310, New York, NY 10012

Phone 718.606.8305

203/07/2025ISSUED FOR REVIEW MG

LA
N

D
SC

A
P

IN
G

 N
O

T
E

S

1.
T

H
E 

C
O

N
T

R
A

C
T

O
R

 
SH

A
LL

 
R

ES
T

O
R

E 
A

LL
 

D
IS

T
U

R
BE

D
 

G
R

A
SS

 
A

N
D

LA
N

D
SC

A
PE

D
 

A
R

EA
S 

T
O

 
M

A
T

C
H

 
EX

IS
T

IN
G

 
C

O
N

D
IT

IO
N

S 
U

N
LE

SS
IN

D
IC

A
T

ED
 O

T
H

ER
W

IS
E 

W
IT

H
IN

 T
H

E 
PL

A
N

 S
ET

.
2.

T
H

E 
C

O
N

T
R

A
C

T
O

R
 S

H
A

LL
 R

ES
T

O
R

E 
A

LL
 D

IS
T

U
R

BE
D

 L
A

W
N

 A
R

EA
S

W
IT

H
 A

 M
IN

IM
U

M
 4

 IN
C

H
 L

A
Y

ER
 O

F 
T

O
PS

O
IL

 A
N

D
 S

EE
D

.
3.

T
H

E 
C

O
N

T
R

A
C

T
O

R
 S

H
A

LL
 R

ES
T

O
R

E 
M

U
LC

H
 A

R
EA

S 
W

IT
H

 A
 M

IN
IM

U
M

3 
IN

C
H

 L
A

Y
ER

 O
F 

M
U

LC
H

 .
4.

T
H

E 
M

A
X

IM
U

M
 

SL
O

PE
 

A
LL

O
W

A
BL

E 
IN

 
LA

N
D

SC
A

PE
 

R
ES

T
O

R
A

T
IO

N
A

R
EA

S 
SH

A
LL

 
BE

 
3 

FE
ET

 
H

O
R

IZ
O

N
T

A
L 

T
O

 
1 

FO
O

T
 

V
ER

T
IC

A
L 

(3
:1

SL
O

PE
) 

U
N

LE
SS

 IN
D

IC
A

T
ED

 O
T

H
ER

W
IS

E 
W

IT
H

IN
 T

H
E 

PL
A

N
 S

ET
.

5.
T

H
E 

C
O

N
T

R
A

C
T

O
R

 I
S 

R
EQ

U
IR

ED
 T

O
 L

O
C

A
T

E 
A

LL
 S

PR
IN

K
LE

R 
H

EA
D

S
IN

 
A

R
EA

 
O

F 
LA

N
D

SC
A

PI
N

G
 

D
IS

T
U

R
BA

N
C

E 
PR

IO
R

 
T

O
C

O
N

ST
R

U
C

T
IO

N
. 

T
H

E 
C

O
N

T
R

A
C

T
O

R 
SH

A
LL

 R
EL

O
C

A
T

E 
SP

R
IN

K
LE

R
H

EA
D

S 
A

N
D

 
LI

N
ES

 
IN

 
A

C
C

O
R

D
A

N
C

E 
W

IT
H

 
O

W
N

ER
'S

 
D

IR
EC

T
IO

N
W

IT
H

IN
 A

R
EA

S 
O

F 
D

IS
T

U
R

BA
N

C
E.

6.
T

H
E 

C
O

N
T

R
A

C
T

O
R 

SH
A

LL
 

EN
SU

R
E 

T
H

A
T

 
A

LL
 

D
IS

T
U

R
BE

D
LA

N
D

SC
A

PE
D

 
A

R
EA

S 
A

R
E 

G
R

A
D

ED
 

T
O

 
M

EE
T

 
FL

U
SH

 
A

T
 

T
H

E
EL

EV
A

T
IO

N
 O

F 
W

A
LK

W
A

Y
S 

A
N

D
 T

O
P 

O
F 

C
U

R
B 

EL
EV

A
T

IO
N

S 
EX

C
EP

T
U

N
LE

SS
 I

N
D

IC
A

T
ED

 O
T

H
ER

W
IS

E 
W

IT
H

IN
 T

H
E 

PL
A

N
 S

ET
. 

N
O

 A
BR

U
PT

C
H

A
N

G
ES

 I
N

 G
R

A
D

E 
A

R
E 

PE
R

M
IT

T
ED

 I
N

 D
IS

T
U

R
BE

D
 L

A
N

D
SC

A
PI

N
G

A
R

EA
S.

IR
R

IG
A

T
IO

N
 N

O
T

E
:

IR
R

IG
A

T
IO

N
 C

O
N

T
R

A
C

T
O

R
 T

O
 P

R
O

V
ID

E 
A

 D
ES

IG
N

 F
O

R 
A

N
 I

R
R

IG
A

T
IO

N
SY

ST
EM

 
SE

PA
R

A
T

IN
G

 
PL

A
N

T
IN

G
 

BE
D

S 
FR

O
M

 
LA

W
N

 
A

R
EA

. 
PR

IO
R

 
T

O
C

O
N

ST
R

U
C

T
IO

N
, 

D
ES

IG
N

 
IS

 
T

O
 

BE
 

SU
BM

IT
T

ED
 

T
O

 
T

H
E 

PR
O

JE
C

T
LA

N
D

SC
A

PE
 D

ES
IG

N
ER

 F
O

R
 R

EV
IE

W
 A

N
D

 A
PP

R
O

V
A

L.
 W

H
ER

E 
PO

SS
IB

LE
,

D
R

IP
 

IR
R

IG
A

T
IO

N
 

A
N

D
 

O
T

H
ER

 
W

A
T

ER
 

C
O

N
SE

R
V

A
T

IO
N

 
T

EC
H

N
IQ

U
ES

SU
C

H
 

A
S 

R
A

IN
 

SE
N

SO
R

S 
SH

A
LL

 
BE

 
IM

PL
EM

EN
T

ED
. 

C
O

N
T

R
A

C
T

O
R

 
T

O
V

ER
IF

Y
 

M
A

X
IM

U
M

 
O

N
 

SI
T

E 
D

Y
N

A
M

IC
 

W
A

T
ER

 
PR

ES
SU

R
E 

A
V

A
IL

A
BL

E
M

EA
SU

R
ED

 
IN

 
PS

I. 
PR

ES
SU

R
E 

R
ED

U
C

IN
G

 
D

EV
IC

ES
 

O
R

 
BO

O
ST

ER
 

PU
M

PS
SH

A
LL

 B
E 

PR
O

V
ID

ED
 T

O
 M

EE
T

 S
Y

ST
EM

 P
R

ES
SU

R
E 

R
EQ

U
IR

EM
EN

T
S.

 D
ES

IG
N

T
O

 S
H

O
W

 A
LL

 V
A

LV
ES

, P
IP

IN
G

, H
EA

D
S,

 B
A

C
K

FL
O

W
 P

R
EV

EN
T

IO
N

, M
ET

ER
S,

C
O

N
T

R
O

LL
ER

S,
 A

N
D

 S
LE

EV
ES

 W
IT

H
IN

 H
A

R
D

SC
A

PE
 A

R
EA

S.

R

K
no

w
 w

ha
t's

 b
el

ow
C

al
l b

ef
or

e 
yo

u 
di

g.



X
X

X
X

X

X
X

X
X

X
X

X
X

X

X

E
E

E

G

G

W W W

DRIVE THRU
ENTRY

ST
O

P
ST

O
P

42.1'
EX

IS
T

IN
G

 W
O

O
D

ED
 A

R
EA

T
O

 R
EM

A
IN

 A
N

D
 B

E
PR

O
T

EC
T

ED
 T

H
R

O
U

G
H

O
U

T
C

O
N

ST
R

U
C

T
IO

N
 (

T
Y

PI
C

A
L)

5 
JU

N

3 
C

O
R

3 
PH

Y

3 
M

Y
R

3 
M

Y
R

6 
PH

Y 3 
C

O
R

47
 A

N
E

15
 A

N
E

14
 B

A
R

8 
G

LA

34
 B

A
R

28
 B

A
R

25
 B

A
R

35
 B

A
R

2 
Q

U
E

2 
Q

U
E

2 
BE

T

6 
A

M
E

1 
Q

U
E

1 
BE

T

3 
A

M
E

EX
IS

T
IN

G
 P

A
V

EM
EN

T
T

O
 B

E 
C

O
N

V
ER

T
ED

 T
O

LA
N

D
SC

A
PI

N
G

 W
IT

H
N

A
T

IV
E 

PL
A

N
T

IN
G

S 
A

S
SH

O
W

N

EX
IS

T
IN

G
 L

A
W

N
 A

R
EA

T
O

 R
EM

A
IN

3 
EX

IS
T

IN
G

 S
T

R
EE

T
 T

R
EE

S 
T

O
R

EM
A

IN
 A

LO
N

G
 M

ID
D

LE
C

O
U

N
T

R
Y

 R
O

A
D

4 
PR

O
PO

SE
D

 S
T

R
EE

T
 T

R
EE

S
A

LO
N

G
 M

ID
D

LE
 C

O
U

N
T

R
Y

R
O

A
D

A
R

EA
 T

O
 B

E 
M

U
LC

H

A
R

EA
 T

O
 B

E 
LA

W
N

(T
Y

PI
C

A
L)

EX
IS

T
IN

G
 W

O
O

D
ED

 A
R

EA
T

O
 R

EM
A

IN
 A

N
D

 B
E

PR
O

T
EC

T
ED

 T
H

R
O

U
G

H
O

U
T

C
O

N
ST

R
U

C
T

IO
N

 (
T

Y
PI

C
A

L)

A
R

EA
 T

O
 B

E 
SE

ED
ED

 W
IT

H
PI

N
EL

A
N

D
S 

N
U

R
SE

R
Y

 &
 S

U
PP

LY
PO

LL
IN

A
T

O
R

 M
EA

D
O

W
 M

IX
(T

Y
PI

C
A

L)

EX
IS

T
IN

G
 T

R
EE

 T
O

 R
EM

A
IN

A
N

D
 B

E 
PR

U
N

ED
 (

T
Y

PI
C

A
L)

EX
IS

T
IN

G
 T

R
EE

S 
T

O
R

EM
A

IN
 A

N
D

 B
E

PR
U

N
ED

 (
T

Y
PI

C
A

L)

EX
IS

T
IN

G
 S

H
R

U
BS

 T
O

R
EM

A
IN

 A
N

D
 B

E 
PR

U
N

ED
(T

Y
PI

C
A

L)

EX
IS

T
IN

G
 C

O
N

C
R

ET
E

IS
LA

N
D

 T
O

 R
EM

A
IN

EX
IS

T
IN

G
 C

O
N

C
R

ET
E

IS
LA

N
D

 T
O

 R
EM

A
IN

26
 IL

E
9 

PH
Y

6 
C

O
R

1 
G

LA

14
 H

O
S

29
 P

EN

14
1 

C
A

R

65
 P

EN

25
 B

A
R

18
2 

PE
N

11
 P

H
Y

11
 P

H
Y

14
 IL

E

12
 IL

E

SE
A

SO
N

A
L 

A
N

N
U

A
LS

 T
O

BE
 S

U
PP

LI
ED

 B
Y

 O
W

N
ER

LA
N

D
SC

A
P

IN
G

 N
O

T
E

S

1.
T

H
E 

C
O

N
T

R
A

C
T

O
R

 
SH

A
LL

 
R

ES
T

O
R

E 
A

LL
 

D
IS

T
U

R
BE

D
 

G
R

A
SS

 
A

N
D

LA
N

D
SC

A
PE

D
 

A
R

EA
S 

T
O

 
M

A
T

C
H

 
EX

IS
T

IN
G

 
C

O
N

D
IT

IO
N

S 
U

N
LE

SS
IN

D
IC

A
T

ED
 O

T
H

ER
W

IS
E 

W
IT

H
IN

 T
H

E 
PL

A
N

 S
ET

.
2.

T
H

E 
C

O
N

T
R

A
C

T
O

R
 S

H
A

LL
 R

ES
T

O
R

E 
A

LL
 D

IS
T

U
R

BE
D

 L
A

W
N

 A
R

EA
S

W
IT

H
 A

 M
IN

IM
U

M
 4

 IN
C

H
 L

A
Y

ER
 O

F 
T

O
PS

O
IL

 A
N

D
 S

EE
D

.
3.

T
H

E 
C

O
N

T
R

A
C

T
O

R
 S

H
A

LL
 R

ES
T

O
R

E 
M

U
LC

H
 A

R
EA

S 
W

IT
H

 A
 M

IN
IM

U
M

3 
IN

C
H

 L
A

Y
ER

 O
F 

M
U

LC
H

 .
4.

T
H

E 
M

A
X

IM
U

M
 

SL
O

PE
 

A
LL

O
W

A
BL

E 
IN

 
LA

N
D

SC
A

PE
 

R
ES

T
O

R
A

T
IO

N
A

R
EA

S 
SH

A
LL

 
BE

 
3 

FE
ET

 
H

O
R

IZ
O

N
T

A
L 

T
O

 
1 

FO
O

T
 

V
ER

T
IC

A
L 

(3
:1

SL
O

PE
) 

U
N

LE
SS

 IN
D

IC
A

T
ED

 O
T

H
ER

W
IS

E 
W

IT
H

IN
 T

H
E 

PL
A

N
 S

ET
.

5.
T

H
E 

C
O

N
T

R
A

C
T

O
R

 I
S 

R
EQ

U
IR

ED
 T

O
 L

O
C

A
T

E 
A

LL
 S

PR
IN

K
LE

R 
H

EA
D

S
IN

 
A

R
EA

 
O

F 
LA

N
D

SC
A

PI
N

G
 

D
IS

T
U

R
BA

N
C

E 
PR

IO
R

 
T

O
C

O
N

ST
R

U
C

T
IO

N
. 

T
H

E 
C

O
N

T
R

A
C

T
O

R 
SH

A
LL

 R
EL

O
C

A
T

E 
SP

R
IN

K
LE

R
H

EA
D

S 
A

N
D

 
LI

N
ES

 
IN

 
A

C
C

O
R

D
A

N
C

E 
W

IT
H

 
O

W
N

ER
'S

 
D

IR
EC

T
IO

N
W

IT
H

IN
 A

R
EA

S 
O

F 
D

IS
T

U
R

BA
N

C
E.

6.
T

H
E 

C
O

N
T

R
A

C
T

O
R 

SH
A

LL
 

EN
SU

R
E 

T
H

A
T

 
A

LL
 

D
IS

T
U

R
BE

D
LA

N
D

SC
A

PE
D

 
A

R
EA

S 
A

R
E 

G
R

A
D

ED
 

T
O

 
M

EE
T

 
FL

U
SH

 
A

T
 

T
H

E
EL

EV
A

T
IO

N
 O

F 
W

A
LK

W
A

Y
S 

A
N

D
 T

O
P 

O
F 

C
U

R
B 

EL
EV

A
T

IO
N

S 
EX

C
EP

T
U

N
LE

SS
 I

N
D

IC
A

T
ED

 O
T

H
ER

W
IS

E 
W

IT
H

IN
 T

H
E 

PL
A

N
 S

ET
. 

N
O

 A
BR

U
PT

C
H

A
N

G
ES

 I
N

 G
R

A
D

E 
A

R
E 

PE
R

M
IT

T
ED

 I
N

 D
IS

T
U

R
BE

D
 L

A
N

D
SC

A
PI

N
G

A
R

EA
S.

Z:\LIC\NYC\2024\NYC-240191 THE CREST GROUP - 599 MIDDLE COUNTRY ROAD, MIDDLE ISLAND, NY\CADD\PLOT\XXX-10-LAND.DWG

ISSUEDATEDESCRIPTION

NO
T A

PPR
OV

ED
 FO

R C
ON

STR
UC

TIO
N

SITE PLANS

BY

TI
TL

E:

SC
AL

E:
PR

O
JE

CT
 ID

:

DR
AW

IN
G:

SUFFOLK COUNTY, NEW YORK

PROPOSED STARBUCKS

N
YC

-2
40

19
1

102/14/2025ISSUED FOR REVIEW MG

TOWN OF BROOKHAVEN
599 MIDDLE COUNTRY ROAD
SECTION 402 BLOCK 2 LOT 2

ZA
C

H
AR

Y 
E.

 C
H

AP
LI

N
, P

.E
.

NE
W

 Y
O

RK
 LI

CE
NS

E N
o. 

99
74

8
LI

C
EN

SE
D

 P
R

O
FE

SS
IO

N
A

L 
EN

G
IN

EE
R

ZA
C

H
AR

Y 
E.

 C
H

AP
LI

N
, P

.E
.

NE
W

 Y
O

RK
 LI

CE
NS

E N
o. 

99
74

8
LI

C
EN

SE
D

 P
R

O
FE

SS
IO

N
A

L 
EN

G
IN

EE
R

ZA
C

H
AR

Y 
E.

 C
H

AP
LI

N
, P

.E
.

NE
W

 Y
O

RK
 LI

CE
NS

E N
o. 

99
74

8
LI

C
EN

SE
D

 P
R

O
FE

SS
IO

N
A

L 
EN

G
IN

EE
R

Rutherford, NJ ·New York, NY ·Salem, MA
Princeton, NJ ·Tampa, FL ·Birmingham, MI

www.stonefieldeng.com

584 Broadway, Suite 310, New York, NY 10012

Phone 718.606.8305

584 Broadway, Suite 310, New York, NY 10012

Phone 718.606.8305

584 Broadway, Suite 310, New York, NY 10012

Phone 718.606.8305

203/07/2025ISSUED FOR REVIEW MG

G
R

A
PH

IC
 S

C
A

LE
 IN

 F
EE

T

0'
40

'
20

'
20

'

1"
 =

 2
0'

LA
N

D
SC

A
P

IN
G

 P
LA

N

2 
O

F 
3

1"
 =

 20
'

IR
R

IG
A

T
IO

N
 N

O
T

E
:

IR
R

IG
A

T
IO

N
 C

O
N

T
R

A
C

T
O

R 
T

O
 P

R
O

V
ID

E 
A

 D
ES

IG
N

 F
O

R
 A

N
 I

R
R

IG
A

T
IO

N
SY

ST
EM

 
SE

PA
R

A
T

IN
G

 
PL

A
N

T
IN

G
 

BE
D

S 
FR

O
M

 
LA

W
N

 
A

R
EA

. 
PR

IO
R

 
T

O
C

O
N

ST
R

U
C

T
IO

N
, 

D
ES

IG
N

 
IS

 
T

O
 

BE
 

SU
BM

IT
T

ED
 

T
O

 
T

H
E 

PR
O

JE
C

T
LA

N
D

SC
A

PE
 D

ES
IG

N
ER

 F
O

R
 R

EV
IE

W
 A

N
D

 A
PP

R
O

V
A

L.
 W

H
ER

E 
PO

SS
IB

LE
,

D
R

IP
 

IR
R

IG
A

T
IO

N
 

A
N

D
 

O
T

H
ER

 
W

A
T

ER
 

C
O

N
SE

R
V

A
T

IO
N

 
T

EC
H

N
IQ

U
ES

SU
C

H
 

A
S 

R
A

IN
 

SE
N

SO
R

S 
SH

A
LL

 
BE

 
IM

PL
EM

EN
T

ED
. 

C
O

N
T

R
A

C
T

O
R

 
T

O
V

ER
IF

Y
 

M
A

X
IM

U
M

 
O

N
 

SI
T

E 
D

Y
N

A
M

IC
 

W
A

T
ER

 
PR

ES
SU

R
E 

A
V

A
IL

A
BL

E
M

EA
SU

R
ED

 
IN

 
PS

I. 
PR

ES
SU

R
E 

R
ED

U
C

IN
G

 
D

EV
IC

ES
 

O
R 

BO
O

ST
ER

 
PU

M
PS

SH
A

LL
 B

E 
PR

O
V

ID
ED

 T
O

 M
EE

T
 S

Y
ST

EM
 P

R
ES

SU
R

E 
R

EQ
U

IR
EM

EN
T

S.
 D

ES
IG

N
T

O
 S

H
O

W
 A

LL
 V

A
LV

ES
, P

IP
IN

G
, H

EA
D

S,
 B

A
C

K
FL

O
W

 P
R

EV
EN

T
IO

N
, M

ET
ER

S,
C

O
N

T
R

O
LL

ER
S,

 A
N

D
 S

LE
EV

ES
 W

IT
H

IN
 H

A
R

D
SC

A
PE

 A
R

EA
S.

SY
M

B
O

L
D

E
SC

R
IP

T
IO

N

PR
O

PO
SE

D
 S

T
R

EE
T

 T
R

EE
S

R

K
no

w
 w

ha
t's

 b
el

ow
C

al
l b

ef
or

e 
yo

u 
di

g.

LA
N

D
SC

A
P

IN
G

 A
N

D
 B

U
FF

E
R

 R
E

Q
U

IR
E

M
E

N
T

S

C
O

D
E

 S
E

C
T

IO
N

R
E

Q
U

IR
E

D
P

R
O

P
O

SE
D

LA
N

D
SC

A
PI

N
G

 A
R

EA
S

§ 
85

-8
43

.A
.(1

)
M

IN
IM

U
M

 2
0%

 O
F 

A
 C

O
M

M
ER

C
IA

L 
SI

T
E 

SH
A

LL
 B

E
LA

N
D

SC
A

PE
D

LO
T

 A
R

EA
: 6

2,
84

6 
SF

62
,8

46
 S

F 
* 

(0
.2

0)
 =

 1
2,

56
9 

SF
22

,6
97

 S
F 

(3
6.

1%
)

§ 
85

-8
43

.A
.(2

)
M

IN
IM

U
M

 5
0%

 O
F 

T
H

E 
R

EQ
U

IR
ED

 L
A

N
D

SC
A

PE
D

A
R

EA
 S

H
A

LL
 B

E 
LO

C
A

T
ED

 IN
 T

H
E 

FR
O

N
T

 Y
A

R
D

12
,5

69
 S

F 
* 

(0
.5

0)
 =

 6
,2

85
 S

F
7,

99
3 

SF
 (6

3.
6%

)

ST
R

EE
T

 T
R

EE
S

§ 
85

-8
43

.A
.(3

)
1 

T
R

EE
 F

O
R

 E
V

ER
Y

 3
0 

LF
 O

F 
FR

O
N

T
A

G
E

M
ID

D
LE

 C
O

U
N

T
R

Y
 R

O
A

D
: 1

91
 F

T

(1
91

 F
T

) 
* 

(1
 T

R
EE

 / 
30

 F
T

 F
R

O
N

T
A

G
E)

 =
 7

 T
R

EE
S

3 
EX

IS
T

IN
G

 T
R

EE
S

4 
PR

O
PO

SE
D

 T
R

EE
S

§ 
85

-8
43

.A
.(4

)
M

IN
IM

U
M

 L
A

N
D

SC
A

PE
D

 A
R

EA
 A

LO
N

G
 A

LL
 S

T
R

EE
T

FR
O

N
T

A
G

ES
: 1

5 
FT

42
.1

 F
T

PA
R

K
IN

G
 A

R
EA

 S
C

R
EE

N
IN

G

§ 
85

-8
43

.A
.(7

)
A

LL
 P

A
R

K
IN

G
 A

R
EA

S 
SH

A
LL

 B
E 

SC
R

EE
N

ED
 F

R
O

M
V

IE
W

 W
IT

H
 A

 H
ED

G
E,

 B
ER

M
, A

N
D

/O
R

 D
EC

O
R

A
T

IV
E

W
A

LL
 O

R
 F

EN
C

E

C
O

M
PL

IE
S

PA
R

K
IN

G
 A

R
EA

 L
A

N
D

SC
A

PI
N

G

§ 
85

-8
43

.A
.(8

)(
a)

PA
R

K
IN

G
 A

R
EA

S 
O

F 
50

 S
PA

C
ES

 O
R

 M
O

R
E:

40
0 

SF
 O

F 
LA

N
D

SC
A

PI
N

G
 F

O
R

 E
V

ER
Y

 2
5 

SP
A

C
ES

51
 S

PA
C

ES
 *

 (4
00

 S
F 

/ 2
5 

SP
A

C
ES

) 
= 

81
6 

SF
2,

75
0 

SF

G
R

EE
N

 L
A

N
D

SC
A

PI
N

G
 S

T
A

N
D

A
R

D
S

§ 
85

-8
47

.E
.(1

)
50

%
 O

F 
A

LL
 S

PE
C

IE
S 

SH
A

LL
 B

E 
D

R
O

U
G

H
T

T
O

LE
R

A
N

T
, N

A
T

IV
E 

SP
EC

IE
S

C
O

M
PL

IE
S

P
IN

E
LA

N
D

S 
N

U
R

SE
R

Y
 &

 S
U

P
P

LY
PO

LL
IN

A
T

O
R

 M
EA

D
O

W
 M

IX
 -

 S
D

M
-1

01

AC
H

IL
LE

A 
M

IL
LE

FO
LI

U
M

 
C

O
M

M
O

N
 Y

A
R

R
O

W
) 

1.
00

%
AN

D
RO

PO
G

O
N

 G
ER

AR
D

II
BI

G
 B

LU
ES

T
EM

) 
4.

00
%

AS
CL

EP
IA

S 
IN

CA
RN

AT
A

SW
A

M
P 

M
IL

K
W

EE
D

) 
0.

70
%

AS
CL

EP
IA

S 
IN

CA
RN

AT
A 

VA
R.

 P
U

LC
H

RA
EA

ST
ER

N
 S

W
A

M
P 

M
IL

K
W

EE
D

0.
30

%
AS

CL
EP

IA
S 

SY
RI

AC
A

C
O

M
M

O
N

 M
IL

K
W

EE
D

0.
20

%
AS

CL
EP

IA
S 

TU
BE

RO
SA

BU
T

T
ER

FL
Y

 W
EE

D
0.

10
%

BA
PT

IS
IA

 A
U

ST
RA

LI
S

BL
U

E 
W

IL
D

 IN
D

IG
O

0.
50

%
CH

AM
AE

CR
IS

TA
 F

AS
CI

CU
LA

TA
PA

R
T

R
ID

G
E 

PE
A

5.
00

%
CO

RE
O

PS
IS

 L
AN

CE
O

LA
TA

LA
N

C
EL

EA
F 

T
IC

K
SE

ED
2.

00
%

D
ES

M
O

D
IU

M
 C

AN
AD

EN
SE

SH
O

W
Y

 T
IC

K
-T

R
EF

O
IL

1.
00

%
EC

H
IN

AC
EA

 P
U

RP
U

RE
A

PU
R

PL
E 

C
O

N
EF

LO
W

ER
4.

00
%

EL
YM

U
S 

VI
RG

IN
IC

U
S

V
IR

G
IN

IA
 W

IL
D

-R
Y

E
16

.0
0%

ER
AG

RO
ST

IS
 S

PE
CT

AB
IL

IS
PU

R
PL

E 
LO

V
E 

G
R

A
SS

5.
00

%
ER

YN
G

IU
M

 Y
U

CC
IF

O
LI

U
M

R
A

T
T

LE
SN

A
K

E 
M

A
ST

ER
1.

00
%

EU
PA

TO
RI

U
M

 P
U

RP
U

RE
U

M
PU

R
PL

E 
JO

E 
PY

E 
W

EE
D

2.
00

%
EU

TR
O

CH
IU

M
 D

U
BI

U
M

C
O

A
ST

A
L 

PL
A

IN
 JO

E-
PY

E 
W

EE
D

2.
00

%
H

EL
EN

IU
M

 A
U

TU
M

N
AL

E
SN

EE
Z

EW
EE

D
4.

00
%

H
EL

IO
PS

IS
 H

EL
IA

N
TH

O
ID

ES
FA

LS
E 

SU
N

FL
O

W
ER

0.
20

%
LI

AT
RI

S 
SP

IC
AT

A
D

EN
SE

 B
LA

Z
IN

G
 S

T
A

R
1.

00
%

M
O

N
AR

D
A 

FI
ST

U
LO

SA
W

IL
D

 B
ER

G
A

M
O

T
.0

0%
PE

N
ST

EM
O

N
 D

IG
IT

AL
IS

FO
X

G
LO

V
E 

BE
A

R
D

T
O

N
G

U
E

2.
00

%
PY

CN
AN

TH
EM

U
M

 IN
CA

N
U

M
H

O
A

R
Y

 M
O

U
N

T
A

IN
 M

IN
T

1.
00

%
PY

CN
AN

TH
EM

U
M

 T
EN

U
IF

O
LI

U
M

SL
EN

D
ER

 M
O

U
N

T
A

IN
 M

IN
T

1.
00

%
RU

D
BE

CK
IA

 F
U

LG
ID

A
O

R
A

N
G

E 
C

O
N

EF
LO

W
ER

0.
45

%
RU

D
BE

CK
IA

 H
IR

TA
BL

A
C

K
-E

Y
ED

 S
U

SA
N

1.
00

%
SC

H
IZ

AC
H

YR
IU

M
 S

CO
PA

RI
U

M
LI

T
T

LE
 B

LU
ES

T
EM

12
.0

0%
SO

LI
D

AG
O

 JU
N

CE
A

EA
R

LY
 G

O
LD

EN
R

O
D

1.
00

%
SO

LI
D

AG
O

 N
EM

O
RA

LI
S

G
R

A
Y

 G
O

LD
EN

R
O

D
3.

00
%

SO
RG

H
AS

TR
U

M
 N

U
TA

N
S

IN
D

IA
N

G
R

A
SS

6.
00

%
SY

M
PH

YO
TR

IC
H

U
M

 L
AE

VE
SM

O
O

T
H

 A
ST

ER
3.

00
%

SY
M

PH
YO

TR
IC

H
U

M
 N

O
VA

E-
AN

G
LI

AE
N

EW
 E

N
G

LA
N

D
 A

ST
ER

2.
00

%
TR

ID
EN

S 
FL

AV
U

S
PU

R
PL

ET
O

P
10

.0
0%

VE
RB

ES
IN

A 
AL

TE
RN

IF
O

LI
A

W
IN

G
ST

EM
0.

55
%

VE
RN

O
N

IA
 N

O
VE

BO
RA

CE
N

SI
S

N
EW

 Y
O

R
K

 IR
O

N
W

EE
D

2.
00

%
ZI

ZA
 A

U
RE

A
G

O
LD

EN
 A

LE
X

A
N

D
ER

1.
00

%

SE
ED

IN
G

 R
A

T
E:

 1
5 

LB
S 

PE
R

 A
C

R
E

P
LA

N
T

 S
C

H
E

D
U

LE
SY

M
BO

L
C

O
D

E
Q

T
Y

BO
T

A
N

IC
A

L 
N

A
M

E
C

O
M

M
O

N
 N

A
M

E
SI

Z
E

C
O

N
T

A
IN

ER
R

EM
A

R
K

S

D
EC

ID
U

O
U

S 
T

R
EE

S

BE
T

3
BE

T
U

LA
 L

EN
T

A
SW

EE
T

 B
IR

C
H

4"
 -

 4
.5

" 
C

A
L

B&
B

N
A

T
IV

E

Q
U

E
5

Q
U

ER
C

U
S 

R
U

BR
A

N
O

R
T

H
ER

N
 R

ED
 O

A
K

4"
 -

 4
.5

" 
C

A
L

B&
B

N
A

T
IV

E

EV
ER

G
R

EE
N

 T
R

EE
S

A
M

E
9

IL
EX

 O
PA

C
A

A
M

ER
IC

A
N

 H
O

LL
Y

6`
 -

 7
` 

H
T

B&
B

N
A

T
IV

E

JU
N

5
JU

N
IP

ER
U

S 
V

IR
G

IN
IA

N
A

 'J
.N

.
SE

LE
C

T
 G

R
EE

N
'

EM
ER

A
LD

 F
EA

T
H

ER
 E

A
ST

ER
N

R
ED

C
ED

A
R

6`
 -

 7
` 

H
T

B&
B

N
A

T
IV

E

SH
R

U
BS

C
O

R
12

C
O

R
N

U
S 

ST
O

LO
N

IF
ER

A
'F

A
R

R
O

W
'

A
R

C
T

IC
 F

IR
E 

R
ED

 T
W

IG
D

O
G

W
O

O
D

18
" 

- 
24

"
PO

T
N

A
T

IV
E

(V
A

R
IE

T
Y

)

PH
Y

40
PH

Y
SO

C
A

R
PU

S 
O

PU
LI

FO
LI

U
S

'L
IT

T
LE

 D
EV

IL
'

LI
T

T
LE

 D
EV

IL
 D

W
A

R
F

N
IN

EB
A

R
K

18
" 

- 
24

"
PO

T
N

A
T

IV
E

(V
A

R
IE

T
Y

)

EV
ER

G
R

EE
N

 S
H

R
U

BS

G
LA

9
IL

EX
 G

LA
BR

A
IN

K
BE

R
R

Y
 H

O
LL

Y
18

" 
- 

24
"

PO
T

N
A

T
IV

E
(V

A
R

IE
T

Y
)

IL
E

52
IL

EX
 G

LA
BR

A
 'C

O
M

PA
C

T
A

'
C

O
M

PA
C

T
 IN

K
BE

R
R

Y
18

" 
- 

24
"

B&
B

N
A

T
IV

E
(V

A
R

IE
T

Y
)

M
Y

R
6

M
Y

R
IC

A
 P

EN
SY

LV
A

N
IC

A
N

O
R

T
H

ER
N

 B
A

Y
BE

R
R

Y
18

" 
- 

24
"

PO
T

N
A

T
IV

E

G
R

O
U

N
D

 C
O

V
ER

S

A
N

E
62

A
N

EM
O

N
E 

C
A

N
A

D
EN

SI
S

C
A

N
A

D
IA

N
 A

N
EM

O
N

E
1 

G
A

L.
PO

T
, 2

4"
 o

.c
.

N
A

T
IV

E

C
A

R
14

1
C

A
R

EX
 P

EN
SY

LV
A

N
IC

A
PE

N
N

SY
LV

A
N

IA
 S

ED
G

E
1 

G
A

L.
PO

T
, 2

4"
 o

.c
.

N
A

T
IV

E

H
O

S
14

H
O

ST
A

 X
 'P

A
T

R
IO

T
'

PA
T

R
IO

T
 H

O
ST

A
1 

G
A

L.
PO

T
, 2

4"
 o

.c
.

N
O

N
-N

A
T

IV
E

BA
R

16
1

JU
N

IP
ER

U
S 

H
O

R
IZ

O
N

T
A

LI
S 

'B
A

R
H

A
R

BO
R

'
BA

R
 H

A
R

BO
R

 C
R

EE
PI

N
G

JU
N

IP
ER

1 
G

A
L.

PO
T

, 3
6"

 o
.c

.
N

A
T

IV
E

(V
A

R
IE

T
Y

)

PE
R

EN
N

IA
LS

PE
N

27
6

PE
N

N
IS

ET
U

M
 A

LO
PE

C
U

R
O

ID
ES

'L
IT

T
LE

 B
U

N
N

Y
'

LI
T

T
LE

 B
U

N
N

Y
 F

O
U

N
T

A
IN

G
R

A
SS

1 
G

A
L.

PO
T

, 2
4"

 o
.c

.
N

O
N

-N
A

T
IV

E

N
O

T
E:

 IF
 A

N
Y

 D
IS

C
R

EP
A

N
C

IE
S 

O
C

C
U

R
 B

ET
W

EE
N

 A
M

O
U

N
T

S 
SH

O
W

N
 O

N
 T

H
E 

LA
N

D
SC

A
PE

 P
LA

N
 A

N
D

 W
IT

H
IN

 T
H

E 
PL

A
N

T
 L

IS
T

, T
H

E 
PL

A
N

 S
H

A
LL

 D
IC

T
A

T
E.



Z:\LIC\NYC\2024\NYC-240191 THE CREST GROUP - 599 MIDDLE COUNTRY ROAD, MIDDLE ISLAND, NY\CADD\PLOT\XXX-10-LAND.DWG

ISSUEDATEDESCRIPTION

NO
T A

PPR
OV

ED
 FO

R C
ON

STR
UC

TIO
N

SITE PLANS

BY

TI
TL

E:

SC
AL

E:
PR

O
JE

CT
 ID

:

DR
AW

IN
G:

SUFFOLK COUNTY, NEW YORK

PROPOSED STARBUCKS

N
YC

-2
40

19
1

102/14/2025ISSUED FOR REVIEW MG

TOWN OF BROOKHAVEN
599 MIDDLE COUNTRY ROAD
SECTION 402 BLOCK 2 LOT 2

ZA
C

H
AR

Y 
E.

 C
H

AP
LI

N
, P

.E
.

NE
W

 Y
O

RK
 LI

CE
NS

E N
o. 

99
74

8
LI

C
EN

SE
D

 P
R

O
FE

SS
IO

N
A

L 
EN

G
IN

EE
R

ZA
C

H
AR

Y 
E.

 C
H

AP
LI

N
, P

.E
.

NE
W

 Y
O

RK
 LI

CE
NS

E N
o. 

99
74

8
LI

C
EN

SE
D

 P
R

O
FE

SS
IO

N
A

L 
EN

G
IN

EE
R

ZA
C

H
AR

Y 
E.

 C
H

AP
LI

N
, P

.E
.

NE
W

 Y
O

RK
 LI

CE
NS

E N
o. 

99
74

8
LI

C
EN

SE
D

 P
R

O
FE

SS
IO

N
A

L 
EN

G
IN

EE
R

Rutherford, NJ ·New York, NY ·Salem, MA
Princeton, NJ ·Tampa, FL ·Birmingham, MI

www.stonefieldeng.com

584 Broadway, Suite 310, New York, NY 10012

Phone 718.606.8305

584 Broadway, Suite 310, New York, NY 10012

Phone 718.606.8305

584 Broadway, Suite 310, New York, NY 10012

Phone 718.606.8305

203/07/2025ISSUED FOR REVIEW MG

LA
N

D
SC

A
P

IN
G

 D
E

T
A

IL
S

3 
O

F 
3

AS
 S

HO
W

N

G
E

N
E

R
A

L 
LA

N
D

SC
A

P
IN

G
 N

O
T

E
S:

1.
 T

H
E 

LA
N

D
SC

A
PE

 C
O

N
T

R
A

C
T

O
R 

SH
A

LL
 F

U
R

N
IS

H
 A

LL
 M

A
T

ER
IA

LS
 A

N
D

 P
ER

FO
R

M
 A

LL
 W

O
R

K
 I

N
 A

C
C

O
R

D
A

N
C

E 
W

IT
H

 T
H

ES
E

SP
EC

IF
IC

A
T

IO
N

S,
 A

PP
R

O
V

ED
 O

R
 F

IN
A

L 
D

R
A

W
IN

G
S,

 A
N

D
 I

N
ST

R
U

C
T

IO
N

S 
PR

O
V

ID
ED

 B
Y 

T
H

E 
PR

O
JE

C
T

 L
A

N
D

SC
A

PE
 D

ES
IG

N
ER

,
M

U
N

IC
IP

A
L 

O
FF

IC
IA

LS
, 

O
R

 O
W

N
ER

/O
W

N
ER

'S
 R

EP
R

ES
EN

T
A

T
IV

E.
  

A
LL

 W
O

R
K

 C
O

M
PL

ET
ED

 A
N

D
 M

A
T

ER
IA

LS
 F

U
R

N
IS

H
ED

 A
N

D
IN

ST
A

LL
ED

 
SH

A
LL

 
BE

 
IN

 
ST

R
IC

T
 

A
C

C
O

R
D

A
N

C
E 

W
IT

H
 

T
H

E 
IN

T
EN

T
IO

N
 

O
F 

T
H

E 
SP

EC
IF

IC
A

T
IO

N
S,

 
D

R
A

W
IN

G
S,

 
A

N
D

IN
ST

R
U

C
T

IO
N

S 
A

N
D

 E
X

EC
U

T
ED

 W
IT

H
 T

H
E 

ST
A

N
D

A
R

D
 L

EV
EL

 O
F 

C
A

R
E 

FO
R

 T
H

E 
LA

N
D

SC
A

PE
 IN

D
U

ST
R

Y
.

2.
 W

O
R

K
 M

U
ST

 B
E 

C
A

R
R

IE
D

 O
U

T 
O

N
LY

 D
U

R
IN

G
 W

EA
T

H
ER

 C
O

N
D

IT
IO

N
S 

FA
V

O
R

A
BL

E 
T

O
 L

A
N

D
SC

A
PE

 C
O

N
ST

R
U

C
T

IO
N

 A
N

D
 T

O
T

H
E 

H
EA

LT
H

 A
N

D
 W

EL
FA

R
E 

O
F 

PL
A

N
T

S.
  

T
H

E 
SU

IT
A

BI
LI

T
Y

 O
F 

SU
C

H
 W

EA
T

H
ER

 C
O

N
D

IT
IO

N
S 

SH
A

LL
 B

E 
D

ET
ER

M
IN

ED
 B

Y 
T

H
E

PR
O

JE
C

T
 L

A
N

D
SC

A
PE

 D
ES

IG
N

ER
 O

R
 G

O
V

ER
N

IN
G

 M
U

N
IC

IP
A

L 
O

FF
IC

IA
L.

3.
 I

T 
IS

 T
H

E 
R

ES
PO

N
SI

BI
LI

T
Y

 O
F 

T
H

E 
LA

N
D

SC
A

PE
 C

O
N

T
R

A
C

T
O

R
, 

BE
FO

R
E 

O
R

D
ER

IN
G

 O
R

 P
U

R
C

H
A

SI
N

G
 M

A
T

ER
IA

LS
, 

T
O

 P
R

O
V

ID
E

SA
M

PL
ES

 O
F 

T
H

O
SE

 M
A

T
ER

IA
LS

 T
O

 T
H

E 
PR

O
JE

C
T

 L
A

N
D

SC
A

PE
 D

ES
IG

N
ER

 O
R

 G
O

V
ER

N
IN

G
 M

U
N

IC
IP

A
L 

O
FF

IC
IA

L 
FO

R
 A

PP
R

O
V

A
L,

IF
 S

O
 R

EQ
U

ES
T

ED
.

4.
 I

F 
SA

M
PL

ES
 A

R
E 

R
EQ

U
ES

T
ED

, 
T

H
E 

LA
N

D
SC

A
PE

 C
O

N
T

R
A

C
T

O
R

 I
S 

T
O

 S
U

BM
IT

 C
ER

T
IF

IC
A

T
IO

N
 T

A
G

S 
FR

O
M

 T
R

EE
S,

 S
H

R
U

BS
 A

N
D

SE
ED

 V
ER

IF
Y

IN
G

 T
Y

PE
 A

N
D

 P
U

R
IT

Y
.

5.
 

U
N

LE
SS

 
O

T
H

ER
W

IS
E 

A
U

T
H

O
R

IZ
ED

 
BY

 
T

H
E 

PR
O

JE
C

T
 

LA
N

D
SC

A
PE

 
D

ES
IG

N
ER

 
O

R 
G

O
V

ER
N

IN
G

 
M

U
N

IC
IP

A
L 

O
FF

IC
IA

L,
 

T
H

E
LA

N
D

SC
A

PE
 

C
O

N
T

R
A

C
T

O
R

 
SH

A
LL

 
PR

O
V

ID
E 

N
O

T
IC

E 
A

T
 

LE
A

ST
 

FO
R

T
Y

-E
IG

H
T

 
H

O
U

R
S 

(4
8 

H
R

S.
) 

IN
 

A
D

V
A

N
C

E 
O

F 
T

H
E

A
N

T
IC

IP
A

T
ED

 D
EL

IV
ER

Y
 D

A
T

E 
O

F 
A

N
Y 

PL
A

N
T 

M
A

T
ER

IA
LS

 T
O

 T
H

E 
PR

O
JE

C
T

 S
IT

E.
  

A
 L

EG
IB

LE
 C

O
PY

 O
F 

T
H

E 
IN

V
O

IC
E,

 S
H

O
W

IN
G

V
A

R
IE

T
IE

S 
A

N
D

 S
IZ

ES
 O

F 
M

A
T

ER
IA

LS
 I

N
C

LU
D

ED
 F

O
R

 E
A

C
H

 S
H

IP
M

EN
T

 S
H

A
LL

 B
E 

FU
R

N
IS

H
ED

 T
O

 T
H

E 
PR

O
JE

C
T 

LA
N

D
SC

A
PE

D
ES

IG
N

ER
, O

R
 G

O
V

ER
N

IN
G

 M
U

N
IC

IP
A

L 
O

FF
IC

IA
L.

6.
 T

H
E 

PR
O

JE
C

T
 L

A
N

D
SC

A
PE

 D
ES

IG
N

ER
 O

R
 G

O
V

ER
N

IN
G

 M
U

N
IC

IP
A

L 
O

FF
IC

IA
L 

R
ES

ER
V

ES
 T

H
E 

R
IG

H
T 

T
O

 I
N

SP
EC

T 
A

N
D

 R
EJ

EC
T

PL
A

N
T

S 
A

T
 A

N
Y

 T
IM

E 
A

N
D

 A
T

 A
N

Y
 P

LA
C

E.

P
R

O
T

E
C

T
IO

N
 O

F 
E

X
IS

T
IN

G
 V

E
G

E
T

A
T

IO
N

 N
O

T
E

S:

1.
 B

EF
O

R
E 

C
O

M
M

EN
C

IN
G

 W
O

R
K

, 
A

LL
 E

X
IS

T
IN

G
 V

EG
ET

A
T

IO
N

 W
H

IC
H

 C
O

U
LD

 B
E 

IM
PA

C
T

ED
 A

S 
A

 R
ES

U
LT

 O
F 

T
H

E 
PR

O
PO

SE
D

C
O

N
ST

R
U

C
T

IO
N

 A
C

T
IV

IT
IE

S 
M

U
ST

 B
E 

PR
O

T
EC

T
ED

 F
R

O
M

 D
A

M
A

G
E 

BY
 T

H
E 

IN
ST

A
LL

A
T

IO
N

 O
F 

T
R

EE
 P

R
O

T
EC

T
IO

N
 F

EN
C

IN
G

.
FE

N
C

IN
G

 S
H

A
LL

 B
E 

LO
C

A
T

ED
 A

T
 T

H
E 

D
R

IP
-L

IN
E 

O
R

 L
IM

IT
 O

F 
D

IS
T

U
R

BA
N

C
E 

A
S 

D
EP

IC
T

ED
 W

IT
H

IN
 T

H
E 

A
PP

R
O

V
ED

 O
R

 F
IN

A
L

PL
A

N
 S

ET
, 

ES
T

A
BL

IS
H

IN
G

 T
H

E 
T

R
EE

 P
R

O
T

EC
T

IO
N

 Z
O

N
E.

  
FE

N
C

E 
IN

ST
A

LL
A

T
IO

N
 S

H
A

LL
 B

E 
IN

 A
C

C
O

R
D

A
N

C
E 

W
IT

H
 T

H
E

PR
O

V
ID

ED
 “

T
R

EE
 P

R
O

T
EC

T
IO

N
 F

EN
C

E 
D

ET
A

IL
.”

  
N

O
 W

O
R

K
 M

A
Y

 B
EG

IN
 U

N
T

IL
 T

H
IS

 R
EQ

U
IR

EM
EN

T 
IS

 F
U

LF
IL

LE
D

.  
T

H
E 

FE
N

C
IN

G
SH

A
LL

 
BE

 
IN

SP
EC

T
ED

 
R

EG
U

LA
R

LY
 

BY
 

T
H

E 
LA

N
D

SC
A

PE
 

C
O

N
T

R
A

C
T

O
R

 
A

N
D

 
M

A
IN

T
A

IN
ED

 
U

N
T

IL
 

A
LL

 
C

O
N

ST
R

U
C

T
IO

N
A

C
T

IV
IT

IE
S 

H
A

V
E 

BE
EN

 C
O

M
PL

ET
ED

.
2.

 I
N

 O
R

D
ER

 T
O

 A
V

O
ID

 D
A

M
A

G
E 

T
O

 R
O

O
T

S,
 B

A
R

K
 O

R
 L

O
W

ER
 B

R
A

N
C

H
ES

, 
N

O
 V

EH
IC

LE
, 

EQ
U

IP
M

EN
T

, 
D

EB
R

IS
, 

O
R

 O
T

H
ER

M
A

T
ER

IA
LS

 S
H

A
LL

 B
E 

D
R

IV
EN

, P
A

R
K

ED
 O

R
 P

LA
C

ED
 W

IT
H

IN
 T

H
E 

T
R

EE
 P

R
O

T
EC

T
IO

N
 Z

O
N

E.
  

A
LL

 O
N

-S
IT

E 
C

O
N

T
R

A
C

T
O

R
S 

SH
A

LL
U

SE
 A

N
Y

 A
N

D
 A

LL
 P

R
EC

A
U

T
IO

N
A

R
Y

 M
EA

SU
R

ES
 W

H
EN

 P
ER

FO
R

M
IN

G
 W

O
R

K
 A

R
O

U
N

D
 T

R
EE

S,
 W

A
LK

S,
 P

A
V

EM
EN

T
S,

 U
T

IL
IT

IE
S,

A
N

D
 A

N
Y

 O
T

H
ER

 F
EA

T
U

R
ES

 E
IT

H
ER

 E
X

IS
T

IN
G

 O
R

 P
R

EV
IO

U
SL

Y
 IN

ST
A

LL
ED

 U
N

D
ER

 T
H

IS
 C

O
N

T
R

A
C

T
.

3.
 I

N
 R

A
R

E 
IN

ST
A

N
C

ES
 W

H
ER

E 
EX

C
A

V
A

T
IN

G
, F

IL
L,

 O
R

 G
R

A
D

IN
G

 I
S 

R
EQ

U
IR

ED
 W

IT
H

IN
 T

H
E 

D
R

IP
-L

IN
E 

O
F 

T
R

EE
S 

T
O

 R
EM

A
IN

, T
H

E
W

O
R

K
 S

H
A

LL
 B

E 
PE

R
FO

R
M

ED
 A

S 
FO

LL
O

W
S:

·
T

R
EN

C
H

IN
G

: 
W

H
EN

 T
R

EN
C

H
IN

G
 O

C
C

U
R

S 
A

R
O

U
N

D
 T

R
EE

S 
T

O
 R

EM
A

IN
, 

T
H

E 
T

R
EE

 R
O

O
T

S 
SH

A
LL

 N
O

T 
BE

 C
U

T
, 

BU
T

 T
H

E
T

R
EN

C
H

 S
H

A
LL

 B
E 

T
U

N
N

EL
ED

 U
N

D
ER

 O
R

 A
R

O
U

N
D

 T
H

E 
R

O
O

T
S 

BY
 C

A
R

EF
U

L 
H

A
N

D
 D

IG
G

IN
G

 A
N

D
 W

IT
H

O
U

T
 I

N
JU

R
Y

 T
O

T
H

E 
R

O
O

T
S.

  N
O

 R
O

O
T

S,
 L

IM
BS

, O
R

 W
O

O
D

S 
A

R
E 

T
O

 H
A

V
E 

A
N

Y
 P

A
IN

T
 O

R
 M

A
T

ER
IA

L 
A

PP
LI

ED
 T

O
 A

N
Y

 S
U

R
FA

C
E.

·
R

A
IS

IN
G

 
G

R
A

D
ES

: 
W

H
EN

 
T

H
E 

G
R

A
D

E 
A

T
 

A
N

 
EX

IS
T

IN
G

 
T

R
EE

 
IS

 
BE

LO
W

 
T

H
E 

N
EW

 
FI

N
IS

H
ED

 
G

R
A

D
E,

 
A

N
D

 
FI

LL
 

N
O

T
EX

C
EE

D
IN

G
 6

 I
N

C
H

ES
 (

6"
) 

IS
 R

EQ
U

IR
ED

, 
C

LE
A

N
, 

W
A

SH
ED

 G
R

A
V

EL
 F

R
O

M
 O

N
E 

T
O

 T
W

O
 I

N
C

H
ES

 (
1"

 -
 2

")
 I

N
 S

IZ
E 

SH
A

LL
 B

E
PL

A
C

ED
 D

IR
EC

T
LY

 A
R

O
U

N
D

 T
H

E 
T

R
EE

 T
R

U
N

K
. 

 T
H

E 
G

R
A

V
EL

 S
H

A
LL

 E
X

T
EN

D
 O

U
T 

FR
O

M
 T

H
E 

T
R

U
N

K
 O

N
 A

LL
 S

ID
ES

 A
M

IN
IM

U
M

 O
F 

18
 I

N
C

H
ES

 (
18

")
 A

N
D

 F
IN

IS
H

 A
PP

R
O

X
IM

A
T

EL
Y

 T
W

O
 I

N
C

H
ES

 (
2"

) 
A

BO
V

E 
T

H
E 

FI
N

IS
H

 G
R

A
D

E 
A

T
 T

R
EE

.  
IN

ST
A

LL
G

R
A

V
EL

 B
EF

O
R

E 
A

N
Y

 E
A

R
T

H
 F

IL
L 

IS
 P

LA
C

ED
.  

N
EW

 E
A

R
T

H
 F

IL
L 

SH
A

LL
 N

O
T 

BE
 L

EF
T 

IN
 C

O
N

T
A

C
T

 W
IT

H
 T

H
E 

T
R

U
N

K
 O

F 
A

N
Y

T
R

EE
 R

EQ
U

IR
IN

G
 F

IL
L.

  W
H

ER
E 

FI
LL

 E
X

C
EE

D
IN

G
 6

 IN
C

H
ES

 (
6"

) 
IS

 R
EQ

U
IR

ED
, A

 D
R

Y
 L

A
ID

 T
R

EE
 W

EL
L 

SH
A

LL
 B

E 
C

O
N

ST
R

U
C

T
ED

.
IF

 A
PP

LI
C

A
BL

E,
 T

R
EE

 W
EL

L 
IN

ST
A

LL
A

T
IO

N
 S

H
A

LL
 B

E 
IN

 A
C

C
O

R
D

A
N

C
E 

W
IT

H
 T

H
E 

PR
O

V
ID

ED
 “

T
R

EE
 W

EL
L 

D
ET

A
IL

.”
·

LO
W

ER
IN

G
 G

R
A

D
ES

: 
EX

IS
T

IN
G

 T
R

EE
S 

LO
C

A
T

ED
 I

N
 A

R
EA

S 
W

H
ER

E 
T

H
E 

N
EW

 F
IN

IS
H

ED
 G

R
A

D
E 

IS
 T

O
 B

E 
LO

W
ER

ED
, 

SH
A

LL
H

A
V

E 
R

E-
G

R
A

D
IN

G
 W

O
R

K
 D

O
N

E 
BY

 H
A

N
D

 T
O

 T
H

E 
IN

D
IC

A
T

ED
 E

LE
V

A
T

IO
N

, N
O

 G
R

EA
T

ER
 T

H
A

N
 S

IX
 I

N
C

H
ES

 (
6”

). 
 R

O
O

T
S

SH
A

LL
 B

E 
C

U
T

 C
LE

A
N

LY
 T

H
R

EE
 I

N
C

H
ES

 (
3"

) 
BE

LO
W

 F
IN

IS
H

ED
 G

R
A

D
E 

U
N

D
ER

 T
H

E 
D

IR
EC

T
IO

N
 O

F 
A

 L
IC

EN
SE

D
 A

R
BO

R
IS

T
.

W
H

ER
E 

C
U

T
 E

X
C

EE
D

IN
G

 6
 IN

C
H

ES
 (

6"
) 

IS
 R

EQ
U

IR
ED

, A
 D

R
Y

 L
A

ID
 R

ET
A

IN
IN

G
 W

A
LL

 S
H

A
LL

 B
E 

C
O

N
ST

R
U

C
T

ED
.  

IF
 A

PP
LI

C
A

BL
E,

T
H

E 
R

ET
A

IN
IN

G
 W

A
LL

 IN
ST

A
LL

A
T

IO
N

 S
H

A
LL

 B
E 

IN
 A

C
C

O
R

D
A

N
C

E 
W

IT
H

 T
H

E 
PR

O
V

ID
ED

 “
T

R
EE

 R
ET

A
IN

IN
G

 W
A

LL
 D

ET
A

IL
.”

SO
IL

 P
R

E
P

A
R

A
T

IO
N

 A
N

D
 M

U
LC

H
 N

O
T

E
S:

1.
 L

A
N

D
SC

A
PE

 C
O

N
T

R
A

C
T

O
R

 S
H

A
LL

 O
BT

A
IN

 A
 S

O
IL

 T
ES

T 
O

F 
T

H
E 

IN
-S

IT
U

 T
O

PS
O

IL
 B

Y 
A

 C
ER

T
IF

IE
D

 S
O

IL
 L

A
BO

R
A

T
O

R
Y

 P
R

IO
R

 T
O

PL
A

N
T

IN
G

.  
LA

N
D

SC
A

PE
 C

O
N

T
R

A
C

T
O

R 
SH

A
LL

 A
LL

O
W

 F
O

R 
A

 T
W

O
 W

EE
K

 T
U

R
N

A
R

O
U

N
D

 T
IM

E 
FR

O
M

 S
U

BM
IT

T
A

L 
O

F 
SA

M
PL

E
T

O
 N

O
T

IF
IC

A
T

IO
N

 O
F 

R
ES

U
LT

S.
2.

 B
A

SE
D

 O
N

 S
O

IL
 T

ES
T 

R
ES

U
LT

S,
 A

D
JU

ST
 T

H
E 

R
A

T
ES

 O
F 

LI
M

E 
A

N
D

 F
ER

T
IL

IZ
ER

 T
H

A
T

 S
H

A
LL

 B
E 

M
IX

ED
 I

N
T

O
 T

H
E 

T
O

P 
SI

X
 I

N
C

H
ES

(6
”)

 O
F 

T
O

PS
O

IL
.  

T
H

E 
LI

M
E 

A
N

D
 F

ER
T

IL
IZ

ER
 R

A
T

ES
 P

R
O

V
ID

ED
 W

IT
H

IN
 T

H
E 

“S
EE

D
 S

PE
C

IF
IC

A
T

IO
N

” 
O

R
 “

SO
D

 S
PE

C
IF

IC
A

T
IO

N
” 

IS
A

PP
R

O
X

IM
A

T
E 

A
N

D
 F

O
R

 B
ID

D
IN

G
 P

U
R

PO
SE

S 
O

N
LY

.  
IF

 A
D

D
IT

IO
N

A
L 

A
M

EN
D

M
EN

T
S 

A
R

E 
N

EC
ES

SA
R

Y
, A

D
JU

ST
 T

H
E 

T
O

PS
O

IL
 A

S
FO

LL
O

W
S:

·
M

O
D

IF
Y

 H
EA

V
Y

 C
LA

Y
 O

R
 S

IL
T

 S
O

IL
S 

(M
O

R
E 

T
H

A
N

 4
0%

 C
LA

Y 
O

R 
SI

LT
) 

BY
 A

D
D

IN
G

 C
O

M
PO

ST
ED

 P
IN

E 
BA

R
K

 (
U

P 
T

O
 3

0%
 B

Y
V

O
LU

M
E)

 O
R

 G
Y

PS
U

M
.

·
M

O
D

IF
Y

 E
X

T
R

EM
EL

Y
 S

A
N

D
Y

 S
O

IL
S 

(M
O

R
E 

T
H

A
N

 8
5%

) 
BY

 A
D

D
IN

G
 O

R
G

A
N

IC
 M

A
T

T
ER

 A
N

D
/O

R 
D

R
Y

, S
H

R
ED

D
ED

 C
LA

Y 
LO

A
M

U
P 

T
O

 3
0%

 O
F 

T
H

E 
T

O
T

A
L 

M
IX

.
3.

 
T

O
PS

O
IL

 
SH

A
LL

 
BE

 
FE

R
T

IL
E,

 
FR

IA
BL

E,
 

N
A

T
U

R
A

L 
T

O
PS

O
IL

 
O

F 
LO

A
M

IN
G

 
C

H
A

R
A

C
T

ER
, 

W
IT

H
O

U
T

 
A

D
M

IX
T

U
R

E 
O

F 
SU

BS
O

IL
M

A
T

ER
IA

L 
O

BT
A

IN
ED

 F
R

O
M

 A
 W

EL
L-

D
R

A
IN

ED
 A

R
A

BL
E 

SI
T

E,
 F

R
EE

 F
R

O
M

 A
LL

 C
LA

Y
, 

LU
M

PS
, 

C
O

A
R

SE
 S

A
N

D
S,

 S
T

O
N

ES
, 

PL
A

N
T

S,
R

O
O

T
S,

 S
T

IC
K

S,
 A

N
D

 O
T

H
ER

 F
O

R
EI

G
N

 M
A

T
ER

IA
L 

G
R

EA
T

ER
 T

H
A

N
 O

N
E 

IN
C

H
 (

1”
).

4.
 T

O
PS

O
IL

 S
H

A
LL

 H
A

V
E 

A
 P

H
 R

A
N

G
E 

O
F 

5.
0-

7.
0 

A
N

D
 S

H
A

LL
 N

O
T

 C
O

N
T

A
IN

 L
ES

S 
T

H
A

N
 6

%
 O

R
G

A
N

IC
 M

A
T

T
ER

 B
Y

 W
EI

G
H

T
.

5.
 O

BT
A

IN
 T

O
PS

O
IL

 O
N

LY
 F

R
O

M
 L

O
C

A
L 

SO
U

R
C

ES
 O

R
 F

R
O

M
 A

R
EA

S 
H

A
V

IN
G

 S
IM

IL
A

R
 S

O
IL

 C
H

A
R

A
C

T
ER

IS
T

IC
S 

T
O

 T
H

A
T

 F
O

U
N

D
 A

T
T

H
E 

PR
O

JE
C

T
 S

IT
E.

6.
 C

O
N

T
R

A
C

T
O

R
 S

H
A

LL
 P

R
O

V
ID

E 
A

 S
IX

 I
N

C
H

 (
6"

) 
D

EE
P 

LA
Y

ER
 O

F 
T

O
PS

O
IL

 I
N

 A
LL

 P
LA

N
T

IN
G

 A
R

EA
S.

  
T

O
PS

O
IL

 S
H

A
LL

 B
E 

SP
R

EA
D

O
V

ER
 A

 P
R

EP
A

R
ED

 S
U

R
FA

C
E 

IN
 A

 U
N

IF
O

R
M

 L
A

Y
ER

 T
O

 A
C

H
IE

V
E 

T
H

E 
D

ES
IR

ED
 C

O
M

PA
C

T
ED

 T
H

IC
K

N
ES

S.
  

T
H

E 
SP

R
EA

D
IN

G
 O

F
T

O
PS

O
IL

 S
H

A
LL

 N
O

T
 B

E 
C

O
N

D
U

C
T

ED
 U

N
D

ER
 M

U
D

D
Y

 O
R

 F
R

O
Z

EN
 S

O
IL

 C
O

N
D

IT
IO

N
S.

7.
 

U
N

LE
SS

 
O

T
H

ER
W

IS
E 

N
O

T
ED

 
IN

 
T

H
E 

C
O

N
T

R
A

C
T

, 
T

H
E 

LA
N

D
SC

A
PE

 
C

O
N

T
R

A
C

T
O

R
 

SH
A

LL
 

BE
 

R
ES

PO
N

SI
BL

E 
FO

R 
T

H
E

IN
ST

A
LL

A
T

IO
N

 O
F 

T
O

PS
O

IL
 A

N
D

 T
H

E 
ES

T
A

BL
IS

H
M

EN
T

 O
F 

FI
N

E-
G

R
A

D
IN

G
 W

IT
H

IN
 T

H
E 

D
IS

T
U

R
BE

D
 A

R
EA

 O
F 

T
H

E 
SI

T
E.

8.
 L

A
N

D
SC

A
PE

 C
O

N
T

R
A

C
T

O
R

 S
H

A
LL

 V
ER

IF
Y

 T
H

A
T

 T
H

E 
SU

B-
G

R
A

D
E 

EL
EV

A
T

IO
N

 M
EE

T
S 

T
H

E 
FI

N
IS

H
ED

 G
R

A
D

E 
EL

EV
A

T
IO

N
 (

LE
SS

 T
H

E
R

EQ
U

IR
ED

 T
O

PS
O

IL
), 

IN
 A

C
C

O
R

D
A

N
C

E 
W

IT
H

 T
H

E 
A

PP
R

O
V

ED
 O

R
 F

IN
A

L 
G

R
A

D
IN

G
 P

LA
N

.
9.

 A
LL

 L
A

W
N

 A
N

D
 P

LA
N

T
IN

G
 A

R
EA

S 
SH

A
LL

 B
E 

G
R

A
D

ED
 T

O
 A

 S
M

O
O

T
H

, E
V

EN
 A

N
D

 U
N

IF
O

R
M

 P
LA

N
E 

W
IT

H
 N

O
 A

BR
U

PT
 C

H
A

N
G

E
O

F 
SU

R
FA

C
E 

A
S 

D
EP

IC
T

ED
 W

IT
H

IN
 T

H
E 

A
PP

R
O

V
ED

 O
R

 F
IN

A
L 

C
O

N
ST

R
U

C
T

IO
N

 S
ET

 U
N

LE
SS

 O
T

H
ER

W
IS

E 
D

IR
EC

T
ED

 B
Y

 T
H

E
PR

O
JE

C
T

 L
A

N
D

SC
A

PE
 D

ES
IG

N
ER

 O
R

 M
U

N
IC

IP
A

L 
O

FF
IC

IA
L.

10
. 

T
H

E 
C

O
N

T
R

A
C

T
O

R 
SH

A
LL

 B
E 

R
ES

PO
N

SI
BL

E 
FO

R
 P

R
O

PE
R 

SU
R

FA
C

E 
A

N
D

 S
U

BS
U

R
FA

C
E 

PL
A

N
T

 B
ED

 D
R

A
IN

A
G

E 
PR

IO
R

 T
O

 T
H

E
IN

ST
A

LL
A

T
IO

N
 O

F 
PL

A
N

T
IN

G
S.

  
IF

 P
O

O
R

 D
R

A
IN

A
G

E 
C

O
N

D
IT

IO
N

S 
EX

IS
T

, 
C

O
R

R
EC

T
IV

E 
A

C
T

IO
N

 S
H

A
LL

 B
E 

T
A

K
EN

 P
R

IO
R

 T
O

IN
ST

A
LL

A
T

IO
N

. A
LL

 P
LA

N
T

IN
G

 A
N

D
 L

A
W

N
 A

R
EA

S 
SH

A
LL

 B
E 

G
R

A
D

ED
 A

N
D

 M
A

IN
T

A
IN

ED
 T

O
 A

LL
O

W
 A

 F
R

EE
 F

LO
W

 O
F 

SU
R

FA
C

E
W

A
T

ER
.

11
. D

O
U

BL
E 

SH
R

ED
D

ED
 H

A
R

D
W

O
O

D
 M

U
LC

H
 O

R
 A

PP
R

O
V

ED
 E

Q
U

A
L 

SH
A

LL
 B

E 
U

SE
D

 A
S 

A
 T

H
R

EE
 I

N
C

H
 (

3"
) 

T
O

P 
D

R
ES

SI
N

G
 I

N
 A

LL
SH

R
U

B 
PL

A
N

T
IN

G
 B

ED
S 

A
N

D
 A

R
O

U
N

D
 A

LL
 T

R
EE

S 
PL

A
N

T
ED

 B
Y 

LA
N

D
SC

A
PE

 C
O

N
T

R
A

C
T

O
R

. G
R

O
U

N
D

 C
O

V
ER

, P
ER

EN
N

IA
L,

 A
N

D
A

N
N

U
A

L 
PL

A
N

T
IN

G
 B

ED
S 

SH
A

LL
 B

E 
M

U
LC

H
ED

 W
IT

H
 A

 T
W

O
 I

N
C

H
 (

2”
) 

T
O

P 
D

R
ES

SI
N

G
. 

 S
IN

G
LE

 T
R

EE
S 

O
R 

SH
R

U
BS

 S
H

A
LL

 B
E

M
U

LC
H

ED
 T

O
 A

V
O

ID
 C

O
N

T
A

C
T

 W
IT

H
 T

R
U

N
K

 O
R

 P
LA

N
T 

ST
EM

.  
M

U
LC

H
 S

H
A

LL
 B

E 
O

F 
SU

FF
IC

IE
N

T 
C

H
A

R
A

C
T

ER
 A

S 
N

O
T

 T
O

 B
E

EA
SI

LY
 D

IS
PL

A
C

ED
 B

Y
 W

IN
D

 O
R

 W
A

T
ER

 R
U

N
O

FF
.

12
. W

H
EN

EV
ER

 P
O

SS
IB

LE
, T

H
E 

SO
IL

 P
R

EP
A

R
A

T
IO

N
 A

R
EA

 S
H

A
LL

 B
E 

C
O

N
N

EC
T

ED
 F

R
O

M
 P

LA
N

T
IN

G
 T

O
 P

LA
N

T
IN

G
.

13
. S

O
IL

 S
H

A
LL

 B
E 

LO
O

SE
N

ED
 W

IT
H

 A
 B

A
C

K
H

O
E 

O
R

 O
T

H
ER

 L
A

R
G

E 
C

O
A

R
SE

-T
IL

IN
G

 E
Q

U
IP

M
EN

T 
U

N
LE

SS
 T

H
E 

SO
IL

 I
S 

FR
O

Z
EN

 O
R

EX
C

ES
SI

V
EL

Y
 W

ET
.  

T
IL

IN
G

 T
H

A
T

 P
R

O
D

U
C

ES
 L

A
R

G
E,

 C
O

A
R

SE
 C

H
U

N
K

S 
O

F 
SO

IL
 IS

 P
R

EF
ER

A
BL

E 
T

O
 T

IL
IN

G
 T

H
A

T
 R

ES
U

LT
S 

IN
 F

IN
E

G
R

A
IN

S 
U

N
IF

O
R

M
 IN

 T
EX

T
U

R
E.

  A
FT

ER
 T

H
E 

A
R

EA
 IS

 L
O

O
SE

N
ED

 IT
 S

H
A

LL
 N

O
T

 B
E 

D
R

IV
EN

 O
V

ER
 B

Y
 A

N
Y

 V
EH

IC
LE

.
14

. 
A

PP
LY

 P
R

E-
EM

ER
G

EN
T

 W
EE

D
 C

O
N

T
R

O
L 

T
O

 A
LL

 P
LA

N
T 

BE
D

S 
PR

IO
R

 T
O

 M
U

LC
H

IN
G

. 
 E

N
SU

R
E 

C
O

M
PA

T
IB

IL
IT

Y
 B

ET
W

EE
N

PR
O

D
U

C
T

 A
N

D
 P

LA
N

T
 M

A
T

ER
IA

L.
15

. A
LL

 P
LA

N
T

IN
G

 S
O

IL
 S

H
A

LL
 B

E 
A

M
EN

D
ED

 W
IT

H
 T

H
E 

FO
LL

O
W

IN
G

: 

M
Y

C
R

O
®

 T
R

EE
 S

A
V

ER
 -

 A
 D

R
Y

 G
R

A
N

U
LA

R
 M

Y
C

O
R

R
H

IZ
A

L 
FU

N
G

I 
IN

O
C

U
LA

N
T 

T
H

A
T

 I
S 

M
IX

ED
 I

N
 T

H
E 

BA
C

K
FI

LL
 W

H
EN

PL
A

N
T

IN
G

 T
R

EE
S 

A
N

D
 S

H
R

U
BS

. 
 I

T
 C

O
N

T
A

IN
S 

SP
O

R
ES

 O
F 

BO
T

H
 E

C
T

O
M

Y
C

O
R

R
H

IZ
A

L 
A

N
D

 V
A

 M
Y

C
O

R
R

H
IZ

A
L 

FU
N

G
I 

(V
A

M
),

BE
N

EF
IC

IA
L 

R
H

IZ
O

SP
H

ER
E 

BA
C

T
ER

IA
, 

T
ER

R
A

-S
O

R
B 

SU
PE

R
A

BS
O

R
BE

N
T

 
H

Y
D

R
O

G
EL

 
T

O
 

R
ED

U
C

E 
W

A
T

ER
 

LE
A

C
H

IN
G

, 
A

N
D

SE
LE

C
T

ED
 O

R
G

A
N

IC
 M

IC
R

O
BI

A
L 

N
U

T
R

IE
N

T
S.

·
D

IR
EC

T
IO

N
S 

FO
R

 U
SE

: U
SE

 3
-O

Z
 P

ER
 E

A
C

H
 F

O
O

T
 D

IA
M

ET
ER

 O
F 

T
H

E 
R

O
O

T
 B

A
LL

, O
R

 3
-O

Z
 P

ER
 IN

C
H

 C
A

LI
PE

R
.  

M
IX

 IN
T

O
 T

H
E

BA
C

K
FI

LL
 W

H
EN

 T
R

A
N

SP
LA

N
T

IN
G

 T
R

EE
S 

A
N

D
 S

H
R

U
BS

. M
IX

 P
R

O
D

U
C

T 
IN

 A
 R

IN
G

-S
H

A
PE

D
 V

O
LU

M
E 

O
F 

SO
IL

 A
R

O
U

N
D

 T
H

E
U

PP
ER

 P
O

R
T

IO
N

 O
F 

T
H

E 
R

O
O

T
 B

A
LL

, 
EX

T
EN

D
IN

G
 F

R
O

M
 T

H
E 

SO
IL

 S
U

R
FA

C
E 

T
O

 A
 D

EP
T

H
 O

F 
A

BO
U

T 
8 

IN
C

H
ES

, 
A

N
D

EX
T

EN
D

IN
G

 O
U

T
 F

R
O

M
 T

H
E 

 R
O

O
T

 B
A

LL
 A

BO
U

T
 8

 IN
C

H
ES

 IN
T

O
 T

H
E 

BA
C

K
FI

LL
. A

PP
LY

 W
A

T
ER

 T
O

 S
O

IL
 S

A
T

U
R

A
T

IO
N

.
·

M
Y

C
O

R
®

 
T

R
EE

 S
A

V
ER

®
 I

S 
EF

FE
C

T
IV

E 
FO

R
 A

LL
 T

R
EE

 A
N

D
 S

H
R

U
B 

SP
EC

IE
S 

EX
C

EP
T

 R
H

O
D

O
D

EN
D

R
O

N
S,

 A
Z

A
LE

A
S,

 A
N

D
M

O
U

N
T

A
IN

 L
A

U
R

EL
, W

H
IC

H
 R

EQ
U

IR
E 

ER
IC

O
ID

 M
Y

C
O

R
R

H
IZ

A
E.

·
SO

IL
 P

H
: T

H
E 

FU
N

G
I I

N
 T

H
IS

 P
R

O
D

U
C

T 
W

ER
E 

C
H

O
SE

N
 B

A
SE

D
 O

N
 T

H
EI

R
 A

BI
LI

T
Y

 T
O

 S
U

R
V

IV
E 

A
N

D
 C

O
LO

N
IZ

E 
PL

A
N

T 
R

O
O

T
S

IN
 A

 P
H

 R
A

N
G

E 
O

F 
3 

T
O

 9
.

·
FU

N
G

IC
ID

ES
: T

H
E 

U
SE

 O
F 

C
ER

T
A

IN
 F

U
N

G
IC

ID
ES

 C
A

N
 H

A
V

E 
A

 D
ET

R
IM

EN
T

A
L 

EF
FE

C
T

 O
N

 T
H

E 
IN

O
C

U
LA

T
IO

N
 P

R
O

G
R

A
M

. S
O

IL
A

PP
LI

C
A

T
IO

N
 O

F 
A

N
Y

 F
U

N
G

IC
ID

E 
IS

 N
O

T
 R

EC
O

M
M

EN
D

ED
 F

O
R

 T
W

O
 W

EE
K

S 
A

FT
ER

 A
PP

LI
C

A
T

IO
N

.
·

O
T

H
ER

 
PE

ST
IC

ID
ES

: 
H

ER
BI

C
ID

ES
 

A
N

D
 

IN
SE

C
T

IC
ID

ES
 

D
O

 
N

O
T 

N
O

R
M

A
LL

Y 
IN

T
ER

FE
R

E 
W

IT
H

 
M

Y
C

O
R

R
H

IZ
A

L 
FU

N
G

A
L

D
EV

EL
O

PM
EN

T
, B

U
T

 M
A

Y
 IN

H
IB

IT
 T

H
E 

G
R

O
W

T
H

 O
F 

SO
M

E 
T

R
EE

 A
N

D
 S

H
R

U
B 

SP
EC

IE
S 

IF
 N

O
T

 U
SE

D
 P

R
O

PE
R

LY
.

H
EA

LT
H

Y
 S

T
A

R
T

 M
A

C
R

O
 T

A
BS

 1
2-

8-
8

·
FE

R
T

IL
IZ

ER
 T

A
BL

ET
S 

A
R

E 
PL

A
C

ED
 IN

 T
H

E 
U

PP
ER

 4
 IN

C
H

ES
 O

F 
BA

C
K

FI
LL

 S
O

IL
 W

H
EN

 P
LA

N
T

IN
G

 T
R

EE
S 

A
N

D
 S

H
R

U
BS

.
·

T
A

BL
ET

S 
A

R
E 

 F
O

R
M

U
LA

T
ED

 F
O

R 
LO

N
G

-T
ER

M
 R

EL
EA

SE
 B

Y 
SL

O
W

 B
IO

D
EG

R
A

D
A

T
IO

N
, 

A
N

D
 L

A
ST

 U
P 

T
O

 2
 Y

EA
R

S 
A

FT
ER

PL
A

N
T

IN
G

. 
T

A
BL

ET
S 

C
O

N
T

A
IN

 1
2-

8-
8 

N
PK

 F
ER

T
IL

IZ
ER

, 
A

S 
W

EL
L 

A
S 

A
 M

IN
IM

U
M

 O
F 

SE
V

EN
 P

ER
C

EN
T

 (
7%

) 
H

U
M

IC
 A

C
ID

 B
Y

W
EI

G
H

T
, 

M
IC

R
O

BI
A

L 
N

U
T

R
IE

N
T

S 
D

ER
IV

ED
 F

R
O

M
 S

EA
 K

EL
P,

 P
R

O
T

EI
N

 B
Y

PR
O

D
U

C
T

S,
 A

N
D

 Y
U

C
C

A
 S

C
H

ID
IG

ER
A

, 
A

N
D

 A
C

O
M

PL
EM

EN
T

 O
F 

BE
N

EF
IC

IA
L 

R
H

IZ
O

SP
H

ER
E 

BA
C

T
ER

IA
. 

T
H

E 
ST

A
N

D
A

R
D

 2
1 

G
R

A
M

 T
A

BL
ET

 I
S 

SP
EC

IF
IE

D
 H

ER
E.

 D
IR

EC
T

IO
N

S
FO

R
 U

SE
: 

FO
R 

PL
A

N
T

IN
G

 B
A

LL
ED

 &
 B

U
R

LA
PP

ED
 (

B&
B)

 T
R

EE
S 

A
N

D
 S

H
R

U
BS

, M
EA

SU
R

E 
T

H
E 

T
H

IC
K

N
ES

S 
O

F 
T

H
E 

T
R

U
N

K
, A

N
D

U
SE

 A
BO

U
T

 1
 T

A
BL

ET
 (

21
-G

) 
PE

R
 H

A
LF

-IN
C

H
. P

LA
C

E 
T

H
E 

T
A

BL
ET

S 
D

IR
EC

T
LY

 N
EX

T
 T

O
 T

H
E 

R
O

O
T

 B
A

LL
, E

V
EN

LY
 D

IS
T

R
IB

U
T

ED
A

R
O

U
N

D
 IT

S 
PE

R
IM

ET
ER

, A
T

 A
 D

EP
T

H
 O

F 
A

BO
U

T
 4

 IN
C

H
ES

.

P
LA

N
T

 Q
U

A
LI

T
Y

 A
N

D
 H

A
N

D
LI

N
G

 N
O

T
E

S:

1.
 A

LL
 P

LA
N

T 
M

A
T

ER
IA

L 
SH

A
LL

 C
O

N
FO

R
M

 T
O

 T
H

E 
A

M
ER

IC
A

N
 S

T
A

N
D

A
R

D
 F

O
R 

N
U

R
SE

R
Y

 S
T

O
C

K
 (

A
N

SI
 Z

60
.1

-2
00

4)
 O

R
 L

A
T

ES
T

R
EV

IS
IO

N
 A

S 
PU

BL
IS

H
ED

 B
Y

 T
H

E 
A

M
ER

IC
A

N
 N

U
R

SE
R

Y
 A

N
D

 L
A

N
D

SC
A

PE
 A

SS
O

C
IA

T
IO

N
.

2.
 I

N
 A

LL
 C

A
SE

S,
 B

O
T

A
N

IC
A

L 
N

A
M

ES
 L

IS
T

ED
 W

IT
H

IN
 T

H
E 

A
PP

R
O

V
ED

 O
R

 F
IN

A
L 

PL
A

N
T

 L
IS

T
 S

H
A

LL
 T

A
K

E 
PR

EC
ED

EN
C

E 
O

V
ER

C
O

M
M

O
N

 N
A

M
ES

.
3.

 A
LL

 P
LA

N
T

S 
SH

A
LL

 B
E 

O
F 

SE
LE

C
T

ED
 S

PE
C

IM
EN

 Q
U

A
LI

T
Y

, E
X

C
EP

T
IO

N
A

LL
Y

 H
EA

V
Y

, T
IG

H
T

LY
 K

N
IT

, S
O

 T
R

A
IN

ED
 O

R 
FA

V
O

R
ED

 IN
T

H
EI

R
 D

EV
EL

O
PM

EN
T

 A
N

D
 A

PP
EA

R
A

N
C

E 
A

S 
T

O
 B

E 
SU

PE
R

IO
R

 IN
 F

O
R

M
, N

U
M

BE
R

 O
F 

BR
A

N
C

H
ES

, C
O

M
PA

C
T

N
ES

S 
A

N
D

 S
Y

M
M

ET
R

Y
.

A
LL

 P
LA

N
T

S 
SH

A
LL

 H
A

V
E 

A
 N

O
R

M
A

L 
H

A
BI

T
 O

R
 S

O
U

N
D

, H
EA

LT
H

Y
, V

IG
O

R
O

U
S 

PL
A

N
T

S 
W

IT
H

 W
EL

L 
D

EV
EL

O
PE

D
 R

O
O

T
 S

Y
ST

EM
.

PL
A

N
T

S 
SH

A
LL

 B
E 

FR
EE

 O
F 

D
IS

EA
SE

, I
N

SE
C

T
 P

ES
T

S,
 E

G
G

S 
O

R
 L

A
R

V
A

E.
4.

 P
LA

N
T

S 
SH

A
LL

 N
O

T 
BE

 P
R

U
N

ED
 B

EF
O

R
E 

D
EL

IV
ER

Y
.  

T
R

EE
S 

W
IT

H
 A

BR
A

SI
O

N
 O

F 
T

H
E 

BA
R

K
, S

U
N

SC
A

LD
S,

 D
IS

FI
G

U
R

IN
G

 K
N

O
T

S 
O

R
FR

ES
H

 C
U

T
S 

O
F 

LI
M

BS
 O

V
ER

 O
N

E 
A

N
D

 O
N

E-
FO

U
R

T
H

 I
N

C
H

ES
 (

1-
1/

4"
) 

W
H

IC
H

 H
A

V
E 

N
O

T 
C

O
M

PL
ET

EL
Y

 C
A

LL
O

U
SE

D
 S

H
A

LL
 B

E
R

EJ
EC

T
ED

.
5.

 A
LL

 P
LA

N
T

S 
SH

A
LL

 B
E 

T
Y

PI
C

A
L 

O
F 

T
H

EI
R

 S
PE

C
IE

S 
O

R
 V

A
R

IE
T

Y
 A

N
D

 S
H

A
LL

 H
A

V
E 

A
 N

O
R

M
A

L 
H

A
BI

T 
O

F 
G

R
O

W
T

H
 A

N
D

 B
E 

LE
G

IB
LY

T
A

G
G

ED
 W

IT
H

 T
H

E 
PR

O
PE

R
 N

A
M

E 
A

N
D

 S
IZ

E.
6.

 T
H

E 
R

O
O

T
 S

Y
ST

EM
 O

F 
EA

C
H

 P
LA

N
T 

SH
A

LL
 B

E 
W

EL
L 

PR
O

V
ID

ED
 W

IT
H

 F
IB

R
O

U
S 

R
O

O
T

S.
  

A
LL

 P
A

R
T

S 
SH

A
LL

 B
E 

SO
U

N
D

, H
EA

LT
H

Y
,

V
IG

O
R

O
U

S,
 W

EL
L-

BR
A

N
C

H
ED

 A
N

D
 D

EN
SE

LY
 F

O
LI

A
T

ED
 W

H
EN

 IN
 L

EA
F.

7.
 A

LL
 P

LA
N

T
S 

D
ES

IG
N

A
T

ED
 B

A
LL

 A
N

D
 B

U
R

LA
P 

(B
&

B)
 M

U
ST

 B
E 

M
O

V
ED

 W
IT

H
 T

H
E 

R
O

O
T

 S
Y

ST
EM

 A
S 

SO
LI

D
 U

N
IT

S 
W

IT
H

 B
A

LL
S 

O
F

EA
R

T
H

 F
IR

M
LY

 W
R

A
PP

ED
 W

IT
H

 B
U

R
LA

P.
  

T
H

E 
D

IA
M

ET
ER

 A
N

D
 D

EP
T

H
 O

F 
T

H
E 

BA
LL

S 
O

F 
EA

R
T

H
 M

U
ST

 B
E 

SU
FF

IC
IE

N
T 

T
O

EN
C

O
M

PA
SS

 T
H

E 
FI

BR
O

U
S 

R
O

O
T

 F
EE

D
IN

G
 S

Y
ST

EM
S 

N
EC

ES
SA

R
Y

 F
O

R
 T

H
E 

H
EA

LT
H

Y 
D

EV
EL

O
PM

EN
T

 O
F 

T
H

E 
PL

A
N

T
. 

 N
O

 P
LA

N
T

SH
A

LL
 B

E 
A

C
C

EP
T

ED
 

W
H

EN
 

T
H

E 
BA

LL
 O

F 
EA

R
T

H
 

SU
R

R
O

U
N

D
IN

G
 I

T
S 

R
O

O
T

S 
H

A
S 

BE
EN

 B
A

D
LY

 
C

R
A

C
K

ED
 O

R
 

BR
O

K
EN

PR
EP

A
R

A
T

O
R

Y 
T

O
 O

R
 D

U
R

IN
G

 T
H

E 
PR

O
C

ES
S 

O
F 

PL
A

N
T

IN
G

.  
T

H
E 

BA
LL

S 
SH

A
LL

 R
EM

A
IN

 IN
T

A
C

T
 D

U
R

IN
G

 A
LL

 O
PE

R
A

T
IO

N
S.

  A
LL

PL
A

N
T

S 
T

H
A

T
 C

A
N

N
O

T 
BE

 P
LA

N
T

ED
 A

T
 O

N
C

E 
M

U
ST

 B
E 

H
EE

LE
D

-IN
 B

Y 
SE

T
T

IN
G

 I
N

 T
H

E 
G

R
O

U
N

D
 A

N
D

 C
O

V
ER

IN
G

 T
H

E 
BA

LL
S

W
IT

H
 S

O
IL

 O
R

 M
U

LC
H

 A
N

D
 T

H
EN

 W
A

T
ER

IN
G

.  
H

EM
P 

BU
R

LA
P 

A
N

D
 T

W
IN

E 
IS

 P
R

EF
ER

A
BL

E 
T

O
 T

R
EA

T
ED

.  
IF

 T
R

EA
T

ED
 B

U
R

LA
P 

IS
U

SE
D

, A
LL

 T
W

IN
E 

IS
 T

O
 B

E 
C

U
T

 F
R

O
M

 A
R

O
U

N
D

 T
H

E 
T

R
U

N
K

 A
N

D
 A

LL
 B

U
R

LA
P 

IS
 T

O
 B

E 
R

EM
O

V
ED

.
8.

 P
LA

N
T

S 
T

R
A

N
SP

O
R

T
ED

 T
O

 T
H

E 
PR

O
JE

C
T

 I
N

 O
PE

N
 V

EH
IC

LE
S 

SH
A

LL
 B

E 
C

O
V

ER
ED

 W
IT

H
 T

A
R

PS
 O

R
 O

T
H

ER
 S

U
IT

A
BL

E 
C

O
V

ER
S

SE
C

U
R

EL
Y

 F
A

ST
EN

ED
 T

O
 T

H
E 

BO
D

Y
 O

F 
T

H
E 

V
EH

IC
LE

 T
O

 P
R

EV
EN

T
 I

N
JU

R
Y

 T
O

 T
H

E 
PL

A
N

T
S.

  
C

LO
SE

D
 V

EH
IC

LE
S 

SH
A

LL
 B

E
A

D
EQ

U
A

T
EL

Y
 V

EN
T

IL
A

T
ED

 T
O

 P
R

EV
EN

T
 O

V
ER

H
EA

T
IN

G
 O

F 
T

H
E 

PL
A

N
T

S.
 E

V
ID

EN
C

E 
O

F 
IN

A
D

EQ
U

A
T

E 
PR

O
T

EC
T

IO
N

 F
O

LL
O

W
IN

G
D

IG
G

IN
G

, 
C

A
R

EL
ES

SN
ES

S 
W

H
IL

E 
IN

 T
R

A
N

SI
T

, 
O

R
 I

M
PR

O
PE

R
 H

A
N

D
LI

N
G

 O
R

 S
T

O
R

A
G

E 
SH

A
LL

 B
E 

C
A

U
SE

 F
O

R
 R

EJ
EC

T
IO

N
 O

F
PL

A
N

T 
M

A
T

ER
IA

L.
  

A
LL

 P
LA

N
T

S 
SH

A
LL

 B
E 

K
EP

T
 M

O
IS

T
, F

R
ES

H
, A

N
D

 P
R

O
T

EC
T

ED
.  

SU
C

H
 P

R
O

T
EC

T
IO

N
 S

H
A

LL
 E

N
C

O
M

PA
SS

 T
H

E
EN

T
IR

E 
PE

R
IO

D
 D

U
R

IN
G

 W
H

IC
H

 T
H

E 
PL

A
N

T
S 

A
R

E 
IN

 T
R

A
N

SI
T

, B
EI

N
G

 H
A

N
D

LE
D

, O
R

 A
R

E 
IN

 T
EM

PO
R

A
R

Y
 S

T
O

R
A

G
E.

9.
 A

LL
 P

LA
N

T
 M

A
T

ER
IA

L 
SH

A
LL

 B
E 

IN
ST

A
LL

ED
 I

N
 A

C
C

O
R

D
A

N
C

E 
W

IT
H

 T
H

E 
C

O
R

R
ES

PO
N

D
IN

G
 L

A
N

D
SC

A
PE

 P
LA

N
 A

N
D

 P
LA

N
T

IN
G

D
ET

A
IL

S.
10

. L
A

N
D

SC
A

PE
 C

O
N

T
R

A
C

T
O

R 
SH

A
LL

 M
A

K
E 

BE
ST

 E
FF

O
R

T
 T

O
 IN

ST
A

LL
 P

LA
N

T
IN

G
S 

O
N

 T
H

E 
SA

M
E 

D
A

Y 
A

S 
D

EL
IV

ER
Y

.  
IF

 P
LA

N
T

S 
A

R
E

N
O

T
 P

LA
N

T
ED

 I
M

M
ED

IA
T

EL
Y

 O
N

 S
IT

E,
 P

R
O

PE
R 

C
A

R
E 

SH
A

LL
 B

E 
T

A
K

EN
 T

O
 P

LA
C

E 
T

H
E 

PL
A

N
T

IN
G

S 
IN

 P
A

R
T

IA
L 

SH
A

D
E 

W
H

EN
PO

SS
IB

LE
. 

T
H

E 
R

O
O

T 
BA

LL
 

SH
A

LL
 

BE
 

K
EP

T 
M

O
IS

T
 

A
T

 
A

LL
 

T
IM

E 
A

N
D

 
C

O
V

ER
ED

 
W

IT
H

 
M

O
IS

T
EN

ED
 

M
U

LC
H

 
O

R 
A

G
ED

W
O

O
D

C
H

IP
S.

 P
R

O
PE

R
 I

R
R

IG
A

T
IO

N
 S

H
A

LL
 B

E 
SU

PP
LI

ED
 S

O
 A

S 
T

O
 N

O
T

 A
LL

O
W

 T
H

E 
R

O
O

T
 B

A
LL

 T
O

 D
R

Y
 O

U
T

. 
PL

A
N

T
IN

G
S

SH
A

LL
 B

E 
U

N
T

IE
D

 A
N

D
  

PR
O

PE
R

 S
PA

C
IN

G
 S

H
A

LL
 B

E 
A

LL
O

T
T

ED
 F

O
R 

A
IR

 C
IR

C
U

LA
T

IO
N

 A
N

D
 T

O
 P

R
EV

EN
T

 D
IS

EA
SE

, 
W

IL
T

IN
G

,
A

N
D

 L
EA

F 
LO

SS
. P

LA
N

T
S 

T
H

A
T

 R
EM

A
IN

 U
N

PL
A

N
T

ED
 F

O
R 

A
 P

ER
IO

D
 O

F 
T

IM
E 

G
R

EA
T

ER
 T

H
A

N
 T

H
R

EE
 (

3)
 D

A
Y

S 
SH

A
LL

 B
E 

H
EA

LE
D

IN
 W

IT
H

 T
O

PS
O

IL
 O

R
 M

U
LC

H
 A

N
D

 W
A

T
ER

ED
 A

S 
R

EQ
U

IR
ED

 T
O

 P
R

ES
ER

V
E 

R
O

O
T

 M
O

IS
T

U
R

E.
11

. N
O

 P
LA

N
T

 M
A

T
ER

IA
L 

SH
A

LL
 B

E 
PL

A
N

T
ED

 IN
 M

U
D

D
Y

 O
R

 F
R

O
Z

EN
 S

O
IL

.
12

. P
LA

N
T

S 
W

IT
H

 IN
JU

R
ED

 R
O

O
T

S 
O

R
 B

R
A

N
C

H
ES

 S
H

A
LL

 B
E 

PR
U

N
ED

 P
R

IO
R

 T
O

 P
LA

N
T

IN
G

 U
T

IL
IZ

IN
G

 C
LE

A
N

, S
H

A
R

P 
T

O
O

LS
.  

O
N

LY
D

IS
EA

SE
D

 O
R

 IN
JU

R
ED

 P
LA

N
T

S 
SH

A
LL

 B
E 

R
EM

O
V

ED
.

13
. 

IF
 R

O
C

K
 O

R
 O

T
H

ER
 U

N
D

ER
G

R
O

U
N

D
 O

BS
T

R
U

C
T

IO
N

 I
S 

EN
C

O
U

N
T

ER
ED

, T
H

E 
LA

N
D

SC
A

PE
 D

ES
IG

N
ER

 R
ES

ER
V

ES
 T

H
E 

R
IG

H
T 

T
O

R
EL

O
C

A
T

E 
O

R
 E

N
LA

R
G

E 
PL

A
N

T
IN

G
 P

IT
S 

O
R

 D
EL

ET
E 

PL
A

N
T

 M
A

T
ER

IA
L 

FR
O

M
 T

H
E 

C
O

N
T

R
A

C
T

.
14

. I
F 

PL
A

N
T

S 
A

R
E 

PR
O

PO
SE

D
 W

IT
H

IN
 S

IG
H

T 
T

R
IA

N
G

LE
S,

 T
R

EE
S 

SH
A

LL
 B

E 
LI

M
BE

D
 A

N
D

 M
A

IN
T

A
IN

ED
 T

O
 A

 H
EI

G
H

T
 O

F 
EI

G
H

T 
FE

ET
(8

') 
A

BO
V

E 
G

R
A

D
E,

 A
N

D
 S

H
R

U
BS

, G
R

O
U

N
D

 C
O

V
ER

, P
ER

EN
N

IA
LS

, A
N

D
 A

N
N

U
A

LS
 S

H
A

LL
 B

E 
M

A
IN

T
A

IN
ED

 T
O

 A
 H

EI
G

H
T

 N
O

T 
T

O
EX

C
EE

D
 T

W
O

 F
EE

T
 (

2'
) 

A
BO

V
E 

G
R

A
D

E 
U

N
LE

SS
 O

T
H

ER
W

IS
E 

N
O

T
ED

 O
R 

SP
EC

IF
IE

D
 B

Y
 T

H
E 

G
O

V
ER

N
IN

G
 M

U
N

IC
IP

A
LI

T
Y

 O
R

A
G

EN
C

Y
.

15
. I

N
ST

A
LL

A
T

IO
N

 S
H

A
LL

 O
C

C
U

R
 D

U
R

IN
G

 T
H

E 
FO

LL
O

W
IN

G
 S

EA
SO

N
S:

PL
A

N
T

S 
(M

A
R

C
H

 1
5 

- 
D

EC
EM

BE
R

 1
5)

LA
W

N
S 

(M
A

R
C

H
 1

5 
- 

JU
N

E 
15

 O
R

 S
EP

T
EM

BE
R

 1
 -

 D
EC

EM
BE

R
 1

)
16

. T
H

E 
FO

LL
O

W
IN

G
 T

R
EE

S 
A

R
E 

SU
SC

EP
T

IB
LE

 T
O

 T
R

A
N

SP
LA

N
T 

SH
O

C
K

 A
N

D
 S

H
A

LL
 N

O
T

 B
E 

PL
A

N
T

ED
 D

U
R

IN
G

 T
H

E 
FA

LL
 S

EA
SO

N
(S

T
A

R
T

IN
G

 S
EP

T
EM

BE
R

 1
5)

:
A

BI
ES

 C
O

N
C

O
LO

R
C

O
R

N
U

S 
V

A
R

IE
T

IE
S

O
ST

R
Y

A
 V

IR
G

IN
IA

N
A

A
C

ER
 B

U
ER

G
ER

IA
N

U
M

C
R

A
T

A
EG

U
S 

V
A

R
IE

T
IE

S
PI

N
U

S 
N

IG
R

A
A

C
ER

 F
R

EE
M

A
N

II
C

U
PR

ES
SO

C
Y

PA
R

IS
 L

EY
LA

N
D

II
PL

A
T

A
N

U
S 

V
A

R
IE

T
IE

S
A

C
ER

 R
U

BR
U

M
FA

G
U

S 
V

A
R

IE
T

IE
S

PO
PU

LU
S 

V
A

R
IE

T
IE

S
A

C
ER

 S
A

C
C

H
A

R
IN

U
M

H
A

LE
SI

A
 V

A
R

IE
T

IE
S

PR
U

N
U

S 
V

A
R

IE
T

IE
S

BE
T

U
LA

 V
A

R
IE

T
IE

S
IL

EX
 X

 F
O

ST
ER

II
PY

R
U

S 
V

A
R

IE
T

IE
S

C
A

R
PI

N
U

S 
V

A
R

IE
T

IE
S

IL
EX

 N
EL

LI
E 

ST
EV

EN
S

Q
U

ER
C

U
S 

V
A

R
IE

T
IE

S 
(N

O
T

 Q
. P

A
LU

ST
R

IS
)

C
ED

R
U

S 
D

EO
D

A
R

A
IL

EX
 O

PA
C

A
SA

LI
X

 W
EE

PI
N

G
 V

A
R

IE
T

IE
S

C
EL

T
IS

 V
A

R
IE

T
IE

S
JU

N
IP

ER
U

S 
V

IR
G

IN
IA

N
A

SO
R

BU
S 

V
A

R
IE

T
IE

S
C

ER
C

ID
IP

H
Y

LL
U

M
 V

A
R

IE
T

IE
S

K
O

EL
R

EU
T

ER
IA

 P
A

N
IC

U
LA

T
A

T
A

X
O

D
IU

M
 V

A
R

IE
T

IE
S

C
ER

C
IS

 C
A

N
A

D
EN

SI
S

LI
Q

U
ID

A
M

BA
R

 V
A

R
IE

T
IE

S
T

A
X

U
X

 B
 R

EP
A

N
D

EN
S

C
O

R
N

U
S 

V
A

R
IE

T
IE

S
LI

R
IO

D
EN

D
R

O
N

 V
A

R
IE

T
IE

S
T

IL
IA

 T
O

M
EN

T
O

SA
 V

A
R

IE
T

IE
S

C
R

A
T

A
EG

U
S 

V
A

R
IE

T
IE

S
M

A
LU

S 
IN

 L
EA

F
U

LM
U

S 
PA

R
V

IF
O

LI
A

 V
A

R
IE

T
IE

S
N

Y
SS

A
 S

Y
LV

A
T

IC
A

Z
EL

K
O

V
A

 V
A

R
IE

T
IE

S
17

. I
F 

A
 P

R
O

PO
SE

D
 P

LA
N

T
 IS

 U
N

A
T

T
A

IN
A

BL
E 

O
R

 O
N

 T
H

E 
FA

LL
 D

IG
G

IN
G

 H
A

Z
A

R
D

 L
IS

T
, A

N
 E

Q
U

IV
A

LE
N

T
 S

PE
C

IE
S 

O
F 

T
H

E 
SA

M
E 

SI
Z

E
M

A
Y

 B
E 

R
EQ

U
ES

T
ED

 F
O

R
 S

U
BS

T
IT

U
T

IO
N

 O
F 

T
H

E 
O

R
IG

IN
A

L 
PL

A
N

T
. A

LL
 S

U
BS

T
IT

U
T

IO
N

S 
SH

A
LL

 B
E 

A
PP

R
O

V
ED

 B
Y

 T
H

E 
PR

O
JE

C
T

LA
N

D
SC

A
PE

 D
ES

IG
N

ER
 O

R
 M

U
N

IC
IP

A
L 

O
FF

IC
IA

L 
PR

IO
R

 T
O

 O
R

D
ER

IN
G

 A
N

D
 IN

ST
A

LL
A

T
IO

N
.

18
. D

U
R

IN
G

 T
H

E 
C

O
U

R
SE

 O
F 

C
O

N
ST

R
U

C
T

IO
N

/P
LA

N
T

 IN
ST

A
LL

A
T

IO
N

, E
X

C
ES

S 
A

N
D

 W
A

ST
E 

M
A

T
ER

IA
LS

 S
H

A
LL

 B
E 

C
O

N
T

IN
U

O
U

SL
Y

A
N

D
 P

R
O

M
PT

LY
 R

EM
O

V
ED

 A
T

 T
H

E 
EN

D
 O

F 
EA

C
H

 W
O

R
K

 D
A

Y
. 

 A
LL

 D
EB

R
IS

, 
M

A
T

ER
IA

LS
, 

A
N

D
 T

O
O

LS
 S

H
A

LL
 B

E 
PR

O
PE

R
LY

ST
O

R
ED

, S
T

O
C

K
PI

LE
D

 O
R

 D
IS

PO
SE

D
 O

F 
A

N
D

 A
LL

 P
A

V
ED

 A
R

EA
S 

SH
A

LL
 B

E 
C

LE
A

N
ED

.
19

. T
H

E 
LA

N
D

SC
A

PE
 C

O
N

T
R

A
C

T
O

R
 S

H
A

LL
 D

IS
PO

SE
 O

F 
A

LL
 R

U
BB

IS
H

 A
N

D
 E

X
C

ES
S 

SO
IL

 A
T

 H
IS

 E
X

PE
N

SE
 T

O
 A

N
 O

FF
-S

IT
E 

LO
C

A
T

IO
N

A
S 

A
PP

R
O

V
ED

 B
Y

 T
H

E 
LO

C
A

L 
M

U
N

IC
IP

A
LI

T
Y

.
20

. A
 9

0-
D

A
Y

 M
A

IN
T

EN
A

N
C

E 
PE

R
IO

D
 S

H
A

LL
 B

EG
IN

 IM
M

ED
IA

T
EL

Y
 A

FT
ER

 A
LL

 P
LA

N
T

S 
H

A
V

E 
BE

EN
 S

A
T

IS
FA

C
T

O
R

IL
Y

 IN
ST

A
LL

ED
.

21
. 

M
A

IN
T

EN
A

N
C

E 
SH

A
LL

 I
N

C
LU

D
E,

 B
U

T
 N

O
T 

BE
 L

IM
IT

ED
 T

O
, 

R
EP

LA
C

IN
G

 M
U

LC
H

 T
H

A
T

 H
A

S 
BE

EN
 D

IS
PL

A
C

ED
 B

Y 
ER

O
SI

O
N

 O
R

O
T

H
ER

 M
EA

N
S,

 R
EP

A
IR

IN
G

 A
N

D
 R

ES
H

A
PI

N
G

 W
A

T
ER

 R
IN

G
S 

O
R

 S
A

U
C

ER
S,

 M
A

IN
T

A
IN

IN
G

 S
T

A
K

ES
 A

N
D

 G
U

Y
S 

IF
 O

R
IG

IN
A

LL
Y

R
EQ

U
IR

ED
, W

A
T

ER
IN

G
 W

H
EN

 N
EE

D
ED

 O
R

 D
IR

EC
T

ED
, W

EE
D

IN
G

, P
R

U
N

IN
G

, S
PR

A
Y

IN
G

, F
ER

T
IL

IZ
IN

G
, M

O
W

IN
G

 T
H

E 
LA

W
N

, A
N

D
PE

R
FO

R
M

IN
G

 A
N

Y
 O

T
H

ER
 W

O
R

K
 R

EQ
U

IR
ED

 T
O

 K
EE

P 
T

H
E 

PL
A

N
T

S 
IN

 A
 H

EA
LT

H
Y

 C
O

N
D

IT
IO

N
.

22
. M

O
W

 A
LL

 G
R

A
SS

 A
R

EA
S 

A
T

 R
EG

U
LA

R
 IN

T
ER

V
A

LS
 T

O
 K

EE
P 

T
H

E 
G

R
A

SS
 H

EI
G

H
T 

FR
O

M
 E

X
C

EE
D

IN
G

 T
H

R
EE

 IN
C

H
ES

 (
3"

). 
 M

O
W

IN
G

SH
A

LL
 B

E 
PE

R
FO

R
M

ED
 O

N
LY

 W
H

EN
 G

R
A

SS
 IS

 D
R

Y
.  

M
O

W
ER

 B
LA

D
E 

SH
A

LL
 B

E 
SE

T 
T

O
 R

EM
O

V
E 

N
O

 M
O

R
E 

T
H

A
N

 O
N

E 
T

H
IR

D
 (

1/
3)

O
F 

T
H

E 
G

R
A

SS
 L

EN
G

T
H

.  
W

H
EN

 T
H

E 
A

M
O

U
N

T 
O

F 
G

R
A

SS
 IS

 H
EA

V
Y

, I
T

 S
H

A
LL

 B
E 

R
EM

O
V

ED
 T

O
 P

R
EV

EN
T

 D
ES

T
R

U
C

T
IO

N
 O

F 
T

H
E

U
N

D
ER

LY
IN

G
 T

U
R

F.
  

M
O

W
 G

R
A

SS
 A

R
EA

S 
IN

 S
U

C
H

 A
 M

A
N

N
ER

 A
S 

T
O

 P
R

EV
EN

T
 C

LI
PP

IN
G

S 
FR

O
M

 B
LO

W
IN

G
 O

N
 P

A
V

ED
 A

R
EA

S,
A

N
D

 S
ID

EW
A

LK
S.

  
C

LE
A

N
U

P 
A

FT
ER

 M
O

W
IN

G
 S

H
A

LL
 IN

C
LU

D
E 

SW
EE

PI
N

G
 O

R 
BL

O
W

IN
G

 O
F 

PA
V

ED
 A

R
EA

S 
A

N
D

 S
ID

EW
A

LK
S 

T
O

C
LE

A
R

 T
H

EM
 F

R
O

M
 M

O
W

IN
G

 D
EB

R
IS

.
23

. G
R

A
SS

ED
 A

R
EA

S 
D

A
M

A
G

ED
 D

U
R

IN
G

 T
H

E 
PR

O
C

ES
S 

O
F 

T
H

E 
W

O
R

K
 S

H
A

LL
 B

E 
T

H
E 

R
ES

PO
N

SI
BI

LI
T

Y
 O

F 
T

H
E 

C
O

N
T

R
A

C
T

O
R

, W
H

O
SH

A
LL

 R
ES

T
O

R
E 

T
H

E 
D

IS
T

U
R

BE
D

 A
R

EA
S 

T
O

 A
 C

O
N

D
IT

IO
N

 S
A

T
IS

FA
C

T
O

R
Y 

T
O

 T
H

E 
PR

O
JE

C
T

 L
A

N
D

SC
A

PE
 D

ES
IG

N
ER

, M
U

N
IC

IP
A

L
O

FF
IC

IA
L,

 
O

R
 

O
W

N
ER

/O
W

N
ER

'S
 

R
EP

R
ES

EN
T

A
T

IV
E.

 
 

T
H

IS
 

M
A

Y
 

IN
C

LU
D

E 
FI

LL
IN

G
 

T
O

 
G

R
A

D
E,

 
FE

R
T

IL
IZ

IN
G

, 
SE

ED
IN

G
, 

A
N

D
M

U
LC

H
IN

G
.

24
. 

SH
O

U
LD

 
T

H
E 

O
W

N
ER

 
R

EQ
U

IR
E 

M
A

IN
T

EN
A

N
C

E 
BE

Y
O

N
D

 
T

H
E 

ST
A

N
D

A
R

D
 

90
-D

A
Y

 
M

A
IN

T
EN

A
N

C
E 

PE
R

IO
D

, 
A

 
SE

PA
R

A
T

E
C

O
N

T
R

A
C

T
 S

H
A

LL
 B

E 
ES

T
A

BL
IS

H
ED

.
25

. 
LA

N
D

SC
A

PE
 C

O
N

T
R

A
C

T
O

R 
SH

A
LL

 W
A

T
ER

 N
EW

 P
LA

N
T

IN
G

S 
FR

O
M

 T
IM

E 
O

F 
IN

ST
A

LL
 A

N
D

 T
H

R
O

U
G

H
O

U
T

 R
EQ

U
IR

ED
 9

0-
D

A
Y

M
A

IN
T

EN
A

N
C

E 
PE

R
IO

D
 U

N
T

IL
 P

LA
N

T
S 

A
R

E 
ES

T
A

BL
IS

H
ED

.  
IF

 O
N

-S
IT

E 
W

A
T

ER
 I

S 
N

O
T

 A
V

A
IL

A
BL

E 
A

T
 T

H
E 

PR
O

JE
C

T
 L

O
C

A
T

IO
N

,
T

H
E 

LA
N

D
SC

A
PE

 C
O

N
T

R
A

C
T

O
R

 S
H

A
LL

 F
U

R
N

IS
H

 IT
 B

Y
 M

EA
N

S 
O

R
 A

 W
A

T
ER

IN
G

 T
R

U
C

K
 O

R
 O

T
H

ER
 A

C
C

EP
T

A
BL

E 
M

A
N

N
ER

.
26

. 
T

H
E 

Q
U

A
N

T
IT

Y
 O

F 
W

A
T

ER
 A

PP
LI

ED
 A

T
 O

N
E 

T
IM

E 
SH

A
LL

 B
E 

SU
FF

IC
IE

N
T

 T
O

 P
EN

ET
R

A
T

E 
T

H
E 

SO
IL

 T
O

 A
 M

IN
IM

U
M

 O
F 

EI
G

H
T

IN
C

H
ES

 (
8"

) 
IN

 S
H

R
U

B 
BE

D
S 

A
N

D
 S

IX
 IN

C
H

ES
 (

6"
) 

IN
 T

U
R

F 
A

R
EA

S 
A

T
 A

 R
A

T
E 

W
H

IC
H

 W
IL

L 
PR

EV
EN

T
 S

A
T

U
R

A
T

IO
N

 O
F 

T
H

E 
SO

IL
.

27
. I

F 
A

N
 A

U
T

O
M

A
T

IC
 IR

R
IG

A
T

IO
N

 S
Y

ST
EM

 H
A

S 
BE

EN
 IN

ST
A

LL
ED

, I
T 

C
A

N
 B

E 
U

SE
D

 F
O

R
 W

A
T

ER
IN

G
 P

LA
N

T 
M

A
T

ER
IA

L.
  

H
O

W
EV

ER
,

FA
IL

U
R

E 
O

F 
T

H
E 

SY
ST

EM
 D

O
ES

 N
O

T 
EL

IM
IN

A
T

E 
T

H
E 

LA
N

D
SC

A
PE

 C
O

N
T

R
A

C
T

O
R

'S
 R

ES
PO

N
SI

BI
LI

T
Y

 O
F 

PL
A

N
T 

H
EA

LT
H

 A
N

D
ES

T
A

BL
IS

H
M

EN
T

.

P
LA

N
T

 M
A

T
E

R
IA

L 
G

U
A

R
A

N
T

E
E

 N
O

T
E

S:

1.
 T

H
E 

LA
N

D
SC

A
PE

 C
O

N
T

R
A

C
T

O
R 

SH
A

LL
 G

U
A

R
A

N
T

EE
 A

LL
 P

LA
N

T 
M

A
T

ER
IA

L 
FO

R
 A

 P
ER

IO
D

 O
F 

O
N

E 
Y

EA
R

 (
1 

Y
R

.) 
FR

O
M

 A
PP

R
O

V
A

L
O

F 
LA

N
D

SC
A

PE
 

IN
ST

A
LL

A
T

IO
N

 
BY

 
T

H
E 

PR
O

JE
C

T
 

LA
N

D
SC

A
PE

 
D

ES
IG

N
ER

, 
M

U
N

IC
IP

A
L 

O
FF

IC
IA

L,
 

O
R 

O
W

N
ER

/O
W

N
ER

'S
R

EP
R

ES
EN

T
A

T
IV

E.
2.

 T
H

E 
LA

N
D

SC
A

PE
 C

O
N

T
R

A
C

T
O

R
 S

H
A

LL
 R

EM
O

V
E 

A
N

D
 R

EP
LA

C
E 

D
Y

IN
G

, D
EA

D
, O

R
 D

EF
EC

T
IV

E 
PL

A
N

T 
M

A
T

ER
IA

L 
A

T 
H

IS
 E

X
PE

N
SE

.
T

H
E 

LA
N

D
SC

A
PE

 C
O

N
T

R
A

C
T

O
R

 S
H

A
LL

 A
LS

O
 B

E 
R

ES
PO

N
SI

BL
E 

FO
R

 A
N

Y
 D

A
M

A
G

ES
 C

A
U

SE
D

 B
Y

 H
IS

 C
O

M
PA

N
Y

'S
 O

PE
R

A
T

IO
N

S.
3.

 A
LL

 R
EP

LA
C

EM
EN

T
 P

LA
N

T
S 

SH
A

LL
 B

E 
O

F 
T

H
E 

SA
M

E 
SP

EC
IE

S 
A

N
D

 S
IZ

E 
A

S 
SP

EC
IF

IE
D

 O
N

 T
H

E 
A

PP
R

O
V

ED
 O

R
 F

IN
A

L 
PL

A
N

T
 L

IS
T

.
R

EP
LA

C
EM

EN
T

S 
R

ES
U

LT
IN

G
 F

R
O

M
 

R
EM

O
V

A
L,

 L
O

SS
, 

O
R

 D
A

M
A

G
E 

D
U

E 
T

O
 O

C
C

U
PA

N
C

Y
 

O
F 

T
H

E 
PR

O
JE

C
T

 
IN

 A
N

Y
 P

A
R

T
,

V
A

N
D

A
LI

SM
, 

PH
Y

SI
C

A
L 

D
A

M
A

G
E 

BY
 A

N
IM

A
LS

, 
V

EH
IC

LE
S,

 E
T

C
., 

A
N

D
 L

O
SS

ES
 D

U
E 

T
O

 C
U

R
T

A
IL

M
EN

T 
O

F 
W

A
T

ER
 B

Y 
LO

C
A

L
A

U
T

H
O

R
IT

IE
S 

SH
A

LL
 B

E 
A

PP
R

O
V

ED
 A

N
D

 P
A

ID
 F

O
R

 B
Y

 T
H

E 
O

W
N

ER
.

4.
 T

H
E 

C
O

N
T

R
A

C
T

O
R

 S
H

A
LL

 IN
ST

R
U

C
T

 T
H

E 
O

W
N

ER
 A

S 
T

O
 T

H
E 

PR
O

PE
R

 C
A

R
E 

A
N

D
 M

A
IN

T
EN

A
N

C
E 

O
F 

A
LL

 P
LA

N
T

IN
G

S.

LA
W

N
 (

SE
E

D
 O

R
 S

O
D

) 
N

O
T

E
S:

1.
 S

EE
D

 M
IX

T
U

R
E 

SH
A

LL
 B

E 
FR

ES
H

, C
LE

A
N

, N
EW

 C
R

O
P 

SE
ED

. 
 S

O
D

 S
H

A
LL

 B
E 

ST
R

O
N

G
LY

 R
O

O
T

ED
, U

N
IF

O
R

M
 I

N
 T

H
IC

K
N

ES
S,

 A
N

D
FR

EE
 O

F 
W

EE
D

S,
 D

IS
EA

SE
, A

N
D

 P
ES

T
S.

2.
 S

EE
D

 O
R

 S
O

D
 S

H
A

LL
 B

E 
PU

R
C

H
A

SE
D

 F
R

O
M

 A
 R

EC
O

G
N

IZ
ED

 D
IS

T
R

IB
U

T
O

R
 A

N
D

 S
H

A
LL

 B
E 

C
O

M
PO

SE
D

 O
F 

T
H

E 
M

IX
 O

R 
BL

EN
D

W
IT

H
IN

 T
H

E 
PR

O
V

ID
ED

 “
SE

ED
 S

PE
C

IF
IC

A
T

IO
N

” 
O

R
 “

SO
D

 S
PE

C
IF

IC
A

T
IO

N
.”

3.
 R

EF
ER

EN
C

E 
LA

N
D

SC
A

PE
 P

LA
N

 F
O

R
 A

R
EA

S 
T

O
 B

E 
SE

ED
ED

 O
R

 L
A

ID
 W

IT
H

 S
O

D
.

4.
 S

EE
D

IN
G

 S
H

A
LL

 N
O

T 
BE

 P
ER

FO
R

M
ED

 I
N

 W
IN

D
Y

 W
EA

T
H

ER
. 

 I
F 

T
H

E 
SE

A
SO

N
 O

F 
T

H
E 

PR
O

JE
C

T
 C

O
M

PL
ET

IO
N

 
PR

O
H

IB
IT

S
PE

R
M

A
N

EN
T 

ST
A

BI
LI

Z
A

T
IO

N
, 

T
EM

PO
R

A
R

Y 
ST

A
BI

LI
Z

A
T

IO
N

 S
H

A
LL

 B
E 

PR
O

V
ID

ED
 I

N
 A

C
C

O
R

D
A

N
C

E 
W

IT
H

 T
H

E 
“T

EM
PO

R
A

R
Y

SE
ED

IN
G

 S
PE

C
IF

IC
A

T
IO

N
.”

5.
 P

R
O

T
EC

T
 N

EW
 L

A
W

N
 A

R
EA

S 
A

G
A

IN
ST

 T
R

ES
PA

SS
IN

G
 W

H
IL

E 
T

H
E 

SE
ED

 IS
 G

ER
M

IN
A

T
IN

G
.  

FU
R

N
IS

H
 A

N
D

 IN
ST

A
LL

 F
EN

C
ES

, S
IG

N
S,

BA
R

R
IE

R
S 

O
R

 A
N

Y 
O

T
H

ER
 N

EC
ES

SA
R

Y 
T

EM
PO

R
A

R
Y 

PR
O

T
EC

T
IV

E 
D

EV
IC

ES
. 

 D
A

M
A

G
E 

R
ES

U
LT

IN
G

 F
R

O
M

 T
R

ES
PA

SS
, 

ER
O

SI
O

N
,

W
A

SH
O

U
T

, S
ET

T
LE

M
EN

T 
O

R 
O

T
H

ER
 C

A
U

SE
S 

SH
A

LL
 B

E 
R

EP
A

IR
ED

 B
Y

 T
H

E 
LA

N
D

SC
A

PE
 C

O
N

T
R

A
C

T
O

R 
A

T
 H

IS
 E

X
PE

N
SE

.  
R

EM
O

V
E

A
LL

 F
EN

C
ES

, S
IG

N
S,

 B
A

R
R

IE
R

S 
O

R
 O

T
H

ER
 T

EM
PO

R
A

R
Y

 P
R

O
T

EC
T

IV
E 

D
EV

IC
ES

 O
N

C
E 

LA
W

N
 H

A
S 

BE
EN

 E
ST

A
BL

IS
H

ED
.

N
O

T
ES

:

1.
FO

R
 C

O
N

T
A

IN
ER

-G
R

O
W

N
 T

R
EE

S,
 U

SE
 F

IN
G

ER
S 

O
R

 S
M

A
LL

 H
A

N
D

 T
O

O
LS

 T
O

 P
U

LL
 T

H
E 

R
O

O
T

S 
O

U
T

 O
F 

T
H

E 
O

U
T

ER
 L

A
Y

ER
 O

F
PO

T
T

IN
G

 S
O

IL
; T

H
EN

 C
U

T
 O

R
 P

U
LL

 A
PA

R
T

 A
N

Y
 R

O
O

T
S 

C
IR

C
LI

N
G

 T
H

E 
PE

R
IM

ET
ER

 O
F 

T
H

E 
C

O
N

T
A

IN
ER

2.
T

H
O

R
O

U
G

H
LY

 S
O

A
K

 T
H

E 
T

R
EE

 R
O

O
T

 B
A

LL
 A

N
D

 A
D

JA
C

EN
T

 P
R

EP
A

R
ED

 S
O

IL
 S

EV
ER

A
L 

T
IM

ES
 D

U
R

IN
G

 T
H

E 
FI

R
ST

 M
O

N
T

H
 A

FT
ER

PL
A

N
T

IN
G

 A
N

D
 R

EG
U

LA
R

LY
 T

H
R

O
U

G
H

O
U

T
 T

H
E 

FO
LL

O
W

IN
G

 T
W

O
 S

U
M

M
ER

S.
3.

SO
IL

 A
M

EN
D

M
EN

T
S:

·
M

O
D

IF
Y

 H
EA

V
Y

 C
LA

Y
 O

R
 S

IL
T

 S
O

IL
S 

(M
O

R
E 

T
H

A
N

 4
0%

 C
LA

Y
 O

R
 S

IL
T

) 
BY

 A
D

D
IN

G
 C

O
M

PO
ST

ED
 P

IN
E 

BA
R

K
 (

U
P 

T
O

 3
0%

 B
Y

V
O

LU
M

E)
 O

R
 G

Y
PS

U
M

·
M

O
D

IF
Y

 E
X

T
R

EM
EL

Y
 S

A
N

D
Y

 S
O

IL
D

S 
(M

O
R

E 
T

H
A

N
 8

5%
 S

A
N

D
) 

BY
 A

D
D

IN
G

 O
R

G
A

N
IC

 M
A

T
T

ER
 A

N
D

/O
R

 D
R

Y
, S

H
R

ED
D

ED
 C

LA
Y

LO
A

M
 U

P 
T

O
 3

0%
 O

F 
T

H
E 

T
O

T
A

L 
M

IX

N
O

T
ES

:

1.
  

FO
R

 C
O

N
T

A
IN

ER
-G

R
O

W
N

 T
R

EE
S,

 U
SE

 F
IN

G
ER

S 
O

R
 S

M
A

LL
 H

A
N

D
 T

O
O

LS
 T

O
 P

U
LL

 T
H

E 
R

O
O

T
S 

O
U

T 
O

F 
T

H
E 

O
U

T
ER

 L
A

Y
ER

 O
F

PO
T

T
IN

G
 S

O
IL

; T
H

EN
 C

U
T

 O
R

 P
U

LL
 A

PA
R

T
 A

N
Y

 R
O

O
T

S 
C

IR
C

LI
N

G
 T

H
E 

PE
R

IM
ET

ER
 O

F 
T

H
E 

C
O

N
T

A
IN

ER
.

2.
 T

H
O

R
O

U
G

H
LY

 S
O

A
K

 T
H

E 
T

R
EE

 R
O

O
T

 B
A

LL
 A

N
D

 A
D

JA
C

EN
T

 P
R

EP
A

R
ED

 S
O

IL
 S

EV
ER

A
L 

T
IM

ES
 D

U
R

IN
G

 T
H

E 
FI

R
ST

 M
O

N
T

H
 A

FT
ER

PL
A

N
T

IN
G

 A
N

D
 R

EG
U

LA
R

LY
 T

H
R

O
U

G
H

O
U

T
 T

H
E 

FO
LL

O
W

IN
G

 T
W

O
 S

U
M

M
ER

S.
3.

  S
O

IL
 A

M
EN

D
M

EN
T

S:
·

M
O

D
IF

Y
 H

EA
V

Y
 C

LA
Y

 O
R 

SI
LT

 S
O

IL
S 

(M
O

R
E 

T
H

A
N

 4
0%

 C
LA

Y
 O

R
 S

IL
T

) 
BY

 A
D

D
IN

G
 C

O
M

PO
ST

ED
 P

IN
E 

BA
R

K
 (

U
P 

T
O

 3
0%

 B
Y

V
O

LU
M

E)
 O

R
 G

Y
PS

U
M

·
M

O
D

IF
Y

 E
X

T
R

EM
EL

Y
 S

A
N

D
Y

 S
O

IL
S 

(M
O

R
E 

T
H

A
N

 8
5%

 S
A

N
D

) 
BY

 A
D

D
IN

G
 O

R
G

A
N

IC
 M

A
T

T
ER

 A
N

D
/O

R
 D

R
Y

, 
SH

R
ED

D
ED

 C
LA

Y
LO

A
M

 U
P 

T
O

 3
0%

 O
F 

T
H

E 
T

O
T

A
L 

M
IX

SP
A

C
IN

G
 C

H
A

R
T

A

R
O

W
 "

A
"

SP
A

C
IN

G
 "

D
"

PL
A

N
T

ED
 O

N
 C

EN
T

ER
 (

SE
E 

SP
A

C
IN

G
 C

H
A

R
T

)

36
" 

O
.C

.

6"
 O

.C
.

8"
 O

.C
.

10
" 

O
.C

.
12

" 
O

.C
.

15
" 

O
.C

18
" 

O
.C

.
24

" 
O

.C
.

30
" 

O
.C

.
30

.0
0"

5.
20

"
6.

93
"

8.
66

"
10

.4
0"

13
.0

0"
15

.6
0"

20
.8

0"
26

.0
0"

D
D

D

N
O

T
 T

O
 S

C
A

LE

N
O

T
ES

:

1.
T

H
O

R
O

U
G

H
LY

 S
O

A
K

 T
H

E 
G

R
O

U
N

D
 C

O
V

ER
 R

O
O

T
 B

A
LL

 A
N

D
 A

D
JA

C
EN

T 
PR

EP
A

R
ED

 S
O

IL
 S

EV
ER

A
L 

T
IM

ES
 D

U
R

IN
G

 T
H

E 
FI

R
ST

 M
O

N
T

H
A

FT
ER

 P
LA

N
T

IN
G

 A
N

D
 R

EG
U

LA
R

LY
 T

H
R

O
U

G
H

O
U

T
 T

H
E 

FO
LL

O
W

IN
G

 T
W

O
 S

U
M

M
ER

S.
2.

SO
IL

 A
M

EN
D

M
EN

T
S:

·
M

O
D

IF
Y

 H
EA

V
Y

 C
LA

Y
 O

R
 S

IL
T

 S
O

IL
D

S 
(M

O
R

E 
T

H
A

N
 4

0%
 C

LA
Y 

O
R

 S
IL

T
) 

BY
 A

D
D

IN
G

 C
O

M
PO

ST
ED

 P
IN

E 
BA

R
K

 (
U

P 
T

O
 3

0%
 B

Y
 V

O
LU

M
E)

 O
R

G
Y

PS
U

M
·

M
O

D
IF

Y
 E

X
T

R
EM

EL
Y

 S
A

N
D

Y
 S

O
IL

D
S 

(M
O

R
E 

T
H

A
N

 8
5%

 S
A

N
D

) 
BY

 A
D

D
IN

G
 O

R
G

A
N

IC
 M

A
T

T
ER

 A
N

D
/O

R 
D

R
Y

, S
H

R
ED

D
ED

 C
LA

Y
 L

O
A

M
 U

P
T

O
 3

0%
 O

F 
T

H
E 

T
O

T
A

L 
M

IX
3.

   
  A

LL
 G

R
O

U
N

D
 C

O
V

ER
 A

R
EA

S 
SH

A
LL

 B
E 

T
R

EA
T

ED
 W

IT
H

 A
 P

R
E-

EM
ER

G
EN

T
 P

ER
 M

A
N

U
FA

C
T

U
R

ER
'S

 S
PE

C
IF

IC
A

T
IO

N
S

2"
 D

O
U

B
LE

S
H

R
ED

D
ED

H
A
R
D

W
O

O
D

 M
U

LC
H

(D
O

 N
O

T 
PL

A
C
E

M
U

LC
H

 A
G

A
IN

S
T

TH
E 

B
A
S
E 

O
F 

TH
E

PL
A
N

T)

G
EN

TL
Y 

PU
LL

 R
O

O
TS

 A
W

A
Y

FR
O

M
 T

O
PS

O
IL

 M
A
S
S
 W

IT
H

FI
N

G
ER

S

B
A
C
K
FI

LL
 S

O
IL

·
1 

PA
R
T 

S
O

IL
 A

M
EN

D
M

EN
T

(B
A
S
ED

 O
N

 S
O

IL
 T

ES
T)

·
3 

PA
R
TS

 N
A
TI

V
E 

TO
PS

O
IL

U
N

D
IS

TU
R
B
ED

 S
U

B
G

R
A
D

E

G
R

O
U

N
D

 C
O

V
ER

/P
ER

EN
N

IA
L/

A
N

N
U

A
L

PL
A

N
T

IN
G

 D
ET

A
IL

N
O

T
 T

O
 S

C
A

LED
EC

ID
U

O
U

S 
A

N
D

 E
V

ER
G

R
EE

N
 S

H
R

U
B 

PL
A

N
T

IN
G

 D
ET

A
IL

3

4

4"
 T

O
 6

" 
D

EE
PE

R
T

H
A

N
 R

O
O

T
 B

A
LL

X
 =

 M
IN

IM
U

M
 D

IA
M

ET
ER

O
F 

PR
EP

A
R

ED
 S

O
IL

 F
O

R
T

R
EE

S.
 S

EE
 T

A
BL

E

D
EC

ID
U

O
U

S 
T

R
EE

 P
LA

N
T

IN
G

 D
ET

A
IL

N
O

T
 T

O
 S

C
A

LE
C

O
N

IF
ER

O
U

S 
T

R
EE

 P
LA

N
T

IN
G

 D
ET

A
IL

N
O

T
 T

O
 S

C
A

LE

12
" 

T
O

 1
8"

 (
FO

R
LA

R
G

ER
 S

H
R

U
B

R
O

O
T

 B
A

LL
S

M
A

K
E 

D
EP

T
H

M
IN

. 4
" 

D
EE

PE
R

T
H

A
N

 B
A

LL
)

BA
LL

ED
 A

N
D

 B
U

R
LA

PP
ED

 P
LA

N
T

PR
EP

A
R

E 
SO

IL
 IN

 T
H

E 
EN

T
IR

E 
BE

D
 U

SI
N

G
 P

R
O

C
ED

U
R

ES
 O

U
T

LI
N

ED
 IN

 T
A

BL
E 

(X
)

8"
 T

O
 1

2"

C
O

N
T

A
IN

ER
 P

LA
N

T

N
O

T
 T

O
 S

C
A

LE

PR
O

V
ID

E 
A

 (
48

")
 IN

C
H

 R
IG

ID
 T

R
EE

BA
R

K
 P

R
O

T
EC

T
O

R
 A

R
O

U
N

D
 T

H
E

T
R

U
N

K
 O

F 
C

A
N

O
PY

 T
R

EE
S 

A
N

D
U

N
D

ER
ST

O
R

Y
 T

R
EE

S 
FO

R
 D

EE
R

PR
O

T
EC

T
IO

N
.

"T
R

EE
 B

A
R

K
 P

R
O

T
EC

T
O

R
S 

- 
BG

48
"

(A
.M

. L
EO

N
A

R
D

 H
O

R
T

IC
U

LT
U

R
A

L
SU

PP
LY

) 
A

T
 8

00
-4

33
-0

63
3 

O
R

A
PP

R
O

V
ED

 E
Q

U
A

L

M
A

R
K

 N
O

R
T

H
 S

ID
E 

O
F 

T
R

EE
 IN

T
H

E 
N

U
R

SE
R

Y
 A

N
D

 L
O

C
A

T
E

T
O

 T
H

E 
N

O
R

T
H

 IN
 T

H
E 

FI
EL

D
.

W
H

EN
 IR

R
IG

A
T

IO
N

 IS
 N

O
T

PR
O

V
ID

ED
 S

PE
C

IF
IC

A
LL

Y
 F

O
R

T
H

E 
T

R
EE

, T
R

EE
G

A
T

O
R

 B
A

G
S

A
R

E 
R

EC
O

M
M

EN
D

ED
 T

O
 H

EL
P

FA
C

IL
IT

A
T

E 
PR

O
PE

R
 W

A
T

ER
IN

G
D

U
R

IN
G

 T
H

E 
FI

R
ST

 T
W

O
 Y

EA
R

S.

W
IR

E 
BA

SK
ET

 T
O

 R
EM

O
V

ED

C
U

T
 O

FF
 T

W
IN

E,
 O

PE
N

BU
R

LA
P,

 C
U

T
 A

S 
LO

W
 A

S
PO

SS
IB

LE
 A

N
D

 R
EM

O
V

E.

D
IG

 W
ID

E 
SH

A
LL

O
W

 H
O

LE
W

IT
H

 T
A

PE
R

ED
 S

ID
ES

T
A

M
P 

SO
IL

 S
O

LI
D

LY
 A

R
O

U
N

D
BA

SE
 O

F 
R

O
O

T
 B

A
LL

SE
T

 R
O

O
T

 B
A

LL
 O

N
 U

N
D

IS
T

U
R

BE
D

SO
IL

 P
A

D
 IN

 B
O

T
T

O
M

 O
F 

H
O

LE
.

SO
IL

 T
O

 B
E 

PR
EP

A
R

ED
PE

R
 N

O
T

ES
 P

R
IO

R
 T

O
PL

A
N

T
IN

G
 T

R
EE

.

M
A

X
IM

U
M

 3
" 

O
F 

SH
R

ED
D

ED
BA

R
K

 M
U

LC
H

. D
O

 N
O

T
PL

A
C

E 
M

U
LC

H
 W

IT
H

IN
 6

"
O

F 
T

R
EE

 T
R

U
N

K
.

FO
R

M
 E

A
R

T
H

 W
A

T
ER

IN
G

SA
U

C
ER

 A
R

O
U

N
D

 T
R

EE
A

T
 E

D
G

E 
O

F 
R

O
O

T
 B

A
LL

.

SE
T

 T
O

P 
O

F 
T

R
U

E 
R

O
O

T
BA

LL
 1

" 
T

O
 2

" 
A

BO
V

E
FI

N
IS

H
ED

 G
R

A
D

E 
O

R
SE

V
ER

A
L 

IN
C

H
ES

 H
IG

H
ER

 IN
PO

O
R

LY
 D

R
A

IN
IN

G
 S

O
IL

S.

SE
C

U
R

E 
ST

A
K

ES
 T

O
 T

R
EE

U
SI

N
G

 2
 A

R
BO

R
T

IE
S.

IN
ST

A
LL

 (
2)

  3
" 

di
a.

 8
' L

O
N

G
C

ED
A

R
 P

O
ST

 IN
 T

O
U

N
D

IS
T

U
R

BE
D

 S
O

IL
, T

H
EN

BA
C

K
FI

LL
.  

ST
A

K
ES

 S
H

A
LL

K
EE

P 
T

R
EE

 V
ER

T
IC

A
L 

A
N

D
PL

U
M

B.

A
V

O
ID

 P
U

R
C

H
A

SI
N

G
 T

R
EE

S 
W

IT
H

 T
W

O
LE

A
D

ER
S 

O
R

 R
EM

O
V

E 
O

N
E 

A
T

 P
LA

N
T

IN
G

.
O

T
H

ER
W

IS
E 

D
O

 N
O

T
 P

R
U

N
E 

T
R

EE
 A

T
PL

A
N

T
IN

G
 E

X
C

EP
T

 F
O

R
 S

PE
C

IF
IC

ST
R

U
C

T
U

R
A

L 
C

O
R

R
EC

T
IO

N
S.

M
A

R
K

 N
O

R
T

H
 S

ID
E 

O
F 

T
R

EE
 IN

T
H

E 
N

U
R

SE
R

Y
 A

N
D

 L
O

C
A

T
E 

T
O

T
H

E 
N

O
R

T
H

 IN
 T

H
E 

FI
EL

D
.

W
IR

E 
BA

SK
ET

 T
O

 R
EM

O
V

ED

C
U

T
 O

FF
 T

W
IN

E,
 O

PE
N

 B
U

R
LA

P,
C

U
T

 A
S 

LO
W

 A
S 

PO
SS

IB
LE

 A
N

D
R

EM
O

V
E.

X
 =

 M
IN

IM
U

M
 W

ID
T

H
O

F 
PR

EP
A

R
ED

 S
O

IL
FO

R
 T

R
EE

S.
 S

EE
 T

A
BL

E

D
IG

 W
ID

E 
SH

A
LL

O
W

 H
O

LE
W

IT
H

 T
A

PE
R

ED
 S

ID
ES

T
A

M
P 

SO
IL

 S
O

LI
D

LY
 A

R
O

U
N

D
BA

SE
 O

F 
R

O
O

T
 B

A
LL

SE
T

 R
O

O
T

 B
A

LL
 O

N
 U

N
D

IS
T

U
R

BE
D

SO
IL

 P
A

D
 IN

 B
O

T
T

O
M

 O
F 

H
O

LE
.

A
V

O
ID

 P
U

R
C

H
A

SI
N

G
 T

R
EE

S 
W

IT
H

T
W

O
 L

EA
D

ER
S 

O
R

 R
EM

O
V

E 
O

N
E

A
T

 P
LA

N
T

IN
G

. O
T

H
ER

W
IS

E 
D

O
N

O
T

 P
R

U
N

E 
T

R
EE

 A
T

 P
LA

N
T

IN
G

EX
C

EP
T

 F
O

R
 S

PE
C

IF
IC

ST
R

U
C

T
U

R
A

L 
C

O
R

R
EC

T
IO

N
S.

IN
ST

A
LL

 (
2)

  3
" 

di
a.

 8
' L

O
N

G
 C

ED
A

R
PO

ST
 IN

 T
O

 U
N

D
IS

T
U

R
BE

D
 S

O
IL

,
T

H
EN

 B
A

C
K

FI
LL

.  
ST

A
K

ES
 S

H
A

LL
K

EE
P 

T
R

EE
 V

ER
T

IC
A

L 
A

N
D

 P
LU

M
B.

SE
C

U
R

E 
ST

A
K

ES
 T

O
 T

R
EE

 U
SI

N
G

2 
A

R
BO

R
T

IE
S.

SE
T

 T
O

P 
O

F 
T

R
U

E 
R

O
O

T
 B

A
LL

 1
"

T
O

 2
" 

A
BO

V
E 

FI
N

IS
H

ED
 G

R
A

D
E

O
R

 S
EV

ER
A

L 
IN

C
H

ES
 H

IG
H

ER
 IN

PO
O

R
LY

 D
R

A
IN

IN
G

 S
O

IL
S.

FO
R

M
 E

A
R

T
H

 W
A

T
ER

IN
G

SA
U

C
ER

 A
R

O
U

N
D

 T
R

EE
 A

T
 E

D
G

E
O

F 
R

O
O

T
 B

A
LL

.

M
A

X
IM

U
M

 3
" 

O
F 

SH
R

ED
D

ED
 B

A
R

K
M

U
LC

H
. D

O
 N

O
T

 P
LA

C
E 

M
U

LC
H

W
IT

H
IN

 6
" 

O
F 

T
R

EE
 T

R
U

N
K

.

SO
IL

 T
O

 B
E 

PR
EP

A
R

ED
 P

ER
 N

O
T

ES
PR

IO
R

 T
O

 P
LA

N
T

IN
G

 T
R

EE
.

4"
 T

O
 6

" 
D

EE
PE

R
T

H
A

N
 R

O
O

T
 B

A
LL

PL
A

C
E 

SH
R

U
B 

IN
 H

O
LE

 R
EM

O
V

E 
A

S 
M

U
C

H
 B

U
R

LA
P

A
S 

PO
SS

IB
LE

 F
R

O
M

 R
O

O
T

 B
A

LL
.  

C
O

M
PL

ET
EL

Y
R

EM
O

V
E 

A
LL

 P
LA

ST
IC

 O
R

 N
Y

LO
N

 S
T

R
IN

G
. S

ET
R

O
O

T
 B

A
LL

 F
LU

SH
 W

IT
H

 F
IN

IS
H

ED
 G

R
A

D
E

M
A

X
IM

U
M

 2
" 

M
U

LC
H

, D
O

 N
O

T
 P

U
T

M
U

LC
H

 W
IT

H
IN

 4
" 

O
F 

BA
SE

 O
F 

PL
A

N
T

.

SO
IL

 S
U

R
FA

C
E 

R
O

U
G

H
EN

ED
T

O
 B

IN
D

 W
IT

H
 N

EW
 S

O
IL

S

SO
IL

 T
O

 B
E 

PR
EP

A
R

ED
 P

ER
N

O
T

ES
 P

R
IO

R
 T

O
PL

A
N

T
IN

G
 T

R
EE

. LA
W

N
 O

R
PA

V
IN

G

EX
IS

T
IN

G
SU

BG
R

A
D

E

SO
IL

 T
O

 B
E 

PR
EP

A
R

ED
 P

ER
 T

A
BL

E
PR

IO
R

 T
O

 P
LA

N
T

IN
G

 T
R

EE
.

U
SE

 F
IN

G
ER

S 
O

R
 S

M
A

LL
H

A
N

D
 T

O
O

L 
T

O
 P

U
LL

R
O

O
T

S 
O

U
T

 O
F 

BA
LL

.

A
R

BO
R

T
IE

 D
ET

A
IL

N
O

T
 T

O
 S

C
A

LE

A
R

BO
R

 T
IE

N
A

IL
ED

 T
O

ST
A

K
E

A
R

BO
R

 T
IE

ST
A

K
ES

T
R

EE

T
R

EE

IN
ST

A
LL

A
T

IO
N

 G
U

ID
EL

IN
ES

:
1.

LO
O

P 
T

IE
 A

R
O

U
N

D
 T

R
EE

 A
N

D
 N

A
IL

 T
O

 C
ED

A
R

ST
A

K
E.

2.
R

EM
O

V
E 

A
LL

 S
T

A
K

IN
G

 A
N

D
 T

IE
S 

A
T

 E
N

D
 O

F 
FI

R
ST

G
R

O
W

IN
G

 S
EA

SO
N

.

3.
FO

LD
 E

N
D

S 
O

F 
A

R
BO

R
T

IE
 B

A
C

K
. S

EC
U

R
E 

T
O

 S
T

A
K

ES
W

IT
H

 1
" 

G
A

LV
A

N
IZ

ED
 R

O
O

FI
N

G
 N

A
IL

 O
R

 U
SE

 A
K

N
O

T
.

4.
C

O
N

SU
LT

 L
A

N
D

SC
A

PE
 A

R
C

H
IT

EC
T

 F
O

R
 S

T
A

K
IN

G
O

F 
T

R
EE

S 
LA

R
G

ER
 T

H
A

N
 6

".

5.
SO

U
R

C
ES

 IN
C

LU
D

E:
G

EM
PL

ER
S 

1-
80

0-
33

2-
67

44
 o

r 
G

EM
PL

ER
S.

C
O

M
C

SP
 O

U
T

D
O

O
R

S 
1-

80
0-

59
2-

69
40

 o
r 

C
SP

O
U

T
D

O
O

R
S.

C
O

M

W
H

EN
 IR

R
IG

A
T

IO
N

 IS
 N

O
T

PR
O

V
ID

ED
 S

PE
C

IF
IC

A
LL

Y
 F

O
R

T
H

E 
T

R
EE

, T
R

EE
G

A
T

O
R

 JR
. B

A
G

S
A

R
E 

R
EC

O
M

M
EN

D
ED

 T
O

 H
EL

P
FA

C
IL

IT
A

T
E 

PR
O

PE
R

 W
A

T
ER

IN
G

D
U

R
IN

G
 T

H
E 

FI
R

ST
 T

W
O

 Y
EA

R
S.

2
1

N
O

T
ES

:

1.
FO

R
 T

H
E 

C
O

N
T

A
IN

ER
-G

R
O

W
N

 S
H

R
U

BS
,

U
SE

 F
IN

G
ER

S 
O

R
 S

M
A

LL
 H

A
N

D
 T

O
O

L 
T

O
PU

LL
 T

H
E 

R
O

O
T

S 
O

U
T 

O
F 

T
H

E 
O

U
T

ER
LA

Y
ER

 O
F 

PO
T

T
IN

G
 S

O
IL

; T
H

EN
 C

U
T

 O
R

PU
LL

 A
PA

R
T 

A
N

Y 
R

O
O

T
S 

C
IR

C
LI

N
G

 T
H

E
PE

R
IM

ET
ER

 O
F 

T
H

E 
C

O
N

T
A

IN
ER

.
2.

T
H

O
R

O
U

G
H

LY
 S

O
A

K
 T

H
E 

SH
R

U
B 

R
O

O
T

BA
LL

 
A

N
D

 
A

D
JA

C
EN

T
 

PR
EP

A
R

ED
 

SO
IL

SE
V

ER
A

L 
T

IM
ES

 
D

U
R

IN
G

 
T

H
E 

FI
R

ST
M

O
N

T
H

 
A

FT
ER

 
PL

A
N

T
IN

G
 

A
N

D
R

EG
U

LA
R

LY
 

T
H

R
O

U
G

H
O

U
T

 
T

H
E

FO
LL

O
W

IN
G

 T
W

O
 S

U
M

M
ER

S.
·

M
O

D
IF

Y
 H

EA
V

Y
 C

LA
Y

 O
R

 S
IL

T
 S

O
IL

S
(M

O
R

E 
T

H
A

N
 4

0%
 C

LA
Y 

O
R

 S
IL

T
) 

BY
A

D
D

IN
G

 C
O

M
PO

ST
ED

 P
IN

E 
BA

R
K

 (
U

P
T

O
 3

0%
 B

Y
 V

O
LU

M
E)

 O
R

 G
Y

PS
U

M
·
 

M
O

D
IF

Y
 

EX
T

R
EM

EL
Y

 
SA

N
D

Y
 

SO
IL

S
(M

O
R

E 
T

H
A

N
 

85
%

 
SA

N
D

) 
BY

 
A

D
D

IN
G

O
R

G
A

N
IC

 M
A

T
T

ER
 A

N
D

/O
R 

D
R

Y
, 

SH
R

ED
D

ED
C

LA
Y

 L
O

A
M

 U
P 

T
O

 3
0%

 O
F 

T
H

E 
T

O
T

A
L

5
IR

R
IG

A
T

IO
N

 D
U

R
IN

G
 E

ST
A

B
LI

SH
M

E
N

T
SI

Z
E

 A
T

P
LA

N
T

IN
G

IR
R

IG
A

T
IO

N
 F

O
R

 V
IT

A
LI

T
Y

IR
R

IG
A

T
IO

N
 F

O
R

 S
U

R
V

IV
A

L

< 
2"

 C
A

LI
PE

R
D

A
IL

Y
 F

O
R

 T
W

O
 W

EE
K

S,
 E

V
ER

Y
 O

T
H

ER
 D

A
Y

 F
O

R
T

W
O

 M
O

N
T

H
S,

 W
EE

K
LY

 U
N

T
IL

 E
ST

A
BL

IS
H

ED
T

W
O

 T
O

 T
H

R
EE

 T
IM

ES
 W

EE
K

LY
FO

R
 T

W
O

 T
O

 T
H

R
EE

 M
O

N
T

H
S

2"
-4

 C
A

LI
PE

R
D

A
IL

Y
 F

O
R

 O
N

E 
M

O
N

T
H

, E
V

ER
Y

 O
T

H
ER

 D
A

Y
 F

O
R

T
H

R
EE

 M
O

N
T

H
S,

 W
EE

K
LY

 U
N

T
IL

 E
ST

A
BL

IS
H

ED
T

W
O

 T
O

 T
H

R
EE

 T
IM

ES
 W

EE
K

LY
FO

R
 T

H
R

EE
 T

O
 F

O
U

R
 M

O
N

T
H

S

4 
>"

 C
A

LI
PE

R
D

A
IL

Y
 F

O
R

 S
IX

 W
EE

K
S,

 E
V

ER
Y

 O
T

H
ER

 D
A

Y
 F

O
R

 F
IV

E
M

O
N

T
H

S,
 W

EE
K

LY
 U

N
T

IL
 E

ST
A

BL
IS

H
ED

T
W

IC
E 

W
EE

K
LY

 F
O

R
 F

O
U

R
 T

O
 F

IV
E

M
O

N
T

H
S

T
A

BL
E 

N
O

T
ES

:
1.

 A
T

 E
A

C
H

 IR
R

IG
A

T
IO

N
, A

PP
LY

 T
W

O
 T

O
 T

H
R

EE
 G

A
LL

O
N

S 
PE

R
 IN

C
H

 T
R

U
N

K
 C

A
LI

PE
R

 T
O

 T
H

E 
R

O
O

T
 B

A
LL

 S
U

R
FA

C
E.

A
PP

LY
 IT

 IN
 A

 M
A

N
N

ER
 S

O
 A

LL
 W

A
T

ER
 S

O
A

K
S 

T
H

E 
EN

T
IR

E 
R

O
O

T
 B

A
LL

. D
O

 N
O

T
 W

A
T

ER
 IF

 R
O

O
T

 B
A

LL
 IS

W
ET

/S
A

T
U

R
A

T
ED

 O
N

 T
H

E 
IR

R
IG

A
T

IO
N

 D
A

Y
.

2.
 W

H
EN

 IR
R

IG
A

T
IN

G
 F

O
R

 V
IT

A
LI

T
Y

, D
EL

ET
E 

D
A

IL
Y

 IR
R

IG
A

T
IO

N
 W

H
EN

 P
LA

N
T

IN
G

 IN
 W

IN
T

ER
 O

R
 W

H
EN

 P
LA

N
T

IN
G

 IN
C

O
O

L 
C

LI
M

A
T

ES
. E

ST
A

BL
IS

H
M

EN
T

 T
A

K
ES

 T
H

R
EE

 T
O

 F
O

U
R

 M
O

N
T

H
S 

PE
R

 IN
C

H
 T

R
U

N
K

 C
A

LI
PE

R
. N

EV
ER

 A
PP

LY
IR

R
IG

A
T

IO
N

 IF
 T

H
E 

SO
IL

 IS
 S

A
T

U
R

A
T

ED
.

3.
 W

H
EN

 IR
R

IG
A

T
IO

N
 F

O
R

 S
U

R
V

IV
A

L,
 T

R
EE

S 
T

A
K

E 
M

U
C

H
 L

O
N

G
ER

 T
O

 E
ST

A
BL

IS
H

 T
H

A
N

 R
EG

U
LA

R
LY

 IR
R

IG
A

T
ED

 T
R

EE
S.

IR
R

IG
A

T
IO

N
 M

A
Y

 B
E 

R
EQ

U
IR

ED
 IN

 T
H

E 
N

O
R

M
A

L 
H

O
T

, D
R

Y
 P

O
R

T
IO

N
S 

O
F 

T
H

E 
FO

LL
O

W
IN

G
 Y

EA
R

.



1 

ST
A N

DA
RD

S 
AN

D 
GU

ID
EL

IN
ES

 FO
R 

LA
ND

 U
SE

 
 

59
9 

M
ID

DL
E 

CO
UN

TR
Y 

RO
AD

 
 

Ap
ri l

 3
, 2

02
5 

 
St

an
da

rd
 (S

)/
Gu

id
el

in
e 

(G
)  

Ex
pl

an
at

io
n 

an
d 

Do
cu

m
en

t P
ag

e 
Re

fe
re

nc
e  

  
5.

3.
3.

1 
Sa

ni
ta

ry
 W

as
te

, N
itr

at
e -

Ni
tr

og
en

 a
nd

 O
th

er
 C

he
m

ica
ls 

of
 C

on
ce

rn
 

S 
5.

3.
3.

1.
1 

Su
ffo

lk
 C

ou
nt

y 
Sa

ni
ta

ry
 C

od
e 

Ar
tic

le
 6

 
co

m
pl

ia
nc

e 

Al
l d

ev
el

op
m

en
t p

ro
po

sa
ls 

su
bj

ec
t t

o 
Ar

tic
le

 6
 o

f 
th

e 
Su

ffo
lk

 C
ou

nt
y 

Sa
ni

ta
ry

 C
od

e 
sh

al
l m

ee
t 

al
l 

ap
pl

ica
bl

e 
re

qu
ire

m
en

ts
 o

f 
th

e 
Su

ffo
lk 

Co
un

ty
 

De
pa

rtm
en

t 
of

 H
ea

lth
 S

er
vi

ce
s. 

Pr
oj

ec
ts

 w
hi

ch
 

re
qu

ire
 v

ar
ia

nc
es

 fr
om

 th
e 

pr
ov

isi
on

s o
f A

rti
cle

 6
 

sh
al

l m
ee

t a
ll 

re
qu

ire
m

en
ts

 o
f t

he
 S

uf
fo

lk 
Co

un
ty

 
De

pa
rtm

en
t o

f H
ea

lth
 S

er
vi

ce
's 

Bo
ar

d 
of

 R
ev

ie
w

 in
 

or
de

r t
o 

be
 d

ee
m

ed
 to

 h
av

e 
m

et
 th

e 
re

qu
ire

m
en

ts
 

of
 th

is 
st

an
da

rd
. 

Al
l w

as
te

w
at

er
 g

en
er

at
ed

 o
ns

ite
 w

ill
 b

e 
tre

at
ed

 a
nd

 r
ec

ha
rg

ed
 in

to
 t

he
 g

ro
un

d 
us

in
g 

fa
cil

iti
es

 t
ha

t 
co

nf
or

m
 t

o 
Su

ffo
lk

 C
ou

nt
y 

Sa
ni

ta
ry

 C
od

e 
( S

CS
C)

 A
rti

cle
 6

 
re

qu
ire

m
en

ts
. T

he
 e

xis
tin

g 
on

sit
e 

co
nv

en
tio

na
l s

ep
tic

 sy
st

em
 w

ill
 b

e 
re

pl
ac

ed
 w

ith
 a

 n
ew

 In
no

va
tiv

e/
Al

te
rn

at
iv

e 
O

ns
ite

 W
as

te
w

at
er

 T
re

at
m

en
t S

ys
te

m
 (I

/A
 O

W
TS

). 
 

 Th
e 

pr
op

os
ed

 a
ct

io
n 

sit
e 

is 
lo

ca
te

d 
in

 th
e 

Ce
nt

ra
l P

in
e 

Ba
rr

en
s C

om
pa

tib
le

 G
ro

w
th

 A
re

a 
(C

GA
), 

Ce
nt

ra
l S

uf
fo

lk 
Sp

ec
ia

l G
ro

un
dw

at
er

 P
ro

te
ct

io
n 

Ar
ea

 (S
GP

A)
, a

nd
 Su

ffo
lk 

Co
un

ty
 D

ep
ar

tm
en

t o
f H

ea
lth

 S
er

vic
es

 (S
CD

HS
) G

ro
un

dw
at

er
 M

an
ag

em
en

t Z
on

e 
III

 (G
M

Z 
III

). 
Un

de
r G

M
Z 

III
 st

an
da

rd
s, 

th
e 

pr
oj

ec
t i

s p
er

m
itt

ed
 to

 u
se

 c
on

ve
nt

io
na

l 
on

sit
e 

se
pt

ic 
sy

st
em

s w
he

n 
th

e 
to

ta
l d

en
sit

y 
lo

ad
 o

f t
he

 la
nd

 u
se

 is
 ≤

43
2 

gp
d 

ba
se

d 
on

 3
00

 g
pd

/a
cr

e 
(4

3,
56

0 
SF

). 
Th

e 
to

ta
l c

om
bi

ne
d 

de
ns

ity
 lo

ad
 fr

om
 th

e 
pr

op
os

ed
 

pr
oj

ec
t, 

as
su

m
in

g 
30

 se
at

s i
n 

th
e 

pr
op

os
ed

 S
ta

rb
uc

ks
, h

as
 b

ee
n 

es
tim

at
ed

 to
 b

e 
ju

st
 3

00
 g

pd
 (1

0 
gp

d/
se

at
); 

th
er

ef
or

e,
 co

nf
or

m
in

g 
w

ith
 S

CS
C 

Ar
tic

le
 6

 fl
ow

 st
an

da
rd

s 
fo

r i
nd

iv
id

ua
l o

ns
ite

 se
pt

ic 
sy

st
em

s. 
 Th

e 
pr

op
os

ed
 I/

A 
sa

ni
ta

ry
 sy

st
em

s, 
ho

w
ev

er
, w

ill
 p

ro
vi

de
 a 

su
pe

rio
r l

ev
el

 o
f t

re
at

m
en

t c
om

pa
re

d 
to

 th
e 

ex
ist

in
g o

ns
ite

 co
nv

en
tio

na
l 

se
pt

ic 
sy

st
em

s w
ith

 a
 to

ta
l a

nt
ici

pa
te

d 
ni

tro
ge

n 
di

sc
ha

rg
e 

co
nc

en
tr

at
io

n 
th

at
 is

 m
in

im
al

 b
as

ed
 o

n 
SC

DH
S 

de
ns

ity
 st

an
da

rd
s (

35
-3

6%
 o

f t
he

 u
pp

er
 li

m
it)

.  
Th

e 
sit

in
g 

an
d 

de
sig

n 
of

 th
e 

pr
op

os
ed

 I/
A 

OW
TS

 w
ill

 b
e 

co
ns

ist
en

t w
ith

 a
ll 

ap
pl

ica
bl

e 
st

an
da

rd
s. 

S 
5.

3.
3.

1.
2 

Se
w

ag
e 

tr
ea

tm
en

t p
la

nt
 

di
sc

ha
rg

e 

W
he

re
 d

ee
m

ed
 p

ra
ct

ica
l b

y 
th

e 
Co

un
ty

 o
r 

St
at

e,
 

se
w

ag
e 

tr
ea

tm
en

t p
la

nt
 d

isc
ha

rg
e 

sh
al

l b
e 

ou
ts

id
e 

an
d 

do
w

ng
ra

di
en

t 
of

 t
he

 C
en

tr
al

 P
in

e 
Ba

rr
en

s. 
Tr

ea
tm

en
t s

ys
te

m
s t

ha
t a

re
 a

pp
ro

ve
d 

by
 th

e 
Ne

w
 

Yo
rk

 
St

at
e 

De
pa

rt
m

en
t 

of
 

En
vi

ro
nm

en
ta

l 
Co

ns
er

va
tio

n 
or

 th
e 

Su
ffo

lk 
Co

un
ty

 D
ep

ar
tm

en
t o

f 
He

al
th

 S
er

vi
ce

s 
m

ay
 b

e 
us

ed
 in

 li
eu

 o
f a

 s
ew

ag
e 

tr
e a

tm
en

t p
la

nt
. 

Th
e 

Pr
op

os
ed

 A
ct

io
n 

w
ill 

co
nf

or
m

 to
 SC

SC
 A

rt
icl

e 
6 

re
qu

ire
m

en
ts

, s
o 

th
at

 a
n 

ST
P 

is 
no

t n
ec

es
sa

ry
. I

t i
s a

ck
no

w
le

dg
ed

 th
at

 th
e 

pr
oj

ec
t’s

 e
ffl

ue
nt

 w
ill

 b
e 

re
ch

ar
ge

d 
w

ith
in

 
th

e 
CG

A 
an

d 
SG

PA
. H

ow
ev

er
, t

he
 si

te
’s 

pr
op

os
ed

 I/
A 

O
W

TS
s w

ill
 b

e 
de

sig
ne

d,
 si

te
d 

an
d 

in
st

al
le

d 
in

 c
on

fo
rm

an
ce

 w
ith

 a
ll 

SC
SC

 A
rt

icl
e 

6 
an

d 
ot

he
r a

pp
lic

ab
le

 S
CD

HS
 

re
qu

ire
m

en
ts

, t
he

re
by

 a
ss

ur
in

g 
th

at
 li

tt
le

 im
pa

ct
 to

 u
nd

er
ly

in
g 

gr
ou

nd
w

at
er

 q
ua

lit
y 

w
ill

 o
cc

ur
. A

s p
re

vio
us

ly 
no

te
d,

 th
e 

pr
op

os
ed

 a
ct

io
n 

in
vo

lve
s t

he
 a

ba
nd

on
m

en
t o

f 
th

e 
ex

ist
in

g 
on

sit
e 

co
nv

en
tio

na
l s

ep
tic

 sy
st

em
 in

 a
cc

or
da

nc
e 

w
ith

 SC
DH

S 
re

qu
ire

m
en

ts
 a

nd
 re

pl
ac

em
en

t o
f t

hi
s s

ys
te

m
 w

ith
 a

n 
I/A

 O
W

TS
 w

hi
ch

 w
ill

 p
ro

vi
de

 a
 su

pe
rio

r 
le

ve
l o

f t
re

at
m

en
t i

nc
lu

di
ng

 th
e 

re
du

ct
io

n 
of

 n
itr

og
en

 lo
ad

in
g.

  O
ve

ra
ll w

as
te

w
at

er
 d

isc
ha

rg
e 

on
 th

e 
1.

44
-a

cr
e 

pr
op

er
ty

 is
 m

in
im

al
 a

t j
us

t 3
00

 g
pd

 p
er

 d
ay

.  

S 
5.

3.
3.

1.
3 

Su
ffo

lk
 C

ou
nt

y 
Sa

ni
ta

ry
 

Co
de

 A
rt

icl
es

 7
 

an
d 

12
 

co
m

pl
ia

nc
e 

Al
l p

ro
je

ct
s 

m
us

t 
co

m
pl

y 
w

ith
 t

he
 p

ro
vi

sio
ns

 o
f 

Ar
tic

le
s 

7 
an

d 
12

 o
f 

th
e 

Su
ffo

lk
 C

ou
nt

y 
Sa

ni
ta

ry
 

Co
de

, 
in

cl
ud

in
g 

an
y 

pr
ov

isi
on

s 
fo

r 
va

ria
nc

es
 o

r 
w

ai
ve

rs
 if

 n
ee

de
d,

 an
d 

al
l a

pp
lic

ab
le

 st
at

e l
aw

s a
nd

 
re

gu
la

tio
ns

 in
 o

rd
er

 t
o 

en
su

re
 t

ha
t 

al
l n

ec
es

sa
ry

 
w

at
er

 
re

so
ur

ce
 

an
d 

w
as

te
w

at
er

 
m

an
ag

em
en

t 
in

fra
st

ru
ct

ur
e 

sh
al

l b
e 

in
 p

la
ce

 p
rio

r t
o,

 o
r a

s p
ar

t 
of

, t
he

 co
m

m
en

ce
m

en
t o

f c
on

st
ru

ct
io

n.
 

Th
es

e 
re

gu
la

tio
ns

 co
nc

er
n 

w
at

er
 p

ol
lu

tio
n 

co
nt

ro
l (

Ar
tic

le
 7

) a
nd

 st
or

ag
e 

of
 h

az
ar

do
us

 o
r t

ox
ic 

m
at

er
ia

ls 
as

so
cia

te
d 

w
ith

 in
du

st
ria

l  u
se

 (A
rt

icl
e 

12
). 

 T
he

 p
ro

po
se

d 
ac

tio
n 

in
vo

lv
es

 a
 ch

an
ge

 o
f z

on
e 

to
 a

llo
w

 fo
r t

he
 co

m
m

er
cia

l b
ui

ld
in

g 
to

 b
e 

op
er

at
ed

 b
y S

ta
rb

uc
ks

.  
No

 st
or

ag
e 

or
 u

se
 o

f h
az

ar
do

us
 o

r t
ox

ic 
m

at
er

ia
ls 

w
ill 

oc
cu

r i
n 

co
nn

ec
tio

n 
w

ith
 th

e 
pr

op
os

ed
 u

se
.  

 Th
e 

su
bj

ec
t s

ite
 is

 cu
rr

en
tly

 fu
lly

 d
ev

el
op

ed
 w

ith
 a

 b
an

k 
bu

ild
in

g 
th

at
 h

as
 n

ot
 b

ee
n 

oc
cu

pi
ed

 si
nc

e 
20

19
.  T

he
 p

ro
po

se
d 

ac
tio

n 
sit

e 
is 

no
t w

ith
in

 a
ny

 p
ub

lic
 W

at
er

 Su
pp

ly
 

Se
ns

iti
ve

 A
re

a 
w

hi
ch

 is
 d

ef
in

ed
 b

y A
rt

icl
e 

7 
as

 “a
re

as
 in

 cl
os

e 
pr

ox
im

ity
 to

 e
xis

tin
g 

or
 id

en
tif

ie
d 

fu
tu

re
 p

ub
lic

 w
at

er
 su

pp
ly

 w
el

lfi
el

ds
” w

ith
 “c

lo
se

 p
ro

xim
ity

” d
ef

in
ed

 a
s 

“w
ith

in
 1

,5
00

 fe
et

 u
pg

ra
di

en
t o

r 5
00

 fe
et

 d
ow

ng
ra

di
en

t o
f p

ub
lic

 w
at

er
 s

up
pl

y 
w

el
ls 

sc
re

en
ed

 in
 th

e 
Up

pe
r g

la
cia

l a
qu

ife
r.”

  B
as

ed
 o

n 
an

 a
ss

es
sm

en
t o

f t
he

 c
lo

se
st

 
do

m
es

tic
 su

pp
ly

 w
el

ls 
an

d 
co

m
m

un
ity

 su
pp

ly
 w

el
ls 

(M
id

dl
e 

Isl
an

d 
Ro

ad
, S

pr
in

g 
La

ke
 D

riv
e,

 R
oc

ky
 P

oi
nt

 R
oa

d)
 th

e 
pr

op
os

ed
 a

ct
io

n 
sit

e 
is 

no
t w

ith
in

 a
ny

 p
ub

lic
 W

at
er

 
Su

pp
ly

 S
en

sit
iv

e 
Ar

ea
. 

S 
5.

3.
3.

1.
4 

Co
m

m
er

cia
l 

an
d 

in
du

st
ria

l 
co

m
pl

ia
nc

e 
w

ith
 th

e 
Su

ffo
lk 

Co
un

ty
 S

an
ita

ry
 

Co
de

 

Al
l 

co
m

m
er

cia
l 

an
d 

in
du

st
ria

l 
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t 
ap

pl
ica

tio
ns

 sh
al

l c
om

pl
y w

ith
 th

e p
ro

vi
sio

ns
 o

f t
he

 
Su

ffo
lk

 C
ou

nt
y 

Sa
ni

ta
ry

 C
od

e 
as

 a
pp

lie
d 

by
 t

he
 

Su
ffo

lk
 C

ou
nt

y D
ep

ar
tm

en
t o

f H
ea

lth
 Se

rv
ice

s, 
an

d 
al

l 
ot

he
r 

ap
pl

ica
bl

e 
fe

de
ra

l, 
st

at
e 

or
 lo

ca
l 

la
w

s. 
De

ve
lo

pm
en

t 
pr

oj
ec

ts
 w

hi
ch

 r
eq

ui
re

 v
ar

ia
nc

es
 

fro
m

 th
e 

pr
ov

isi
on

s o
f t

he
 S

uf
fo

lk 
Co

un
ty

 S
an

ita
ry

 
Co

de
 

sh
al

l 
m

ee
t 

al
l 

re
qu

ire
m

en
ts

 
of

 
th

e 
De

pa
rtm

en
t o

f H
ea

lth
 Se

rv
ice

’s 
Bo

ar
d 

of
 R

ev
ie

w
 in

 
or

de
r t

o 
be

 d
ee

m
ed

 to
 h

av
e 

m
et

 th
e 

re
qu

ire
m

en
ts

 
of

 th
is 

st
an

da
rd

. 

Th
e 

su
bj

ec
t s

ite
 is

 cu
rr

en
tly

 fu
lly

 d
ev

el
op

ed
 w

ith
 a

 b
an

k 
bu

ild
in

g 
th

at
 h

as
 n

ot
 b

ee
n 

oc
cu

pi
ed

 si
nc

e 
20

19
 a

nd
 th

e 
sit

e 
w

ill
 co

nt
in

ue
 to

 b
e 

us
ed

 fo
r c

om
m

er
cia

l p
ur

po
se

s. 
  

Th
e 

pr
op

os
ed

 a
ct

io
n 

w
ill

 c
om

pl
y 

w
ith

 a
pp

lic
ab

le
 re

qu
ire

m
en

ts
 o

f S
uf

fo
lk 

Co
un

ty
 S

an
ita

ry
 C

od
e 

Ar
tic

le
s 

6,
 7

, a
nd

 1
2.

  A
pp

lic
ab

le
 S

CD
HS

 a
pp

ro
va

ls 
w

ill
 b

e 
ob

ta
in

ed
 

th
ro

ug
h 

th
e 

re
qu

ire
d 

ap
pl

ica
tio

n 
pr

oc
es

s. 

G 
5.

3.
3.

1.
5 

Ni
tr

at
e-

ni
tr

og
en

 

A 
m

or
e 

pr
ot

ec
tiv

e 
go

al
 o

f t
w

o 
an

d 
on

e 
ha

lf 
(2

.5
) 

pp
m

 m
ay

 b
e 

ac
hi

ev
ed

 fo
r n

ew
 p

ro
je

ct
s t

hr
ou

gh
 a

n 
av

er
ag

e 
re

sid
en

tia
l d

en
sit

y 
of

 o
ne

 (1
) u

ni
t p

er
 tw

o 
(2

) 
ac

re
s 

(o
r 

its
 

no
n-

re
sid

en
tia

l 
eq

ui
va

le
nt

), 
th

ro
ug

h 
cl

us
te

rin
g,

 o
r t

hr
ou

gh
 o

th
er

 m
ec

ha
ni

sm
s 

As
 n

ot
ed

 a
bo

ve
, t

he
 p

ro
po

se
d 

ac
tio

n 
w

ill
 re

pl
ac

e 
th

e 
ex

ist
in

g 
co

nv
en

tio
na

l o
ns

ite
 se

pt
ic 

sy
st

em
 se

rv
in

g 
th

e 
cu

rr
en

t c
om

m
er

cia
l u

se
 w

ith
 a

n 
I/A

 O
W

TS
 w

ith
 a

dv
an

ce
d 

ni
tr

og
en

 re
m

ov
al

 c
ap

ab
ili

tie
s. 

 O
ve

ra
ll,

 w
as

te
w

at
er

 lo
ad

in
g 

fro
m

 th
e 

pr
op

os
ed

 a
ct

io
n 

w
ill

 b
e 

ju
st

 3
00

± 
gp

d 
in

di
ca

tin
g 

a 
re

la
tiv

el
y 

sm
al

l w
as

te
w

at
er

 lo
ad

 fo
r t

he
 1

.4
4-

ac
re

 si
te

.  
Th

e 
pr

op
os

ed
 a

ct
io

n 
al

so
 in

clu
de

s t
he

 re
st

or
at

io
n 

of
 1

,8
40

± 
SF

 o
f t

he
 si

te
 b

y 
co

nv
er

tin
g 

pa
rk

in
g 

an
d 

dr
iv

ew
ay

 a
re

as
 a

lo
ng

 th
e 

w
es

te
rn

 p
ro

pe
rt

y b
ou

nd
ar

y 
to

 
un

m
ai

nt
ai

ne
d 

na
tiv

e 
ve

ge
ta

tio
n,

 th
er

eb
y 

re
st

or
in

g 
th

e 
w

es
te

rn
 p

or
tio

n 
of

 th
e 

sit
e 

co
nt

ig
uo

us
 to

 w
oo

de
d 

ar
ea

s t
o 

a 
m

or
e 

na
tu

ra
l c

on
di

tio
n.

 A
dd

iti
on

al
ly

, ±
3,

60
0 

SF
 o

f 
m

ai
nt

ai
ne

d 
la

w
n 

in
 th

e 
so

ut
he

rn
 p

or
tio

n 
of

 t
he

 s
ub

je
ct

 p
ro

pe
rt

y 
w

ill
 b

e 
co

nv
er

te
d 

to
 n

at
iv

e 
no

n-
irr

ig
at

ed
/n

on
-fe

rt
ili

ze
d 

ve
ge

ta
tio

n.
  N

at
iv

e 
pl

an
ts

 w
ill

 re
qu

ire
 n

o 



2 

to
 p

ro
te

ct
 su

rfa
ce

 w
at

er
 q

ua
lit

y 
fo

r p
ro

je
ct

s i
n 

th
e 

vi
cin

ity
 o

f p
on

ds
 a

nd
 w

et
la

nd
s.  

ap
pl

ica
tio

ns
 o

f 
fe

rti
liz

er
 e

xc
ep

t 
du

rin
g 

in
iti

al
 in

st
al

la
tio

n.
 T

he
 in

cr
ea

se
d 

ar
ea

 o
f 

na
tiv

e 
ve

ge
ta

tio
n 

w
ill

 a
lso

 a
ss

ist
 in

 r
e d

uc
in

g 
st

or
m

w
at

er
 r

un
of

f 
an

d 
im

pr
ov

in
g 

st
or

m
w

at
er

 re
ch

ar
ge

 o
n 

th
e 

pr
op

er
ty

, w
hi

ch
 w

ill
 h

el
p 

to
 fu

rt
he

r r
ed

uc
e 

ni
tr

og
en

 th
at

 m
ay

 b
e 

co
nt

ai
ne

d 
in

 o
ns

ite
 st

or
m

w
at

er
 ru

no
ff.

  
5.

3.
3.

3 
W

el
lh

ea
d 

an
d 

Gr
ou

nd
w

at
er

 P
ro

te
ct

io
n  

S 
5.

3.
3.

3.
1 

Si
gn

ifi
ca

nt
 

di
sc

ha
rg

es
 a

nd
 

pu
bl

ic 
su

pp
ly 

w
el

l l
oc

at
io

ns
 

Th
e 

lo
ca

tio
n 

of
 n

ea
rb

y 
pu

bl
ic 

su
pp

ly
 w

el
ls 

sh
al

l b
e 

co
ns

i d
er

ed
 in

 a
ll 

ap
pl

ica
tio

ns
 in

vo
lv

in
g 

sig
ni

fic
an

t 
di

sc
ha

rg
es

 to
 g

ro
un

dw
at

er
, a

s r
eq

ui
re

d 
un

de
r t

he
 

Ne
w

 Y
or

k 
St

at
e 

En
vi

ro
nm

en
ta

l C
on

se
rv

at
io

n 
La

w
 

Ar
tic

le
 1

7.
 

Th
is 

st
an

da
rd

 re
st

ric
ts

 a
ct

iv
iti

es
 th

at
 c

ou
ld

 d
eg

ra
de

 th
e 

pu
bl

ic 
w

at
er

 s
up

pl
y 

w
ith

in
 a

 2
00

-fo
ot

 ra
di

us
 o

f a
 p

ub
lic

 s
up

pl
y 

w
el

l. 
Th

e 
lo

ca
tio

n 
of

 e
xis

tin
g 

pu
bl

ic 
w

el
ls 

ar
e 

ou
ts

id
e 

th
e 

20
0-

ft 
bu

ffe
r z

on
e 

of
 th

e 
sit

e.
 F

ur
th

er
m

or
e,

 th
e 

pr
op

os
ed

 a
ct

io
n 

w
ill 

no
t h

av
e 

“s
ig

ni
fic

an
t d

isc
ha

rg
e”

 to
 a

 p
oi

nt
 w

he
re

 it
 w

ill
 im

pa
ct

 a
 p

ub
lic

 w
at

er
 su

pp
ly

. 
Th

e 
pr

op
os

ed
 a

ct
io

n 
w

as
 fu

rt
he

r a
ss

es
se

d 
re

la
tiv

e 
to

 A
rt

icl
e 

7 
W

at
er

 S
up

pl
y 

Se
ns

iti
ve

 A
re

as
 a

s n
ot

ed
 a

bo
ve

 p
ur

su
an

t t
o 

Gu
id

el
in

e 
S 5

.3
.3

.1
.5

 a
bo

ve
. 

5.
3.

3 .
4 

W
et

la
nd

s a
nd

 S
ur

fa
ce

 W
at

er
s 

S 
5.

3.
3.

4.
1 

No
nd

ist
ur

ba
nc

e 
bu

ffe
rs

 

De
ve

lo
pm

en
t 

pr
op

os
al

s 
fo

r 
sit

es
 c

on
ta

in
in

g 
or

 
ab

ut
ti n

g 
fre

sh
w

at
er

 o
r 

tid
al

 w
et

la
nd

s 
or

 s
ur

fa
ce

 
w

at
er

s 
m

us
t 

be
 s

ep
ar

at
ed

 b
y 

a 
no

nd
ist

ur
ba

nc
e 

bu
ffe

r a
re

a t
ha

t i
s n

o 
le

ss
 th

an
 th

at
 re

qu
ire

d 
by

 th
e 

Ne
w

 
Yo

rk
 

St
at

e 
Ti

da
l 

W
et

la
nd

, 
Fr

es
hw

at
er

 
W

et
la

nd
, o

r 
W

ild
, S

ce
ni

c 
an

d 
Re

cr
ea

tio
na

l R
ive

rs
 

Ac
t 

or
 lo

ca
l o

rd
in

an
ce

. T
he

 C
om

m
iss

io
n 

re
se

rv
es

 
th

e 
rig

ht
 

to
 

re
qu

ire
 

a 
st

ric
te

r 
an

d 
la

rg
er

 
no

nd
ist

ur
ba

nc
e 

bu
ffe

r 
fo

r 
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t 
pr

oj
ec

ts
 

no
t s

ub
je

ct
 to

 m
un

ici
pa

l r
ev

ie
w

. D
ist

an
ce

s s
ha

ll 
be

 
m

ea
su

re
d 

ho
riz

on
ta

lly
 fr

om
 th

e 
w

et
la

nd
 e

dg
e 

as
 

m
ap

pe
d 

by
 t

he
 N

ew
 Y

or
k 

St
at

e 
De

pa
rtm

en
t 

of
 

En
vi

ro
nm

en
ta

l C
on

se
rv

at
io

n,
 f

ie
ld

 d
el

in
ea

tio
n 

or
 

lo
ca

l o
rd

in
an

ce
. P

ro
je

ct
s 

w
hi

ch
 r

eq
ui

re
 v

ar
ia

nc
es

 
or

 
ex

ce
pt

io
ns

 
fro

m
 

th
es

e 
st

at
e 

la
w

s, 
lo

ca
l 

or
di

na
nc

es
 a

nd
 a

ss
oc

ia
te

d 
re

gu
la

tio
ns

, s
ha

ll 
m

ee
t 

al
l r

eq
ui

re
m

en
ts

 im
po

se
d 

in
 a

 p
er

m
it 

by
 th

e 
Ne

w
 

Yo
rk

 
St

at
e 

De
pa

rt
m

en
t 

of
 

En
vi

ro
nm

en
ta

l 
Co

ns
er

va
tio

n 
or

 a
 m

un
ici

pa
lit

y 
in

 o
rd

er
 t

o 
be

 
de

em
ed

 to
 h

av
e 

m
et

 th
e 

re
qu

ire
m

en
ts

 o
f t

hi
s 

st
an

da
rd

.  

Th
e 

pr
op

os
ed

 a
ct

io
n 

sit
e 

is 
no

t l
oc

at
ed

 n
ea

r a
 ti

da
l w

et
la

nd
. T

he
 cl

os
es

t f
ea

tu
re

, a
s l

ist
ed

 b
y t

he
 N

W
I i

s a
 2

2±
-a

cr
e 

fre
sh

w
at

er
 p

on
d,

 d
es

ig
na

te
d 

as
 P

US
Cx

 (a
n 

ex
ca

va
te

d 
m

an
-m

ad
e 

pa
lu

st
rin

e 
fe

at
ur

e 
th

at
 is

 s
ea

so
na

lly
 fl

oo
de

d 
an

d 
ha

s 
an

 u
nc

on
so

lid
at

ed
 s

ho
re

), 
lo

ca
te

d 
ap

pr
ox

im
at

el
y 

90
0 

fe
et

 n
or

th
ea

st
 o

f t
he

 su
bj

ec
t p

ro
pe

rty
.  

Th
is 

fe
at

ur
e 

is 
no

t 
m

ap
pe

d 
by

 th
e 

NY
SD

EC
 a

s 
a 

pr
ev

io
us

ly 
m

ap
pe

d 
fre

sh
w

at
er

 w
et

la
nd

.  
Ne

ve
rt

he
le

ss
, t

he
 p

on
d 

is 
lo

ca
te

d 
ou

ts
id

e 
of

 th
e 

st
an

da
rd

 1
00

-fo
ot

 N
YS

DE
C 

fre
sh

w
at

er
 w

et
la

nd
 a

dj
ac

en
t a

re
a.

    
 Th

e 
pr

op
os

ed
 a

ct
io

n 
in

clu
de

s r
et

en
tio

n 
an

d 
su

pp
le

m
en

ta
tio

n 
of

 n
at

iv
e 

ve
ge

ta
tio

n 
in

 e
xi

st
in

g 
pe

rim
et

er
 b

uf
fe

rs
 a

nd
 re

st
or

at
io

n 
of

 1
,8

40
± 

SF
 o

f t
he

 si
te

 b
y 

co
nv

er
tin

g 
pa

rk
in

g 
an

d 
dr

iv
ew

ay
 a

re
as

 a
lo

ng
 t

he
 w

es
te

rn
 p

ro
pe

rt
y 

bo
un

da
ry

 t
o 

un
m

ai
nt

ai
ne

d 
na

tiv
e 

ve
ge

ta
tio

n 
an

d 
th

e 
re

st
or

at
io

n 
of

 3
,6

00
± 

SF
 o

f t
he

 s
ite

 b
y 

co
nv

er
tin

g 
m

ai
nt

ai
ne

d 
la

w
n 

ar
ea

 to
 n

at
iv

e 
ve

ge
ta

tio
n,

 th
er

eb
y 

re
st

or
in

g 
th

e 
w

es
te

rn
 p

or
tio

n 
of

 th
e 

sit
e 

co
nt

ig
uo

us
 to

 w
oo

de
d 

ar
ea

s a
nd

 a
n 

ar
ea

 a
lo

ng
 th

e 
ro

ad
w

ay
 fr

on
ta

ge
 to

 a
 

m
or

e-
na

tu
ra

l c
on

di
tio

n.
 R

es
to

rin
g 

th
e 

ve
ge

ta
tiv

e 
bu

ffe
r 

ar
ou

nd
 t

he
 s

ite
 w

ill
 im

pr
ov

e 
na

tiv
e 

pl
an

t 
de

ns
ity

 a
nd

 d
iv

er
sit

y,
 im

pr
ov

in
g 

ov
er

al
l h

ea
lth

 a
nd

 s
ig

ht
lin

es
s. 

Op
er

at
io

ns
 u

nd
er

 th
e 

pr
op

os
ed

 p
ro

je
ct

 w
ill

 n
ot

 d
ist

ur
b 

th
e 

ve
ge

ta
tio

n.
 

S 
5.

3.
3.

4.
2 

Bu
ffe

r 
de

lin
ea

tio
ns

, 
co

ve
na

nt
s a

nd
 

co
ns

er
va

tio
n 

ea
se

m
en

ts
 

Bu
ffe

r a
re

as
 s

ha
ll 

be
 d

el
in

ea
te

d 
on

 th
e 

sit
e 

pl
an

, 
an

d 
co

ve
na

nt
s 

an
d/

or
 c

on
se

rv
at

io
n 

ea
se

m
en

ts
, 

pu
rs

ua
nt

 t
o 

th
e 

Ne
w

 Y
or

k 
St

at
e 

En
vir

on
m

en
ta

l 
Co

ns
er

va
tio

n 
La

w
 a

nd
 lo

ca
l o

rd
in

an
ce

s, 
sh

al
l b

e 
im

po
se

d 
to

 
pr

ot
ec

t 
th

es
e 

ar
ea

s 
as

 
de

em
ed

 
ne

ce
ss

ar
y.

 

N/
A;

 th
e 

pr
op

os
ed

 a
ct

io
n 

sit
e 

is 
no

t l
oc

at
ed

 w
ith

in
 a

 co
ns

er
va

tio
n 

bo
un

da
ry

 o
r o

th
er

 p
ro

te
ct

ed
 a

re
a.

 T
he

 p
ro

po
se

d 
ac

tio
n 

in
clu

de
s r

et
en

tio
n 

an
d 

su
pp

le
m

en
ta

tio
n 

of
 

na
tiv

e 
ve

ge
ta

tio
n 

in
 e

xis
tin

g 
pe

rim
et

er
 b

uf
fe

rs
 a

nd
 re

st
or

at
io

n 
of

 1
,8

40
± 

SF
 o

f t
he

 si
te

 b
y 

co
nv

er
tin

g 
pa

rk
in

g 
an

d 
dr

iv
ew

ay
 a

re
as

 a
lo

ng
 th

e 
w

es
te

rn
 p

ro
pe

rt
y 

bo
un

da
ry

 
to

 u
nm

ai
nt

ai
ne

d 
na

tiv
e 

ve
ge

ta
tio

n,
 t

he
re

by
 r

es
to

rin
g 

th
e 

w
es

te
rn

 p
or

tio
n 

of
 th

e 
sit

e 
co

nt
ig

uo
us

 to
 w

oo
de

d 
ar

ea
s 

to
 a

 m
or

e 
na

tu
ra

l c
on

di
tio

n.
  

Ad
di

tio
na

lly
, t

he
 

pr
op

os
ed

 c
on

ve
rs

io
n 

of
 3

,6
00

± 
SF

 o
f t

he
 m

ai
nt

ai
ne

d 
la

w
n 

ar
ea

 in
 th

e 
so

ut
he

rn
 p

or
tio

n 
of

 th
e 

su
bj

ec
t p

ro
pe

rt
y 

to
 n

at
iv

e 
ve

ge
ta

tio
n 

w
ill

 re
st

or
e 

th
is 

ar
ea

 a
lo

ng
 th

e 
pr

op
er

ty
 b

ou
nd

ar
y 

to
 a

 m
or

e 
na

tu
ra

l c
on

di
tio

n.
  

S 
5.

3.
3.

4.
3 

W
ild

, S
ce

ni
c &

 
Re

cr
ea

tio
na

l 
Ri

ve
rs

 A
ct

 
co

m
pl

ia
nc

e 

De
ve

lo
pm

en
t 

sh
al

l c
on

fo
rm

 t
o 

th
e 

pr
ov

isi
on

s 
of

 
th

e  
Ne

w
 Y

or
k 

St
at

e 
W

ild
, S

ce
ni

c 
an

d 
Re

cr
ea

tio
na

l 
Ri

ve
rs

 
Ac

t, 
w

he
re

 
ap

pl
ica

bl
e.

 
Pr

oj
ec

ts
 

w
hi

ch
 

re
qu

ire
 v

ar
ia

nc
es

 o
r 

ex
ce

pt
io

ns
 u

nd
er

 t
he

 N
ew

 
Yo

rk
 St

at
e 

W
ild

, S
ce

ni
c a

nd
 R

ec
re

at
io

na
l R

iv
er

s A
ct

 
sh

al
l m

ee
t a

ll 
re

qu
ire

m
en

ts
 im

po
se

d 
by

 th
e 

Ne
w

 
Yo

rk
 

St
at

e 
De

pa
rt

m
en

t 
of

 
En

vi
ro

nm
en

ta
l 

Co
ns

er
va

tio
n 

in
 o

rd
er

 to
 b

e 
de

em
ed

 to
 h

av
e 

m
et

 
th

e 
re

qu
ire

m
en

ts
 o

f t
hi

s s
ta

nd
ar

d.
 

N/
A;

 th
e 

pr
oj

ec
t s

ite
 is

 n
ot

 lo
ca

te
d 

w
ith

in
 o

r a
dj

ac
en

t t
o 

an
y 

W
SR

R 
bo

un
da

ry
.  

Th
is 

St
an

da
rd

 d
oe

s n
ot

 a
pp

ly
. 

5.
3.

3 .
5 

St
or

m
w

at
er

 R
un

of
f 

S 
5.

3.
3.

5.
1 

St
or

m
w

at
er

 
re

ch
ar

ge
 

De
ve

lo
pm

en
t 

pr
oj

ec
ts

 
m

us
t 

pr
ov

id
e 

th
at

 
al

l 
st

o r
m

w
at

er
 r

un
of

f o
rig

in
at

in
g 

fro
m

 d
ev

el
op

m
en

t 
on

 th
e 

pr
op

er
ty

 is
 re

ch
ar

ge
d 

on
 si

te
 u

nl
es

s s
ur

pl
us

 
ca

pa
cit

y 
ex

ist
s i

n 
an

 o
ff 

sit
e 

dr
ai

na
ge

 sy
st

em
. 

Th
is 

s t
an

da
rd

 r
eq

ui
re

s 
th

at
 a

de
qu

at
e 

dr
ai

na
ge

 c
ap

ac
ity

 b
e 

pr
ov

id
ed

 f
or

 r
et

en
tio

n 
an

d 
re

ch
ar

ge
 o

f 
st

or
m

w
at

er
 r

un
of

f 
ge

ne
ra

te
d 

on
-s

ite
.  

Al
l  s

to
rm

w
at

er
 r

un
of

f 
ge

ne
ra

te
d 

on
 d

ev
el

op
ed

 p
ro

je
ct

 su
rfa

ce
s w

ill
 b

e 
ca

pt
ur

ed
 o

n-
sit

e 
an

d 
re

ch
ar

ge
d 

in
to

 th
e 

gr
ou

nd
 th

ro
ug

h 
th

e 
ex

ist
in

g 
on

-s
ite

 d
ra

in
ag

e 
sy

st
em

.  
Th

e 
pr

op
os

ed
 p

ro
je

ct
 

in
vo

lv
es

 a
 re

du
ct

io
n 

of
 ±

1,
84

0 
SF

 o
f i

m
pe

rv
io

us
 su

rfa
ce

 a
nd

 re
st

or
at

io
n 

of
 1

,8
40

± 
SF

 o
f t

he
 si

te
 b

y 
co

nv
er

tin
g 

pa
rk

in
g 

an
d 

dr
iv

ew
ay

 a
re

as
 a

lo
ng

 th
e 

w
es

te
rn

 p
ro

pe
rt

y 
bo

un
da

ry
 to

 u
nm

ai
nt

ai
ne

d 
na

tiv
e 

ve
ge

ta
tio

n.
  A

dd
iti

on
al

ly
, t

he
 p

ro
je

ct
 p

ro
po

se
s t

he
 re

st
or

at
io

n 
of

 3
,6

00
± 

SF
 o

f t
he

 si
te

 b
y 

co
nv

er
tin

g 
m

ai
nt

ai
ne

d 
la

w
n 

ar
ea

 to
 n

at
ive

 



3 

ve
ge

ta
tio

n.
 T

he
 re

du
ct

io
n 

of
 im

pe
rv

io
us

 s
ur

fa
ce

s 
an

d 
m

ai
nt

ai
ne

d 
la

w
n 

ar
ea

 w
ill 

re
su

lt 
in

 d
ec

re
as

ed
 s

to
rm

w
at

er
 ru

no
ff 

an
d 

im
pr

ov
ed

 s
to

rm
w

at
er

 r
ec

ha
rg

e 
on

 th
e 

su
bj

ec
t p

ro
pe

rt
y.

   
 No

 ru
no

ff 
fro

m
 d

ev
el

op
ed

 su
rf

ac
es

 w
ill

 b
e 

al
lo

w
ed

 to
 e

xit
 th

e 
sit

e,
 b

as
ed

 o
n 

th
e 

st
rin

ge
nt

 re
te

nt
io

n 
an

d 
de

sig
n 

st
an

da
rd

s. 
 T

he
 p

ro
je

ct
’s 

dr
ai

na
ge

 sy
st

em
 is

 su
bj

ec
t t

o 
th

e 
re

vi
ew

 a
nd

 a
pp

ro
va

l o
f t

he
 T

ow
n 

en
gi

ne
er

in
g 

an
d 

pl
an

ni
ng

 s
ta

ff.
 T

he
 p

ro
po

se
d 

pr
oj

ec
t w

ill
 in

vo
lv

e 
th

e 
di

st
ur

ba
nc

e 
of

 o
nl

y 
0.

26
 a

cr
es

 o
f t

he
 s

ub
je

ct
 p

ro
pe

rt
y;

 
th

er
ef

or
e,

 th
e 

pr
oj

ec
t i

s n
ot

 su
bj

ec
t t

o 
th

e 
re

qu
ire

m
en

ts
 o

f t
he

 S
PD

ES
 G

en
er

al
 P

er
m

it 
fo

r C
on

st
ru

ct
io

n 
Ac

tiv
ity

.  

S 
5.

3.
3.

5.
2 

Na
tu

ra
l 

re
ch

ar
ge

 a
nd

 
dr

ai
na

ge
 

Na
t u

ra
l 

re
ch

ar
ge

 a
re

a s
 a

nd
/o

r 
dr

ai
na

ge
 s

ys
te

m
 

de
si g

ns
 th

at
 c

au
se

 m
in

im
al

 d
ist

ur
ba

nc
e 

of
 n

at
iv

e 
ve

ge
ta

tio
n 

sh
ou

ld
 b

e 
em

pl
oy

ed
, w

he
re

 p
ra

ct
ica

l, 
in

 l
ie

u 
of

 r
ec

ha
rg

e 
ba

sin
s 

or
 p

on
ds

 t
ha

t 
w

ou
ld

 
re

qu
ire

 r
em

ov
al

 o
f 

sig
ni

fic
an

t 
ar

ea
s 

of
 n

at
iv

e 
ve

ge
ta

tio
n.

 

Th
e 

pr
op

os
ed

 p
ro

je
ct

 d
oe

s n
ot

 in
vo

lv
e 

al
te

ra
tio

n 
of

 th
e 

ex
ist

in
g 

on
sit

e 
dr

ai
na

ge
 s

ys
te

m
 o

r d
ist

ur
ba

nc
e 

of
 a

ny
 e

xis
tin

g 
na

tiv
e 

ve
ge

ta
tio

n.
  T

he
 p

ro
po

se
d 

ac
tio

n 
w

ill 
in

vo
lv

e 
re

du
ct

io
ns

 in
 im

pe
rv

io
us

 a
re

a 
an

d 
m

ai
nt

ai
ne

d 
la

w
n 

an
d 

in
cr

ea
se

 in
 n

at
ive

 v
eg

et
at

io
n,

 th
er

eb
y 

im
pr

ov
in

g 
th

e 
ex

ist
in

g 
dr

ai
na

ge
 co

nd
iti

on
s o

ns
ite

.  
No

 re
ch

ar
ge

 
ba

sin
s o

r p
on

ds
 a

re
 p

ro
po

se
d 

as
 p

ar
t o

f t
he

 p
ro

po
se

d 
ac

tio
n.

 

S 
5.

3.
3.

5.
3 

Po
nd

s 
Po

nd
s 

sh
ou

ld
 o

nl
y 

be
 c

re
at

ed
 i

f 
th

ey
 a

re
 t

o 
ac

co
m

m
od

at
e 

st
or

m
w

at
er

 r
un

of
f, 

no
t 

so
le

ly 
fo

r 
ae

st
he

tic
 p

ur
po

se
s.  

N/
A:

 th
e 

pr
op

os
ed

 a
ct

io
n 

w
ill

 n
ot

 in
clu

de
 co

ns
tr

uc
tio

n 
of

 a
 p

on
d.

   

S 
5.

3.
3.

5.
4 

Na
tu

ra
l 

to
po

gr
ap

hy
 in

 
lie

u 
of

 re
ch

ar
ge

 
ba

sin
s  

Th
e 

us
e 

of
 n

at
ur

al
 s

w
al

es
 a

nd
 d

ep
re

ss
io

ns
 s

ho
ul

d 
be

 
pe

rm
itt

ed
 

an
d 

en
co

ur
ag

ed
 

in
st

ea
d 

of
 

ex
ca

va
te

d 
re

ch
ar

ge
 b

as
in

s, 
w

he
ne

ve
r f

ea
sib

le
. 

Th
e 

pr
op

os
ed

 a
ct

io
n 

do
es

 n
ot

 in
clu

de
 e

xc
av

at
ed

 re
ch

ar
ge

 b
as

in
s. 

 N
o 

na
tu

ra
l t

op
og

ra
ph

ic 
lo

w
 p

oi
nt

s 
or

 s
w

al
es

 a
re

 a
va

ila
bl

e 
to

 b
e 

ut
ili

ze
d 

fo
r 

st
or

m
w

at
er

 ru
no

ff 
de

te
nt

io
n 

or
 re

ch
ar

ge
. A

s 
no

te
d 

pr
ev

io
us

ly,
 th

e 
pr

op
os

ed
 a

ct
io

n 
do

es
 n

ot
 in

vo
lv

e 
an

 a
lte

ra
tio

n 
to

 th
e 

ex
ist

in
g 

on
-s

ite
 d

ra
in

ag
e 

sy
st

em
.  

Th
e 

pr
op

os
ed

 re
du

ct
io

n 
in

 
im

pe
rv

io
us

 su
rfa

ce
s a

nd
 m

ai
nt

ai
ne

d 
la

w
n 

an
d 

in
cr

ea
se

 o
f n

at
iv

e 
ve

ge
ta

tio
n 

w
ill

 re
su

lt 
in

 im
pr

ov
ed

 d
ra

in
ag

e 
co

nd
iti

on
s o

n-
sit

e.
   

S 
5.

3.
3.

5.
5 

So
il e

ro
sio

n 
an

d 
st

or
m

w
at

er
 

ru
no

ff 
co

nt
ro

l 
du

rin
g 

co
ns

tr
uc

tio
n  

Du
rin

g 
co

ns
tru

ct
io

n,
 th

e 
st

an
da

rd
s 

an
d 

gu
id

el
in

es
 

pr
om

ul
ga

te
d 

by
 th

e 
Ne

w
 Y

or
k S

ta
te

 D
ep

ar
tm

en
t o

f 
En

vi
ro

nm
en

ta
l C

on
se

rv
at

io
n 

pu
rs

ua
nt

 to
 st

at
e 

la
w

, 
w

hi
ch

 a
re

 d
es

ig
ne

d 
to

 p
re

ve
nt

 s
oi

l e
ro

sio
n 

an
d 

co
nt

ro
l s

to
rm

w
at

er
 ru

no
ff,

 sh
ou

ld
 b

e 
ad

he
re

d 
to

.  

Th
e 

pr
op

os
ed

 p
ro

je
ct

 w
ill

 in
vo

lv
e 

th
e 

di
st

ur
ba

nc
e 

of
 o

nl
y 

0.
26

 a
cr

es
 o

f t
he

 s
ub

je
ct

 p
ro

pe
rty

; t
he

re
fo

re
, t

he
 p

ro
je

ct
 is

 n
ot

 s
ub

je
ct

 to
 th

e 
re

qu
ire

m
en

ts
 o

f t
he

 S
PD

ES
 

Ge
ne

ra
l P

er
m

it 
fo

r C
on

st
ru

ct
io

n 
Ac

tiv
ity

.  

5.
3.

3.
6 

Co
or

di
na

te
d 

De
sig

n 
fo

r O
pe

n 
Sp

ac
e,

 H
ab

ita
t a

nd
 S

oi
l P

ro
te

ct
io

n 

S 
5.

3.
3.

6.
1 

Ve
ge

ta
tio

n 
Cl

ea
ra

nc
e 

Lim
its

 

Th
e 

cle
ar

an
ce

 o
f n

at
ur

al
 ve

ge
ta

tio
n 

sh
al

l b
e 

st
ric

tly
 

lim
i te

d.
 S

ite
 p

la
ns

, s
ur

ve
ys

 a
nd

 s
ub

di
vi

sio
n 

m
ap

s 
sh

al
l 

de
lin

ea
te

 t
he

 e
xis

tin
g 

na
tu

ra
lly

 v
eg

et
at

ed
 

ar
ea

s a
nd

 c
al

cu
la

te
 th

os
e 

po
rt

io
ns

 o
f t

he
 si

te
 th

at
 

ar
e 

al
re

ad
y 

cle
ar

ed
 d

ue
 to

 p
re

vi
ou

s a
ct

ivi
tie

s. 
  

 Ar
ea

s o
f t

he
 si

te
 p

ro
po

se
d 

to
 b

e 
cle

ar
ed

 co
m

bi
ne

d 
w

ith
 p

re
vi

ou
sly

 c
le

ar
ed

 a
re

as
 sh

al
l n

ot
 e

xc
ee

d 
th

e 
pe

rc
en

ta
ge

s i
n 

Fi
gu

re
 5

-1
. T

he
se

 p
er

ce
nt

ag
es

 sh
al

l 
be

 ta
ke

n 
ov

er
 th

e 
to

ta
l s

ite
 a

nd
 s

ha
ll 

in
clu

de
, b

ut
 

no
t 

be
 li

m
ite

d 
to

, r
oa

ds
, b

ui
ld

in
g 

sit
es

, d
ra

in
ag

e 
st

ru
ct

ur
es

 a
nd

 la
nd

ba
nk

ed
 p

ar
ki

ng
. T

he
 c

le
ar

an
ce

 
st

an
da

rd
 th

at
 w

ou
ld

 b
e 

ap
pl

ie
d 

to
 a

 d
ev

el
op

m
en

t 
pr

oj
ec

t 
sit

e 
if 

de
ve

lo
pe

d 
un

de
r 

th
e 

ex
ist

in
g 

re
sid

en
tia

l z
on

in
g 

ca
te

go
ry

 m
ay

 b
e 

ap
pl

ie
d 

if 
th

e 
pr

op
os

al
 

in
vo

lv
es

 
m

ul
ti-

fa
m

ily
 

un
its

, 
at

ta
ch

ed
 

ho
us

in
g,

 c
lu

st
er

in
g 

or
 m

od
ifi

ed
 lo

t 
de

sig
ns

. 
Si

te
 

pl
an

s, 
su

rv
ey

s 
an

d 
su

bd
ivi

sio
n 

m
ap

s 
sh

al
l 

be
 

de
lin

ea
te

d 
w

ith
 

a 
cle

ar
in

g 
lim

it 
lin

e 
an

d 
ca

lcu
la

tio
ns

 
fo

r 
cle

ar
in

g 
to

 
de

m
on

st
ra

te
 

co
m

pl
ia

nc
e 

w
ith

 th
is 

st
an

da
rd

.  
 To

 t
he

 e
xt

en
t 

th
at

 a
 p

or
tio

n 
of

 a
 d

ev
el

op
m

en
t 

pr
oj

ec
t 

sit
e 

in
clu

de
s 

Co
re

 p
ro

pe
rt

y,
 a

nd
 f

or
 t

he
 

pu
rp

os
e 

of
 ca

lcu
la

tin
g 

th
e 

cle
ar

an
ce

 lim
its

, t
he

 si
te

 
sh

al
l b

e 
co

ns
tr

ue
d 

to
 b

e 
th

e 
co

m
bi

ne
d 

Co
re

 a
nd

 

Th
e 

pr
op

os
ed

 p
ro

je
ct

 w
ill

 n
ot

 c
om

pl
y 

w
ith

 th
e 

cu
rr

en
t V

eg
et

at
io

n 
Cl

ea
ra

nc
e 

Lim
its

 o
ut

lin
ed

 in
 S

ta
nd

ar
d 

5.
3.

3.
6.

1 
an

d 
th

us
 re

qu
ire

s 
th

is 
ha

rd
sh

ip
 a

pp
lic

at
io

n.
  T

he
 

su
bj

ec
t p

ar
ce

l w
as

 zo
ne

d 
J B

us
in

es
s 4

 in
 1

99
5,

 w
he

n 
th

e 
CP

B 
CL

UP
 w

as
 a

do
pt

ed
.  

In
 co

nf
or

m
an

ce
 w

ith
 th

e 
al

lo
w

ab
le

 si
te

 cl
ea

ra
nc

e 
st

an
da

rd
s l

ist
ed

 in
 F

ig
ur

e 
5-

1 
of

 th
e 

CL
UP

, t
he

 o
ve

ra
ll m

ax
im

um
 a

llo
w

ed
 si

te
 cl

ea
ra

nc
e 

fo
r t

he
 p

ro
po

se
d 

ac
tio

n 
sit

e 
is 

60
%

, o
r 0

.8
64

 a
cr

es
 (c

on
ve

rs
el

y,
 a

 m
in

im
um

 o
f 4

0%
 o

f t
he

 si
te

, o
r 0

.5
76

 a
cr

es
, w

ou
ld

 
ha

ve
 to

 b
e 

pr
es

er
ve

d 
as

 n
at

ur
al

). 
 T

he
 su

bj
ec

t p
ro

pe
rt

y h
as

 b
ee

n 
de

ve
lo

pe
d 

w
ith

 th
e 

ex
ist

in
g 

bu
ild

in
g s

in
ce

 a
t l

ea
st

 1
98

0,
 p

rio
r t

o 
th

e 
ad

op
tio

n 
of

 th
e 

CL
UP

, a
nd

 is
 o

ve
r-

cle
ar

ed
 in

 it
s e

xis
tin

g 
co

nd
iti

on
.  C

ur
re

nt
ly

, a
pp

ro
xim

at
el

y 8
6%

 o
f t

he
 si

te
 is

 cl
ea

re
d 

(in
clu

di
ng

 im
pe

rv
io

us
 a

nd
 m

ai
nt

ai
ne

d 
la

nd
sc

ap
ed

 a
re

as
) a

nd
 a

pp
ro

xim
at

el
y 

14
%

 o
f 

th
e 

sit
e 

co
ns

ist
s o

f n
at

ur
al

 ve
ge

ta
tio

n.
   

 Th
e 

pr
op

os
ed

 ac
tio

n 
re

pr
es

en
ts

 an
 im

pr
ov

em
en

t u
po

n 
th

e 
ex

ist
in

g c
on

di
tio

n 
w

ith
 a 

re
du

ct
io

n 
in

 cl
ea

rin
g f

ro
m

 ap
pr

ox
im

at
el

y 8
6%

 to
 ap

pr
ox

im
at

el
y 7

7%
 an

d 
an

 in
cr

ea
se

 
in

 n
at

ur
al

 a
re

as
 fr

om
 a

pp
ro

xim
at

el
y 

14
%

 to
 2

3%
. T

he
 p

ro
po

se
d 

sit
e 

co
ve

ra
ge

s i
nc

lu
de

 1
.1

1 
ac

re
s o

f c
le

ar
ed

 la
nd

 (i
m

pe
rv

io
us

 a
nd

 m
ai

nt
ai

ne
d 

la
nd

sc
ap

in
g 

in
 e

xis
tin

g 
ar

ea
s)

 a
nd

 0
.3

3 
ac

re
s o

f n
at

ur
al

 la
nd

, i
nc

lu
di

ng
 a

re
as

 to
 b

e 
re

st
or

ed
 w

ith
 n

at
iv

e 
ve

ge
ta

tio
n.

   
 It 

is 
no

te
d 

th
at

 th
e 

en
tir

et
y 

of
 th

e 
pr

op
os

ed
 a

ct
io

n 
sit

e 
is 

w
ith

in
 th

e 
Co

m
pa

tib
le

 G
ro

w
th

 A
re

a 
of

 th
e 

Ce
nt

ra
l P

in
e 

Ba
rr

en
s. 

Fu
rt

he
rm

or
e,

 th
e 

en
tir

et
y 

of
 th

e 
re

m
ai

ni
ng

 
na

tu
ra

l e
xi

st
in

g 
pi

ne
 b

ar
re

ns
 h

ab
ita

t w
ith

in
 th

e 
pr

op
er

ty
 w

ill
 n

ot
 b

e 
de

ve
lo

pe
d.

   
 As

 th
e 

pr
op

os
ed

 a
ct

io
n 

do
es

 n
ot

 in
vo

lv
e 

no
n-

co
nt

ig
uo

us
 p

ar
ce

ls,
 sp

lit
 zo

ne
 p

ar
ce

l(s
), 

re
sid

en
tia

l o
ve

rla
y 

di
st

ric
t p

ar
ce

ls,
 e

nv
iro

nm
en

ta
l r

es
to

ra
tio

n,
 o

r s
pl

it 
Co

re
-C

GA
 

pa
rc

el
(s

), 
St

an
da

rd
s S

 5
.3

.3
.6

.1
.1

 th
ro

ug
h 

S 
5.

3.
3.

6.
1.

4 
an

d 
S 

5.
3.

3.
6.

1.
6 

do
 n

ot
 a

pp
ly

. 



4 

CG
A 

po
rti

on
s. 

Ho
w

ev
er

, t
he

 C
or

e 
po

rt
io

n 
m

ay
 n

ot
 

be
 c

le
ar

ed
 e

xc
ep

t i
n 

ac
co

rd
an

ce
 w

ith
 S

ec
tio

n 
5.

2 
of

 th
e  

Pl
an

. 

S 
5.

3.
3.

6.
1.

5 
CG

A 
Ha

rd
sh

ip
 

Re
qu

ire
m

en
t 

Pe
r s

on
s s

ee
ki

ng
 re

lie
f f

ro
m

 c
le

ar
in

g 
re

qu
ire

m
en

ts
 

on
 d

ev
el

op
m

en
t 

pr
oj

ec
t 

sit
es

 m
us

t 
fil

e 
a 

CG
A 

ha
rd

sh
ip

 a
pp

lic
at

io
n.

 

Th
e 

pr
op

os
ed

 a
ct

io
n 

in
vo

lv
es

 th
e 

fil
in

g 
of

 a 
CG

A 
ha

rd
sh

ip
 a

pp
lic

at
io

n 
fo

r r
el

ie
f f

ro
m

 th
e 

cle
ar

in
g 

re
qu

ire
m

en
ts

.  O
f n

ot
e,

 th
e 

si t
e 

is 
ov

er
-c

le
ar

ed
 in

 it
s e

xis
tin

g 
co

nd
iti

on
, 

w
hi

ch
 w

as
 th

e 
ca

se
 p

rio
r t

o 
th

e 
ad

op
tio

n 
of

 th
e 

CL
UP

.  
Th

e 
pr

op
os

ed
 a

ct
io

n 
w

ou
ld

 im
pr

ov
e 

up
on

 th
e 

cle
ar

in
g 

co
nd

iti
on

 o
f t

he
 su

bj
ec

t p
ro

pe
rt

y 
by

 o
ffe

rin
g 

a 
re

du
ct

io
n 

in
 cl

ea
rin

g 
an

d 
re

st
or

at
io

n 
of

 a
n 

im
pe

rv
io

us
 a

re
a 

to
 a

 n
at

ur
al

 co
nd

iti
on

. 
 

S 
5.

3.
3.

6.
2 

Op
en

 sp
ac

e 
st

an
da

rd
 

re
qu

ire
m

en
t, 

un
fra

gm
en

te
d 

op
en

 sp
ac

e 
an

d 
ha

bi
ta

t 

De
ve

lo
pm

en
t 

pr
oj

ec
t 

sit
es

 
m

us
t 

m
ee

t 
at

 
a 

m
i n

im
um

 th
e 

pe
rc

en
ta

ge
s o

f o
pe

n 
sp

ac
e 

sp
ec

ifi
ed

 
in

 F
ig

ur
e 

5-
1 

re
ga

rd
le

ss
 o

f 
ex

ist
in

g 
ph

ys
ica

l s
ite

 
co

nd
iti

on
s. 

Ap
pl

ica
nt

s m
us

t p
rio

rit
ize

 fi
rs

t t
he

 u
se

 
of

 e
xis

tin
g 

cle
ar

ed
 a

re
as

 f
or

 d
ev

el
op

m
en

t 
on

 a
 

pr
oj

ec
t 

sit
e 

pr
io

r 
to

 c
le

ar
in

g 
ar

ea
s 

of
 n

at
ur

al
 

ve
ge

ta
tio

n.
 S

ite
 p

la
ns

, 
su

rv
ey

s 
an

d 
su

bd
iv

isi
on

 
m

ap
s 

m
us

t 
de

lin
ea

te
 t

he
 o

pe
n 

sp
ac

e 
bo

un
da

ry
 

lin
es

 a
nd

 i
nc

lu
de

 t
he

 c
al

cu
la

tio
n 

of
 o

pe
n 

sp
ac

e 
ar

ea
s 

to
 

de
m

on
st

ra
te

 
co

nf
or

m
an

ce
 

w
ith

 
th

is 
st

an
da

rd
. 

Ap
pl

ica
nt

s 
m

us
t 

id
en

tif
y 

th
e 

re
ce

iv
in

g 
en

tit
y 

to
 w

hi
ch

 d
ed

ica
te

d 
op

en
 s

pa
ce

 w
ill

 b
e 

tr
an

sf
er

re
d 

as
 re

qu
ire

d 
by

 S
ta

nd
ar

d 
5.

3.
3.

6.
5.

 
 Pr

oj
ec

t 
sit

es
 t

ha
t 

do
 n

ot
 h

av
e 

su
ffi

cie
nt

 e
xis

tin
g 

na
tu

ra
l a

re
as

 to
 m

ee
t t

he
 o

pe
n 

sp
ac

e 
re

qu
ire

m
en

t 
sp

ec
ifi

ed
 in

 F
ig

ur
e 

5-
1 

du
e 

pr
io

r 
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t 
or

 
us

e,
 w

ill
 b

e 
re

qu
ire

d 
to

 re
ve

ge
ta

te
 a

re
as

 to
 sa

tis
fy

 
th

is 
st

an
da

rd
. T

hi
s 

w
ill

 in
clu

de
 s

ite
s 

th
at

 d
o 

no
t 

m
ee

t 
th

e 
op

en
 s

pa
ce

 r
eq

ui
re

m
en

t 
du

e 
to

 p
re

-
ex

ist
in

g 
cle

ar
in

g 
or

 
di

st
ur

ba
nc

e,
 

fo
rm

al
ize

d 
la

nd
sc

ap
ed

 a
nd

 
tu

rf 
ar

ea
s 

an
d/

or
 i

m
pe

rv
io

us
 

su
rfa

ce
s.  

Th
is 

st
an

da
rd

 co
nc

er
ns

 p
re

se
rv

at
io

n 
of

 n
at

ur
al

 ve
ge

ta
tio

n 
in

 la
rg

e 
un

br
ok

en
 b

lo
ck

s t
o 

es
ta

bl
ish

 o
pe

n 
sp

ac
es

 co
nt

ig
uo

us
 to

 o
n-

sit
e 

an
d 

of
f-s

ite
 p

ro
pe

rt
y.

  T
he

 p
ro

po
se

d 
ac

tio
n 

se
ek

s t
o 

pr
es

er
ve

 th
e 

ex
ist

in
g w

oo
de

d 
ar

ea
s a

nd
 re

cla
im

 th
e 

w
es

te
rn

 p
er

im
et

er
 a

nd
 n

or
th

w
es

te
rn

 co
rn

er
 o

f t
he

 si
te

 a
s p

ar
t o

f i
ts

 re
st

or
at

io
n 

pl
an

.  T
he

 p
ro

po
se

d 
ac

tio
n 

lim
its

 a
ny

 im
pr

ov
em

en
ts

 a
nd

 o
pe

ra
tio

ns
 to

 th
e 

ex
ist

in
g 

cle
ar

ed
 a

re
as

, r
ed

uc
es

 im
pe

rv
io

us
 su

rfa
ce

s, 
an

d 
in

cr
ea

se
s t

he
 n

at
iv

e 
ve

ge
ta

tio
n 

on
-s

ite
.  

Th
e 

ar
ea

 to
 b

e 
re

st
or

ed
 to

 n
at

iv
e 

ve
ge

ta
tio

n 
al

on
g 

th
e 

w
es

te
rn

 a
nd

 n
or

th
w

es
te

rn
 p

ar
ce

l b
ou

nd
ar

ie
s 

is 
co

nt
ig

uo
us

 to
 n

at
ur

al
 w

oo
de

d 
la

nd
 to

 t
he

 w
es

t a
nd

 n
or

th
 o

f t
he

 s
ub

je
ct

 
pr

op
er

ty
.  

Th
e 

pr
op

os
ed

 a
ct

io
n 

pr
ov

id
es

 a
dd

iti
on

al
 co

nt
ig

ui
ty

 o
f t

he
 n

at
ur

al
 a

re
a 

on
 th

e 
w

es
t p

ar
t o

f t
he

 si
te

 a
nd

 th
e 

ad
jo

in
in

g 
na

tu
ra

l a
re

as
 o

n 
th

e 
ad

jo
in

in
g 

pr
op

er
ty

 
to

 th
e 

w
es

t  
. 

 Th
e 

Ve
ge

ta
tio

n 
Cl

ea
ra

nc
e 

Lim
its

 in
 th

e 
CP

B 
CL

UP
 fa

vo
r t

he
 p

la
ce

m
en

t o
f d

ev
el

op
m

en
t i

n 
ex

ist
in

g c
le

ar
ed

 a
re

as
 in

 o
rd

er
 to

 re
ta

in
 n

at
ur

al
 ve

ge
ta

tio
n.

 T
hi

s d
es

ig
n 

st
ra

te
gy

 
is 

im
pl

em
en

te
d 

fo
r t

he
 A

pp
lic

an
t’s

 p
la

n,
 so

 th
at

 sp
at

ia
l e

ffi
cie

nc
y o

f t
he

 p
ro

po
se

d 
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t a
ck

no
w

le
dg

es
 th

e 
re

st
ric

tiv
e 

na
tu

re
 o

f a
llo

w
ab

le
 cl

ea
rin

g (
in

clu
di

ng
 th

e 
sit

e 
w

hi
ch

 h
as

 a
lre

ad
y 

be
en

 c
le

ar
ed

), 
w

hi
lst

 a
lso

 e
m

ph
as

izi
ng

 th
e 

ne
ed

 to
 cr

ea
te

 g
re

at
er

 p
ar

ce
ls 

of
 co

nt
ig

uo
us

 n
at

ur
al

 o
pe

n 
sp

ac
e 

an
d 

w
oo

de
d 

ar
ea

s. 
By

 a
dh

er
in

g 
to

 
th

e 
pr

op
os

ed
 p

la
ns

 a
nd

 th
es

e 
gu

id
el

in
es

, t
he

 p
ro

po
se

d 
ac

tio
n 

w
ill

 re
su

lt 
in

 a
 h

ea
lth

ie
r, 

m
or

e 
co

nt
ig

uo
us

 p
in

e 
ba

rr
en

s e
co

sy
st

em
. 

S 
5.

3.
3.

6.
3 

Fe
rt

ili
ze

r 
de

pe
nd

en
t 

ve
ge

ta
tio

n 
 

lim
it 

No
 m

or
e 

th
an

 1
5%

 o
f 

an
 e

nt
ire

 d
ev

el
op

m
en

t 
pr

oj
ec

t 
sit

e 
sh

al
l 

be
 

es
ta

bl
ish

ed
 

in
 

fe
rt

ili
ze

r-
de

pe
nd

en
t 

ve
ge

ta
tio

n 
in

clu
di

ng
 f

or
m

al
ize

d 
tu

rf 
ar

ea
s. 

Ge
ne

ra
lly

, 
no

nn
at

iv
e 

sp
ec

ie
s 

re
qu

ire
 

fe
rt

ili
za

tio
n 

th
er

ef
or

e,
 p

la
nt

in
g 

of
 s

uc
h 

no
nn

at
ive

 
sp

ec
ie

s 
sh

al
l b

e 
lim

ite
d 

to
 t

he
 m

ax
im

um
 e

xt
en

t 
pr

ac
tic

ab
le

. 
De

ve
lo

pm
en

t 
de

sig
ns

 
sh

al
l 

be
 

in
 

co
nf

or
m

an
ce

 
w

ith
 

St
an

da
rd

 
5.

3.
3.

6.
4 

Na
tiv

e 
pl

an
tin

gs
. 

No
 m

or
e 

th
an

 1
5%

 o
f a

 p
ro

je
ct

 si
te

 sh
al

l b
e 

es
ta

bl
ish

ed
 in

 fe
rt

ili
ze

r-d
ep

en
de

nt
 ve

ge
ta

tio
n.

  A
s t

he
 p

ro
je

ct
 si

te
 is

 a
 to

ta
l o

f 1
.4

4 
ac

re
s i

n,
 u

p 
to

 0
.2

16
 a

cr
es

 o
f l

an
ds

ca
pi

ng
 

th
at

 re
qu

ire
s f

er
til

iza
tio

n 
m

ay
 b

e 
pl

an
te

d 
on

 th
is 

sit
e.

  T
he

 su
bj

ec
t p

ro
pe

rt
y c

ur
re

nt
ly

 in
clu

de
s 0

.2
8 

ac
re

s o
f m

ai
nt

ai
ne

d 
la

nd
sc

ap
in

g,
 a

s i
t h

as
 si

nc
e 

pr
io

r t
o 

th
e 

ad
op

tio
n 

of
 th

e 
CL

UP
.  

Th
e 

pr
op

os
ed

 p
ro

je
ct

 w
ill

 co
nv

er
t a

 p
or

tio
n 

of
 th

e 
m

ai
nt

ai
ne

d 
la

nd
sc

ap
in

g 
in

 th
e 

so
ut

he
rn

 p
or

tio
n 

of
 th

e 
su

bj
ec

t p
ro

pe
rt

y t
o 

na
tiv

e 
ve

ge
ta

tio
n 

th
at

 d
oe

s 
no

t r
eq

ui
re

 ir
rig

at
io

n 
or

 fe
rt

ili
ze

r a
pp

lic
at

io
n 

in
 o

rd
er

 to
 c

om
pl

y 
w

ith
 th

is 
st

an
da

rd
.  

Th
er

ef
or

e,
 n

o 
m

or
e 

th
an

 1
5%

 o
f t

he
 p

ro
je

ct
 si

te
 w

ill
 b

e 
es

ta
bl

ish
ed

 in
 fe

rt
iliz

er
-

de
pe

nd
en

t v
eg

et
at

io
n 

un
de

r t
he

 p
ro

po
se

d 
ac

tio
n.

  A
s 

no
te

d 
pr

ev
io

us
ly

, u
nd

er
 t

he
 p

ro
po

se
d 

pr
oj

ec
t, 

a 
po

rt
io

n 
of

 im
pe

rv
io

us
 s

ur
fa

ce
 w

ill
 b

e 
re

st
or

ed
 w

ith
 n

at
iv

e 
ve

ge
ta

tio
n 

in
 o

rd
er

 to
 p

ro
vid

e 
m

or
e 

na
tu

ra
l a

re
as

 o
n-

sit
e,

 co
nt

ig
uo

us
 to

 a
dj

ac
en

t w
oo

de
d 

la
nd

.  
 Th

er
e 

m
ay

 b
e 

fe
rti

liz
er

 re
qu

ire
d 

fo
r t

he
 in

iti
al

 g
ro

w
th

 st
ag

e 
of

 th
e 

na
tiv

e 
ve

ge
ta

tio
n 

to
 b

e 
re

st
or

ed
 o

n 
sit

e 
to

 e
ns

ur
e 

es
ta

bl
ish

m
en

t, 
bu

t l
on

g-
te

rm
 u

se
 o

f f
er

til
ize

r i
s n

ot
 

an
tic

ip
at

ed
 e

xc
ep

t f
or

 th
e 

0.
22

 a
cr

es
 o

f m
ai

nt
ai

ne
d 

la
nd

sc
ap

in
g 

to
 re

m
ai

n.
  N

on
e 

of
 th

e 
no

n-
na

tiv
e 

sp
ec

ie
s l

ist
ed

 in
 F

ig
ur

e 
5-

2 
of

 th
e 

CL
UP

 w
ill 

be
 u

se
d 

as
 p

ar
t o

f t
he

 
pr

oj
ec

t’s
 fi

na
l s

ite
 p

la
n 

la
nd

sc
ap

e 
de

sig
n 

pl
an

s. 
 La

nd
sc

ap
e 

sp
ec

ie
s 

co
ns

ist
en

t w
ith

 th
e 

sp
ec

ie
s 

lis
t i

n 
Fi

gu
re

 5
-2

 (P
la

nt
in

g 
Re

co
m

m
en

da
tio

ns
) o

f t
he

 P
in

e 
Ba

rr
en

s 
Pl

an
 a

re
 b

ei
ng

 u
se

d 
as

 p
ar

t 
of

 th
e 

fin
al

 s
ite

 p
la

n 
la

nd
sc

ap
e 

de
sig

n 
pl

an
s. 

 T
yp

ica
l l

an
ds

ca
pe

 tr
ee

s t
ha

t a
re

 n
at

ive
 to

 th
e 

ar
ea

 w
ill 

be
 u

se
d 

fo
r  s

tr
ee

ts
ca

pe
s a

nd
 n

at
ur

al
 v

eg
et

at
io

n 
ar

e 
be

in
g 

re
ta

in
ed

 w
he

re
ve

r p
os

sib
le

.  

S 
5.

3.
3.

6.
4 

Na
tiv

e 
Pl

an
tin

gs
 

De
ve

lo
pm

en
t d

es
ig

ns
 sh

al
l in

co
rp

or
at

e 
th

e 
sp

ec
ie

s 
lis

t e
d 

as
 “

re
co

m
m

en
de

d”
 in

 F
ig

ur
e 

5-
2 

“P
la

nt
in

g 
Re

co
m

m
en

da
tio

ns
.” 

La
nd

sc
ap

in
g 

an
d 

re
st

or
at

io
n 

pl
an

s 
sh

al
l 

st
riv

e 
to

 
us

e 
Lo

ng
 

Isl
an

d 
na

tiv
e 

ge
no

ty
pe

s, 
un

le
ss

 t
he

 p
la

nt
s 

ar
e 

no
t a

va
ila

bl
e.

 A
 

m
or

e 
ex

te
ns

ive
 

lis
t 

of
 

ac
ce

pt
ab

le
 

an
d 

un
ac

ce
pt

ab
le

 
pl

an
ts

 
is 

av
ai

la
bl

e 
fro

m
 

th
e 

Co
m

m
iss

io
n 

of
fic

e.
 

W
he

re
 p

in
e 

ba
rr

en
s s

pe
cie

s a
re

 u
se

d 
in

 a
 la

nd
sc

ap
e 

fu
nc

tio
n,

 sp
ec

ie
s l

ist
ed

 in
 F

ig
ur

e 
5-

2 
of

 th
e 

CP
B 

CL
UP

 w
ill 

be
 u

se
d.

 S
ee

 re
sp

on
se

 to
 P

ol
icy

 S
 5

.3
.3

.6
.3

 a
bo

ve
. 



5 

S 
5.

3.
3.

6.
5 

Re
ce

iv
in

g 
en

tit
y 

an
d 

pr
ot

ec
tio

n 
fo

r o
pe

n 
sp

ac
e 

ar
ea

s 

Th
e 

us
e,

 m
ai

nt
en

an
ce

 a
nd

 m
an

ag
em

en
t 

of
 o

pe
n 

sp
ac

e 
sh

al
l b

e 
co

ns
id

er
ed

 w
he

n 
pr

ot
ec

tin
g 

op
en

 
sp

ac
e a

re
as

. T
he

 p
ro

je
ct

 a
pp

lic
an

t m
us

t s
pe

cif
y t

he
 

en
tit

y 
to

 w
hi

ch
 th

e 
op

en
 s

pa
ce

 w
ill

 b
e 

de
di

ca
te

d.
 

Th
e 

pr
ot

ec
tio

n 
of

 
th

e 
op

en
 

sp
ac

e 
sh

al
l 

be
 

gu
ar

an
te

ed
 b

y 
de

di
ca

tin
g 

th
e 

op
en

 s
pa

ce
 t

o 
a 

go
ve

rn
m

en
t 

en
tit

y,
 p

riv
at

e 
no

t 
fo

r 
pr

of
it,

 l
an

d 
co

ns
er

va
tio

n 
m

an
ag

em
en

t 
or

ga
ni

za
tio

n,
 

ho
m

eo
w

ne
r’s

 a
ss

oc
ia

tio
n 

or
 si

m
ila

r e
nt

ity
 th

ro
ug

h 
th

e 
tr

an
sf

er
 o

f t
itl

e 
or

 a
 p

er
m

an
en

t c
on

se
rv

at
io

n 
ea

se
m

en
t 

or
 c

ov
en

an
t 

re
co

rd
ed

 w
ith

 t
he

 S
uf

fo
lk 

Co
un

ty
 C

le
rk

, o
r s

im
ila

r m
ec

ha
ni

sm
 to

 e
ns

ur
e 

op
en

 
sp

ac
e 

pr
ot

ec
tio

n.
 

No
 d

ed
ica

te
d 

op
en

 sp
ac

e 
w

ill
 b

e 
tr

an
sf

er
re

d 
as

 p
ar

t o
f t

hi
s p

ro
po

se
d 

ac
tio

n.
 

5.
3.

3.
7 

Pr
ot

ec
tio

n 
an

d 
Co

ns
er

va
tio

n 
of

 S
pe

cie
s a

nd
 C

om
m

un
iti

es
 

S 
5.

3.
3.

7.
1 

Sp
ec

ia
l S

pe
cie

s 
an

d 
Ec

ol
og

ica
l 

Co
m

m
un

iti
es

 

W
he

re
 a

 s
ig

ni
fic

an
t 

im
pa

ct
 i

s 
pr

op
os

ed
 u

po
n 

a 
ha

bi
ta

t e
ss

en
tia

l t
o 

th
os

e 
sp

ec
ie

s i
de

nt
ifi

ed
 o

n 
th

e 
Ne

w
 

Yo
rk

 
St

at
e 

m
ai

nt
ai

ne
d 

lis
ts

 
as

 
ra

re
, 

th
re

at
en

ed
, e

nd
an

ge
re

d 
or

 o
f s

pe
cia

l c
on

ce
rn

, o
r 

up
on

 n
at

ur
al

 c
om

m
un

iti
es

 c
la

ss
ifi

ed
 b

y 
th

e 
Ne

w
 

Yo
rk

 St
at

e 
Na

tu
ra

l H
er

ita
ge

 P
ro

gr
am

 a
s G

1,
 G

2,
 G

3 
or

 
S1

, 
S2

 
or

 
S3

, 
or

 
on

 
an

y 
fe

de
ra

lly
 

lis
te

d 
en

da
ng

er
ed

 o
r 

th
re

at
en

ed
 s

pe
cie

s, 
ap

pr
op

ria
te

 
m

iti
ga

tio
n 

m
ea

su
re

s 
as

 
de

te
rm

in
ed

 
by

 
th

e 
ap

pr
op

ria
te

 s
ta

te
, 

co
un

ty
 o

r 
lo

ca
l 

go
ve

rn
m

en
t 

ag
en

cy
 sh

al
l b

e 
ta

ke
n 

to
 p

ro
te

ct
 th

es
e 

sp
ec

ie
s. 

Pe
r  t

he
 E

nv
iro

nm
en

ta
l R

es
ou

rc
e 

M
ap

pe
r, 

th
e 

su
bj

ec
t p

ro
pe

rty
 is

 si
tu

at
ed

 w
ith

in
 th

e 
vi

cin
ity

 o
f p

la
nt

s a
nd

 b
at

s l
ist

ed
 a

s e
nd

an
ge

re
d 

or
 th

re
at

en
ed

.  
As

 th
e 

pr
op

os
ed

 
ac

tio
n 

do
es

 n
ot

 in
vo

lv
e 

th
e 

di
st

ur
ba

nc
e 

of
 a

ny
 e

xis
tin

g 
na

tu
ra

l v
eg

et
at

io
n,

 n
o 

im
pa

ct
s 

to
 ra

re
, t

hr
ea

te
ne

d,
 o

r e
nd

an
ge

re
d 

sp
ec

ie
s i

s e
xp

ec
te

d.
  T

he
 o

nl
y 

ar
ea

s o
f t

he
 

su
bj

ec
t p

ro
pe

rt
y 

to
 b

e 
di

st
ur

be
d 

un
de

r t
he

 p
ro

po
se

d 
ac

tio
n 

in
clu

de
 im

pe
rv

io
us

 su
rfa

ce
s, 

w
hi

ch
 w

ill
 in

clu
de

 a
re

as
 to

 b
e 

re
st

or
ed

 to
 a

 m
or

e 
na

tu
ra

l s
ta

te
, w

hi
ch

 w
ill 

im
pr

ov
e 

th
e 

qu
al

ity
 o

f p
ot

en
tia

l h
ab

ita
t f

or
 w

ild
lif

e 
sp

ec
ie

s. 
 A

s s
uc

h,
 n

o 
en

da
ng

er
ed

 o
r t

hr
ea

te
ne

d 
sp

ec
ie

s a
re

 e
xp

ec
te

d 
to

 b
e 

pr
es

en
t i

n 
ar

ea
s t

ha
t w

ou
ld

 b
e 

di
st

ur
be

d 
on

 th
e 

pr
op

os
ed

 ac
tio

n 
sit

e.
  In

 ad
di

tio
n,

 n
o 

ex
ist

in
g n

at
ur

al
 ve

ge
ta

tio
n 

w
ill

 b
e 

re
m

ov
ed

 fr
om

 th
e 

sit
e 

an
d 

pa
rt 

of
 th

e l
aw

n 
w

ill
 b

e 
co

nv
er

te
d 

to
 u

nm
ai

nt
ai

ne
d 

ve
ge

ta
tio

n.
  

Th
e 

na
tu

ra
l v

eg
et

at
io

n 
fri

ng
e 

on
 th

e 
w

es
t p

ar
t o

f t
he

 si
te

 w
ill

 b
e 

ex
pa

nd
ed

 a
s a

 re
su

lt 
of

 th
e 

pr
op

os
ed

 p
ro

je
ct

.  
Co

ns
eq

ue
nt

ly
, n

o 
im

pa
ct

s a
re

 e
xp

ec
te

d 
w

ith
 re

sp
ec

t t
o 

sp
ec

ia
l s

pe
cie

s a
nd

/o
r e

co
lo

gi
ca

l c
om

m
un

iti
es

 a
nd

 th
e 

pr
op

os
ed

 a
ct

io
n 

co
nf

or
m

s t
o 

th
is 

st
an

da
rd

.  
 

S 
5.

3.
3.

7.
2 

Bi
rd

 
co

ns
er

va
tio

n 
an

d 
pr

ot
ec

tio
n 

De
ve

lo
pm

en
t 

pr
oj

ec
ts

 
sh

al
l 

in
co

rp
o r

at
e 

bi
rd

 
fri

e n
dl

y 
st

ru
ct

ur
es

, 
de

sig
n 

an
d 

sit
e 

pl
an

ni
ng

 
el

em
en

ts
 t

o 
re

du
ce

 b
ird

 s
tr

ik
es

 a
nd

 m
or

ta
lit

y 
to

 
th

e 
gr

ea
te

st
 

ex
te

nt
 

fe
as

ib
le

. 
Se

ek
 

gu
id

an
ce

 
pr

ov
id

ed
 in

 t
he

 A
m

er
ica

n 
Bi

rd
 C

on
se

rv
an

cy
 e

t 
al

 
pu

bl
ica

tio
n 

“B
ird

 
Fr

ie
nd

ly
 

Bu
ild

in
g 

De
sig

n,
” 

av
ai

la
bl

e 
fro

m
 th

ei
r w

eb
sit

e.
 

Th
e 

pr
op

os
ed

 a
ct

io
n 

w
ill

 u
til

ize
 th

e 
ex

ist
in

g 
bu

ild
in

g 
de

sig
n 

in
 o

rd
er

 to
 li

m
it 

im
pa

ct
s t

o 
un

de
ve

lo
pe

d 
ar

ea
s o

f t
he

 su
bj

ec
t p

ro
pe

rt
y.

  T
he

re
fo

re
, t

hi
s s

ta
nd

ar
d 

do
es

 n
ot

 
ap

pl
y 

as
 n

o 
ne

w
 st

ru
ct

ur
es

 a
re

 p
ro

po
se

d.
 

5.
3.

3.
9 

Da
rk

 S
ky

 C
om

pl
ia

nc
e 

S 
5.

3.
3.

9.
1 

Lig
ht

 P
ol

lu
tio

n 
Pr

ev
en

tio
n 

Th
is 

st
an

da
rd

 a
pp

lie
s 

on
ly 

to
 p

ro
je

ct
s 

w
hi

ch
 a

re
 

no
t  s

ub
je

ct
 to

 lo
ca

l m
un

ici
pa

l r
ev

ie
w

 an
d 

ap
pr

ov
al

. 
Th

e 
ca

nd
le

po
w

er
 

di
st

rib
ut

io
n 

fro
m

 
lig

ht
in

g 
fix

tu
re

s 
an

d 
in

st
al

la
tio

ns
 s

ha
ll 

be
 c

ut
 o

ff 
at

 a
ll 

an
gl

es
 b

ey
on

d 
th

os
e 

re
qu

ire
d 

to
 r

es
tr

ict
 d

ire
ct

 
ill

um
in

at
io

n 
to

 t
he

 s
pe

cif
ic 

ar
ea

 o
r 

su
rfa

ce
 b

ei
ng

 
ill

um
in

at
ed

. D
ev

el
op

m
en

t 
sh

al
l u

til
ize

 f
ul

l c
ut

of
f 

lig
ht

in
g 

th
at

 
di

re
ct

s 
al

l 
lig

ht
 

do
w

nw
ar

d 
an

d 
el

im
in

at
es

 s
pi

ll 
lig

ht
 a

nd
 d

ire
ct

 u
pw

ar
d 

lig
ht

. 
Fi

xt
ur

es
 m

us
t b

e 
no

te
d 

on
 th

e 
pr

op
os

ed
 s

ite
 p

la
n 

as
 d

ar
k-

sk
y 

co
m

pl
ia

nt
 f

ixt
ur

es
. 

Ex
ist

in
g 

ex
te

rio
r 

fix
tu

re
s 

on
 a

 d
ev

el
op

m
en

t 
pr

oj
ec

t 
sit

e 
sh

al
l 

be
 

re
tr

of
itt

ed
 a

cc
or

di
ng

ly
. 

Th
is 

st
an

da
rd

 d
oe

s n
ot

 a
pp

ly
, a

s t
he

 p
ro

je
ct

 is
 su

bj
ec

t t
o 

lo
ca

l m
un

ici
pa

l r
ev

ie
w

 a
nd

 a
pp

ro
va

l a
ss

oc
ia

te
d 

w
ith

 th
e 

Ch
an

ge
 o

f Z
on

e 
ap

pl
ica

tio
n.

 N
o 

ch
an

ge
s t

o 
lig

ht
in

g 
fro

m
 th

e e
xis

tin
g c

on
di

tio
n 

ar
e 

pr
op

os
ed

; h
ow

ev
er

, c
om

pl
ia

nc
e w

ith
 cu

rr
en

t l
ig

ht
in

g r
eq

ui
re

m
en

ts
 w

ill
 b

e 
ac

hi
ev

ed
 th

ro
ug

h 
sit

e 
pl

an
 re

vi
ew

 b
y t

he
 To

w
n 

of
 B

ro
ok

ha
ve

n.
  

Su
ch

 re
qu

ire
m

en
ts

 . 
in

clu
de

 cu
to

ff 
lig

ht
in

g,
 d

ar
k-

sk
y 

co
m

pl
ia

nc
e 

an
d 

no
 lu

m
in

ai
re

s b
ey

on
d 

th
e 

pr
op

er
ty

 li
ne

.  
Lig

ht
in

g 
w

ill 
on

ly 
be

 u
se

d 
fo

r s
af

et
y 

an
d 

se
cu

rit
y 

an
d 

w
ill

 
co

m
pl

y 
w

ith
 T

ow
n 

re
qu

ire
m

en
ts

. 

5.
3.

3.
11

 S
ce

ni
c, 

Hi
st

or
ic 

an
d 

Cu
ltu

ra
l R

es
ou

rc
es

 

S 
5.

3.
3.

11
.1

 
Ta

ll 
st

ru
ct

ur
es

 
an

d 
sc

en
ic 

re
so

ur
ce

s 

Th
is 

st
an

da
rd

 a
pp

lie
s 

to
 p

ro
je

ct
s 

no
t 

su
bj

ec
t 

to
 

lo
ca

l 
m

un
ici

pa
l 

re
vi

ew
. 

A 
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t 
pr

oj
ec

t 
su

bj
ec

t 
to

 t
hi

s 
st

an
da

rd
 m

us
t 

no
t 

ex
ce

ed
 t

he
 

he
i g

ht
 d

ef
in

iti
on

 f
or

 t
al

l s
tru

ct
ur

es
 in

 C
ha

pt
er

 4
, 

Th
e 

s u
bj

ec
t s

ite
 is

 cu
rr

en
tly

 fu
lly

 d
ev

el
op

ed
 w

ith
 a

 b
an

k 
bu

ild
in

g 
th

at
 h

as
 n

ot
 b

ee
n 

oc
cu

pi
ed

 si
nc

e 
20

19
 a

nd
 th

e 
sit

e 
w

ill
 co

nt
in

ue
 to

 b
e 

us
ed

 fo
r c

om
m

er
cia

l p
ur

po
se

s. 
Th

is 
st

an
da

rd
 d

oe
s n

ot
 a

pp
ly

, a
s t

he
 p

ro
je

ct
 is

 su
bj

ec
t t

o 
lo

ca
l m

un
ici

pa
l r

ev
ie

w
 a

nd
 a

pp
ro

va
l a

ss
oc

ia
te

d 
w

ith
 th

e 
Ch

an
ge

 o
f Z

on
e 

ap
pl

ica
tio

n.
  T

he
re

 a
re

 n
o 

ch
an

ge
s 

pr
op

os
ed

 to
 th

e 
he

ig
ht

 o
f t

he
 e

xis
tin

g 
st

ru
ct

ur
e.

  



6 

Se
ct

io
n 

4.
3.

11
. T

hi
s s

ta
nd

ar
d 

re
qu

ire
s, 

in
 p

ar
t, 

th
e 

ad
ap

tiv
e 

us
e 

an
d 

re
us

e 
of

 e
xis

tin
g 

ta
ll 

st
ru

ct
ur

es
 

ra
th

er
 t

ha
n 

th
e 

co
ns

tr
uc

tio
n 

an
d 

pl
ac

em
en

t 
of

 
ne

w
 

on
es

 
w

he
n 

an
d 

w
he

re
 

fe
as

ib
le

 
an

d 
ap

pr
op

ria
te

.  

G 
5.

3.
3.

11
.2

 
Cu

ltu
ra

l 
re

so
ur

ce
 

co
ns

id
er

at
io

n 

De
ve

lo
pm

en
t 

pr
op

os
al

s 
sh

ou
ld

 
ac

co
un

t 
fo

r, 
re

vi
ew

, a
nd

 p
ro

vid
e 

pr
ot

ec
tio

n 
m

ea
su

re
s f

or
: 

1.
 

Es
ta

bl
ish

ed
 re

cr
ea

tio
na

l a
nd

 e
du

ca
tio

na
l t

ra
ils

 
an

d 
tr

ai
l c

or
rid

or
s, 

in
clu

di
ng

 b
ut

 n
ot

 li
m

ite
d 

to
 

th
os

e 
tr

ai
l c

or
rid

or
s 

in
ve

nt
or

ie
d 

el
se

w
he

re
 in

 
th

is 
Pl

an
. 

2.
 

Ac
tiv

e 
re

cr
ea

tio
n 

sit
es

, i
nc

lu
di

ng
 e

xis
tin

g 
sit

es
 

an
d 

th
os

e 
pr

op
os

ed
 a

s p
ar

t o
f a

 d
ev

el
op

m
en

t. 
3.

  S
ce

ni
c c

or
rid

or
s, 

ro
ad

s, 
vi

st
as

 a
nd

 vi
ew

po
in

ts
 a

s 
do

cu
m

en
te

d 
in

 V
ol

um
e 

2 
of

 t
hi

s 
Pl

an
, 

an
d 

w
hi

ch
 a

re
 li

st
ed

 in
 F

ig
ur

e 
5-

2,
 w

hi
ch

 m
ay

 b
e 

am
en

de
d 

fro
m

 ti
m

e 
to

 ti
m

e,
 in

 V
ol

um
e 

I o
f t

hi
s 

Pl
an

 a
nd

 m
ay

 b
e 

lo
ca

te
d 

in
 C

rit
ica

l R
es

ou
rc

e 
Ar

ea
s, 

an
d 

al
on

g 
th

e 
Lo

ng
 Is

la
nd

 E
xp

re
ss

w
ay

, 
Su

nr
ise

 H
ig

hw
ay

, C
ou

nt
y R

oa
d 

11
1 

an
d 

W
ill

ia
m

 
Fl

oy
d 

Pa
rk

w
ay

. 
4.

 
Si

te
s 

of
 

hi
st

or
ica

l 
or

 
cu

ltu
ra

l 
sig

ni
fic

an
ce

, 
in

clu
di

ng
 h

ist
or

ic 
di

st
ric

ts
, s

ite
s o

n 
th

e 
St

at
e 

or
 

Na
tio

na
l 

Re
gi

st
er

s 
of

 
Hi

st
or

ic 
Pl

ac
es

, 
an

d 
hi

st
or

ic 
st

ru
ct

ur
es

 
lis

te
d 

on
 

th
e 

St
at

e 
or

 
Na

tio
na

l 
Re

gi
st

er
s 

of
 

Hi
st

or
ic 

Pl
ac

es
, 

or
 

re
co

gn
ize

d 
by

 lo
ca

l m
un

ici
pa

l l
aw

 o
r s

ta
tu

te
. 

5.
Se

ns
iti

ve
 a

rc
ha

eo
lo

gi
ca

l a
re

as
 a

s 
id

en
tif

ie
d 

by
 

th
e 

Ne
w

 Yo
rk

 St
at

e H
ist

or
ic 

Pr
es

er
va

tio
n 

Of
fic

e 
or

 th
e 

Ne
w

 Y
or

k 
St

at
e 

M
us

eu
m

. 

Th
e 

p r
op

os
ed

 a
ct

io
n 

w
ill

 n
ot

 im
pa

ct
 a

ny
 tr

ai
ls,

 re
cr

ea
tio

n 
sit

es
, s

ce
ni

c r
es

ou
rc

es
, s

ite
s o

f h
ist

or
ic

 o
r c

ul
tu

ra
l s

ig
ni

fic
an

ce
, o

r s
en

sit
ive

 a
rc

ha
eo

lo
gi

ca
l a

re
as

, a
s t

he
re

 a
re

 
no

 su
ch

 re
so

ur
ce

s o
n-

sit
e 

or
 im

m
ed

ia
te

ly 
ad

ja
ce

nt
 to

 th
e 

su
bj

ec
t p

ro
pe

rty
.  

Al
l a

re
as

 to
 b

e 
di

st
ur

be
d 

un
de

r t
he

 p
ro

po
se

d 
ac

tio
n 

ha
ve

 b
ee

n 
pr

ev
io

us
ly

 d
ist

ur
be

d.
  T

he
 

on
ly 

ch
an

ge
 in

 si
te

 co
ve

ra
ge

s p
ro

po
se

d 
in

vo
lve

s t
he

 c
on

ve
rs

io
n 

of
 a

n 
ar

ea
 o

f i
m

pe
rv

io
us

 p
av

em
en

t t
o 

na
tiv

e 
ve

ge
ta

tio
n 

an
d 

th
e 

co
nv

er
sio

n 
of

 a
n 

ar
ea

 o
f m

ai
nt

ai
ne

d 
la

w
n 

to
 n

at
ive

 v
eg

et
at

io
n.

  

G 
5 .

3.
3.

11
.5

 
Ro

ad
sid

e 
de

sig
n 

an
d 

m
an

ag
em

en
t 

Un
di

st
ur

be
d 

po
rt

io
ns

 o
f 

th
e 

ro
ad

sid
e 

sh
ou

ld
 b

e 
m

ai
nt

ai
ne

d 
in

 a
 m

an
ne

r 
th

at
 p

ro
te

ct
s 

th
e 

sc
en

ic 
fe

at
ur

es
 o

f t
he

se
 a

re
as

. C
le

ar
in

g (
in

clu
di

ng
 th

at
 fo

r 
ai

sle
s, 

dr
iv

ew
ay

s, 
ac

ce
ss

 
an

d 
pa

rk
in

g)
 

is 
no

t 
pr

ec
lu

de
d 

w
ith

in
 t

he
se

 r
oa

ds
id

e 
ar

ea
s, 

pr
ov

id
ed

 
th

at
 a

pp
ro

pr
ia

te
 b

uf
fe

rs
 a

re
 m

ai
nt

ai
ne

d,
 a

nd
 th

at
 

m
an

m
ad

e 
st

ru
ct

ur
es

 m
ee

t 
st

an
da

rd
s 

co
ns

ist
en

t 
w

ith
 th

e 
c h

ar
ac

te
r o

f t
he

 a
re

a.
 

Th
e 

p r
oj

ec
t c

om
pl

ie
s w

ith
 th

is 
Gu

id
el

in
e.

  N
o 

ro
ad

sid
e 

ar
ea

s a
re

 p
ro

po
se

d 
to

 b
e 

cle
ar

ed
.  

Th
e 

pr
op

os
ed

 p
ro

je
ct

 w
ill

 u
til

ize
 e

xis
tin

g 
ve

hi
cle

 a
cc

es
s p

oi
nt

s. 

 



DRAFT 

1 
 

May 21, 2025 
 
Eric Helman, Esq. 
Amato Law Group 
666 Old Country Road, 9th Floor 
Garden City, NY 11530 
 
Re:  Verizon Wireless at Suffolk County STP Property 
  2195 William Floyd Parkway, Ridge 

SCTM # 200-242-1-1.2 and 1.4 
  Compatible Growth Area of the Central Pine Barrens 
 
Dear Mr. Helman: 
 
On March 20, 2025, the Central Pine Barrens Commission office received material 
for Commission review on the referenced proposal. The project site is in the Central 
Pine Barrens Compatible Growth Area. 
 
Prior submissions to the Commission were made on a cell tower project that the 
Commission provided comments in letters dated February 19, 2020 and April 22, 
2020. The project was never built. 
 
Existing Conditions 
The project site consists of two tax parcels totaling 10.59 acres that are owned by 
Suffolk County. The property is in the A1 Residence Zoning District. It is located on 
the west side of William Floyd Parkway, north of Whiskey Road, in Ridge, in the 
Compatible Growth Area of the Central Pine Barrens.  
 
The property contains Suffolk County Sewer District #20 Sewage Treatment Plant 
(STP). The facility is depicted in the survey dated October 22, 2014, last revised May 
15, 2020, prepared by Carman-Dunne, P.C. Approximately 52% of the site is cleared 
and 48% is naturally vegetated. 
 
Project Description 
 
The proposed project is to develop a 120-foot tall monopole and leased equipment 
compound. Other items in the project have increased in size since the 2020 proposal, 
including: 

 
• the fenced equipment compound from 1,200 square feet to 1,650 square feet  
• the concrete pad supporting the equipment cabinets and emergency generator 

from 120 square feet to 200 square feet  
• the concrete pad supporting the propane tank within the compound from 18 

square feet to 40 square feet 
• the amount of propane storage from two, 120 gallon tanks totaling 240 gallons to 

one, 500 gallon propane tank 
• removal of three trees (no tree removal in 2020 proposal) 

 
 
 
 
 

Timothy C. Hubbard 
Member  

 
Maria Z. Moore 

Member 
 

Daniel J. Panico 
Member 

 
Edward P. Romaine 

Member 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

624 Old Riverhead Road 
Westhampton Beach, NY 

11978 
 

Phone (631) 288-1079 
Fax (631) 288-1367 
www.pb.state.ny.us 

http://www.pb.state.ny.us/


DRAFT 

2 
 

• Installation of 14 bollards (no bollards in 2020 proposal) 
 
Central Pine Barrens Status 
 
The proposal appears to constitute development activity pursuant to New York State 
Environmental Conservation Law (ECL) Article 57. Therefore, the proposal must conform to the 
standards for land use in Chapter 5 of the Central Pine Barrens Comprehensive Land Use Plan 
(the Plan). If the project does not conform, the application may be revised to conform or the 
applicant must apply for a CGA Hardship Waiver from the Commission, subject to review and 
decision.  
 

• Vegetation Clearing: 
o Please confirm the clearing limits are applied to the whole project site, not just the 

area occupied by the project.  
o Provide clearing data under existing conditions and the final amounts with the 

project including cleared and natural areas. 
o Confirm the project conforms with the A1 Residence zoning district limit of 53% 

limit, not the public corporation limit of 60%. 
 

• The project site may be over cleared; more information is needed. In that case, no 
clearing may occur absent a hardship. Avoid cutting the three trees on the fence line. The 
trees are outside of the area of disturbance. Consider revising the project to utilize cleared 
areas such as shifting the fence to utilize a cleared area and avoid cutting trees.  

 
• The changes and increases in the development activity are substantial enough to cause a 

new project. The structure height exceeds the tall structure limit and therefore if the 
project cannot be revised would require a hardship. 
 

• Coordinate review of the application with Suffolk County as the owner of the property 
and forward a copy of the County’s decision and/or agreement. 
 

The applicant is encouraged to revise the project to conform with the Plan standards. If the 
project cannot be revised to conform, please submit a hardship waiver application.  
 
The proposal must conform to all other involved agency jurisdictions and permit requirements in 
effect on the project site. Thank you for your attention, and if you have any questions, please do 
not hesitate to contact me at (631) 218-1192. 
 
Sincerely, 
 
 
Julie Hargrave 
Pine Barrens Manager 
 
cc: Judy Jakobsen Executive Director 
 John Milazzo, Counsel  





























 X  X 

EN
G

IN
EE

R
IN

G

56
7 

VA
U

XH
AL

L 
ST

R
EE

T 
EX

TE
N

SI
O

N
 - 

SU
IT

E 
31

1
W

AT
ER

FO
R

D
, C

T 
06

38
5 

   
   

 
   

 P
H

: (
86

0)
-6

63
-1

69
7

W
W

W
.A

LL
PO

IN
TS

TE
C

H
.C

O
M

   
 F

AX
: (

86
0)

-6
63

-0
93

5

A
PT

LO
C

A
TI

O
N

 C
O

D
E:

VZ
 F

U
ZE

 ID
:

VZ
 C

M
:  

O
Z

D
A

TE
:

A
PT

 F
IL

IN
G

 N
U

M
B

ER
:

VE
R

IZ
O

N
 A

T
"S

EW
ER

 D
IS

TR
IC

T 
#2

0"
SI

TE
A

D
D

R
ES

S:

SH
EE

T 
TI

TL
E:

C
O

N
ST

R
U

C
TI

O
N

 D
O

C
U

M
EN

TS

D
R

A
W

N
 B

Y:
CS

H/
EL

Z

C
H

EC
K

ED
 B

Y:
 R

C
B

SH
EE

T 
N

U
M

B
ER

:

N
O

TE
:

IT
 IS

 A
 V

IO
LA

TI
O

N
 O

F 
N

EW
 Y

O
R

K
 S

TA
TE

ED
U

C
A

TI
O

N
 L

A
W

 A
R

TI
C

LE
 1

45
, S

EC
TI

O
N

72
09

 (2
) F

O
R

 A
N

Y 
PE

R
SO

N
, U

N
LE

SS
A

C
TI

N
G

 U
N

D
ER

 T
H

E 
D

IR
EC

TI
O

N
 O

F 
A

LI
C

EN
SE

D
 P

R
O

FE
SS

IO
N

A
L 

EN
G

IN
EE

R
 O

R
LA

N
D

 S
U

R
VE

YO
R

, T
O

 A
LT

ER
 A

N
 IT

EM
 IN

A
N

Y 
W

A
Y.

 IF
 A

N
 IT

EM
 B

EA
R

IN
G

 T
H

E 
SE

A
L

O
F 

A
N

 E
N

G
IN

EE
R

 O
R

 L
A

N
D

 S
U

R
VE

YO
R

 IS
A

LT
ER

ED
, T

H
E 

A
LT

ER
IN

G
 E

N
G

IN
EE

R
 O

R
LA

N
D

 S
U

R
VE

YO
R

 S
H

A
LL

 A
FF

IX
 T

O
 T

H
E

IT
EM

 H
IS

 S
EA

L 
A

N
D

 T
H

E 
N

O
TA

TI
O

N
"A

LT
ER

ED
 B

Y"
 F

O
LL

O
W

ED
 B

Y 
TH

E
SI

G
N

A
TU

R
E 

A
N

D
 T

H
E 

D
A

TE
 O

F 
SU

C
H

A
LT

ER
A

TI
O

N
, A

N
D

 A
 S

PE
C

IF
IC

D
ES

C
R

IP
TI

O
N

 O
F 

TH
E 

A
LT

ER
A

TI
O

N
.

O
W

N
ER

:
A

D
D

R
ES

S:

D
ES

IG
N

 P
R

O
FE

SS
IO

N
A

LS
 O

F 
R

EC
O

R
D

D
A

TE
N

O
R

EV
IS

IO
N

06
/1

0/
20

15
08

39
89

N
Y1

41
N

B
16

10

06
/1

0/
20

0
FO

R
 R

EV
IE

W
: R

C
B

1 2 3 4 5 6

SU
FF

O
LK

 C
O

U
N

TY
10

0 
VE

TE
R

A
N

S 
M

EM
O

R
IA

L 
PK

W
Y

H
A

U
PP

A
U

G
E,

 N
Y 

11
78

8

4
 C

E
N

T
E

R
O

C
K

 R
O

A
D

W
E

S
T
 N

Y
A

C
K

, 
N

Y
 1

0
9
9
4

21
95

 W
IL

LI
A

M
 F

LO
YD

 P
A

R
K

W
A

Y
R

ID
G

E,
 N

Y

PR
O

F:
 S

C
O

TT
 M

. C
H

A
SS

E 
 P

.E
.

C
O

M
P:

A
PT

 E
N

G
IN

EE
R

IN
G

A
D

D
:  

 5
67

 V
A

U
XH

A
LL

 S
TR

EE
T 

  E
XT

EN
SI

O
N

 - 
SU

IT
E 

31
1

W
A

TE
R

FO
R

D
, C

T 
06

38
5

01
/1

4/
21

R
EV

. G
EN

ER
A

TO
R

: R
C

B
10

/1
0/

24
C

O
U

N
TY

 R
EV

IS
IO

N
S:

 R
C

B
11

/2
5/

24
EN

V.
 C

O
M

M
EN

TS
: R

C
B

12
/0

3/
24

EN
V.

 C
O

M
M

EN
TS

: R
C

B

TI
TL

E 
SH

EE
T

&
 IN

D
EX

T-
1

V
Z

 S
IT

E
 N

A
M

E
:

V
Z

 S
IT

E
 P

R
O

JE
C

T
 C

O
D

E
:

L
O

C
A

T
IO

N
 C

O
D

E
:

L
O

C
A

T
IO

N
:

S
IT

E
 T

Y
P

E
/D

E
S

C
R

IP
T
IO

N
:

G
E

N
E

R
A

T
O

R
 IN

F
O

R
M

A
T
IO

N
:

S
IT

E
 O

W
N

E
R

:

S
IT

E
 C

O
N

T
A

C
T
:

L
E

A
S

IN
G

 C
O

N
T
A

C
T
:

E
N

G
IN

E
E

R
 C

O
N

T
A

C
T
:

L
A

T
IT

U
D

E
:

L
O

N
G

IT
U

D
E

:
E

L
E

V
A

T
IO

N
:

D
IS

T
R

IC
T
:

 S
E

C
T
IO

N
:

B
L
O

C
K

:
L
O

T
:

Z
O

N
IN

G
 J

U
R

IS
D

IC
T
IO

N
:

Z
O

N
IN

G
 D

IS
T
R

IC
T
:

S
IT

E
 IN

F
O

R
M

A
T
IO

N
"R

ID
G

E
 2

 (
S

D
 #

2
0
)"

2
0
1
1
6
2
0
0
8
2

1
7
3
1
7
7

2
1
9
5
 W

IL
L
IA

M
 F

L
O

Y
D

 P
A

R
K

W
A

Y
R

ID
G

E
, 
N

Y
 1

1
9
6
1

R
A

W
L
A

N
D

 S
IT

E
 W

/ 
G

R
O

U
N

D
 E

Q
U

IP
M

E
N

T
 IN

1
,6

5
0
±

 S
F

 T
E

L
E

C
O

M
M

U
N

IC
A

T
IO

N
S

C
O

M
P

O
U

N
D

 W
/ 
N

E
W

 1
2
0
'±

 A
G

L
 M

O
N

O
P

O
L
E

K
O

H
L
E

R
5
0
kW

 L
P

G
-P

O
W

E
R

E
D

 G
E

N
E

R
A

T
O

R

C
O

U
N

T
Y

 O
F

 S
U

F
F

O
L
K

1
0
0
 V

E
T
E

R
A

N
S

 M
E

M
O

R
IA

L
 P

A
R

K
W

A
Y

H
A

U
P

P
A

U
G

E
, 
N

Y
 1

1
7
8
8

M
IC

H
A

E
L
 J

O
H

N
S

O
N

 (
6
3
1
) 
8
5
3
-8

0
9
2

R
O

B
E

R
T
 M

O
N

T
E

L
E

O
N

E
 (
5
1
6
) 
3
1
6
-4

6
2
6

R
O

B
E

R
T
 B

U
R

N
S

(8
6
0
) 
5
5
2
-2

0
3
6

4
0
° 

5
4
' 5

8
.1

7
" 
N

7
2
° 

5
2
' 5

1
.0

8
" 
W

8
6
' A

M
S

L

2
0
0

2
4
2

0
1
.0

0
1
.2

S
U

F
F

O
L
K

 C
O

U
N

T
Y

, 
N

Y
W

A
S

T
E

 H
A

N
D

L
IN

G
/M

G
M

T

PR
O

JE
C

T#
  2

01
16

20
08

2
"S

EW
ER

 D
IS

TR
IC

T 
#2

0"
21

95
 W

IL
LI

A
M

 F
LO

YD
 P

A
R

K
W

A
Y

R
ID

G
E,

 N
Y 

11
96

1

A
P

P
L
IC

A
N

T
: 
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

V
E

R
IZ

O
N

 P
R

O
JE

C
T
 A

T
T
O

R
N

E
Y

: 
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

P
O

W
E

R
 P

R
O

V
ID

E
R

: 
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

T
E

L
C

O
 P

R
O

V
ID

E
R

: 
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

D
IG

 S
A

F
E

L
Y

 N
E

W
 Y

O
R

K
: 
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

G
O

V
E

R
N

IN
G

 C
O

D
E

S
:

V
E

R
IZ

O
N

4
 C

E
N

T
E

R
O

C
K

 R
D

.
 W

E
S

T
 N

Y
A

C
K

, 
N

Y
 1

0
9
9
4

A
M

A
T
O

 L
A

W
 G

R
O

U
P

, 
P

L
L
C

6
6
6
 O

L
D

 C
O

U
N

T
R

Y
 R

O
A

D
S

U
IT

E
 9

0
1

G
A

R
D

E
N

 C
IT

Y
, 
N

Y
 1

1
5
3
0

(5
1
6
) 
2
2
7
-6

3
6
3

V
E

R
IZ

O
N

 (
9
1
4
) 
8
9
0
-0

2
0
0

(8
0
0
) 
9
6
2
-7

9
6
2

 2
0
2
0
 N

E
W

 Y
O

R
K

 S
T
A

T
E

 U
N

IF
O

R
M

 F
IR

E
 P

R
E

V
E

N
T
IO

N
&

 B
U

IL
D

IN
G

 C
O

D
E

N
A

T
IO

N
A

L
 E

L
E

C
T
R

IC
 C

O
D

E
T
IA

-2
2
2
-H

W
IR

EL
ES

S 
SE

R
VI

C
ES

 F
A

C
IL

IT
Y

W
ES

T 
N

YA
C

K
, N

EW
 Y

O
R

K

T-
1

C
R

-1
 - 

C
R

-4

1 
O

F 
1

SP
-1

SP
-2 A
-1

EC
-1

C
-1

C
-2

C
-3 M
-1 S-
1

E-
1

E-
2

E-
3

E-
4

N
-1L
IS

T
 O

F
 D

R
A

W
IN

G
S

TI
TL

E 
SH

EE
T 

&
 IN

D
EX

SU
FF

O
LK

 C
O

U
N

TY
 B

U
IL

D
IN

G
 C

O
D

E 
R

EV
IE

W

SU
R

VE
Y 

O
F 

PR
O

PE
R

TY
 A

T 
R

ID
G

E

SI
TE

 P
LA

N

PA
R

TI
A

L 
SI

TE
 P

LA
N

C
O

M
PO

U
N

D
 P

LA
N

 &
 T

O
W

ER
 E

LE
VA

TI
O

N

ER
O

SI
O

N
 C

O
N

TR
O

L 
N

O
TE

S

EQ
U

IP
M

EN
T 

A
R

EA
 P

LA
N

 &
 D

ET
A

IL
S

A
N

TE
N

N
A

 P
LA

N
 &

 D
ET

A
IL

S

SI
TE

 D
ET

A
IL

S

M
EC

H
A

N
IC

A
L 

PL
A

N
 &

 D
ET

A
IL

S

ST
R

U
C

TU
R

A
L 

PL
A

N
 &

 D
ET

A
IL

S

EL
EC

TR
IC

A
L 

R
IS

ER
 &

 D
ET

A
IL

S

EL
EC

TR
IC

A
L 

PL
A

N
, O

N
E 

LI
N

E 
D

IA
G

R
A

M
  &

 D
ET

A
IL

S

G
R

O
U

N
D

IN
G

 P
LA

N
S

G
R

O
U

N
D

IN
G

 D
ET

A
IL

S

N
O

TE
S 

&
 S

PE
C

IF
IC

A
TI

O
N

S

P
S

E
G

 L
I: 

(8
0
0
) 
4
9
0
-0

0
2
5

LO
C

A
TI

O
N

 M
A

P

TRUE

O
R

IE
N

TA
TI

O
N

 M
A

P

TRUE

SC
A

LE
 : 

1"
 =

 1
00

0'
-0

"
SC

A
LE

 : 
1"

 =
 3

50
'-0

"

S
IT

E

N
E

W
 V

E
R

IZ
O

N
 1

2
0
'±

 A
G

L
M

O
N

O
P

O
L
E

 &
 3

0
'x

5
5
'

T
E

L
E

C
O

M
M

U
N

IC
A

T
IO

N
S

C
O

M
P

O
U

N
D

.

WILLIAM FLOYD PARKWAY

S
E

C
T
IO

N
 2

4
2

B
L
O

C
K

 0
1
.0

0
L
O

T
 1

.2

S
E

C
T
IO

N
 2

4
2

B
L
O

C
K

 0
1
.0

0
L
O

T
 1

.6

S
E

C
T
IO

N
 2

4
2

B
L
O

C
K

 0
1
.0

0
L
O

T
 1

.4

W
H

IS
K

E
Y

 R
O

A
D

T
O

W
E

R
 &

 T
O

W
E

R
 F

O
U

N
D

A
T
IO

N
 D

R
A

W
IN

G
S

P
R

E
P

A
R

E
D

 B
Y

: 
V

A
L
M

O
N

T
 S

T
R

U
C

T
U

R
E

S
;

(A
T
T
A

C
H

E
D

 H
E

R
E

T
O

 A
T
 E

N
D

 O
F

 T
H

E
 C

D
 S

E
T
)

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
N





E
/T

E
/T

E
/T

E/T

E/T

E/T
E/T

E/T
E/T

E/T
E/T

E/T
E/T

E/T
E/T

E/T
E/T

E/T
E/T

E/T
E/T

E/T
E/T

E/T

 LOD 

 LOD 

 LOD 

 L
O

D
 

 L
O

D
 

 LOD 

 LOD 

 LOD 

 LOD 

 LOD 

 LOD 

 LOD 

 LOD 

 LOD 

 LOD 

 LOD 

 LOD 

 LOD 

 LOD  LOD 

 LOD 

 LOD 

 LOD 

 LOD 

 LOD 

 LOD 

 LOD 

 LOD 

 LOD 

 LOD 

 LOD 

 LOD 

 LOD 

 L
O

D
 

 L
O

D
 

 L
O

D
 

 L
O

D
 

 LOD 

 LOD 

 L
O

D
 

 LOD 

 LOD 

 X
  X 

 X 
 X 

 X 

 X
 

 X
 

 X
 

 X 
 X 

 X 
 X 

 X 

E/T

E/T

E/TE/T
E/T

E/T
 LOD 

 LOD  LOD 

 LOD 

 LOD 

 LOD 

 LOD 

 LOD 

 LOD 

 LOD 
 LOD 

EN
G

IN
EE

R
IN

G

56
7 

VA
U

XH
AL

L 
ST

R
EE

T 
EX

TE
N

SI
O

N
 - 

SU
IT

E 
31

1
W

AT
ER

FO
R

D
, C

T 
06

38
5 

   
   

 
   

 P
H

: (
86

0)
-6

63
-1

69
7

W
W

W
.A

LL
PO

IN
TS

TE
C

H
.C

O
M

   
 F

AX
: (

86
0)

-6
63

-0
93

5

A
PT

LO
C

A
TI

O
N

 C
O

D
E:

VZ
 F

U
ZE

 ID
:

VZ
 C

M
:  

O
Z

D
A

TE
:

A
PT

 F
IL

IN
G

 N
U

M
B

ER
:

VE
R

IZ
O

N
 A

T
"S

EW
ER

 D
IS

TR
IC

T 
#2

0"
SI

TE
A

D
D

R
ES

S:

SH
EE

T 
TI

TL
E:

C
O

N
ST

R
U

C
TI

O
N

 D
O

C
U

M
EN

TS

D
R

A
W

N
 B

Y:
CS

H/
EL

Z

C
H

EC
K

ED
 B

Y:
 R

C
B

SH
EE

T 
N

U
M

B
ER

:

N
O

TE
:

IT
 IS

 A
 V

IO
LA

TI
O

N
 O

F 
N

EW
 Y

O
R

K
 S

TA
TE

ED
U

C
A

TI
O

N
 L

A
W

 A
R

TI
C

LE
 1

45
, S

EC
TI

O
N

72
09

 (2
) F

O
R

 A
N

Y 
PE

R
SO

N
, U

N
LE

SS
A

C
TI

N
G

 U
N

D
ER

 T
H

E 
D

IR
EC

TI
O

N
 O

F 
A

LI
C

EN
SE

D
 P

R
O

FE
SS

IO
N

A
L 

EN
G

IN
EE

R
 O

R
LA

N
D

 S
U

R
VE

YO
R

, T
O

 A
LT

ER
 A

N
 IT

EM
 IN

A
N

Y 
W

A
Y.

 IF
 A

N
 IT

EM
 B

EA
R

IN
G

 T
H

E 
SE

A
L

O
F 

A
N

 E
N

G
IN

EE
R

 O
R

 L
A

N
D

 S
U

R
VE

YO
R

 IS
A

LT
ER

ED
, T

H
E 

A
LT

ER
IN

G
 E

N
G

IN
EE

R
 O

R
LA

N
D

 S
U

R
VE

YO
R

 S
H

A
LL

 A
FF

IX
 T

O
 T

H
E

IT
EM

 H
IS

 S
EA

L 
A

N
D

 T
H

E 
N

O
TA

TI
O

N
"A

LT
ER

ED
 B

Y"
 F

O
LL

O
W

ED
 B

Y 
TH

E
SI

G
N

A
TU

R
E 

A
N

D
 T

H
E 

D
A

TE
 O

F 
SU

C
H

A
LT

ER
A

TI
O

N
, A

N
D

 A
 S

PE
C

IF
IC

D
ES

C
R

IP
TI

O
N

 O
F 

TH
E 

A
LT

ER
A

TI
O

N
.

O
W

N
ER

:
A

D
D

R
ES

S:

D
ES

IG
N

 P
R

O
FE

SS
IO

N
A

LS
 O

F 
R

EC
O

R
D

D
A

TE
N

O
R

EV
IS

IO
N

06
/1

0/
20

15
08

39
89

N
Y1

41
N

B
16

10

06
/1

0/
20

0
FO

R
 R

EV
IE

W
: R

C
B

1 2 3 4 5 6

SU
FF

O
LK

 C
O

U
N

TY
10

0 
VE

TE
R

A
N

S 
M

EM
O

R
IA

L 
PK

W
Y

H
A

U
PP

A
U

G
E,

 N
Y 

11
78

8

4
 C

E
N

T
E

R
O

C
K

 R
O

A
D

W
E

S
T
 N

Y
A

C
K

, 
N

Y
 1

0
9
9
4

21
95

 W
IL

LI
A

M
 F

LO
YD

 P
A

R
K

W
A

Y
R

ID
G

E,
 N

Y

PR
O

F:
 S

C
O

TT
 M

. C
H

A
SS

E 
 P

.E
.

C
O

M
P:

A
PT

 E
N

G
IN

EE
R

IN
G

A
D

D
:  

 5
67

 V
A

U
XH

A
LL

 S
TR

EE
T 

  E
XT

EN
SI

O
N

 - 
SU

IT
E 

31
1

W
A

TE
R

FO
R

D
, C

T 
06

38
5

01
/1

4/
21

R
EV

. G
EN

ER
A

TO
R

: R
C

B
10

/1
0/

24
C

O
U

N
TY

 R
EV

IS
IO

N
S:

 R
C

B
11

/2
5/

24
EN

V.
 C

O
M

M
EN

TS
: R

C
B

12
/0

3/
24

EN
V.

 C
O

M
M

EN
TS

: R
C

B

SI
TE

 P
LA

N

SP
-1

1 
in

ch
 =

   
   

   
  f

t.
( I

N
 F

EE
T 

)
30

SI
TE

 P
LA

N
SC

A
LE

 : 
1"

 =
 3

0'
-0

"
1

SP
-1

 N

N
E

W
 V

E
R

IZ
O

N
 3

0
'x

6
7
' (

2
,0

1
0
±

 S
F

)
L
IC

E
N

S
E

 A
R

E
A

 &
 3

0
'x

5
5
' (

1
,6

5
0
±

S
F

) 
F

E
N

C
E

D
 C

O
M

P
O

U
N

D
 A

R
E

A
(T

Y
P

.)

N
E

W
 V

E
R

IZ
O

N
 1

2
0
'±

 A
G

L
M

O
N

O
P

O
L
E

 (
S

E
E

 T
O

W
E

R
D

R
A

W
IN

G
S

 P
R

E
P

A
R

E
D

 B
Y

 V
A

L
M

O
N

T
S

T
R

U
C

T
U

R
E

S
; 
A

T
T
A

C
H

E
D

 H
E

R
E

T
O

A
T
 E

N
D

 O
F

 T
H

E
 C

D
 S

E
T
)

S
U

B
JE

C
T
 P

A
R

C
E

L
:

D
IV

IS
IO

N
: 
2
0
0
 S

E
C

T
IO

N
: 
2
4
2
 B

L
O

C
K

:
0
1
0
0
 L

O
T
: 
1
.2

2
1
9
5
 W

IL
L
IA

M
 F

L
O

Y
D

 P
A

R
K

W
A

Y
N

/F
C

O
U

N
T
Y

 O
F

 S
U

F
F

O
L
K

1
0
0
 V

E
T
E

R
A

N
S

 M
E

M
O

R
IA

L
 P

A
R

K
W

A
Y

H
A

U
P

P
A

U
G

E
, 
N

Y
 1

1
7
8
8

3
.2

4
1
±

 A
C

R
E

S
Z

O
N

E
: 
W

A
S

T
E

 H
A

N
D

L
IN

G
/M

G
M

T

E
X

IS
T
. 
P

R
O

P
E

R
T
Y

 L
IN

E
 (
T
Y

P
)

1
5
9
'±

1
8
1
'-3

"'±

58'-1"'±

S
E

C
T
IO

N
 2

4
2

B
L
O

C
K

 0
1
.0

0
L
O

T
 1

.4

S
E

C
T
IO

N
 2

4
2

B
L
O

C
K

 0
1
.0

0
L
O

T
 1

.6

1
S

P
-2

A
C

C
E

S
S

 R
O

U
T
E

(T
Y

P
.)

A
P

P
R

O
X

. 
L
O

C
A

T
IO

N
 O

F
E

X
IS

T
IN

G
 U

T
IL

IT
Y

 P
O

L
E

WILLIAM FLOYD

PARKWAY

W
H

IS
K

E
Y

 R
O

A
D

S
A

W
C

U
T
 P

A
V

E
M

E
N

T
 &

P
A

V
E

M
E

N
T
 T

R
E

N
C

H
 R

E
P

A
IR

5 C
-3

M
A

T
C

H
 L

IN
E

 A
:A

D
IS

T
A

N
C

E
 T

O
 M

A
T
C

H
 L

IN
E

 B
:B

 =
 8

6
4
'

M
A

T
C

H
 L

IN
E

 B
:B

D
IS

T
A

N
C

E
 T

O
 M

A
T
C

H
 L

IN
E

 A
:A

 =
 8

6
4
'

M
A

P
 R

E
F

E
R

E
N

C
E

S
:

1
.

"S
U

R
V

E
Y

 O
F

 P
R

O
P

E
R

T
Y

 A
T
 R

ID
G

E
, 
S

U
F

F
O

L
K

 C
O

U
N

T
Y

, 
N

E
W

 Y
O

R
K

",
 S

H
E

E
T
 1

 O
F

 1
, 
P

R
E

P
A

R
E

D
 B

Y
C

A
R

M
A

N
-D

U
N

N
E

, 
P

.C
. 
C

O
N

S
U

L
T
IN

G
 E

N
G

IN
E

E
R

S
 &

 S
U

R
V

E
Y

O
R

S
, 
2
 L

A
K

E
V

IE
W

 A
V

E
N

U
E

,
L
Y

N
B

R
O

O
K

, 
N

E
W

 Y
O

R
K

, 
1
1
5
6
3
. 
D

A
T
E

D
 O

C
T
O

B
E

R
 2

2
, 
2
0
1
4
; 
R

E
V

IS
E

D
: 
5
/1

5
/2

0
2
0
.

2
.

"S
U

F
F

O
L
K

 C
O

U
N

T
Y

 G
IS

 V
IE

W
E

R
",
 D

E
P

A
R

T
M

E
N

T
 O

F
 IN

F
O

R
M

A
T
IO

N
 T

E
C

H
N

O
L
O

G
Y

, 
S

U
F

F
O

L
K

C
O

U
N

T
Y

, 
N

E
W

 Y
O

R
K

, 
T
A

X
 M

A
P

 N
U

M
B

E
R

: 
0
2
0
0
2
4
2
0
0
0
1
0
0
0
0
1
0
0
2
.

3
.

F
IE

L
D

 M
E

A
S

U
R

E
M

E
N

T
S

 T
A

K
E

N
 B

Y
 A

P
T
 E

N
G

IN
E

E
R

IN
G

 O
N

 1
1
/2

1
/1

3
 &

 0
3
/2

0
/1

9
.

N
O

T
E

: 
C

O
N

T
R

A
C

T
O

R
 T

O
 H

A
V

E
 A

 G
P

R
 S

U
R

V
E

Y
 P

E
R

F
O

R
M

E
D

 A
N

D
H

A
V

E
 A

L
L
 U

N
D

E
R

G
R

O
U

N
D

 U
T
IL

IT
IE

S
 &

 S
T
R

U
C

T
U

R
E

S
 M

A
R

K
E

D
 O

U
T

P
R

IO
R

 T
O

 C
O

N
S

T
R

U
C

T
IO

N
.

1
3
'±

 F
R

O
M

 T
O

W
E

R

71'± FROM TOWER

3
5
7
'±

 F
R

O
M

 T
O

W
E

R

299'± FROM TOWER

3
'±

 F
R

O
M

 C
O

M
P

O
U

N
D

44'± FROM COMPOUND

3
3
7
'±

 F
R

O
M

 C
O

M
P

O
U

N
D

271'± FROM COMPOUND

>

>

>

>
>

N
E

W
 V

E
R

IZ
O

N
 U

/G
 E

L
E

C
T
R

IC
 &

 T
E

L
C

O
 S

E
R

V
IC

E
F

R
O

M
 E

X
IS

T
. 
U

T
IL

IT
Y

 P
O

L
E

 (
N

O
 N

U
M

B
E

R
) 
T
O

 N
E

W
C

O
M

P
O

U
N

D
 A

R
E

A
 (
A

P
P

R
O

X
. 
1
,3

0
0
') 

C
O

O
R

D
IN

A
T
E

F
IN

A
L
 R

O
U

T
E

 W
/ 
L
O

C
A

L
 U

T
IL

IT
Y

 C
O

M
P

A
N

Y

WILLIAM FLOYD PARKWAY

5 E
-1

N
E

W
 P

U
L
L
B

O
X

 (
L
O

C
A

T
IO

N
 T

O
 B

E
D

E
T
E

R
M

IN
E

D
 W

/ 
U

T
IL

IT
Y

C
O

M
P

A
N

Y

N
E

W
 P

U
L
L
B

O
X

 (
L
O

C
A

T
IO

N
 T

O
 B

E
D

E
T
E

R
M

IN
E

D
 W

/ 
U

T
IL

IT
Y

 C
O

M
P

A
N

Y

N
E

W
 V

E
R

IZ
O

N
 U

/G
 E

L
E

C
T
R

IC
 &

 T
E

L
C

O
 S

E
R

V
IC

E
F

R
O

M
 E

X
IS

T
. 
U

T
IL

IT
Y

 P
O

L
E

 (
N

O
 N

U
M

B
E

R
) 
T
O

 N
E

W
C

O
M

P
O

U
N

D
 A

R
E

A
 (
A

P
P

R
O

X
. 
1
,3

0
0
') 

C
O

O
R

D
IN

A
T
E

F
IN

A
L
 R

O
U

T
E

 W
/ 
L
O

C
A

L
 U

T
IL

IT
Y

 C
O

M
P

A
N

Y

5 E
-1

A
P

P
L
IC

A
B

L
E

 B
U

IL
D

IN
G

 C
O

D
E

S
 A

N
D

 S
T
A

N
D

A
R

D
S

:

C
O

N
T
R

A
C

T
O

R
'S

 W
O

R
K

 S
H

A
L
L
 C

O
M

P
L
Y

 W
IT

H
 A

L
L
 A

P
P

L
IC

A
B

L
E

 N
A

T
IO

N
A

L
, 
S

T
A

T
E

, 
A

N
D

 L
O

C
A

L
 C

O
D

E
S

 A
S

 A
D

O
P

T
E

D
 B

Y
T
H

E
 L

O
C

A
L
 A

U
T
H

O
R

IT
Y

 H
A

V
IN

G
 J

U
R

IS
T
IC

T
IO

N
 (
A

H
J)

 F
O

R
 T

H
E

 L
O

C
A

T
IO

N
. 
 T

H
E

 E
D

IT
IO

N
 O

F
 T

H
E

 A
H

J 
A

D
O

P
T
E

D
 C

O
D

E
S

A
N

D
 S

T
A

N
D

A
R

D
S

 IN
 E

F
F

E
C

T
 O

N
 T

H
E

 D
A

T
E

 O
F

 T
H

E
 C

O
N

T
R

A
C

T
 A

W
A

R
D

 S
H

A
L
L
 G

O
V

E
R

N
 T

H
E

 D
E

S
IG

N
.

C
O

D
E

S
:

2
0
2
0
 B

U
IL

D
IN

G
 C

O
D

E
 O

F
 N

E
W

 Y
O

R
K

 S
T
A

T
E

2
0
2
0
 E

X
IS

T
IN

G
 B

U
IL

D
IN

G
 C

O
D

E
 O

F
 N

E
W

 Y
O

R
K

 S
T
A

T
E

2
0
2
0
 F

IR
E

 C
O

D
E

 O
F

 N
E

W
 Y

O
R

K
 S

T
A

T
E

2
0
2
0
 E

N
E

R
G

Y
 C

O
N

S
E

R
V

A
T
IO

N
 C

O
N

S
T
R

U
C

T
IO

N
 C

O
D

E
 O

F
 N

E
W

 Y
O

R
K

 S
T
A

T
E

2
0
2
0
 M

E
C

H
A

N
IC

A
L
 C

O
D

E
 O

F
 N

E
W

 Y
O

R
K

 S
T
A

T
E

2
0
2
0
 P

L
U

M
B

IN
G

 C
O

D
E

 O
F

 N
E

W
 Y

O
R

K
 S

T
A

T
E

2
0
1
7
 N

A
T
IO

N
A

L
 E

L
E

C
T
R

IC
A

L
 C

O
D

E
 (
N

F
P

A
 7

0
)

2
0
1
7
 L

IQ
U

E
F

IE
D

 P
E

T
R

O
L
E

U
M

 G
A

S
 C

O
D

E
 (
N

F
P

A
 5

8
)

T
H

E
 S

U
B

JE
C

T
 D

E
S

IG
N

/D
R

A
W

IN
G

S
 A

R
E

 IN
 C

O
M

P
L
IA

N
C

E
 W

IT
H

 T
H

E
 2

0
2
0
 E

N
E

R
G

Y
 C

O
N

S
E

R
V

A
T
IO

N
 C

O
N

S
T
R

U
C

T
IO

N
 C

O
D

E
O

F
 N

E
W

 Y
O

R
K

 S
T
A

T
E

.

C
O

N
T
R

A
C

T
O

R
'S

 W
O

R
K

 S
H

A
L
L
 C

O
M

P
L
Y

 W
IT

H
 T

H
E

 L
A

T
E

S
T
 A

P
P

R
O

V
E

D
 E

D
IT

IO
N

 O
F

 T
H

E
 S

T
A

N
D

A
R

D
S

 R
E

F
E

R
E

N
C

E
D

 IN
A

B
O

V
E

 C
O

D
E

S
.

A
M

E
R

IC
A

N
 C

O
N

C
R

E
T
E

 IN
S

T
IT

U
T
E

 (
A

C
I-

3
1
8
),
 B

U
IL

D
IN

G
 C

O
D

E
 R

E
Q

U
IR

E
M

E
N

T
 F

O
R

 S
T
R

U
C

T
U

R
A

L
 C

O
N

C
R

E
T
E

;
A

M
E

R
IC

A
N

 IN
S

T
IT

U
T
E

 O
F

 S
T
E

E
L
 C

O
N

S
T
R

U
C

T
IO

N
 (
A

IS
C

-3
6
0
),
 M

A
N

U
A

L
 O

F
 S

T
E

E
L
 C

O
N

S
T
R

U
C

T
IO

N
, 
1
6
T
H

 E
D

IT
IO

N
;

T
E

L
E

C
O

M
M

U
N

IC
A

T
IO

N
S

 IN
D

U
S

T
R

Y
 A

S
S

O
C

IA
T
IO

N
 (
T
IA

) 
2
2
2
-H

, 
S

T
R

U
C

T
U

R
A

L
 S

T
A

N
D

A
R

D
 F

O
R

 A
N

T
E

N
N

A
 S

U
P

P
O

R
T
IN

G
S

T
R

U
C

T
U

R
E

S
 A

N
D

 A
N

T
E

N
N

A
S

.
T
IA

 6
0
7
, 
C

O
M

M
E

R
C

IA
L
 B

U
IL

D
IN

G
 G

R
O

U
N

D
IN

G
 A

N
D

 B
O

N
D

IN
G

 R
E

Q
U

IR
E

M
E

N
T
S

 F
O

R
 T

E
L
E

C
O

M
M

U
N

IC
A

T
IO

N
S

.

IE
E

E
 1

1
0
0
 (
1
9
9
9
) 
R

E
C

O
M

M
E

N
D

E
D

 P
R

A
C

T
IC

E
 F

O
R

 P
O

W
E

R
IN

G
 &

 G
R

O
U

N
D

IN
G

 O
F

 E
L
E

C
T
R

O
N

IC
 E

Q
U

IP
M

E
N

T
IE

E
E

 C
6
2
.4

1
, 
R

E
C

O
M

M
E

N
D

E
D

 P
R

A
C

T
IC

E
S

 O
N

 S
U

R
G

E
 V

O
L
T
A

G
E

S
 IN

 L
O

W
 V

O
L
T
A

G
E

 A
C

 P
O

W
E

R
 C

IR
C

U
IT

S
 (
F

O
R

 L
O

C
A

T
IO

N
C

A
T
E

G
O

R
Y

 'C
3
' A

N
D

 'H
IG

H
 S

Y
S

T
E

M
 E

X
P

O
S

U
R

E
'.)

M
O

T
O

R
O

L
A

 R
5
6
 T

E
L
E

C
O

M
M

U
N

IC
A

T
IO

N
 F

A
C

IL
IT

Y
 S

IT
E

 S
T
A

N
D

A
R

D
S

T
E

L
E

C
O

R
D

IA
 G

R
-1

2
7
5
 G

E
N

E
R

A
L
 IN

S
T
A

L
L
A

T
IO

N
 R

E
Q

U
IR

E
M

E
N

T
S

T
E

L
E

C
O

R
D

IA
 G

R
-1

5
0
3
 C

O
A

X
IA

L
 C

A
B

L
E

 C
O

N
N

E
C

T
IO

N
S

A
N

S
I T

1
.3

1
1
, 
F

O
R

 T
E

L
E

C
O

M
: 
D

C
 P

O
W

E
R

 S
Y

T
E

M
S

 -
 T

E
L
E

C
O

M
, 
E

N
V

IR
O

N
M

E
N

T
A

L
 P

R
O

T
E

C
T
IO

N

P
R

O
JE

C
T
 L

IM
IT

S
 O

F
 D

IS
T
U

R
B

A
N

C
E

 (
L
.O

.D
.)
 =

9
,5

0
0
±

 S
F

 (
0
.2

2
 A

C
.)

S
A

W
C

U
T
 P

A
V

E
M

E
N

T
 &

P
A

V
E

M
E

N
T
 T

R
E

N
C

H
 R

E
P

A
IR

5 C
-3

C
A

S
T
-I

N
-P

L
A

C
E

 C
O

N
C

R
E

T
E

 -
 2

0
2
0
 B

C
N

Y
S

, 
T
A

B
L
E

 1
7
0
5
.3

R
E

IN
F

O
R

C
E

M
E

N
T

IN
S

P
E

C
T
 S

IZ
E

, 
S

P
A

C
IN

G
, 
C

O
V

E
R

, 
P

O
S

IT
IO

N
IN

G
, 
B

A
R

 L
A

P
S

/S
P

L
IC

E
S

 A
N

D
 G

R
A

D
E

 O
F

R
E

IN
F

O
R

C
IN

G
 S

T
E

E
L
. 
V

E
R

IF
Y

 B
A

R
S

 A
R

E
 A

D
E

Q
U

A
T
E

L
Y

 T
IE

D
 A

N
D

 S
U

P
P

O
R

T
E

D
 O

N
 C

H
A

IR
S

O
R

 B
O

L
S

T
E

R
S

A
N

C
H

O
R

S
 C

A
S

T
 IN

 C
O

N
C

.
IN

S
P

E
C

T
 S

IZ
E

, 
P

O
S

IT
IO

N
IN

G
, 
E

M
B

E
D

M
E

N
T
 A

N
D

 C
O

N
C

R
E

T
E

 P
L
A

C
E

M
E

N
T
 A

R
O

U
N

D
A

N
C

H
O

R
 R

O
D

S
.

A
N

C
H

O
R

S
 H

A
R

D
E

N
E

D
 C

O
N

C
.

V
E

R
IF

Y
 A

N
C

H
O

R
S

 IN
S

T
A

L
L
 C

O
M

P
L
Y

 W
IT

H
 D

R
A

W
IN

G
S

, 
IN

C
L
U

D
IN

G
 S

IZ
E

, 
E

M
B

E
D

M
E

N
T
 &

C
O

N
D

IT
IO

N
S

.
C

O
N

C
R

E
T
E

 M
IX

R
E

V
IE

W
 C

O
N

C
R

E
T
E

 B
A

T
C

H
 T

IC
K

E
T
S

 &
 V

E
R

IF
Y

 C
O

M
P

L
IA

N
C

E
 W

IT
H

 A
P

P
R

O
V

E
D

 M
IX

 D
E

S
IG

N
.

V
E

R
IF

Y
 T

H
A

T
 W

A
T
E

R
 A

D
D

E
D

 A
T
 T

H
E

 S
IT

E
 D

O
E

S
 N

O
T
E

 E
X

C
E

E
D

 T
H

A
T
 A

L
L
O

W
E

D
 B

Y
 M

IX
D

E
S

IG
N

.
C

O
N

C
R

E
T
E

 T
E

S
T
IN

G
T
E

S
T
 C

O
N

C
R

E
T
E

 C
O

M
P

R
E

S
S

IV
E

 S
T
R

E
N

G
T
H

 (
A

S
T
M

 C
3
1
 &

 C
3
9
),
 S

L
U

M
P

 (
A

S
T
M

 C
1
4
3
),
 

A
IR

-C
O

N
T
E

N
T
 (
A

S
T
M

 C
2
3
1
) 
A

N
D

 T
E

M
P

E
R

A
T
U

R
E

 (
A

S
T
M

 C
1
0
6
4
).

C
O

N
C

R
E

T
E

 P
L
A

C
E

M
E

N
T

V
E

R
IF

Y
 C

O
N

C
R

E
T
E

 C
O

N
V

E
Y

A
N

C
E

 A
N

D
 D

E
P

O
S

IT
IN

G
 A

V
O

ID
S

 S
E

G
R

E
G

A
T
IO

N
 O

R
 

C
O

N
T
A

M
IN

A
T
IO

N
. 
V

E
R

IF
Y

 C
O

N
C

R
E

T
E

 IS
 P

R
O

P
E

R
L
Y

 C
O

N
S

O
L
ID

A
T
E

D
.

C
U

R
IN

G
IN

S
P

E
C

T
 C

U
R

IN
G

, 
C

O
L
D

 W
E

A
T
H

E
R

 P
R

O
T
E

C
T
IO

N
 A

N
D

 H
O

T
 W

E
A

T
H

E
R

 P
R

O
T
E

C
T
IO

N
 

P
R

O
C

E
D

U
R

E
S

.

S
T
R

U
C

T
U

R
A

L
 S

T
E

E
L
 -

 A
IS

C
 3

6
0
-1

0
 C

H
A

P
T
E

R
 N

F
A

B
. 
C

E
R

T
. 
/ 
Q

C
 P

R
O

C
E

D
U

R
E

S
R

E
V

IE
W

 S
H

O
P

 F
A

B
R

IC
A

T
IO

N
 A

N
D

 Q
U

A
L
IT

Y
 C

O
N

T
R

O
L
 P

R
O

C
E

D
U

R
E

S
.

M
A

T
E

R
IA

L
 C

E
R

T
IF

IC
A

T
IO

N
R

E
V

IE
W

 C
E

R
T
IF

IE
D

 M
IL

L
 T

E
S

T
 R

E
P

O
R

T
S

 A
N

D
 ID

E
N

T
IF

IC
A

T
IO

N
 M

A
R

K
IN

G
S

 O
N

W
ID

E
-F

L
A

N
G

E
 S

H
A

P
E

S
, 
H

IG
H

-S
T
R

E
N

G
T
H

 B
O

L
T
S

, 
N

U
T
S

 A
N

D
 W

E
L
D

IN
G

 E
L
E

C
T
R

O
D

E
S

.
B

O
L
T
IN

G
IN

S
P

E
C

T
 IN

S
T
A

L
L
A

T
IO

N
 A

N
D

 T
IG

H
T
E

N
IN

G
 O

F
 H

IG
H

-S
T
R

E
N

T
H

 B
O

L
T
S

. 
 V

E
R

IF
Y

 T
H

A
T

S
P

L
IN

E
S

 H
A

V
E

 S
E

P
A

R
A

T
E

D
 F

R
O

M
 T

E
N

S
IO

N
 C

O
N

T
R

O
L
 B

O
L
T
S

. 
 V

E
R

IF
Y

 P
R

O
P

E
R

T
IG

H
T
E

N
IN

G
 S

E
Q

U
E

N
C

E
. 
 C

O
N

T
IN

U
O

U
S

 IN
S

P
E

C
T
IO

N
 O

F
 B

O
L
T
S

 IN
 S

L
IP

-C
R

IT
IC

A
L

C
O

N
N

E
C

T
IO

N
S

.
S

T
R

U
C

T
U

R
A

L
 D

E
T
A

IL
S

IN
S

P
E

C
T
 S

T
E

E
L
 F

R
A

M
E

 F
O

R
 C

O
M

P
L
IA

N
C

E
 W

IT
H

 S
T
R

U
C

T
U

R
A

L
 D

R
A

W
IN

G
S

, 
IN

C
L
U

D
IN

G
B

R
A

C
IN

G
, 
M

E
M

B
E

R
 C

O
N

F
IG

U
R

A
T
IO

N
 A

N
D

 C
O

N
N

E
C

T
IO

N
 D

E
T
A

IL
S

.
T
O

W
E

R
 E

R
E

C
T
IO

N
IN

S
P

E
C

T
 S

L
IP

 J
O

IN
T
 P

O
L
E

S
, 
L
A

P
 L

E
N

G
T
H

S
, 
JA

C
K

IN
G

 S
E

Q
U

E
N

C
E

, 
S

A
F

E
T
Y

 C
L
IM

B
A

C
C

E
S

S
O

R
IE

S
, 
E

T
C

. 
A

R
E

 P
E

R
F

O
R

M
E

D
 IN

 C
O

N
F

O
R

M
A

N
C

E
 W

IT
H

 T
O

W
E

R
 M

A
N

U
F

A
C

T
U

R
E

R
.

G
R

O
U

N
D

IN
G

/B
O

N
D

IN
G

V
E

R
IF

Y
 G

R
O

U
N

D
/B

O
N

D
IN

G
 IN

S
T
A

L
L
A

T
IO

N
.

S
P

E
C

IA
L
 IN

S
P

E
C

T
IO

N
S

 (
S

S
I A

V
A

IL
A

B
L
E

 U
N

D
E

R
 S

E
P

A
R

A
T
E

 C
O

V
E

R
, 
C

A
S

E
 F

O
R

M
 1

0
1
):

5
3
5
' L

IM
IT

S
 O

F
 N

Y
S

D
E

C
E

A
S

T
E

R
N

 T
IG

E
R

 S
A

L
A

M
A

N
D

E
R

B
R

E
E

D
IN

G
 P

O
N

D
 B

U
F

F
E

R

N
O

T
E

S
:

1
.

P
U

R
S

U
A

N
T
 T

O
 T

H
E

 N
Y

S
D

E
C

's
 S

E
P

T
E

M
B

E
R

 1
4
, 
2
0
2
3
 L

E
T
T
E

R
 O

F
 N

O
 J

U
R

IS
D

IC
T
IO

N
/N

O
 P

E
R

M
IT

 N
E

C
E

S
S

A
R

Y
D

E
T
E

R
M

IN
A

T
IO

N
 T

O
 A

V
O

ID
 IN

C
ID

E
N

T
A

L
 T

A
K

E
 O

F
  
N

O
R

T
H

E
R

N
 L

O
N

G
-E

A
R

E
D

 B
A

T
, 
T
R

E
E

 C
L
E

A
R

IN
G

 F
O

R
 T

H
E

P
R

O
JE

C
T
 IS

 P
R

O
H

IB
IT

E
D

 B
E

T
W

E
E

N
 J

U
N

E
 1

 A
N

D
 J

U
L
Y

 3
0
 O

F
 A

N
Y

 C
A

L
E

N
D

A
R

 Y
E

A
R

.
2
.

P
U

R
S

U
A

N
T
 T

O
 T

H
E

 N
Y

S
D

E
C

's
 S

E
P

T
E

M
B

E
R

 1
4
, 
2
0
2
3
 L

E
T
T
E

R
 O

F
 N

O
 J

U
R

IS
D

IC
T
IO

N
/N

O
 P

E
R

M
IT

 N
E

C
E

S
S

A
R

Y
D

E
T
E

R
M

IN
A

T
IO

N
, 
T
O

 A
V

O
ID

 IN
C

ID
E

N
T
A

L
 T

A
K

E
 O

F
 E

A
S

T
E

R
N

 T
IG

E
R

 S
A

L
A

M
A

N
D

E
R

, 
C

L
E

A
R

IN
G

, 
G

R
A

D
IN

G
, 
O

R
G

R
O

U
N

D
 D

IS
T
U

R
B

A
N

C
E

 IS
 P

R
O

H
IB

IT
E

D
 W

IT
H

IN
 5

3
5
 F

E
E

T
 O

F
 E

A
S

T
E

R
N

 T
IG

E
R

 S
A

L
A

M
A

N
D

E
R

 B
R

E
E

D
IN

G
 P

O
N

D
B

U
F

F
E

R
 S

H
O

W
N

 O
N

 S
H

E
E

T
S

 S
P

-1
 A

N
D

 S
P

-2
.

AutoCAD SHX Text
AREA WOODED AND OVERGROWN

AutoCAD SHX Text
TREE LINE

AutoCAD SHX Text
CHAIN     LINK     FENCE

AutoCAD SHX Text
FENCE    LINE    IS    TREE    LINE

AutoCAD SHX Text
CHAIN     LINK     FENCE

AutoCAD SHX Text
FENCE    LINE    IS    TREE    LINE

AutoCAD SHX Text
290.00'

AutoCAD SHX Text
GATE

AutoCAD SHX Text
CHAIN LINK FENCE

AutoCAD SHX Text
CHAIN

AutoCAD SHX Text
FENCE

AutoCAD SHX Text
LINK

AutoCAD SHX Text
29.5'

AutoCAD SHX Text
29.9'

AutoCAD SHX Text
29.5'

AutoCAD SHX Text
30.1'

AutoCAD SHX Text
1 STY. FRAME & BLOCK

AutoCAD SHX Text
SHED

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONC. WALL ENCL.

AutoCAD SHX Text
ROOF OVER

AutoCAD SHX Text
TANK

AutoCAD SHX Text
TANK

AutoCAD SHX Text
TANK

AutoCAD SHX Text
TANK

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONCRETE FILTRATION AREA

AutoCAD SHX Text
STPS.

AutoCAD SHX Text
CHAIN LINK FENCE

AutoCAD SHX Text
FENCE LINE IS TREE LINE

AutoCAD SHX Text
AREA WOODED AND OVERGROWN

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
30

AutoCAD SHX Text
30

AutoCAD SHX Text
60

AutoCAD SHX Text
15



E/T E/T

E
/T

E
/T

E
/T

E
/T

E
/T

E
/T

E
/T

E
/T

E
/T

E
/T

E/T E/T E/T E/T E/T E/T

 L
O

D
 

 L
O

D
 

 LOD  LOD  LOD  LOD  LOD  LOD  LOD 

 L
O

D
 

 L
O

D
 

 L
O

D
 

 L
O

D
 

 L
O

D
 

 L
O

D
 

 L
O

D
 

 LOD  LOD  LOD  LOD 

 LOD  LOD  LOD 

 LOD 

 L
O

D
 

 L
O

D
 

 L
O

D
 

 L
O

D
 

 L
O

D
 

 L
O

D
 

 L
O

D
 

 L
O

D
 

 L
O

D
 

 L
O

D
 

 LOD  LOD  LOD  LOD  LOD  LOD  LOD  LOD 

 L
O

D
 

 L
O

D
 

SFSFSFSFSFSFSFSF

SF

S
F

S
F

SF

SF

S
F

SF

 LOD 

 L
O

D
 

 LOD 
 LOD 

 L
O

D
 

 LOD 

GAS

 T 

 E  E 

 X
 

 X
 

 X
  X  X  X  X  X  X  X  X  X  X  X  X  X  X 

 X
 

 X
 

 X
 

 X
 

 X
 

 X
 

 X
 

 X
  X  X  X  X  X  X  X  X  X  X  X  X  X  X 

 X
 

 X
 

E
/T

E
/T

EN
G

IN
EE

R
IN

G

56
7 

VA
U

XH
AL

L 
ST

R
EE

T 
EX

TE
N

SI
O

N
 - 

SU
IT

E 
31

1
W

AT
ER

FO
R

D
, C

T 
06

38
5 

   
   

 
   

 P
H

: (
86

0)
-6

63
-1

69
7

W
W

W
.A

LL
PO

IN
TS

TE
C

H
.C

O
M

   
 F

AX
: (

86
0)

-6
63

-0
93

5

A
PT

LO
C

A
TI

O
N

 C
O

D
E:

VZ
 F

U
ZE

 ID
:

VZ
 C

M
:  

O
Z

D
A

TE
:

A
PT

 F
IL

IN
G

 N
U

M
B

ER
:

VE
R

IZ
O

N
 A

T
"S

EW
ER

 D
IS

TR
IC

T 
#2

0"
SI

TE
A

D
D

R
ES

S:

SH
EE

T 
TI

TL
E:

C
O

N
ST

R
U

C
TI

O
N

 D
O

C
U

M
EN

TS

D
R

A
W

N
 B

Y:
CS

H/
EL

Z

C
H

EC
K

ED
 B

Y:
 R

C
B

SH
EE

T 
N

U
M

B
ER

:

N
O

TE
:

IT
 IS

 A
 V

IO
LA

TI
O

N
 O

F 
N

EW
 Y

O
R

K
 S

TA
TE

ED
U

C
A

TI
O

N
 L

A
W

 A
R

TI
C

LE
 1

45
, S

EC
TI

O
N

72
09

 (2
) F

O
R

 A
N

Y 
PE

R
SO

N
, U

N
LE

SS
A

C
TI

N
G

 U
N

D
ER

 T
H

E 
D

IR
EC

TI
O

N
 O

F 
A

LI
C

EN
SE

D
 P

R
O

FE
SS

IO
N

A
L 

EN
G

IN
EE

R
 O

R
LA

N
D

 S
U

R
VE

YO
R

, T
O

 A
LT

ER
 A

N
 IT

EM
 IN

A
N

Y 
W

A
Y.

 IF
 A

N
 IT

EM
 B

EA
R

IN
G

 T
H

E 
SE

A
L

O
F 

A
N

 E
N

G
IN

EE
R

 O
R

 L
A

N
D

 S
U

R
VE

YO
R

 IS
A

LT
ER

ED
, T

H
E 

A
LT

ER
IN

G
 E

N
G

IN
EE

R
 O

R
LA

N
D

 S
U

R
VE

YO
R

 S
H

A
LL

 A
FF

IX
 T

O
 T

H
E

IT
EM

 H
IS

 S
EA

L 
A

N
D

 T
H

E 
N

O
TA

TI
O

N
"A

LT
ER

ED
 B

Y"
 F

O
LL

O
W

ED
 B

Y 
TH

E
SI

G
N

A
TU

R
E 

A
N

D
 T

H
E 

D
A

TE
 O

F 
SU

C
H

A
LT

ER
A

TI
O

N
, A

N
D

 A
 S

PE
C

IF
IC

D
ES

C
R

IP
TI

O
N

 O
F 

TH
E 

A
LT

ER
A

TI
O

N
.

O
W

N
ER

:
A

D
D

R
ES

S:

D
ES

IG
N

 P
R

O
FE

SS
IO

N
A

LS
 O

F 
R

EC
O

R
D

D
A

TE
N

O
R

EV
IS

IO
N

06
/1

0/
20

15
08

39
89

N
Y1

41
N

B
16

10

06
/1

0/
20

0
FO

R
 R

EV
IE

W
: R

C
B

1 2 3 4 5 6

SU
FF

O
LK

 C
O

U
N

TY
10

0 
VE

TE
R

A
N

S 
M

EM
O

R
IA

L 
PK

W
Y

H
A

U
PP

A
U

G
E,

 N
Y 

11
78

8

4
 C

E
N

T
E

R
O

C
K

 R
O

A
D

W
E

S
T
 N

Y
A

C
K

, 
N

Y
 1

0
9
9
4

21
95

 W
IL

LI
A

M
 F

LO
YD

 P
A

R
K

W
A

Y
R

ID
G

E,
 N

Y

PR
O

F:
 S

C
O

TT
 M

. C
H

A
SS

E 
 P

.E
.

C
O

M
P:

A
PT

 E
N

G
IN

EE
R

IN
G

A
D

D
:  

 5
67

 V
A

U
XH

A
LL

 S
TR

EE
T 

  E
XT

EN
SI

O
N

 - 
SU

IT
E 

31
1

W
A

TE
R

FO
R

D
, C

T 
06

38
5

01
/1

4/
21

R
EV

. G
EN

ER
A

TO
R

: R
C

B
10

/1
0/

24
C

O
U

N
TY

 R
EV

IS
IO

N
S:

 R
C

B
11

/2
5/

24
EN

V.
 C

O
M

M
EN

TS
: R

C
B

12
/0

3/
24

EN
V.

 C
O

M
M

EN
TS

: R
C

B

PA
R

TI
A

L 
SI

TE
 P

LA
N

1
SP

-2

 N

1 
in

ch
 =

   
   

   
  f

t.
( I

N
 F

EE
T 

)
10

N
E

W
 V

E
R

IZ
O

N
  
3
0
'x

5
5
' (

1
,6

5
0
±

 S
F

)
F

E
N

C
E

 C
O

M
P

O
U

N
D

 A
R

E
A

 W
IT

H
IN

3
0
'x

6
7
' (

2
,0

1
0
±

 S
F

) 
L
IC

E
N

S
E

 A
R

E
A

N
E

W
 V

E
R

IZ
O

N
 1

2
0
'±

 A
G

L
 M

O
N

O
P

O
L
E

(S
E

E
 T

O
W

E
R

  
D

R
A

W
IN

G
S

 P
R

E
P

A
R

E
D

 B
Y

V
A

L
M

O
N

T
 S

T
R

U
C

T
U

R
E

S
; 
A

T
T
A

C
H

E
D

H
E

R
E

T
O

 A
T
 E

N
D

 O
F

 T
H

E
 C

D
 S

E
T
)

2 A
-1

PA
R

TI
A

L 
SI

TE
PL

A
N

SP
-2

SC
A

LE
 : 

1"
 =

 1
0'

-0
"

N
E

W
 S

IL
T
 F

E
N

C
E

 (
T
Y

P
.)

8 C
-3

E
X

IS
T
. 
P

R
O

P
E

R
T
Y

 L
IN

E
 (
T
Y

P
)

T
E

M
P

O
R

A
R

Y
S

T
O

C
K

P
IL

E
 L

O
C

A
T
IO

N
7 C
-3

N
E

W
 V

E
R

IZ
O

N
 U

/G
 E

L
E

C
T
R

IC
 &

 T
E

L
C

O
 S

E
R

V
IC

E
 F

R
O

M
N

E
W

 M
U

L
T
IM

E
T
E

R
 C

E
N

T
E

R
 T

O
 N

E
W

 E
Q

U
IP

M
E

N
T
 P

A
D

(T
Y

P
.)

4 E
-2

N
E

W
 V

E
R

IZ
O

N
 U

/G
 E

L
E

C
T
R

IC
 &

 T
E

L
C

O
 S

E
R

V
IC

E
F

R
O

M
 E

X
IS

T
. 
U

T
IL

IT
Y

 P
O

L
E

 (
N

O
 N

U
M

B
E

R
) 
T
O

 N
E

W
C

O
M

P
O

U
N

D
 A

R
E

A
 (
A

P
P

R
O

X
. 
1
,3

0
0
') 

C
O

O
R

D
IN

A
T
E

F
IN

A
L
 R

O
U

T
E

 W
/ 
L
O

C
A

L
 U

T
IL

IT
Y

 C
O

M
P

A
N

Y

5 E
-1

WILLIAM FLOYD PARKWAY

E
X

IS
T
. 
P

A
V

E
D

 A
C

C
E

S
S

 D
R

IV
E

W
A

Y

E
X

IS
T
. 
D

O
U

B
L
E

 S
W

IN
G

 C
H

A
IN

 L
IN

K
 G

A
T
E

E
X

IS
T
. 
D

IR
T
 D

R
IV

E
W

A
Y

E
X

IS
T
. 
C

H
A

IN
 L

IN
K

 F
E

N
C

E

3
'±

40'-1
1"±

*

E
X

IS
T
. 
C

H
A

IN
 L

IN
K

 F
E

N
C

E
 (
T
Y

P
.)

33
'±

*

S
E

C
T
IO

N
 2

4
2

B
L
O

C
K

 0
1
.0

0
L
O

T
 1

.4

S
A

W
C

U
T
 P

A
V

E
M

E
N

T
 &

 P
A

V
E

M
E

N
T
 R

E
P

A
IR

.
T
R

E
N

C
H

 W
O

R
K

 S
H

A
L
L
 B

E
 C

O
O

R
D

IN
A

T
E

D
 A

N
D

S
C

H
E

D
U

L
E

D
 W

IT
H

 S
U

F
F

O
L
K

 C
O

U
N

T
Y

 S
E

W
E

R
D

IS
T
R

IC
T
 #

2
0

5 C
-3

S
IT

E
 A

R
E

A
S

 &
 V

O
L
U

M
E

S
 O

F
 E

A
R

T
H

W
O

R
K

T
H

E
 C

O
M

P
O

U
N

D
 A

N
D

 P
A

R
K

IN
G

 A
R

E
A

 W
IL

L
 IM

P
O

R
T

A
P

P
R

O
X

IM
A

T
E

L
Y

 4
0

 C
U

B
IC

 Y
A

R
D

S
 O

F
 C

L
E

A
N

 B
R

O
K

E
N

S
T
O

N
E

. 
 T

H
E

 U
T
IL

IT
Y

 T
R

E
N

C
H

 F
R

O
M

 T
H

E
 D

E
M

A
R

C
 T

O
 T

H
E

C
O

M
P

O
U

N
D

 W
IL

L
 E

X
C

A
V

A
T
E

 A
P

P
R

O
X

IM
A

T
E

L
Y

 7
2
0

 C
U

B
IC

Y
A

R
D

S
 O

F
 M

A
T
E

R
IA

L
 T

H
A

T
 W

IL
L
 B

E
 U

S
E

D
 T

O
 B

A
C

K
F

IL
L

T
H

E
 T

R
E

N
C

H
.

C
O

M
P

O
U

N
D

 A
R

E
A

 S
L
O

P
E

S
:

E
X

IS
T
IN

G
 -

 
  

0
%

-1
%

P
R

O
P

O
S

E
D

 -
 

  
0
%

-1
%

T
O

T
A

L
 A

R
E

A
 O

F
 D

IS
T
U

R
B

A
N

C
E

 =
 9

,5
0
0
±

 S
F

 (
0

.2
2
 A

C
.)

S
T
O

R
M

W
A

T
E

R
 V

E
L
O

C
IT

Y
:

  
  

 P
R

IO
R

 T
O

 G
R

O
U

N
D

 C
O

V
E

R
 <

 3
.0

 F
T
/S

E
C

  
  

 F
O

L
L
O

W
IN

G
 G

R
O

U
N

D
 C

O
V

E
R

 <
 3

.0
 F

T
/S

E
C

S
T
O

R
M

W
A

T
E

R
 V

O
L
U

M
E

:
  
  

 P
R

O
P

O
S

E
D

 IM
P

E
R

V
IO

U
S

 A
R

E
A

 =
 2

,0
1
0
 S

F
  
  

 W
A

T
E

R
 Q

U
A

L
IT

Y
 S

T
D

 V
O

L
U

M
E

 (
1
") 

=
 1

6
8

 C
F

  
  

 S
T
O

R
A

G
E

 V
O

L
U

M
E

 (
6

" 
D

E
P

T
H

, 
4

0
%

 V
O

ID
S

) 
=

 3
3
0
 C

F

G
R

O
U

N
D

 C
O

V
E

R
 T

O
 B

E
 E

S
T
A

B
L
IS

H
E

D
 A

S
 F

O
L
L
O

W
S

(U
.O

.N
):

  
 -

 W
H

IT
E

 C
L
O

V
E

R
 @

 0
.2

0
#

/-
 S

F
  
 -

 T
A

L
L
 F

E
S

C
U

E
 @

 0
.4

5
#

/-
 S

F
  
 -

 R
Y

E
G

R
A

S
S

 @
 0

.1
0

#
/-

 S
F

1 A
-1

N
E

W
 P

U
L
L
B

O
X

 (
L
O

C
A

T
IO

N
 T

O
 B

E
 D

E
T
E

R
M

IN
E

D
W

/ 
U

T
IL

IT
Y

 C
O

M
P

A
N

Y

8
5
.2

X
XX

X

8
5
.5

8
6
.1

8
6
.0

N
O

T
E

:
* 

C
O

N
T
R

A
C

T
O

R
 T

O
 V

E
R

IF
Y

 IN
 F

IE
L
D

. 
S

T
A

K
E

O
U

T
T
O

 B
E

 P
E

R
F

O
R

M
E

D
 B

Y
 L

IC
E

N
S

E
D

 S
U

R
V

E
Y

O
R

R
E

T
A

IN
E

D
 B

Y
 T

H
E

 C
O

N
T
R

A
C

T
O

R
 P

R
IO

R
 T

O
C

O
N

S
T
R

U
C

T
IO

N
 C

O
M

M
E

N
C

IN
G

.

47
'±

*

26
'-4

"±
*

P
R

O
JE

C
T
 L

IM
IT

S
 O

F
 D

IS
T
U

R
B

A
N

C
E

 (
L
.O

.D
.)
 =

9
,5

0
0
±

 S
F

 (
0
.2

2
 A

C
.)

R
E

M
O

V
E

 E
X

IS
T
IN

G
 T

R
E

E
 (
T
Y

P
 3

P
L
)

T
O

 E
X

IS
T
IN

G
U

N
-N

U
M

B
E

R
E

D
U

T
IL

IT
Y

 P
O

L
E

 @
W

H
IS

K
E

Y
 R

O
A

D
IN

T
E

R
S

E
C

T
IO

N

5
3
5
' L

IM
IT

S
 O

F
 N

Y
S

D
E

C
E

A
S

T
E

R
N

 T
IG

E
R

 S
A

L
A

M
A

N
D

E
R

B
R

E
E

D
IN

G
 P

O
N

D
 B

U
F

F
E

R

N
O

T
E

S
:

1
.

P
U

R
S

U
A

N
T
 T

O
 T

H
E

 N
Y

S
D

E
C

's
 S

E
P

T
E

M
B

E
R

 1
4
, 
2
0
2
3
 L

E
T
T
E

R
 O

F
 N

O
 J

U
R

IS
D

IC
T
IO

N
/N

O
 P

E
R

M
IT

 N
E

C
E

S
S

A
R

Y
D

E
T
E

R
M

IN
A

T
IO

N
 T

O
 A

V
O

ID
 IN

C
ID

E
N

T
A

L
 T

A
K

E
 O

F
  
N

O
R

T
H

E
R

N
 L

O
N

G
-E

A
R

E
D

 B
A

T
, 
T
R

E
E

 C
L
E

A
R

IN
G

 F
O

R
 T

H
E

P
R

O
JE

C
T
 IS

 P
R

O
H

IB
IT

E
D

 B
E

T
W

E
E

N
 J

U
N

E
 1

 A
N

D
 J

U
L
Y

 3
0
 O

F
 A

N
Y

 C
A

L
E

N
D

A
R

 Y
E

A
R

.
2
.

P
U

R
S

U
A

N
T
 T

O
 T

H
E

 N
Y

S
D

E
C

's
 S

E
P

T
E

M
B

E
R

 1
4
, 
2
0
2
3
 L

E
T
T
E

R
 O

F
 N

O
 J

U
R

IS
D

IC
T
IO

N
/N

O
 P

E
R

M
IT

 N
E

C
E

S
S

A
R

Y
D

E
T
E

R
M

IN
A

T
IO

N
, 
T
O

 A
V

O
ID

 IN
C

ID
E

N
T
A

L
 T

A
K

E
 O

F
 E

A
S

T
E

R
N

 T
IG

E
R

 S
A

L
A

M
A

N
D

E
R

, 
C

L
E

A
R

IN
G

, 
G

R
A

D
IN

G
, 
O

R
G

R
O

U
N

D
 D

IS
T
U

R
B

A
N

C
E

 IS
 P

R
O

H
IB

IT
E

D
 W

IT
H

IN
 5

3
5
 F

E
E

T
 O

F
 E

A
S

T
E

R
N

 T
IG

E
R

 S
A

L
A

M
A

N
D

E
R

 B
R

E
E

D
IN

G
 P

O
N

D
B

U
F

F
E

R
 S

H
O

W
N

 O
N

 S
H

E
E

T
S

 S
P

-1
 A

N
D

 S
P

-2
.

AutoCAD SHX Text
84.93

AutoCAD SHX Text
85.51

AutoCAD SHX Text
GATE

AutoCAD SHX Text
DIRT & GRAVEL

AutoCAD SHX Text
ASPHALT

AutoCAD SHX Text
85.07

AutoCAD SHX Text
85.79

AutoCAD SHX Text
86.13

AutoCAD SHX Text
85.58

AutoCAD SHX Text
85.22

AutoCAD SHX Text
86.58

AutoCAD SHX Text
86.66

AutoCAD SHX Text
85.19

AutoCAD SHX Text
85.38

AutoCAD SHX Text
85.65

AutoCAD SHX Text
85.60

AutoCAD SHX Text
85.30

AutoCAD SHX Text
85.47

AutoCAD SHX Text
85.56

AutoCAD SHX Text
85.72

AutoCAD SHX Text
86.17

AutoCAD SHX Text
85.66

AutoCAD SHX Text
86.06

AutoCAD SHX Text
85.68

AutoCAD SHX Text
85.40

AutoCAD SHX Text
85.19

AutoCAD SHX Text
85.50

AutoCAD SHX Text
85.62

AutoCAD SHX Text
85.84

AutoCAD SHX Text
86.62

AutoCAD SHX Text
87.00

AutoCAD SHX Text
86.13

AutoCAD SHX Text
85.33

AutoCAD SHX Text
85.53

AutoCAD SHX Text
85.52

AutoCAD SHX Text
86.45

AutoCAD SHX Text
86.22

AutoCAD SHX Text
86.37

AutoCAD SHX Text
86.61

AutoCAD SHX Text
85.27

AutoCAD SHX Text
85.40

AutoCAD SHX Text
85.85

AutoCAD SHX Text
85.83

AutoCAD SHX Text
86.00

AutoCAD SHX Text
86

AutoCAD SHX Text
86

AutoCAD SHX Text
86

AutoCAD SHX Text
86

AutoCAD SHX Text
86

AutoCAD SHX Text
87

AutoCAD SHX Text
87

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
10

AutoCAD SHX Text
10

AutoCAD SHX Text
20

AutoCAD SHX Text
5









   
 

Central Pine Barrens Commission Public Hearing 
 

Wednesday, May 21, 2025 
Riverhead Town Hall 

 
Homeland Towers  

Core Preservation Area Compelling Public Need Hardship Application 
2055 Flanders Road, Flanders, Southampton Town 
Suffolk County Tax Map Number 900-170-1-41.1  

 
 

List of Staff Report Exhibits 
 

 
 
A. Location Map with Aerial of Project Site 
 
B. Site Plan 
 
C. Photographs taken April 14, 2025 
 
D. Study Area Map, land use map (VHB), and zoning map 
 
E. Southampton Town Planning Board materials 
 
F. Applicant’s Petition, balloon test photos and Site Search Summary 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

Timothy C. Hubbard 
Member  

 
Maria Z. Moore 

Member 
 

Daniel J. Panico 
Member 

 
Edward P. Romaine 

Member 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

624 Old Riverhead Road 
Westhampton Beach, NY 

11978 
 

Phone (631) 288-1079 
Fax (631) 288-1367 
www.pb.state.ny.us 

http://www.pb.state.ny.us/


Draft Staff Report 1 Core Hardship application 
 

Draft Staff Report 
CENTRAL PINE BARRENS JOINT PLANNING & POLICY COMMISSION 

for the Commission meeting of May 21, 2025 

 

PROJECT NAME: Homeland Towers Core Preservation Area  
Compelling Public Need Hardship Application 

APPLICATION TIMELINE: 

- March 5, 2025 Application received (120-day decision deadline July 3) 

- March 19, 2025 Scheduled public hearing 

- March 25, 2025 Supplemental material received and request to     
postpone hearing to May 21 and extend timeframes 30 days  

- April 16, 2025 Public hearing rescheduled to May 21 

- May 8, 2025 additional material submitted 

    - May 21, 2025 Public hearing 

    - July 23, 2025 Decision Deadline (Meetings July 16 and August 20) 

APPLICANT: Robert Gaudioso, Attorney, Snyder and Snyder and David Wortman, VHB 

PROJECT SITE LOCATION: 2055 Flanders Road, Flanders, Town of Southampton, 
Central Pine Barrens Core Preservation Area,  

SUFFOLK COUNTY TAX MAP NUMBER: 900-170-1-41.1 

TOTAL PROJECT SITE AREA: 6.18 acres 

ZONING DISTRICT: Country Residence 60 Zoning District  
(minimum lot area 60,000 square feet) 

EXISTING CONDITIONS 

The Project Site is 6.18 acres. It presently contains a pre-existing non-conforming junkyard and two-story 
office building. See Exhibit A for a location map including a 2023 aerial overview and the Project Site.  

APPLICATION REQUEST 

The Application is for the development of a 150 foot tall monopole wireless tower. Other facilities include 
a 3,000 square foot equipment compound and 1,500 gallons of propane storage capacity for an emergency 
generator. Approximately 0.07 acre (3,049 square feet) of the Project Site will be developed for the Project. 
See Exhibit B for the site plan. 



Draft Staff Report 2 Core Hardship application 
 

According to the owner’s affidavit by Scott Perlow, President of the S&F Riverside Corporation, the 
property was purchased on December 30, 2024.  

SITE DESCRIPTION AND STUDY AREA 

A general description of the existing conditions and features on the Project includes: 
 

Existing Land Use: The site is developed with an automotive junkyard and two-story building. A limited 
amount of vegetation is present on the site’s boundaries. See discussion of Study Area below and 
Exhibit C for photographs. 
 
Vegetation and habitat: Limited vegetation is present on the site except on the perimeter of the site 
including pitch pine trees, oaks and other pine barrens vegetation. 
 
Rare, Endangered, & Threatened Species and Species of Concern: Awaiting response from New York 
State Department of Environmental Conservation Natural Heritage Program.  
 
Wetlands: No wetlands are mapped on the property. Tidal wetlands in Peconic Bay Estuary are present 
opposite the site in the Core in Hubbard County Park. 
      
Hydrology: Hydrogeologic Zone III. Depth to groundwater on site is approximately 24 feet.  
 
Water Supply: Check public water availability. 
  
Topography/Elevation: 0 to 10% slopes. 
 
Soils: The predominant soil types on the Project Site are Carver and Plymouth soils, 3 to 15 percent 
slopes.  
 
Cultural/Archeological Resources: By letter dated May 14, 2025, the New York State Historic 
Preservation Office stated, “The proposed tower will have No Effect on Historic Properties.”  

 
Project Site and Study Area Surrounding Land Use and Zoning  

The Study Area is one-half mile radius from the site. See Exhibit D for the Study Area map. The Project 
Site is on Flanders Road (New York State Route 24). Flanders Road, a two-lane road except for a portion 
where there are two southbound lanes, is a critical artery that connects the north and south forks from 
Hampton Bays on the south to Flanders and Riverside in Southampton Town. According to the NYSDOT 
Region 10 traffic viewer, the average daily traffic volume exceeds 21,000 vehicles on this roadway. 

Flanders Road serves as the Core and Central Pine Barrens boundary. All of the Study Area is in the Core 
Preservation Area except for the portion in the northwest corner of the Study Area that is outside of the 
boundary of the Central Pine Barrens.  

All land use in the Study Area is natural open space, public land owned by Suffolk County, except for the 
Project Site and residential uses developed on an estimated six parcels totaling 11 acres on the south side 
of Flanders Road, west of the Project Site. County Parklands in the Study Area include Hubbard, Sears 
Bellows and Maple Swamp. 



Draft Staff Report 3 Core Hardship application 
 

The north side of the Project Site has approximately 200 feet of Frontage on Flanders Road. The south, 
west and north sides are adjacent to 264 acres of open space uses; a 0.6 acre lot, developed with a residence, 
adjoins the Project Site on its north side. The open space adjacent to the Site and within the Study Area 
offers extensive hiking trails for public recreation. 

The north side of Flanders Road, approximately 600 feet west of the Project Site, is outside of the Central 
Pine Barrens boundary. 

Flanders Road is defined as a scenic resource in Volume 2 of the Plan, Chapter 8, Scenic Resources. 
Sections 8.5.19 and 8.5.22 of the Plan describe scenic resources. The Volume 2 descriptions state:  

8.5.19 SEARS BELLOWS / MAPLE SWAMP / FLANDERS HILLS COUNTY PARKLAND 
FROM FLANDERS ROAD (NYS 24) SOUTH TO SUNRISE HIGHWAY; FROM 
PLEASURE DRIVE EAST TO BELLOWS POND ROAD 

This complex consists of diverse vegetation, upland forests, high and breezy ridges east of Spinney 
Road with some short distance views to the east, and wetlands and surface waters associated with 
Maple Swamp, Birch Creek, Owl Pond, Sears Pond and other local water bodies. Extensive stands 
of mountain laurel exemplify the diversity of trail views in the midst of the pine-oak woodlands 
here. 

8.5.22 FLANDERS AND HUBBARD COUNTY PARKS, SOUTHAMPTON TOWN RED 
CREEK PARKLAND 

These lands and waters (some are currently restricted) offer rural scenes blending land and water, 
with elements of former hunting lodges and fields visible. Goose, Birch, Mill and Hubbard Creek 
provide scenic coastal views from, and of, the waters of Flanders Bay. Penny Pond, Red Creek 
Pond and (some distance further east) Squire Pond also provide water vistas and scenes frequented 
by wildlife. Historical resources include the hunting and fishing clubs noted under the Flanders 
Road corridor entry above. 

More than 5,000 acres of open space is connected to and in the vicinity of the open space that is present in 
the Study Area. Directly opposite the Project Site are tidal wetlands that are part of Peconic Bay Estuary a 
nationally designated estuary and Hubbard County Park.  

No sites with prior hardships are present in the Study Area.  

Zoning 

The Study Area zoning includes CR 6-0 and CR 200 south of Flanders Road, Open Space Conservation to 
the north, in Hubbard County Park. The northwest corner of the Study Area, outside of the Central Pine 
Barrens boundary, is zoned R10.  

WATER RESOURCES AND SANITARY WASTEWATER FLOW 

The site is in Groundwater Management Zone III. No change to the septic system or wastewater flow is 
proposed. 



Draft Staff Report 4 Core Hardship application 
 

REQUIRED REVIEW AND APPROVALS 

New York State Environmental Quality Review Act 

Pursuant to Section 617 of the State Environmental Quality Review Act (SEQRA) regulations, the 
application is classified as an Unlisted Action.  

On March 19, 2025, the Commission commenced the SEQRA process pursuant to Section 617.6 of the 
SEQRA regulations. Pursuant to the Central Pine Barrens Comprehensive Land Use Plan Section 4.5.1.1, 
the Commission shall seek Lead Agency status. No other involved agency objected to the Commission 
assuming lead agency. A public hearing on the Hardship application was scheduled for April 16.  

On April 16, the Commission, at the request of the applicant, extended the decision deadline and 
postponed the public hearing from April 16 to May 21 and all associated timeframes. 

Draft documents to complete the SEQRA process will be prepared once all relevant information for the 
project and hearing testimony is received. 

Other Involved Agencies and Permit Requirements  

The Commission coordinated the application with other agencies including: 

• New York State Department of Environmental Conservation 

• New York State Department of Transportation. Response dated March 27, 2025 indicated that a 
highway work permit will be required for the work on State Highway Route 24. 

• Town of Southampton  

o Planning Board materials (See Exhibit E) 

 SEQRA Coordination response dated March 27, 2025 did not object to the 
Commission assuming Lead Agency. 

 Resolution #49518 dated April 10, 2025 and a Pre-Submission Report dated May 
25, 2023 for a Site Plan/Special Exception Application provided comments on 
the Project. 

o Zoning Board of Appeals by letter dated April 3, 2025 did not object to the Commission 
assuming Lead Agency.  

PINE BARRENS CREDIT PROGRAM 

No Credit Program application is present in the record on this property.  

CENTRAL PINE BARRENS STATUS 

The proposed project constitutes “development” pursuant to NYS Environmental Conservation Law §57-
0107(13)(b) and (c): 



Draft Staff Report 5 Core Hardship application 
 

 “(b) a material increase in the intensity of use of land or environmental impacts as a result 
 thereof;”  

 “(c) commencement of mining, excavation or material alteration of grade or vegetation on 
 a parcel of land excluding environmental restoration activities;” 

The project is a development activity in the Core Preservation Area, the project must establish hardship as 
outlined in the Act. 
 
§ 57-0123. Implementation of the Central Pine Barrens comprehensive land use plan. 
  
 “Subsequent to the adoption of the land use plan, the provisions of any other law, ordinance, rule 
 or regulation to the contrary notwithstanding, no application for development within the Central 
 Pine Barrens area shall be approved by any municipality or county or agency thereof or the 
 commission, and no state approval, certificate, license, consent, permit, or financial assistance 
 for the construction of any structure or the disturbance of any land within such area shall be 
 granted, unless such approval or grant conforms to the provisions of such land use plan; 
 provided, however, that the commission by majority vote is hereby authorized to waive strict 
 compliance with such plan or with any element or standard contained therein, for an application 
 for development of any person, upon finding that such waiver is necessary to alleviate hardship 
 for proposed development in the core preservation area according to the conditions and finding 
 of extraordinary hardship or compelling public need pursuant to subdivision ten of section 57-
 0121 of this article,…” 

Section 4.5.1.1 of the Comprehensive Land Use Plan states the Commission shall seek Lead Agency 
status for development proposes in the Core pursuant to SEQRA.  

The Applicant seeks a Compelling Public Need Hardship in accordance with ECL §57-0121. See Exhibit 
F for a copy of the Applicant’s petition including copies of images of the balloon test for the monopole to 
determine its visibility from various points surrounding the Project Site and the May 8 Site Search 
Summary. 

CORE AREA HARDSHIP ECL ARTICLE 57 - 0121 (10) 

10. Any person, upon a showing of hardship caused by the provisions of subdivision eight of this section 
on development in the core preservation area, may apply to the commission for a permit exempting such 
person from such subdivision eight in connection with any proposed development in the core preservation 
area. Such application for an exemption pursuant to the demonstration of hardship within the core 
preservation area shall be approved only if the applicant satisfies the following conditions and 
extraordinary hardship or compelling public need is determined to have been established under the 
following standards: 

(a) The particular physical surroundings, shape or topographical conditions of the specific 
property involved would result in an extraordinary hardship, as distinguished from a mere 
inconvenience, if the provisions of this act are literally enforced. An applicant shall be deemed to 
have established the existence of extraordinary hardship only if he demonstrates, based on 
specific facts, that the subject property does not have any beneficial use if used for its present use 



Draft Staff Report 6 Core Hardship application 
 

or developed as authorized by the provisions of this article, and that this inability to have a 
beneficial use results from unique circumstances peculiar to the subject property which: 

(i) Do not apply to or affect other property in the immediate vicinity; 

(ii) Relate to or arise out of the characteristics of the subject property rather than the 
personal situation of the applicant; or 

(iii) Are not the result of any action or inaction by the applicant or the owner or his 
predecessors in title including any transfer of contiguous lands which were in common 
ownership on or after June 1, 1993. 

(b) An applicant shall be deemed to have established compelling public need if the applicant 
demonstrates, based on specific facts, one of the following: 

(i) The proposed development will serve an essential health or safety need of the municipality or, 
in the case of an application serving more than one of the municipalities that the public health 
and safety require the requested waiver, that the public benefits from the proposed use are of a 
character that override the importance of the protection of the core preservation area as 
established in this article, that the proposed use is required to serve existing needs of the 
residents, and that no feasible alternatives exist outside the core preservation area to meet the 
established public need and that no better alternatives exist within the county; or 

(ii) The proposed development constitutes an adaptive reuse of an historic resource designated by 
the commission and said reuse is the minimum relief necessary to ensure the integrity and 
continued protection of the designated historic resource and further that the designated historic 
resource's integrity and continued protection cannot be maintained without the granting of a 
permit. 

c) An application for a permit in the core preservation area shall be approved only if it is determined that 
the following additional standards also are met: 

(i) The granting of the permit will not be materially detrimental or injurious to other property or 
improvements in the area in which the subject property is located, increase the danger of fire, 
endanger public safety or result in substantial impairment of the resources of the core 
preservation area; 

(ii) The waiver will not be inconsistent with the purposes, objectives or the general spirit and 
intent of this article; or 

(iii) The waiver is the minimum relief necessary to relieve the extraordinary hardship, which may 
include the granting of a residential development right to other lands in the compatible growth 
area that may be transferred or clustered to those lands to satisfy the compelling public need. 

Any waiver or exemption granted under the provisions of this part shall only be considered an exemption 
or waiver of the particular standard of this article which the commission waived. It shall not constitute an 
approval of the entire development proposal. Nor shall it constitute a waiver from any requirements 
contained within any local, county or state law or ordinance. 



Draft Staff Report 7 Core Hardship application 
 

PRIOR COMMISSION DECISIONS ON SIMILAR MATTERS 

Other similar projects include:  

• Gazza Communications Monopole Core Hardship, Positive Declaration, terminated August 11, 
2010 

• Rockwell Collins Compelling Public Need, granted August 19, 2015 

• Sunrise Wind Compelling Public Need, granted April 20, 2022 

DISCUSSION ITEMS/ADDITIONAL INFORMATION  

1. SEQRA  
a. Commission assumes Lead Agency status.  
b. SEQRA Determination consider at the June 18, 2025 meeting, prepare EAF Parts 2 and 3 

and Determination of Significance. Potential significant adverse environmental impacts 
on the Flanders Road scenic corridor, not consistent with adopted plans including the 
Central Pine Barrens Comprehensive Land Use Plan, Southampton Town Wireless Plan 
and Zoning Code, potential impacts on natural open space, public land, scenic views and 
land use, NY State Coastal Area Boundary, and other potential adverse impacts including 
potential impacts of storing 1,500 gallons of flammable propane adjacent to significant 
areas of open space in the event of wildfire. 

2. Receive response from NYSDEC Natural Heritage Program on listed species.  
3. Is public water available on site or in the vicinity, in event of wildfire, propane tanks and in 

vicinity of more than 5,000 acres of open space. 
4. Review the Applicant’s review of criteria in Article 57 for Compelling Public Need Hardship. 
5. Request the applicant to propose other designs including shorter pole(s) if need is primarily for 

emergency use, no lease area if not for public need or emergencies and alternative locations 
outside of the boundary of the Central Pine Barrens, 600 feet north and opposite the site is outside 
of the boundaries of the Central Pine Barrens and Core. 

6. Additional analyses may be necessary after the public hearing and/or receipt of any additional 
information. Additional time may be needed to review the May 8 supplemental material. 

7. Consider leaving the hearing open for a five-day written comment period. 
8. Confirm the decision deadline is extended to the August 20, 2025 meeting. 

 

STAFF EXHIBITS  

A. Location Map with Aerial of Project Site 

B. Site Plan 

C. Photographs taken April 14, 2025 

D. Study Area Map, land use map (VHB), and zoning map 

E. Southampton Town Planning Board materials 

F. Applicant’s Petition, balloon test photos and Site Search Summary 



Homeland Towers Flanders 2024

polygonLayer
Override 1

Tax Parcels

Community Boundaries

State Routes
State Routes

Highway Ramp

County Routes
County Route

Collector Roads
Collector Roads

Streets
Streets

Trustee Maintained Roads

Potential Trustee Roads

Access / Private Roads
Access

Private

Author:  

0 0.025 0.050.0125 mi

0 0.04 0.080.02 km

Prepared by The Town of Southampton
GIS Department

April 15, 2025















for reference only





0
0.

2
0.

4
0.

1
m

i

0
0.

3
0.

6
0.

1
5

km

P
re

p
ar

ed
 b

y 
T

he
 T

ow
n 

of
 S

o
u

th
am

pt
o

n
G

IS
 D

ep
a

rtm
e

nt

M
ay

 7
, 2

0
25

A
u

th
o

r:
  

 






























































































	epacket
	2025-05-21_epacket cover
	ag250521_final
	CPBC_Agenda_Map_5-21-25
	Item 1b_250416_Draft Summary_abw_jh
	Item 1c_2025-0521  draft reso ATV_SC Park rangers
	Item 1c_2025-0521  draft reso ATV_SC Park rangers
	Item 1c_LEC ATV Quotes & Tires

	Item 1d_2025-0516  draft reso ATV_SC Sheriffs
	Item 3a_PSEG
	2025-05-21_draft letter PSEG pole replacements
	PSEG Pine Barrens Notification of Work_2024-04-11
	2025 Pine Barrens Poles - Figures.pdf
	79a PB
	sub5 13.5 PB

	2025 Pine Barrens Poles - Photolog.pdf
	IMG_1894
	IMG_2586
	IMG_2599




	Item 3b_Camp_Wauwepex
	epacket
	Item 3c_Crest Coram
	2025-05-21 Crest Coram Referral Response - TM 5
	2024-018-CZ 2025-05-01 Initial Coordination Letter
	2025 Crest Coram Aerial
	Crest Coram 711-Concept Plan
	Sheets and Views
	XXX-01-SITE-05-SITE




	cover sb
	epacket
	Item 3d_ starbucks
	sb map
	Item _ starbucks.pdf
	A_2024-12-31 Middle Island Starbucks Aerial

	Item _ starbucks.pdf
	F_Applicants Criteria
	Project Description

	Item _ starbucks
	C_2025-03-07 Site Plan

	sb standards

	Item 3e_verizon
	Item _verizon
	2025-04-16_draft letter Verizon-rev2
	aerial
	aerial zoom
	letter and site plan
	Ltr to Pine Barrens 3-20-25
	site plan extract


	verizon site photos

	Item 4a_Homeland Towers
	exhibit list
	2025-05-21_draft staff report_Homeland
	The project is a development activity in the Core Preservation Area, the project must establish hardship as outlined in the Act.
	§ 57-0123. Implementation of the Central Pine Barrens comprehensive land use plan.

	2024 Aerial
	homelnd2
	homelnd3
	homelnd4
	homeland photos
	Homeland Towers study area map
	land use map
	zoning
	town reso and report
	town reso and report
	resolution

	town resolution stamp Apr 17
	town reso and report
	town staff report


	2025-03-25_supplemental info petition
	Pine Barrens Letter 3.25.25

	extract hardship
	DOC_20250515171403
	DOC_20250515171428
	DOC_20250515171944
	1. Alternative Sites Affidavit





